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LEGISLATIVE HEARING: REGIt)L.JATIONS ON THE
SOLOMON AMENDMENT TO THE DEFENSE AU-
THORIZATION AVM OF 1983

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 1983

HOUSE OF yEPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTS CONDARY EDUCATION,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 9:30 a.m., in room
340, Cannon House Office BuildingeHon. Paul Simon (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Simon, Kogovsek, Harrison,
Boucher, Coleman, Gunderson, Petri, and Packard.

Staff present: William Blakey, majority staff director, Maryln
McAdam, majority legislative assistant, John Dean, assistant mi-
nority counsel, and Betsy Brand, minority legislative associate.

Mr. SIMON. Good morning. The Subcorpmittee on Postsecondary
Education is called to order.

We have under consideration the Solomon amendment regula-
tions proposed by the Department of Education. jhe Solomon
amendment was included in therDepartment of Defease Authoriza-
tion Act of 1983. It requires that any student be registered under
the military's Selective Service Act in order to receive title IV Fed-
eral student assistance.

Let nee just add I have some philosophical ncerns here, and I
am speaking for mself alone and not for th libcommittee. I sup-
ported registration. I supported it when the rter administration
opposed it. I supported it when the Carter administration support-
ed it. But there has been a long tradition in our country of recog-
nizing the scruples of conscience that some have in regard to mill-..

tary service. I fear that the fundamental problem we face is not so
much the Solomon amendment as whether we can, in some more
effective way, recognize that there are people who for reasons of
conscience do not Want to comply with draft registration.

But our purRose here today is not to examine that fundamental
philosophical)firoblem, bit to see how we can work out something
that is effective with the regulations. We expect to be letting the
Department of Education know of any modifications that we may
wish to see in the regulations.

Our concerns are basically these four: No. 1, does the proposed/
rule comport with congressional intent and does it address Con-
gress concern that unnecessary administrative and paperwork bur-
dens not be placed on institutions of higher education.

(1)
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,
-NumberItwo, has the regulat.on allocated .- nforcement responsi-

,. bility for this law to posisecon ary. institutio s rather than to the
Selective, Service System.

Numlfer three, does the Selective Service System have the dem-
onstrated capacity to keep its coMmitment to timely notify stu-
dents by letter of the completion of their registration responsibil-
ities under the law.

And finally, what. constitutional and legal problems have been
created by the Department's proposed rule?

I am concerned that we may be creating some very real prAlems
for the colleges and universities as well as for potential students.

The experience I had with my own son registering and not rf-
ceiving notification for some time that he was registered is an irali-
cation of the kind of problems we have and I am sure that, General

1 Turnage *ill speOk to these"problerns.
Tomorrow we will be hearing from the higher education commu-

nity. We will be hearing today from some of my colleagues in the
House, from General Turnage and from the Assistant Secretary of
Education.

I am pleased to call as our first, witness Congressman Bob Edgar,
a Member from Pennsylvania, who took an active party debate on .
the floor on the amendment. Before I call on Bob Edgar let me just,
ask my colleagues if they wish to add anything before we btgin.

Mr. Packard'
Mr. PACKARD. No, thank you. ---

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Kogovsek.
Mr. KOGOVSEK. No comment. at this time, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson. , ,,
Mr. GUNDERSON. No, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Fine.
We welcome you to our subcommittee.

STATEMENT OF HON. ROBERT EDGAR, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA

Mr. EDGAR. Mr. Chairman, I wan l to say a word of appreciation
to you and to your committee for holding timely hearings on this
very important issue. We are here today to look primarily at the
regulations that are being set forward to comply with the Solomon
amendment.

As the lead-off witness, I must say that I have a slightly different
perspective than some who will testify because I joineeI with you
and others on the floor when the Solomon amendment was put for-
ward lat, spring or last summer and was passed' to public law. I
opposecPit then and I oppose it now, and I have introduced a bill to
appeal the Solomon amendment.

And I have done so because I think that many of the arguments
we used during the couNe of debate on the Ilouse floor are still
very real. And after l9oking at the regulations that have been laid
out for implementation of the Solomon amendment, I am even
more concerned than I was then that the implications are very se-
rious and very onerous to our society.

Under the Solomon amendment, any student wht is required to
register with the Selective Service. ailed who fails tol* provide evi-

0
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device that he has done so may not receive Federal student aid
_after July 1 under title IV of the Higher Education Act. This in-
- eludes Pell grants, NDSL and GSL loans, work-study aid, educa-

.4'

,tiona,1 opportunity grants and State student incentive grants.
The regulations to implement the daw are now under public con-

sideration and under the consideration of this subcommittee. There
are some real problems with the regulations, but with your permis-
sion, Mr. Chairman, I would like to discuss the basic problems with
the law itself.

Other witnesses will undoubtedly discuss the-regulations in greatdetail and I do hope we can alleviate the unnecessary burdens
these regulations impose. However, I ask the subcommittee to keep
in mind throughout the hearing the serious problems behind the
regulations.

Even the best regulations, and the regulations proposed by the
Department of Education are certainly not that, could not make
this particular law a good law. /

The Solomon amendment attempts to punish students who do
not register for the draft, but it is misguided and unfair. Let me
list four or five reasons why I believe that. First, the law is unfair.
In my opinion, it places the burden only on young men, not on
women or older men, and furthermore, only on young men who
attend college and who need financial aid to do so.

What about wealthy norvegistrants? You -do not need a long
memory to recall the inequities of the draft during the Vietnam
days when many white, well- placed, well-heeled young men avoided
military service while Many dutiful, but less fortunate Americans
resentfully bore their burdens in that war.

Also, the law is unnecessary. There are already severe penalties
for violators of the selective service law, up to o years imprison-
ment and up to $10,000 in fihes.

Let me just pause here and point out the fact that we still have
laws on the books for punishment for failing to register, failing to
fill out this little card from the post office, the same penalties for
failing to show up for the draft that we had during the late sixties
and early seventies. No place on this card, Mr. Chairman, is there
a box to check off for reasons of conscience your unwillingness to
comply: No place on this card is there an opportunity for people to
share their own personal reasons; by judgment or conscience, that
they could not comply with the law.

And yet, for failing to give us their name, their address and some
very basic information they are given these very, very severe pen-
alties and punishments.

Those uniShments are already there. If I had my way, I would
make failure to register for the draft, which is not in existence, butfailure to register that had far less severe punishments
than are already in law. The Solomon amendment lays up on top
of that a selected, targeted punishment for those who are in need
of student educational grants. The punishment imposed by this law
does not fit the offense it is intended to correct. There is no logical
connection between student 'aid and draft registration, but the Se-
lective Service has found a convenient mechanism for enforcing the
registration lawmake colieges and universities the enforcers.
This is clearly an inappropriate action in our society.



In my opinion, Mr. Chairman, the Government should not make
Americans pass tests of patriotisin before it extends the benefits of
our system to them. We could enlarge the principle of the Solomon
hniendment not just to include student aid, but also countless other
benefits we all receive from our Government.

Imagine the outcry, if we tried to enforeattax laws by requiringg
every applicant for social security to present a letter from the IRS
certifying compliance. How many other tests of good citizenship we
could impose? Have they paid their taxes? Do they salute the flag?
The next logical question would be, and I shudder to think, hltve
you taken a loyalty oath?

Of course, young men should serve their country. By the way, I
support. a system of universal national set is that will allow every
one to serve his or her country. Now the la is fOr men to register.

But let us impose a law not for just men to register. But let us
impose a penalty on lawbreakers only after the offense, not before.
Unde-r this law, we would presume the young men have violated
the registration laws unless they present certification, that they
have not.

Are we presumed to be bad citizen unworthy of receiving bene-
fits until we prove our good citizenship?

Mr. Chairman, anther extremely important point. that I am
sure you will appreciate is that not every non registrant is an irre-
sponsible lawbreaker. For generations our society has respected the
rights of people who for religious or moral reasons refuse to serve
in the military.

Under the current registration's-Lim, there is no provision for
theSe people to indicate their conscientious objection at the tithe of
registration. They must register for the draft the same as everyone,
else. They are told that if a draft is instituted, then they should
speak up. This is not satisfactory: Many young men for moral and
religious reasons are refusing to register at all and we should make
provisions to recognize their legal rights as conscientious objectors.
And I support your position on)this issue.

Mr. Chairman, the probers are fundamental to the law and
cannot be removed by simply changing and altering the regula-
tions: The administratie burden can be lessened but the odious
law would remain.

It is true that the 'regulations are more burdensome than re-
quired by law The law requires that only eligible students submit
a statement/of compliance amid that the student be given notice of
proposed denial if the application is unsatisfactory. Is it really nec-
essary to double the paperwork by requiring that all students, men
and women, complete the forms.

Swarthmore College, which is in my district, will be testifying
before you tomorrow, and other universities fym the State of
Pennsylvania will, in fact; testify as to the burdensome nature of
the regulations. I will not go into detail at this point, but I share
their concern and I hope you as members of this subcommittee will
look carefully at their comments.

Let me close with this thought.
Even if the administrative burden on colleges were reduced

greatly, the law would still favor the rich. It would still impose re-
dundant punishment. It would still presume the guilt of students.

10)



,
It would still punish conscientious objectors. It would still insult.
the large majority of Americans by questioning their allegiance. It,
would still a first cousin of such dreadful, un-American ideas as
loyalty oaths.

If someone tells you that this law was designed to get. at the
w ,.t. elements of society, irresponsible, unpatriotic shirkers, you
should_ remind that person that Einstein was a pacifist and most
.likely would have been denied college aid under this law. Our
nation cannot afford to waste the minds of many future young Ein-
steins. ,

Mr. Chairman, I thank you for the opportunity to testify and I
stand ready to answer any of the questions that you might have.

Mr. SIMON. Thank you very much for your statement. .
IncAntally; we will enter your full statement in the record and

all the other statements that will follow for those who do not.
present their statements precisely.

[The prepared statement of Congressman Bob Edgar follows:]
4.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. BOB EL*AR A R.F.euEsEivrivrivE IN CONGRESS FRAM
TIIE STATF. rIF PENNSYLVANIA

Mr Chairman.'I very much appreciate your extending me the opportunity to tes-
tify before your distinguished Subcommittee today. The question at, hand is one that
concerns me deeply, and you will recall the vigorous discussion when I joined you
and others on thin floor oftthe llouse last summer to argue against, the amendment
Mr. Solomon proposed to the Defense Authorization Bill. I thank you for the kitten;
tam and effort you devoted to this matter then and the attehtion and effort you
have continued to devote to related matters of military service, registration, and thedraft. ,

Today we consider the Solomon Amendment as passed and as the Department of
Education proposes to implement it. I strongly oppose this law; my bill, H.R. 1286,
would repeal the Solomon Amendment. My arguments today will deal only with
this law and are intended to he independent of arguments for or against-registration
in general or arguments for or against the draft.

Under the Solomon Amendment. any student who is required to register with the
Selective Service and who fails to provide evidence that he has done so may not re-
ceive federal student aid after July 1 under Title IV of the Higher Education Act.
This includes Pell GrantS, NDSL and GSL loans, work-study aid, Educational Oppor-
tunity Grants, and State Student. Incentive Grants. The regulations to implement
that law are now under public cons' eration and under the consideration or this
Subcommittee. There are some rea oblems with the regulations, Out with you
permission, Mr. Chairmftn, I would e to discuss the basic problems/with the law.
Other witnesses undoubtedly will discusshe regulations in great detail. I too hope
we can alleviate the unnecessary burden these regftlations impose. However, I ask
the Subcommittee to keep in mind throughout the hearings the serious problems
beneath the regulations. Even the best regulations and the regulations proposed by
the Department of Education are, certainly not that) could not make this a good law.

The Solomon Amendment attempts to punish students who do not register for the
drkift, but it is misguided and unfair. Really, iLis a dangerous law masquerading as
patriotism, and it runs counter to basic American ideals.

This law is unfair. It places a burden,only on young men, not on women or on
older men, and furthermore only on young men who attend college and who need
financial aid to do so. What about wealthy non-registrants? You do not need a long
memory to recall the inequities of the draft during the Vietnam days when many
white, well-placed, well-heeled young men avoided military service while many duti-
ful, but less fortunate Americans resentfully bore their burdens in the war.

This law is unnecessary. There are already severe penalties for violators of Selec-
tive Service lawup to five years ithprisonment and up to a $10,000 fine.

The punishment imposed by this law does not fit the offense it is intended to cor-
rect. There is no logical connection between student aid and draft registration. But
the Selective Service has found a convenient mechanism for enforcing the registra-
tion lawmake colleges and lenders the enforcers. This is clearly inappropriate in°

our society.



The government should not make Americans pass tests of patriotism before it ex-
tends the benefits of the system to them. We could enlarge the principle of the Solo-
mon Amendment to include not just student-aid but also the countless other bene-
fits we all receive from our government_ Imagine the outcry if we tried to enforce
tax laws by requiring every applicant for Social Security to present a letter from
the IRS certifying compliance. How ninny other tests of good citizenship we could
impose. Have they paid their taxes? Do they saute the flag? The next logical ques-
tion would be. I shudder to think, Ilave you taken a loyalty oath?

Of course, young men should serve their country. iAnd by the way. I support. a
system of universal national service that will allow everyone to serve his or her
country.) Now the law is for men to register. but let us impose a penalty on law-
breakers only after the offense, riot bef e. Under this law we would prestime the
young man has violated the registry law unless be presents certification that he
has not. Are we presumed to be b d citizens, unworthly of receiving benefits, until
we prove we are good citizens?

Another extremely important point Nutt I am sure you will appreciate, Mr. Chair-
man, is that not every non-registrant is an irresponsible lawbreaker. For genera,-
tains our society has respected the right of people who for religious or moral rea-
sons refuse to serve in thq tim*r the current registration law there is no
provision for these people to indicate their conscientious objection at the time of reg-
istration They must register for the draft the same as everyone else. They are told
that if a draft is instituted then they should speak up. This is not satisfactory. Many
young men for moral arid religious reasons are refusing to register at all. We should
make provisions to recognize their legal rights as conscientious objectors. I support
your position on this, Mr Chairman.

These problems are fundamental to the law tITRI cannot he removed by changing
the regulations. The administrative burden can be lessened. but the odious law
would remain.

It is true that the regulations are more burdensome than required by the law.
The law requires only that eligible students submit a "statement of compliance"
and that the student be given notice of proposed denial if the application is unsatis-
factory. Is it really necessary to double the paperwork by requiring that all stu-
dents, men and`women complete the forms? The law calls for a verkfication proce-
dure. I3ut is it wise to put all of the administrative burden of verification on the
colleges? (You will recall last year that the Secretary of Education had some doubts
about the feasibility of the law because of the increased government workload, but
now that seems to be no problem. They just shift it all to the schools.) Under the
regulations the schools must obtain confirmatory documentary evidence of compli-
ance. It that necessary? It is already 2,) criminal offense to lie on a federal financial
aid application. Why do we need mBre elaborate verification procedures? It does
appear that superimposing penalties on top of one another is in the spirit of this
law. If two wrongs don't snake a right, try three.

Swarthmore College iJ in my district. They have estimated the expense of time
these regulations will cost them. Even for such a small school the administrative
burden will be large_ The President of Swarthmore will discuss that burden in detail
for you tomorfow. What about a larger school? A large school. could deal with these
regulations only by being inflexibly efficient. No letter; no aid'. This leads us to con-
sider the record orthe Selective Service for efficiency.

I hear about young men who have registered promptly and correctly and who are
now being notified by the Selective Service that a routine check of files shows they
have not registered. No letter; no aid. Ng aid; no education. We can expect many
interrupted college careers.

College representatives will he speaking to you about their b,-urden, and it is real.
I support the efforts of Mrs. ,Schroeder and others to soften the itnpact on colleges
by delay and modification of the regulations. We may be able. to make the Depart-
ment of Education shift some of the burden back to themselveS and to the Selective
Set-vice. I am also concerned about the burden that would remain on the student.
The law is so bad that no amount of tinkering with the regulations will make it a
good law. I hope that whatever improvements we persuade the Department of Edu-
cation to make will not mollify the colleges and universities arid lead them to turn
away from what they should dowork for the repeal of the Solomon Amendment.

Even if the administrative burden on the college were reduced greatly, the law
would Still favor the rich. It would still impose redundant punishment. It would still
presumethe guilt of students. It would still punish conscientious objectors. It would
still insult' the large majority of Americans by questioning their allegiance. It would
still be a first cousin of such dreadful un-American ideas as loyalty oaths.

12
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If someone tells you that this law is designed to get at the worst elements of soci-
etyirresponsible, unpatriotic shirkersyou should remind that person that Ein-
stein was a pacifist and most likely would have been denied college aid under this
law. Our nation cannot afford to waste the minds of many future young Einsteins.

Perhaps some of us who are critical of the draft or the current registration law
are more likely to look for faults with this law, but I hope that thoughtful peOple
who support registration as well es those who favor a draft will look seriously at the
implications of this linkage of student aid and draft registration. You will be struck
by the qprious problems it presents. It was passed as a simple, strong, statement of
patriotrshi, but the irony is that in the name of preparing a national defense the
law undermines basic civil rights as well as educational opportunities. After all, the
reason we might want a military draft is to defend such things as freedom df con-
science and freedom of opportunity, including educational opportunity.

[From the Philadelphia Inquirer, Feb. 22, 19831

THE DRAFT-FINANCIAL Am CONNECTION

(By Representative Robert W. Edgar) '

Suppose I told you that there was a law preventing your mother or any older
woman from receiving social Security payments until she presented a letter from
the IRS 'certifying that she had always been in compliance with federal tax laws.
Our conversation might go something like this:

"Why should my mother have to present this letter to get Social Security?" you
might ask.

Because cheating on taxes has gotten out of hand. Too many people are cutting
corners on their taxes, and it is costing the fovernment too much. So Congress
passed a law requiring this letter of compliance.

"But think of all the paperwork for the people and for the government."
"That's okay. If the Social Security checks are delayed a few months, the govern-

ment may even save some money. There are a lot of recipients who do not really
need the money anyway."

Sensing some unfairness, you say, "I know there has been some cheating on
income taxes, birt maybe the government should deny benefits only to those people
who have been found guilty of such cheating, rather than assuming that someone is
guilty until she proves her innocence. Besides, there is already a strong penalty for
tax fraud."

"Yes, but the people in Washington think you should not get the benefits of the
American goverffment unless you can show that you support the government."

"What about my grandfather? He has paid taxes over the years. Does he have to
present this certification from the IRS, too?"

"No, because the law happens to apply only to women."
At this point you might shake your head and walk away mfittering. "Those people

in Washington surely got it backwards this time."
This conversation may sound farfetched or even absurd, but it is not far from

what is actually happening to draft-age men. As directed by a law last year, the
Department of Education and the Selective Service System recently published pro-
posed new regulations governing financial aid to students.

Under the regulations that are due to take effect this summer, a young man
cannot receive Federal student aid unless he presents a letter from the Selective
Service certifying that hp has registered for the draft. This law was introduced by
Rep. Gerald B. H. Solomon (R., N.Y.) as an amendment to the 1983 Defense Authori-
zation Bill.

The law, is an unwarrented intrusion of Government into our daily lives. Of
course, it is a young man's duty to serve his country. And it is law that each young
man must register. However, the Government should not require people to pass
tests of good citizenship each tine it extends a benefit.

We could enlarge the principle of the Solomon Amendment to include not just
student aid but also the countless other benefits we all receive from our Govern-
ment. Are we presumed to be bad citizens, unworthy of receiving benefits, until we

l(Repreeentehve Robert W. Edgar represents part of Philadelphia and Delaware County in
the U.S. House of Repreeentativee. He has introduced a bill to repeal the Solomon Amendment
linking student aid to certification of draft registration./
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prove we are good citizens? Must we take loyalty oaths and carry badges of good
cit. ship?

Th lemon Amendment is an attempt to punish irresponsible students, but it is
misguided, unfair, and probably ineffective. It,puts a burden only on men; women
do not have to register with the Selective Service. It applies only to young men who
are attending college and who need finanical aid to do so. It is unwieldy.

The administrative headaches will be immense. We can expect many misplaced
letters of certification and many interrupted college careers. Furthermore, the law
makes policemen of banks and college financial aid offices.-That is an inappropriate
role for them in our society.

The p nishment imposed by this law is unrelated to the offense it is intended to
correct. as student aid chosen as the focus, for this registration law? Not be-
cause bf a logical connection between student aid and draft registration, but because
of a convenient overlap bewteen the groups of people affected by regulations in each
of these.

Is more punishment needed anyway? The young man who fails to comply With
Selective Service law already faces severe penalties (imprisonment up to five yetirs
and fines up to $10,0001.

A final and extremely important point is that riot every nonregistrant is an irre-
sponsible lawbreaker. For generations our society has respected _the rights of people
who. for religious or moral reasons refuse to serve in the military. We in Pennsylva-
nia with our Quaker and Mennonite traditions should be particularly sensitive to
this concern.

Under current registration law there is no provisions for thetie people to indicate
their conscientious objection at the time of registration; they must register for possi-
ble military service the same as eyeryone else. They are told that if a draft is insti-
tuted, then they should speak up. This is not satisfactory. Many young men for
moral and religious reasons are refusing to register at all. Until we make provisions
to recognize their legal rights as conscientious objectors, we should not deny them
financial aid.

If we want our young men to be good citizens the Government should treat them
as such. We should not begin bf denying them the rightspf conscience and the indi-
vidual liberties for which our country is renowned. After all, the reason we might
want a military draft is to defend such American ideals as freedstn of conscience,
and freedom of opportunity, including educational opportunity.
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Mr. SIMON. We face two problems and you are touching on both
of them. One is the question of how we administer what is the law
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or should it be repealed. The second question is you can'l state this
Orob lem without facing the fundamental question and that is that
we- would not have this problem if we would simply permit people
to indicate they are conscientious objectoft.

We will be tiering from General Turnage shortly and I had a
phone conversation with him the other day. Upon examination of
the statutes, it became clear that we can---we don't need to pass a
law to have that little category added to.the cards_ We can do that
by regulation. And if we did that by regulation, then we could
honor an American tradition. What we have done now is we have
caught a Couple of tAermonites and Quakers, and I don't know that
anyone feels particularly proud of Waving done that.

And No. 2, we would get rid mountain of paperwork that we
are now creating and all kinds-M. problems, plus litigation. Right.
now, we lave a Minnesota decision. If the courts toss that out,'0
there are going to be 12 other cases that are going to be arising
around this Nation. We are going to have endless litigation all of
which could be solved, it seems to me, very, very quickly and then
we could pass legislation such as you suggest.

I guess that is a comment rather than a question, but do you
have any_ response or reaction to that? -

Mr. EDGAR. Well, I just want to say that I think we ought to pro-
'ide, regardless of what we do whether we pass my bill to repeal

t Solomon amendment. or whether we support Pat Schroeder's
effo delay implementation for a year or whether we. move to
modify within the Department of Education the regulationsre-.
gardless of that, I think his card ought to be changed.

I am a United Metho ist minister by vocation and a congress-
man by accident and I sp it a great deal of time as a chaplain in a
university talking with yo ng men and young women t-rbout their
feelings abdut service in If* military. And during the late sixties
and early seventies, I spent. a great deal of time talking with young
people who, for a period of that time, _could only object by virtue of
their religious feelings and not by virtue of their judgment or con-
science and many ofethpm have had great difficulty simply filling
out this registration carU, in looking as though their intention was
to serve without raising that basic fundamental American right to
object.

And I think if we would change the card significantly we would
lessen the number. But having done that, which, as you suggest,
could be done without passing a law, I think we haVe to raise some
fundamental questions. I wrote an op-ed piece which I attached to
your statement and have used it a little bit tongue-in-cheek and fa-
cetiously an illustration of that dealing with -an elderly woman
trying to receive Social Security. benefits. And I think if you took
this law out to its logical conclusion, you could deny somebody use
of Federal highways because of the commitment erf Federal funds if
they didn't sign a registration card.

You know, we allow people to go out and get a sintE.11, buAiness
loan of several hundreds of thousands of dollars. That's fine. That
isn't par f this. I atTr.sure that Congressman Solomon would like
to see i apply to everything, but you can see what kind of a hap-
hazar society we would begin to produce if we began' selectively
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targetting in on people who didn't fill out fc rms and processes in
our society. We would have problems all over the place.

The person who has failed to register, who 1 a not been prosecut-
ed, has not been found guilty in a court of law, that person is still
innocent. in the eyes of everyone. They have failed to fill out the
procedure and it's still being tested in the courts and yet, they are
denied some real basic rights and some basic benefits. I think it is
a restricted law that is targetted to the poor and the low middle
income group in our society. It is- unfair and it is unnecessary.

Mr. StmoN. Mr. Packard.
Mr. PANARD_ Thank you, Mr.. Chairman.
Many of our laws are ineffective because they are difficult to en-

force or it costs more to enforce them than it does to neglect them.
The first test case of this particular requirement was in Vista,

which is in the heart of my district. They found the law eluding
the penalties, to be constitutional. :0-

Had the court Moved in the other direction and given th'FA erson
freedom to violate the law, there would have been literally thou-
sands of young men who would have followed his example and
broken the Low.

What means would you suggest we use to enforce the law?
Mr. EDGAR. I think you raise a real important question and I do

have a specific answer to your question. I think that it is the law of
the land to register. We ought to give people an opportunity to opt
out if, in fact., they, by reason of conscience, feel strongly and that
ought to be on the card early up front.

4 But if they violate that law then the penalties ought to relate to
the violation of that law. The present penalties in place, the 5.
years and the $10,000 were for a different time, a different period,
when, in fact, people were failing to comply with the draft, but
were leaving the country.

It would seem to me that it's almost more appropriate to put the
pe lties directly related to failing to fill out this card. And I could
send the person a letter saying, "Dear, John Smith, You have
failed at age 18 to fill out your registration card. We have found
you. We have your name, your address, your telephone number
and your social security number because we have an enforcement
availability to cross-check. We now have your name. Please find en-
closed a $15 fine for failure to comply. Your name has now been
put on a national registry," if that's our purpose to have everyone's
name and address on a national registry. We have that. informa-
tion.

But rather than doing that, what we have done is we have taken
that person, we -have -asked -him to -hire -expensive lawyers. We,-our-
selves, as a Federal Government have hired expensive lawyers to
force people to fill out a registration card to give us some idea of
where"the person can be found in case of a callup.

Now I support that effort to comply with the law. But the penal-
ty, whether it's a $100 dollar fine or whatever, would have to be
much more closely related to the action. Now, if that person during
a time of callup doesn't show up, then let's revert to the 5 years in
jail and the $10,000 penalties if you want harsh penalties.

But simply failing to go to the post office to fill out this form and
then taking the resources at a time of deficit spending of the goy-

,*-0
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ernment to put lawyers and judges and courts for long litigation
suits selectively going after those, perhaps, that are the most: vocal
kn the society who have demonstrated their unwillingness to fill
but the cards, seems to me to be a large mistake.

Our effort at present is to have an all-volunteer military and we
are meeting those quotas, primarily because of high unemploy-
ment, but we are meeting our quotas for the all-volunteer military
and we haye a list of people who have filled out the registration
cards if, in tact., we have ts.move to a war situation. And we have a
percentage of thOse people who are not filling out the cards and if
we want to put an effort together t6 find their names, their ad-
dresses and their social security numbers, we can do that. Comput-
ers can help us do that.

And if we want to fine them we should, with some minimal fine
for failing to register. But to fill our prisons for 5 years because-
people, by virtue of conscience, have decided to not fill out this reg-
istration card, seems to me to be ludicrous. I think we are saying
some things to ourselves that are silly. To have congressmen as elo-
quent as many of us try to be, come on to the House floor and offer
selective punishments for failing to comply with all of the laws of
the land seems to me a very dangerous precedent if we have a
people who are living up to the law and only a very small percent
who fail to comply.

And yet air burdenswait until you hear the testimony of some
of the universities- -the burdens of complying. They need to have
verification that they have filled .this out, a letter from Selective
Service. Suppose you ar 18 ears old and you'get your letter veri-
fying that you have done and you crumple that letter up and
you throw it in the trash because you are working part time at a
gas station and then 2 years later you decide to go to college.

You go and you are a poor person in this society and you have to
go through a process. Now you have got to go back to Selective

,Service and the burden of proof is on you as a student to either
come up with.a second letter or prove that you have filled out that
card.

And what we are simply saying is to all of the 90 percent of the
people who have filled out that card in good faith that you are
somehow under suspicion. And I think we have the possibility if
the regulations are not changed that we will deny student loans or
we will make people stay out a semester because they don't have
their letter for an institution of higher learning even though they
have obeyed the law. Is that the kind of society we want? I don't
think so. .

Mr. PACKiptD. Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. Because we have several witnesses we are going to

follow the 5-minute rule here. I will ask my colleague if he could
yield.

Since you have brought up the case in your district I think the
question is, why did not that young man in your district register?___.
Was it a matter of religious scruples?

Mr. PACKARD. No; I think that was a test case. He was the first
one who refused to register and I think it was a test case.

Mr. SIMON. Why did he refuse to do it?

21-871 0 - S4
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-
Mr. PACK n. I don't recall, except that he just didn't feel that

he ought to be required to dose,.
Mr. SIMON. I think most who actuall refuse,.other than through

carelessness, and carelessness it seems to me we can cover through
appropriate fines, not through 5 years in prison, but realistic fines,
the other cases somehow we ought to be able to modify our system
to recognize that there are people whose religious beliefs happen to
be different. than yours or mine. But in the American system we
have traditionally recognized that.

Mr. PACKARD. I think that there could be 'very rnatly who would
fail to register, not due to religious convictions as much as just a
resistance to being told what they have to do.

'Mt. SIMON. Yes, personal convictions.
Mr. EDGAR. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Packard, would you agree that someplace on Me card it

would be appropriate for them to give us their name, their address,
their social security number and the fact that if a draft occurs that
they would be one of the peof.tle more likely to have to go through
a process of conscientious objection, would you agree theft, that
might be

Mr. PACKARD. I see. no problem with that. It should be there, I
think. .

Thank you. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Thank you. Mr. Kogovsek.
Mr. KOGOVSEK. I have no questions, Mr. Chairmap. I thank the

gentleman for his testimony.
Mr. EDGAR. Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Con-

gressman, for your testimony. I share your concern about the con-
scientious objector and have been working for about the last 6
weeks with every one from the Selective Service to the Armed
Services CoMmittee and others to put together legislation. Now our
chairman tells us we may not need that, that we can do it by ad-
ministrative rule. But I think we do need to reconcile and elimi=
nate that kind of an adversarial role in our society.

We intended to have our bill introduced this week, but if we can
'solve it quicker, more power to all of us.

I would like to get at a couple of questions that you have suggest-
ed or at least have created in my own mind. The first one is, Do
you consider financial aid a right or a privilege?

Mr. EDGAR. I think that it is a privilege in our society. I think
that it is a privilege that is given to tho who can least afford to
have that right-of free access to education prescribed.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I recall the debate on the Solomon amendment
on the floor of the House and I think the thing we need to decide
in looking over the implementation of this ruleI have got some
problems with the implementdtion of the rule, as most of us in this
subcommittee dowas it the purpose of the Solomon amendment
to enforce registration or was it the purpose of the Solomon amend-
ment rather to make sure that our Government does not provide
grants, in particular, and other forms of student financial aid to
those students who do not participate in the registration process?
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If I recall the intent of Mr. Solomon, it was not. to enforce regis-
tration. Will you agree with that?

Mr. EDGAR. Well, the intent of Mr. Solomon was to focus on
those people who failed to register and he used the vehicle of stu-
dent loans and grants as the place to do that. But to be fair to Mr.
Solomon, if he had his opportunity, and he did on one otli7Fr bill; he
would have added it to everything, that you failed to get social se-curity benefits, if you failed to register, you failed to get' EDA
grants, you failed to get an opportunity to have access to CETA orany kind of job program.

I think his intent was to focus on the need to have people comply
with registration and he felt that punishment ought Iv be inflicted
on those who fail. I guess my personal view is that he Tailed to rec-ognize the pentilties that were already in place for failing to
comply and I think he has opened a can of worms that has implica-
tions far beyond the implications of the student. loans artdthat's
why I take such a strong position at this point.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I think if it is our intent to try to enforce regis-
tration through this, we ought to skip it. It should not be used asthat mechanism. Yet. I must tell you I battle inside in my. co
science over the issue of what a society ought to do for people
are unwilling to do anything for that society. This amend it isdealing with those and is, not. knowing the specifics of Mr. Pack-
ard's case, separate from the conscientious, moral or religious ob-
jection which I think is very real and must be respected by our so-ciety.

Mr. Chairman, no more questions.
Mr. SIMON. 44r. Packard.
Mr. PACKARD. Mr. Chairman, excuse me, but the case that I was

.referring to was the Sc./sway case, which I think had nafional cover-
age. It was first case that was tested in the courts"

Mr. SIMON. Thank you very much for your testimony.
Mr. EDGAR./Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Our next witness is our colleague Pat Schroeder from

Colorado and member of the Armed Services Committee, which has
jurisdiction, I assume, and I should have checked this, but the billof Mr. Edgar and your bill are both referred to the Armed Services
Committee. Is that right?

Ms. SCHROEDER. I think it is a joint referral.
Mr. SIMON. We are pleased to have you here.

STATEMENT OF HON. PATRICIA SCHROEDER, A REPRESENTA-
. TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF COLORADO

Mrs. SCHROEDER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am honored that
you would take the time to listen.

I would like to put my testimony in the record and since I waslistening to the other witness, I think what I will try and do is
summarize some of the things that went through my head as I was
listening.

[The prepared statement of Congresswoman Patricia Schroeder
follows:1
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PREPARF.D STATEMENT OF HON. PATRICIA SCHROEDER, A REPVESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FROM THE STATE OF COLORADO

I remember _last surtimer a small but hearty band of us on the House floor chal-
lenging the Solomon Amendment to deny federal student assistance to.students who
fail to register for the draft. At that time, I predicted that, if passed, the Solomon
Amendment would force schools and lending institutionii into roles they neither
wanted, were able to play, nor could legally play: as densities designated to enforce,
our draft registration laws.

My prediction proved true. I did not expect, however, that my prediction would
prove true so soon. The Department of Education quickly developed regulptions, a
section of which seeks To implement the Solomon Amendment for the 1983-1984
school year. Jt is this provision I have the most problem with and the reason I will
introduce legislation tolay to postpone the Solomon Amendment for one year,
making the effective date July-1, 1984.

The proposed regulations wrongly put the burden of enforcenient on schools that
are ill equipped, poorly staffed and under the gun to process thousands of student
aid applications. But to force these schools to set up ways now to verify compliance
with draft registration laws by sqlents who have received their grants or loans for
.the upcoming school year is too much to ask'of too few.

Let's look at the practical side of this using various Colorado schools as examples:
The University of Colorado Boulder Campus, the largest public university in the

state, annually awards about 7,000 grants or loans. to deserving students. Twelve
full-time counselors are currently processing these applications and disbursing the
money. Can they rearrange their system to now go baclethrough applications al-
ready approved to verify, compliance with draft registration laws? The school esti-
mates it will cost $40,000 to $60,000 to comply with the regulations, including addi-
tional salaries and computer reprogramming.

Colorado University is lucky. though. The.school is large enough to have a kini--
t puterl Colorado College, a small private institution in Colorado Springs, employ one

financial aid counselor and one student part-time to maintain files on 800 financial
aid recipients. That one employee must now notify loan and grant recipients, with-
out computer assistance, that if proper certification of draft registration compliance
from the' Selective Service is not produced, the student stands to lose the loan,
grant, and any interest accrued.

Urban colleges face slightly different. but still imposing problems. Metropolitan
_State College in Denver make awards to about 3,000 students. Most of these recipi-
ents are above draft age. Many are women. However,- they are still required ,to
prove their compliance dr state why they did not register. The school, understaffed
because of past federal budget cuts, must still backtrack to record the status of each
recipient.

Also, students at these schools tend to change addresses often. This raises a point
about students who have faithfully registered, may have moved, but did not keep
the compliance verification notice sent by the Selective Service. A GAO study of
September 24, 1982, reports that 85 percent of the persons who moved after register-
ing in 1980 did not notify the Selective Service of their address change. How can the
Service, in the short time left before the start of the 1983-1984 school year,- Seqd
those students copies of their verification so the school or the bank, acting as the
deputy, will not confiscate the grant or loan?

Regardless of your option on the Solomon Amendment or draft registration, the
simple fact is that this type of retroactive certification process to prove a student's
draft registration status is simply not fair nor feasible on such a short timetable. A
one year delay will solve this problem. It will make the 1983-1984 school year provi-

sion moot and will give us all chance to examine other problems found in the rest
of the proposed regulations.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. When this whole issue came up a year ago I
was one of the people terribly concerned that what we were doing
was deputizing the private sector such as colleges and bankers to
enforce a Federal law. I think that's very dangerous. We're now
seeing the banks yelling about being deputized to collect taxes and
employers who were worrying that they were being deputized to
become immigration officers. What does this deputization of these
institutions mean? ti
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The bill I have introduced deals directly with thlft. I know the,
chairman worked with me for many years on the whole problem qf
respondent burden, the things that we kick out of here in terms of
paperwork and never realize what kind of a respondent burden
that we're laying on the person the paperwork goes to. And I think.
that this issue fits into respondent burden_

What I think we should do is delay the enforcement of the Solo-
mon amendment for a year, and there are many practical reasons
why I think this can happen. It gives us more time. Everybody is
looking down the barrel of a gun, literally, with time running out.
It's almost the end of February. The school system wonders what. is
happening? What are the rules? Where do we go?

lookedat the universities in my State and there is a wile rangeof- problems with enforcing this amendment. The University of
Colorado at. Boulder says it. will cost them anywhere from $40,000
to $60,000 to enforce this between now and the summer. They arelucky and they admit. they are lucky because they have a comput-er. And so it is easier for them to do it than the small private
schools such as Coloradp College who have one finance officer and
they have got to go retroactively back to find everybody they gaveaid to, run them down, find out what transpired.

In urban colleges where you have a very, very high percentage of
people getting aid, sometimes known as "streetcar colleges," theyhave got 'a tremendous problem because our State has been cutting
back their funding and the Federal Government has been cuttingback their funding. They have really been running on chewing
gum, sweat equity and everything else and now to be told that they
are going to have to spend more money, alloacate more resources,
do these kinds of thing_s for an enforcement for the Federal Gov-
ernment, I think tends to make them angry.

I didn't even look at the banks, but I am sure the banks arefacing the same kind of problems, and you will be hearing fromthem.
A most ominous reporl is the GAO study that came out in Sep-

tember 1982, where they said that 85 percent of the 18-year-olds
who had registered in 198() have moved and not notified Selective
Service. This is the most mobile segment of our society. When you
are 18-years-old you tend to move a lot.

So how can the, Selective Service even in that short time, find all
of those people, get the letters back to them and notify them sothat it can go into the student's aid package? .

I think that rather than this instant deputization causing all thechaos it is going to cause and the respondent burden it makes
much more sense to say, you delay it for 1 year. You need moretime to think about this.: They can then deal with it prospectively
in their forms. People who are registering are much more awarethat you don't rumple up the letter and throw it-away and so forth.

I will also admit to anybody who says, but weren't you,one of the
people who really didn t like the Solomon amendment to begin
with, no, I didn't like the Solomon amendment to begin with.

On Armed Services I want to say that the whole thing of regis-
tering 18-year-olds only scares our 18-year-olds, pit does not scareRussians.
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I am the mother of someone who is almost 18. Ile doesn't even
make his bed real well. He is not well-trained. And when you are
looking at wars in today's world, you are talking about come-as-
you-are-wars. Nobody is going to give you time out to take this
class of 18-year-olds and whip them into some kind of a fighting
force. This is not, 193;4 when the law was enacted. This is 1983_

If you want to have registration, and I am not opposed to regis-
tration, per se, but you ought to be spending the money to register
the people we need. And sitting on Armed Services acrd sitting on
the Personnel Subcommittee over there, what we need are all sorts
of. people in the medical profession, airline pilots, mechanics, com-
puter specialists, navigators. Yon can go on and on and on. That's
what we need. Not a whole group of 18-year-olds who really
haven't quite got it together yet and are still trying to figure out
whether they should evep get up when the alarm clock goes off.

I just.think that. we haven't looked at how technology has taken
over our fighting force. And I really wish we could get, to that
issue, the issue not so much being registration, but if you are going
to pay for this whole thing, for crying out loud, get something for
it.

I think we have the worst of both possible worlds. We are paying
for it. We are now dOputizing the private sector and institutions
that are under a tremendous, financial crunch. We are causing all
sorts of chaos at the moment and I rea115, think that. at least by
deferring it a year so we can really look at what we are doing just
makes an incredible amount of seise:

So that is the-bill that I will be introducing this afternoon. I hope
that it is something that this subcommittee and my committee can
look at very seriously.

Mr. SIMON. Thank you very, very much.
You mentioned one point that I think is important for this sub-

committee and that. is the lenders. We are having a tough enough
time to get. banks to make student loans as it is and if we suddenly
complicate things for them and make it less certain whether their
loans are guaranteed, that is not going to help the situation.

I have been advised by the staff that your bill, unlike the Edgar
bill, has been jointly referred, both to this committee and to yours.

Mrs. SciiRoEDER. Yes.
Mr. SimoN. If this subcommittee and our full committee were to

report out a 1-year postponement so that we could take a good look
at this thing-

Mrs. SCHROEDER. You are going to ask me if I can deliver Armed
Services. [Laughter.]

Mr. SIMON. That is exactly right.
Mrs. SCHROEDER. I knew what was coming, Mr. Chairman. I will

do everything I can to deliver Armed Services and I certainly hope
they understand. Unfortunately, there is a feeling that, we have
got to be tough we have got to do this.

They also hav-e colleges and banks in their districts though and 1
thikk that they are beginning to realizewell,-we just had a meet-
ing)this_ morning talking about what kind of bonuses are needed
and so forth: is. not for the 18-year-olds, it is for the skilled
people. And so some of That has got to sink in and they have got to
realize what they are doing. So there is some hope,- I think.
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We now have Les Aspin as the chairman of that subcommittee
and I think there is sonic hope that they will dolt.

Mr. SIMON. Thank you.
Mr. Petri.
Mr. PETRI. I have beeietting letters on this subject from differ-

ent student Eroups and so on in my district; 'hut. I must say that. I
wasisurpriseNto discover, for example, the student government. at
Marquette University, which has a reputation of being fairly for-
ward-looking or aggressive or however you want to put it, endorsed
this and felt that it was not really asking very much of kids who
are asking for financial help from their country.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. Well, I think the issue is, No. 1, in my bill what
we do is delay it a year so the cost isn't, so heavy of implementing
it, because I think the institutions have a very legitimate gripe
about accelerating the implementation and accelerating their role
of being the deputy Sheriff who enforces it. It is going to be terribly
ostly at a time when they are under a real financial crunch.

am talking about the delay of implementation. Now I am not
talking about doing away with it so it really isn't in opposition to
what your students are saying. And I think they would probably
agree. They know how precious college resources are and there is
no need to squander them to do something that we don't need.

The other piece of it, is I really have no problem drafting 18-year-
olds whenever this country is in trouble. I have no problem withthat.. But. I do have a problem with convincing ourselves that we
can turn our nightlights out at night because we are now register-
ing I8-year-olds, only because, as I say, as I look at our military
requirements, if we really want to run draft registration, we ought
to be running them for people who are already trained in the spe-
cific skills we need. This is a superpowe/game, not a football game
and the Russians are not going to give us a timeout while we come
up to speed because it will be more interesting.

I think we have to get much more realistic about that. We are
dealing with the nostalgia of World War II, "Winds of War," what
we saw on television, and it is just not today.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Kogovsek.
Mr. KOGOVSEK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to com-

pliment my colleague from Colorado on her testimony and especial-
ly compliment her for making the very

in
point about what is

happening as far as costs are concerned in State and public colleges
throughout Colorado and certainly throughout the Nation.

People in Colorado, Mr. Chairman, right now, the.-people who are
governing our institutions of higher education are trying to make
decisions as to whether they should lay off some professors, cut
back on programs and so on, and there is no doubt in my mind
that the Solomon amendment is just exacerbating the problems
that we are having as far as finances are concerned. It is very obvi-
ous to me that we made a mistake when we passed that amend-
ment last year.

Thank you.
Mrs. SCHROEDER. Thank you very much.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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1 have to ask you the same question I asked Congressman Edgar.
Do you see the intent of the Solomon amendment. as enforcing reg-
istration? I mean, do you perceive that as the purpose of it?

Mrs. SCHROEDER. -That's one of the biggest oblems we have in
this legislative body is we always see intent, the snail darter being
the great thing. I think when we passed preservation of endan-
gered species, we were all thinking of little warm fuzzy things4with
big brown eyes rather than maybe a snail darter. And so we are
saying, that is not our intent.

The issue is, what ins it doing? What do the regulations do? And ,

What the regulations-do is enforce registration for anyone who is
the lower middle class and cannot afford to go to school any other
way than financial aid. I am not too sure that is very smart be-
cause when I was 18,1 didn't think I had the wisdom I have now.
Maybe letting sonic of those people on board, maybe getting the
into universities, maybe saying, there is going to be a better life for
you, will make them feel much stronger about their country rather
than turning them off at a young age with, you threw your letter
away. You have gtot 1,o drop out for a quarter. Go get another
letter. Conic back, and make them do all of thig runarol#nd.

In the heavyhandedness of all of this, I am not sure that we get
what we want back, but I think it is being translated as enforce-
ment. whether or not that was' the intent.

Mr. GLINDERSON. I respect your feelings on the age f 18 registra-
tion, but I am not sure that. is what we are dealing .th today. If
we want to change the age at which we should register we can do
that and I think you can bring up some good merits.

What I think we are trying to determine here is igger ques-
tion in the implementation of this particular rule -a d its effect on
universities. I don't think that you can look at the Solomon amend-
ment, or I hope we don't look at it as a tool to enforce registration,
because it doesn't enforce registration, even if it is put into play. It
is not going to enforce registration because there is only a very
small percent of the 18'-year-olds going to school who are going to
be obligated by this to comply with registration. And I don't think
there is anybody in this room, and I hope no one in society, who
wants us to have a military that is compriSed only of 18-trear-olds,..
from lower economic backgrounds.

That is not good as a societal statement and it is not good in mil-
itary practice or military personnel. I think we have got to go
beyond that stage. I am a bit intrigued with the concept of a delay.
I think there are some problems in the 1983-84 school year that we
need to look at. But I would hope you could give us suggestions as
to where we can take that constructively outside of the issue which
we should probably debate. However, I don't think your committee
would let our committee debate the issue of whether 18-year-olds
ought to be registered as opposed to some other age.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. Well, I hope we do. I guess that is my problem.
I come here wearing two hats.

My armed services hat says, why in the world are we spending
all of this money registering 18-year-olds when every one of us
know that is.not what we need? If we are going to run a registra-
tion system, let's run the registration systemit costs the, same
amount of moneyand register people who will give us faster
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readiness in case, heaven forbid, a war broke out, which we hope
won't.

But, register your computer specialists, register your navigators
and pilots and medical personnel and the people you really need to
have in the file and in the inventory, much as they do in the Israe-
li army and so forth and so on.

So the first thing is you are looking at the overall budget pool of
the Federal Government. which every one of us as Congressmen is
responsible for. And we are spending a lot-of money and really get-
ting nothing. As I said, the only person that registration scares is
our 18-year-old. It is not scaring the Russians. I can't -think of one
Russian planner who .is terrorized because we haves 18-year-olds'
names in a computer.

Mr. GUNDERSON_ I don't disagree with that but that doesn't solve
our -problem today.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. Then why are we spending money to do it?
That is the first thing. And then we make it even worse and com-
pound it by saying we are going to force the private sector and
public institutions and banks and everyone else to help us enforce
it.

Now you say the intent is not to enforce it, but it really comes
out that way. That is the effect of it, The effect of it is going to be
enforcement for people in the lower socioeconomic groups, not kids
who are wealthy enough and won't get the aid anyway, but in
lower socioeconomic groups. They have to decide, will they do it or
won't they do it? Because if they want to go to school that decision
has got, to be made to get the aid.

We compound the cost of this whole thing and when we get all
done, what have wi.got? I dOn't think we have got anything, except
we have spent a lot of money wrapping ourselves in the flag red,
white, and blue. I want to wrap myself in the flag but I want to
make sure that it iitsomething that is going to preserve the flag if
we are going to force the costs on everybody.

It may be the. law, but if the law isn:t doing what it should do or
it's wrong, then you really ought to test it and ask questions. I am'
saying that we have got to ask the question about what the Solo-
mon amendment is doing. Is it enforcing a law that I think doesn't
give us anything and is costing the Federal budget money, is cost-
ing the private sector money. If we want to do draft registration,
we ought to be doing it for what we need, not for what we needed
in 1939.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. If the Chair could just add one other comment. We

are talking among other things about security. Two weeks ago our
full committee reported out a bill saying, we have to do more to get
young people into science and math. We have to do more to get
greater resources to the universities. And now we are here 2 weeks
later talking about a bill that is reducing that resource of potential
students and is saying, for example, to the University of Colorado,
you have to spend $60,000 on something that may not end up doing
any good for the security of this Nation at all.

Mrs. SCHROEDER. That's right. And we can't spend that and for
math teachers at the same time. They have clearly got to spend the
$60,000 first- or they lose a whole pool of students. We have got to
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realize that we can't tell them to do everything if they don't have
the money. They have got to prioritize and this is going to preempt
those other things.

Mr. SIMON. We thank you very much for your testimony.
Mrs. SCHROEDER. Thank you.
Mr. SIIrION. Our final House 'fitness is Representative Tom Fogli-

etta from the State of Pennsylvania, and we are very pleased to
welcome him here.

STATEMENT OF HON. THOMAS M. FOGLIETTA, A REPRESENTA-
TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE S',EATE OF PENNSYLVANIA

Mr. FoGriErrA. Thank you, Mr:Chairman, members of the com-
mittee. I am certainly grateful for the opportunity to speak to you
today about, the proposed regiilations for selective service registra!
tion requirements for student title IV aid eligibility.

First, of am not here to advocate repeal of this law, regard-
less of what my personal opinions are, but to express my concerns
and those of the institutions of higher education who have worked
with me on this subject about the proposed regulations themselves.,

I'believe that the regulations dramatically and drastically over-
extend the intent of this legislation. In so doilig, they create re-
sponsibilities for and place burdens on our institutions that are nei-
ther philosophically nor legislatively intended by Congress.

The number and variety of problems written into the regulations
warrant, I believe, a delay in the effective date of enforcement.
Therefore, I have cosponsored Mrs. Schroeder's legislation to this
effect.

Mr. Chairman, the Department of Education and the Selective
Service have signed off 'on regulations that remove from there the
majority of the burden of enforcing draft registration, and instead
have delegated the responsibility to our schools.

The law, as passed by Congress, requires a statement of compli-
ance with regord to registration for a student seeking to obtain fi-

nancial aid. The law does not place the burden of verifying that
compliance on the institution. The regulations do.

In seeking to make the law enforceable Congress recommended
that lists of students eligible for registration and seeking aid be
sent to the selective service for verification.

Representative Hartnett specifically stated on the House floor
that this possible list was desigtied, quote, "to place the enforce-
ment on us, on the backs of the Selective Service System," end
quote. And in the opinion of the Council on Education, Congress in-
tended to require of schools no more than the submission of the
contemplated lists. The regulations, however, create a verification
system that will contravene this intent.

Verification prior to disbursement *11 create chaos in a finan-
cial aid office. Uncertainty will develop 'over how many loans to
give out, how to administer them and how to disburse if there must
be a verification made on each Applicant before disbursement.

Loans authorized will be held up during verification, which, as
the committee knows, will take considerably longer than the selec-
tive service claims. This will disrupt schedules and create a great
deal of uncertainty for applicants and institutions. I believe this is
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an unwarranted burden to place on our universities when the vast
majority are law abiding.

The _provision designed to ease this burden, temporary verifica-
tion by affadavit will, in fact, make it more difficult on our institu-
tions. Allowing a school to distribute only one loan period funds
sounds innocent enough. But. forcing the institution to cease the
lOan and to seek to collect the funds already dispersed, should a
student not comply with the regulations thrusts the school into the
role of policeman and will certainly result often in litigation, great-
ly increased costs and ultimately will tie up a great deal of finan-
cial aid office time and productivity.

This, too, is many miles removed from congressional intent. The
conference report specifically states that the regulations should act
to, quote, "minimize the administrative burdens on colleges /Ind
universities and the delays in processing aid and applicants and

"awards," end quote.
Nowhere is it stated in the legislation that a predistribution pro-

vision is required, recommended, or suggested.
Mr. Chairman, to conclude, I would- like to quote from the Coun-

sel .to the American Council on Education Report to the ACE,
quote, "It would be a massive misdirection of resources, . . . to
impose a sweeping school-administered verification program to
identify a tiny minority of students who have submitted false state-
ments of registration compliance," end quote.

And I thank the committee for your time and interest.
Mr. SIMON. We thank you very, very much for your testimony. I .

simply have one question and that is, in your opinion, after talking
to your schools, would a 1 -year delay be a wise thing at this point?

Mr. FoGLIETTA. Absolutely. I have spoken to administrators of fi-
nancial assistance in the various schools and they are terribly ap-
prehensive about what i going to be occurring in the next couple
of months. Penn State UhiversityI think Mr. Gunderson will be
interested in thisPenn 'State University, with 50,000 students at
that university, 30,000 or 60 percent are getting some sort of finan-
cial assistance. So you realize the burden we would be creating in
passing on this verification system to that school.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Torn, thank you for your testimony. I really do appreciate it be-

cause I think you are getting at some of the problems that we face
in this subcommittee and that is how do we deal with the whole
implementation.

It is obvious that you have done a great deal of thinking yourself
and have been in contact with a number of people and I agree the
regulations have gone directly contrary to the intent of the law by
putting the burden, the onus, of the enforcement on the backs of
the institution.

Have you got any suggestions as to how we might try to better
achieve some kind of implementation of this law other than the
present proposed rule?

Mr. FOGUETTA. Yes, that has been discussed with the various ad-
ministrators of these programs at the schools.

They will be here to testify, especially Mr. Shuckers from Penn
State and he has a suggested program.
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Mr. GUNDERSON. OK. Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. I don't have any questions, Mr. Chairman. I just

wanted to say it is a pleasure to see my Pennsylvania colleague
here and thank you very much for your very thoughtful statement.

Mr. Foc.iKrrA. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. We thank you for your testimony.
We now will ask our final two witnesses to appear as a panel,

the Honorable Edward Elmendorf, Assistant Secretary of Educa-
tion for Postsecondary Education, and Maj. Gen. Tom Turnage of
Selective Service_

If the two of you can join us here. We will hear from both wit-
nesses before we have questions. Mr. Elmendorf, we will hear from
you first.

STATEMENT OF EDWARD ELMENDORF, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDIT -

CATION

Mr. ELMENDORF. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would ask that my statement be entered in the record.
Mr. SIMON. It will be.
[The prepared statement of Edward Elmendorf followsd

PRF:PARED STATEMENT OF DR. EDWARD ELMENDORF, ASSISTANT SECRETARY*FOR
POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Mr_ Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I appreciate the opportunity to
testify on the joint efforts of the Department of Education and the Selective Service
.System_X0 Implement _the amendrrient to the Military Selective Service Act-passed
by the Congress in the Fall of 1982 as part of the fiscal year 1983 Defense Authori-
zation Act (P.L. 97-252). The amendment provides that, beginning with the 1983-84
award year, any student who must register with Selective Service and fails to do so
is ineligible for student financial assistance under programs established by title IV
of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended. These programs include the Pell
Grant, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (SEOG), College Work-Study
(CW-S), National Direct Student Loan (NDSL), Guaranteed Student Loan (GSL),
Auxiliary Loan (PLUS), and State Student Incentive Grant (SSIG) programs.

Currently, men who are at least 18 years old, who were born after December 31,
1959, and who are not currently on active duty with the armed forces must be regis-
tered with the Selective Service. This group includes citizens and non-citizens eligi-
ble for Federal student aid except permanent residents of the Trust Territory of the
Pacific Islands and the Northern Mariana Islands. According to the Selective Serv-
ice, if they are within the age category, members-of the Reserves and National
Guard and men who have been discharged from military service must be registered.

President Reagan signed the Defense Authorization Act on September 8, 1982.
With the concurrence of Secretary Bell, I established a task force. composed of stu-
dent financial aid specialists, from the Office of Postsecondary Education, the Office
of General Counsel, and the Office of Plannin5, Budget and Evaluation. At my re-
quest, General Turnage, Director of the Selective Service System, appointed several
of his senior managers to the task force.

The task force began its work on September 17, 1982. The Conference Committee
Report accompanying P.L. 97-252 guided the task force throughout its deliberations
in develbping the proposed rules to implement the amendment. On January 27,
1983, the Department published a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking implementing
this new eligibility criterion for student qualification for title IV student assistance.

The Conference Committee Report stated that the intention of Congress with
regard to the amendment was that "such regulations and procedures necessary to

,implement this provision minimize the administrative burden on colleges and uni-
versities and the delay in processing aid applications". Thus, in developing the pro-
posed regulations, the Department worked very closely not only with the Selective
Service System, but members of the financial aid community were consulted to try
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to ensure implementation in the nulist effective and least burdensvme manner possi-
ble.

The amendment specifically requires that, in order to receive title IV aid, a stu-
dent who is required to register with Selective Service must file a statement with
the institution hp "attends, certifying that he is in compliance with the regiStration
requirements. A practical problem exists in implementing the Statement of Regis-

tration Compliance requirement. That is the difficulty in identifying which students
are required to be registered, especially since many institutions do not. have a record
of all students' gender, date of birth, or military status To minimize the. burden of
institutional staff of determining whether a student is exempt. from registration
under one of the five exemption categories, the Department of Education and the
Selective Service System proposed that all title IV aid recipients complete and
submit to the institution the Statement of Educational Purpose/Registration Com-
pliance in which the student certifies either the reason why he or she is not re-
quired to be registered, or that he is registered. The five categories providing reason
for non-registration include: (1) female; (2) member of the nrrned services on active
duty; (3i born prior to January 1, 1960; (41 not yet 18 years of age; and (5) permanent
resident of the Trust. Territory of the Pacific Islands or the Northern Mariana Is--lands_

Following the recommendation of the financial aid community, the regulations
propose therefore that in addition to the Statement of Educational Purpose, which
is already required of all title IV aid recipients by section 484 of the Higher Educa-
tion Act, the student must file a Statement of Registration Compliance. For the con
veiience of the institution and the student, the current Statement of Educational
Purpose is simply expanded to include the new Statement of Registration Compli-
ance and it will appear on the 1983 -84 Student. Aid Report. This method of obtain-
ing the required certification was determined to be the least disruptive and burden-
some. he proposed language for this new combined Statement was sent to partici-
pating colleges and schools in January of this year for their early review.

The amendment also required the Secretary, in agreement. with the Director of
Selective Service, to prescribe pro- lures for verifying students' Statements of Reg-
istration Compliance. A number f verification methods were explored during the
development of the proposed reg lations. A comparison of applicant records and Se-
lective Service registrant records was infeasible, especially in light of the require-
ment for implementation for the 1983-1984 award year. The Department maintains
no central record system for all title IV applicants, and thus the development of a
method for - snatching such data would be extremely costly, time-consuming, and
very expensive.

A comparison by Selective Service of its registrant data with all title IV applicant
data provided by the institutions was also considered. Under such a method, the in-
stitution would have to collect, extract and forward to the Selective Service the nec-
essary applicant data to verify the registration status of its.students. Thismet Hod
would not only he extraordinarily burdensome and costly to institutions but it
would cause extensive delays in the processing of awards until registration compli-
ance could he verified and confirmed to the institutions by the Selective Service.

To avoid such excessive administrative burden, delays and intrusion, the Depart-
ment proposed that the primary responsibility for verifying registration compliance
rest with the student himself at the insWutional level. Any student who certifies
that he is registered on his Statement of Registration Compliance would be required
to submit a copy of his Registration Acknowledgement Letter to the institution as
proof of eligibility before it could disburse aid or certify the GSL and PLUS loan'
applications and the Pell Grant Alternate Disbursement System Request for Pay-.
ment. .

The Selective Service System currently provides registrants with their original
Registration Acknowledgement Letters within approximately :30 days of their regis-
tering. Replacement copies of the Acknowledgement Letter are provided within two
weeks of their request to any registrant who does not have his original Acknowl-
edgement Letter. The Department and the Selective Service, System have both
begun to actively publicize the requirement for proof of registration to counselors
and financial aid administrators at secondary and postsecondary institutions. Insti-
tutions have been provided with a sample form on which a registrant, who does not
have his original Acknowledgement better may request .a replacement. In the initial
phase-in award year (1983 -84), documentation have to be submitted by all students
who certify that they are registered. Once that documentation was part of those stu-
dents' records, the number of students certifying that they were registered would be
drastically reduced in subsequent years.
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The Department and the Selective Service System recognize the possibility that in
limited circumstances some students may not receive their Acknowledgement Letter
from Selective Service quickly enough to verify their registration compliance. In
order to prevent delays in the award process, the regulations propose a temporary
verification alternative for students who have registered but do not yet have docu-
mentation from Selective Service. These students will be able to subniit a notarized
affidavit to the institution in which they affirm that they in fact have registered
and will submit the required Acknowledgment letter documentation within 120
days This alternative will be available to all registrants who turned 18 within 90
dart of the beginning of the award year and have not received their original Ac-
knowledgement Letter from Selective Service. At the option of the institution, it
would also be Available to any other registrant who does not have his original Ac-
knowledgement Letter and who can demonstrate to the institution that he has re-
quested a replacement copy from Selective Service. Students may certify and verify
their registration compliance by either submitting a copy of the Acknowledgement
letter, or through this affidavit procedure at any time before the end of the pay-
ment period or 30 days after receiving notice, whichever is later.

If an affidavit is filed temporary verification, the institution would then dis-
burse title IV funds for one payment period and, for any student who had just
turned IS, certify the institutional portion of the Guaranteed Student Loan or
PLUS application. Only that group of 18 year old students who have not yet re-
ceived their Letters will receive the benefit of a Guaranteed Student Loan or PLUS
Loan under temporary verification. Any. title IV funds received by a student. who
does not Submit his Letter within the 120 days of filing the affidavit would be con-
sidered an overpayment under the GSL and PLUS Programs_ Students would lose
the right to the payment of interest- benefits on the loan. Although Section
428(ali3X AI of the Higher Education Act provides that the holder of a loan (i.e., the
lender, to which interest payments are required to be made has a contractual right.
to receive these payments, no such contractual right. exists when interest payments
are not required to be made on behalf of a borrower. Payments made on behalf of
borrowers who have failed to meet eligibility requirements for a GSL are prohibited.
However, lenders would assume no liability because payment of principal and inter-
est would continue to be insured.

I trust. I have addressed the essence of the questions-you raised in your letter of
invitation. I shall be happy to answer any further questions you may have at this
time.

Mr. ELMENDORF. What 1 will attempt to do this morning is to
summarize briefly the regulation, and respond very precisely to the
seven questions which you asked of me in your letter of invitation.

The statute on which this proposed regulation was based, was
contained in the 1983 Defense Authorization Act, Public Law 97-
252, passed by Congress and signed by the President on September
8, 1982. As you know, the act contains an amendment to the Mili-
tary Selective Service Act, which becomes effective July 1, 1983:
The amendment provides that any student who is required to regis-
ter with Selective Service and who fails to register will be ineligi-
ble for student financial aid under title IV of the Higher Education
Act of 1965.

That, Mr. Chairman, is' ,the basis of the regulation. There are two
important pieces of the statute that I think deserve highlighting.
Number one, students under the law must file statements certify-
ing compliance with the registration requirements.

Point two, the regulations be issued in cooperation with the Di-
rector of Selective Service and must include a method for verifying
statements of compliance. Both of those are included by statute
and not by any type of arbitrary or whimsical behavior on behalf of
either the Selective Service or the Department of Education.

The regulations proposed, simply implement, a new eligibility cri-
terion -. That, Mr. Chairman, is how weview this Selective Service
requirement. All students will file a statement of registration corn-
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pliance with his or her School certifying that the student is regis-
tered or giving a reason why he or she is not required to register.
That statement of educational purpose which already exists in all
-8,-000 sehools and universities and is already required of all stu-
dents receiving aid, is the document on which the statement of reg-
istration compliance will be contained.

I should add parenthetically that that suggestion came from the
student financial community as a result of our consultation with
them. We think it i s an excellent suggestion. It was one that was
adopted by the task force and it was included in a Notice of Perb-
posed Rulemaking issued on January 27.

Second, any student who certifies in the statement of registration
compliance that he is registered then must submit a copy of a reg-
istration acknowledgement letter to the institution to verify that
he is registered. A copy of the letter is available from the Selective
Service for any registered student who did not retain the original
letter. I think the General will speak to that when he has his
chance.

A temporary verification alternative was discussed by both the
Secretary of Education and the General as we were developing the
proposed regulations. Both were -very concerned that there be op-
portunities for students who might not be able to get back in
timely way the necessary information to allow them to proceed to
get student financial aid or for reasons of forgetfulness or because
of their date of birth. Some type of a waiver provision had to be
allowed in these instances.

The Department consequently in conjunction with the Selective
Service established an alternative affadavit which could be submit-
ted for two types of students, group AI will refer to group A as a
group of students who would turn 18 and register within 90 days of
the beginning of the award year. The award year usually is either
July 1 or September 1 or about that period of time. So anyone es-
sentially after March 31, 1983 who turns 18 and is not able to get
back in their hands sufficient acknowledgement through the regis-
tration acknowledgement letter would have the opportunity then
to be given student financial aid on the basis of an approved
waiver.

There is a second group of students and that group of students
would be those who have for some reason not been able to locate
the registration acknowledgement' letter and at the Option of the
institution, that student may also receive access to their student fi-
nancial aid funds and may do so for a period of '120 days within
which time they would be expected to produce the registrati ac-
knowledgement letter.

Finally, there is an administrative review process that pro-
vided for in the law and under the regulation. It is to be used only
for students who assert that they are registered but are unable to
prove their registration. The proposed rule was issued on January
27. The public comment period continues through February 28,
1983. I should restate the fact that the NPRM is a product of con-
sultation with the Selective Service System, the Office of Manage-
ment and Budget and the financial aid community.

...
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You ask in your letter to me seven specific questions and I would
like to try to restate the question briefly and then try to respond to
each of the seven.

Your first question dealt with the fact that all students were re-
quired to file some type of compliance form. You asked if a female
refused to fill out the registration portion of the form, would she be
denied student aid and why it was necessary to require female stu-
dents to file the form.

We have addressed that on page 2 of our formal testimony. We
have recognized that there is a practical problem in trying to
handle a regulation for 8,000 different kinds of institutions with
different requirements and understand that there are several, in
fact, many institutions that do not have records of all students'
gender, date of birth or military status. In other words, the data
simply isn't collected.

We have attempted to minimize the burden on institutional staff
where possible and in this particular case have provided for a
simple check-off box for the female on the registration statement.
The fact is that the Selective Service did require that all title IV
aid recipients complete and submit to the institution a statement of
educational purpose and a registration compliance.

The proposed rule, I should also state, asks for comments, specifi-
cally in the area of registration compliance for single sex female
colleges to see if there is a better way for that type of institution to
comply.

Your second question addressed the problem that the form does
not appear to address students who have been discharged from mil-
itary service and how are they to be treated. On page 1 of the
formal testimony, we have stated that all men at least 18 years old
born after December 31, 1959 who are not currently on active duty
with the Armed Forces must be registered with the Selective Serv-
ice. This group includes members of the Reserves, the National
_Guard and men who have been discharged from military service if
they are within that age category. I believe on that one General
Turnage may wish to further comment.

Question 3. You wanted to know whether or not we conferred
with financial aid administrators, whether or not we discussed with
them the burdens of delay in collecting and maintaining the file,
the registration compliance file and letters. We believe we have ad-
dressed this on page 2 of our statement. We did work very closely
with the Selective Service, with members of the financial aid com-
munity and consulted extensively with at least five State associ-
ations and at least 12 different associations in Washington repre-
senting many colleges and universities.

I might also add again that it was at the suggestion of the finan-
cial aid community through our consultation process that the idea
to Include the registration compliance statement/en the already ex-
isting statement of educational purpose 'was made and accepted by
the Department in its proposed- rulemaking.

Your fourth question dealt with the 1983-84 academic year and
the fact that we were instructing institutions to recontact all appli-
cants for student aid after July 1, 1983, to have ,them sign the reg-
istration compliance .form. The question was, Is it possible for the
Department to supply institution§ with forms prior to July 1 so
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delays inherent in. notifying students could be eliminated. We have
addressed that on page 3 of our formal testimony.

We have not only included the forms that could be used in the
Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, but in the Dear Colleakue letter
that was mailed to all institutions and colleges throughout the
country in January. We included the proposed language from the
new combined statement. We also encouraged institutions to incor-
porate that proposed language in their 1983-84 student aid materi-
als to give as much early opportunity as possible for students to
sign that statement.

The statement must be signed prior to the actual disbursement
of student aid funds. We don't anticipate that schools will need to
recontact students receiving aid because by law student aid funds
cantiot be disbursed prior to July 1. There is the case of the guar-
anteed student loan program. Some funds will be disbursed before
July 1 and we will deal with that in the subsequent question.

Question 5. Your question dealt with the difference in treatment
in the two types of affidavits provided that appeared to be incon-
sistent. I believe that I have explained that it my summary. On
page 5 it includes a precise response, but it deals essentially with
the fact that those who turn 18 after March 31 and may not, for
whatever reason, be able to get back a form in sufficient time. The
original registration, I think the General has said, takes up to 40
days from the time it is actually filled in to the time it is mailed
back. We *anted to at least double that to make sure that there
was, in effect, enough time for that student to receive aid.

So we put in for that group of students the right to immediately
access those funds. The second group of students are those that
could not locate additional forms and for that category of student
'we left it essentially up to the institution to choose whether or not
they would allow the disbursement of student financial aid to that
category of students.

Again, the turnaround time of getting those forms back from the
Selective Service we think is acceptable and the General can speak
to that. We are also engaged in some discussions about how we
might even further improve the reliability of that procedure.

The question about the student receiving the guaranteed student
loan for the 1983-84 academic year before July 1 but subsequently
fails to file a registration compliance, what then, in fact, happens
to the right of payment of interest benefits on that loak as it re-
lates to the lender?

We have stated in our testimony on page 6 that there is no con-
tractual right that exists when interest payments are not required
to be made on behalf of the borrower. The payments made on the
behalf of borrowers who have failed to meet eligibility require-
ments for GSL are prohibited. However, and this, I think, is the

.. important consideration here, the lenders would assume no liabili-
ty because the payment of principle and interest would continue to
be insured. In other words, it would be treated just as any other
loan for a student essentially who started in September and
dropped out in October.

The same approximate procedure would be used and the lender
would be guaranteed payment under the provision that these loans

,sare insured' 100 percent by the Government, and, in fact, if the"),

21-873 0 84 - 3
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call up that loan and expect it to be paid back, exercise due dili-
gence and fail to get the money back, then they are reimbursed by
the State guarantee agency and we, in fact, as a Department, reim-
burse the State guarantee agency or the lenders directly.

So that provision is provided for, we think, in the testimony and
in the Notice of Proposed Rulemaking.

I think question 7 deals with a GAO report and the General will
address that, I believe, in his testimony.

Question 8. You ask if it was possible for students to file forms
affirming that they are legally registered, forms which could be
sent to Selective Service by the financial aid administrator. You
also ask if the Selective Service would able to verify registration
compliance with its file, thus eliminating the burden that would be
placed on institutions and students by the proposed reg, and we be-
lieve we have answered that in our testimony.

The statute requires the Secretary and the Director of Selective
Service to issile regs that verify compliance with the registration
requirement.. The conference report, as you know, stated the inten-
tion of Congress with regard to the amendment that. "such regula-
tions," and I am quoting here, "and procedures necessary to imple-
ment this provision minimize the administrative burden on colleges
and universities and the delays in processing aid applications and
awards."

We feel that we have, in fact, minimized the burden insofar as
possible and we do not expect any delay in the processing of finan-
cial aid applications. As a matter of fact, I should tell you that, the
processing system for this coming year that didn't .start until
March 17 cif last year and April 17 of the year before last has al-
ready begun as of the 15th of this mipth and is beginning now to
process what will amount to over 5 million student applications for

'financial aid.
The question deals with whether or not the Selective Service

could be recipient of a list of navies submitted by the financial aid
administrators which would then be verified essentially by Selec-
tive Service. We feel this would add undue burden to a system that
is already somewhat of a burden to institutions and students but is
necessary under the conditions and guidelines set forth' under the
statute. We feel it would delay a disbursement of student aid funds
to students.

The Selective Service and the Department expected in our inter-
pretation of the regulation that there be 100 percent verification of
registration compliance. Our assumption was that if there was less
than 100 percent required it would have been so stated in either
the.Conference Report or the statute.

The fact also that we would be verifying institutionally-generat-
ed lists from over 8,000 colleges and universities, has no outcome
other than a delay of student aid delivery, one that I would not en-
courage. And I believe during the time at which this amendment
was being discussed and amendments were being considered to it,
the Hayakawa amendment required that both Selective Service
and the Department deal specifically with the burden of all of the
verification and under testimony from Mr. Stockman and others,
an amendment was later introduced which placed the burden on
the shoulders of the students, primarily, and somewhat on the
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shoulders of the institution, which was later accepted and made a
part of the act.

In conclusion, the public comment period ends on February 28.
We feel that we can, publish the final rule by the first or second
week, no later thiln that, of May 1983. We, in looking at the re-
sponses and the intensity of media and public comment that has
been generated in this area, would like to state, and I don't know if
the press would pick up on this, although it is fact, what we have
received back in the way of comment in the first 3 weeks of this
publication.. We have less than 100 written and oral comments
from the public. Sixty-three of these comments have come from col-
lege students and interest groups. Only 28 out of 8,000 colleges and
universities have responded, half of which favor it and half of
which are against it.

We have received no comment from banks or the 17,000 lending
institutions and we have received no comment from State guaran-
tee agencies.

Mr. Chairman, the only conclusion that I can reach is that the
majority of those who could comment either are waiting until the
lasiminute or they don't have the same level of concern that may
have been earlier expressed.

Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. Thank you very much, Mr. Elmendorf.
General Turnage.

STATEMENT OF MM. ( ;EN. THOMAS K. TURNAGE, DIRECTOR OF
SELECTIVE SERVICE

General TURNAGE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is a privilege to
appehr before your committee, and in the written invitation to give
testimony I was asked to respond to four specific. committe,e con-

, cerns.
I will address each individually.
The first question was, what action has Selective Service taken

and what assurances can we give regarding the GA() report on Se-
lective Service records?

The April 1982 GAO report found no serious problem with the
recordkeeping practices of the Selective Service System. t was just
the opposite. The report found that there were, and 1\,. uote, "no
major problems with the way the Selective Service System registra-
tion program was organized and conducted."

The GAO reviewed Selective Service records for two types of ac-
curacy. The first was to insure thekt.we could account'for all regis-
tration forms and that our registration statistics are accurate.

In order to make the determination, GAO counted the registra-
tion cards and verified the number of registrants contained in our
control documents. The. GAO account agreed in all instances with
our control documents.

The second type of accuracy the GA 40 looked for was to insure
that Selective Service had recorded the registration information
correctly. In that regard, GAO found that 6 percent of our records
had a 1 character error. Since each registrant record has an aver-
age of 250 characters, this represents 6 errors per 25,000 characters
or an accuracy rate of 99.97 percent.

A
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The GA() addressed two areas as it related to potential problems.First, in the interest of equity, the report expressed concerns aboutSelective Service's ability to get the entire eligible population toregister. And s eond, the report expressed concern about the accu-racy of registra t address information in light of the mobile 'popu-lation to which one of our earlier speakers referred.
The first problem, registration compliance, has been met, effec-tively since we have been able to register 98 percent of all men inthe draft-eligible population. The second problem, the accuracy ofregistrant address information is an area in which we have .takensubstantial initiatives to respond to'the GAO report and to insuresuch accuracy.

N..Now, every one who registers with Selective Service receives inaddition to an acknowledgement letter a change of information oraddress form and a postage paid return envelope so they cancomply with the law by notifying Selective Service of any addresschange.
We recently mailed 100,000 letters to registrants in the 1963year-of-birth group. That is the group that has the primary drafteligibility in the event of an occurence tonight, for example. Wewere able to deliver 94.5 percent of these letters.
By way of comparison, a recent mailing to young men born in1963 and 1964, using addresses from current IRS and DMV files,we have delivery rates of 93 and 78 percent, respectively.
In October 1982 we initiated a verification letter program wherewe send letters to registrants who have not corresponded with oursystem in the past 11 months. The letter verifies the registrant'scurrent and his permanent address. The U.S. Postal Service hasagreed to forward these verification letters and provide our servicewith the new forwarding address. We are confident that this pro-gram will even. further improve the accuracy of our registrant ad-dress information.
Now your second question, sir, asked, can you guarantee that Se-lective Service will be able to provide timely acknowledgement to aregistrant in order to avoid delay in application of.student aid.Our response is as follows: The Department of Education's pro-_posed regulation regarding student financial aid requires a studentto provide proof of registration before receipt of title IV. aid.Selective Service regulations require an acknowledgement to theregistrant within 90 days of his having registered. On the average,the elapsed time from registering at the U.S. Post Office and re-ceiving an acknowledgment letter from selective service (is only 40days. The 40-day average takes into account the fact that 5 percentof registrations we receive have some type of error which requiresa written or telephone inquiry on our part in order to get correctinformation from the registrant.

We feel confident that there will be no delays in the disburse-ment of financial aid for a student because of the requirement toregister, even if a student registers after he initiates the applica-tion for financial aid.
Once again, parenthetically I might suggest that this bill or pro-posed bill has already had some implications in that we are receiv-ing questions and inquiries from young people .sqggesting they

36
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have lost their letter and would we provide another? We have done
so.

The third question is why is the major role of enforcing the law:
given to the institution? We don't think that it is given to the insti-
tution. We think the burden is on the individual. The major role is
given to the applicant. student who is asked certify that he has
registered and show proof of same. I believe that this is in har-
mony with congressional intent

We feel that Selective Service, in turn, has taken the second
major role by improving our ability to provide a registration ac-,,
knowledgement to the registrant with a short turnaround time in-
cluding- a i-eplacement copy in the event it is needed, upon the re-
quest of the individual.

The fourth question is why shouldn't Selective Service verify a
registrant's compliance itself, simply through the process of appli-
cant names being forwarded by the institutions?

I think Dr. Elmendorf responded to that. However, once again,
given the fact that the vast majority of student applicants will be
able to prove registration on the initial day of application for finan-
cial assistance, such a program wound be burdensome, impractical
and unnecessarily expensive for the institution. It would create
delay in the processing of awards since proof of registration would
require verification and confirmation to the institution by Selective
Service.

This would also be unnecessarily expensive for the Government.
Such a process would entail approximately 8,000 institutions, some
of which lack automated record keeping, developing and submit-
ting lists to Ur Selective Service.

As the regulations are written, we feel the burden is on the stu-
dent applicant where it ought to be, just as it is with other data he
is asked to provide in order to qualify for the student aid he seeks.

Once again, listening to some of the previous speakers, the
thought occurs to me that the real complexity of obtaining a loan,
it seems to me as a layman, is inherent in the process of answering
all the questions relating to that loan. The addition of one further
questiOn, are you registered or are you not, providing a simple
letter that we provide the individual to attest to that fact doesn't
seem overly burdensome in my judgment.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my statement and I wilr be happy
to respond to ang.questions that any of you may have.

[The prepared statement of Gen. Thomas K. Turnage follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF GEN. THOMAS K. TURNAGE, DIRECTOR OF SELECTIVE SERVICE

Mr. Chairman, it's a pi-ivilege to appear before your Committee. In the written
invitation to give testimony, I was asked to respond to four specific committee con-
cerns. I will address each individually:

1. What action has Selective Service taken, and what assurances can we give, re-
garding the GAO Report on Selective Service records?

Oiir Response is as follows: The April 1982 GAO Report found no serious problem
with the record keeping practices of the Selective Service System. It was just the
opposite. The report found that there were, and I quote, "no major problems with
the way the Select 4e Service System registration program was organized and con-
ducted.

Mr. Chairman, the GAO reviewed Selective Service records for two types of accu-
racy. The first was to insure that we could account for all registration forms and
that our registration statistics are accurate. In order to make the determination,
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GAO counted the registration cards and verified the number of registrants con-
tained in our control documents. The GAO count agreed in all instances with our
control documents:

The second type of accuracy the GAO looked for was to insure that Selective Serv-
ice had recorded the registration information correctly In that regatd, GAO found
that 6 percent of our records had a one ID character error. Since fad' registrant
record has an average of 25(1 characters, this represents 6 errors per 25,000 charac-
ters--or an accuracy rate of 99.97 percent.

The GAO report addressed two areas it saw as potential problems, First, in the
interest of equity. the report expressed concern about Selective Service's ability to
get the entire eligible population to register. And second, the report. expressed con-
cern about the accuracy of registrant address iuformation in light of a mobile popu-
lation. The first problem-- registration compliancehas been met effectively since
we have been able to register 98 percent or all men in the draft eligible population_
The second problem- --accuracy of registrant address information-----is an area in-
which we have taken substantial initiatives to respond to the GAO report and
insure such accuracy.

Everyone who registers with Selective Service receives, in addition to an Acknowl-
edgeme-nt Letter, a Change of InfOrmation or Address form and a postage-paid
return envelope so that they can comply with the law by notifying Selective Service
of any address change. We recently mailed 100,00)) letters to registrants in the 1963.
year-of-birth group the group with primary draft eligibility) and were able to deliv-
er 9-1.5 percent of these letters. By way of comparison, a recent mailing to young
merr born in 1963 and 1964, using addresses from current IRS and Division of Motor
Vehicle records, had deliverability rates of 93 percent and 78 percent respectively.

In October 1982, we initiated a Verification Letter program where we send letters
to registrants who have not corresponded with Selective Service within the past 11
months. The letter verifies the registrants current and permanent address. The U.S.
Postal Service has agreed to forward these verification letters and provide Selective
Service with the new forwarding address_ We are confident that this program will
even further improve the accuracy of 'our registrant address information.

2! Can you guarantee that Selective Service will be able to provide timely ac-
knowkdgement to a registrant in order to avoid delay in application for student
aid?

Our respomie is as follows: The Department of Education's proposed regulations
regarding student financial aid require a student to provide proof of registration
before receipt of Title IV aid. Selective Service regulations require an Acknowledge-
ment to the registrant within 90 days of his having registered. On the'average, the
elapsed time from registering at the U.S. Post Office and receiving an Acknowledge-
ment Letter from Selective Service is only 40 days. This 4)) day average takes into
account the fact that 5 percent of registrations we receive have some type of error
which requires a written or telephoned inquiry on our part. in order to,hget. correct.
information from the registrant_

We feel confident. that there will be no delays in the disbursement of financial aid
for a student because of the requirement to register--even if a student registers
after he initiates the application for financial aid.

3. Why is the major role of enforcing the law given to the institution?
Our response is as follows: We don't think it is. The major role is given to the

applicant student. who is asked to certify that he is registered and show proof of the
same. I believe that this is in harmony with Congressional intent. We feel that Se-
lective Service, in turn, has taken the second major role by improving our ability to
provide a registration Acknowledgement Letter to the registrant in a short turn-
around time ---including a replacement copy, upon request. .

4. Why shouldn't Selective Service verify registrant compliance itself, simply
through the process of applicant names being forwarded by the institutions?

Our response is as follows: Given the fact that the vast majority of student appli-
cants will he able to prove registration on the Mina' day of application for financial
assistance, such a program would be burdensome, impractical, and unnecessarily ex-
pensive for the institution -,it would create delay in the processing of awards since
proof of registration would require verification and confirmation to the institution
by Selective Service. This would also he unnecessarily expensive for the Govern-
ment. Such a process would entail approximately 8,000 institutions, some of which
lack automated record keeping, developing and submitting lists to Selective Service.

As the regulations are written, we feel the burden is on the student applicant
where it ought to bejust as it is with other data he is asked to provide in order to
qualify for the student aid he seeks.

3
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Mr Chairman, this concludes my statement I will he happy to respond to any
questions the Committee may have

Mr. SIMON. Thank you both very much for your testimony.
As the regulation is now drafted an all-female institution has to

go through filling this out also. Is that correct'?
Mr. ELMENDORF. They have to check off on the shit* sheet that

is provided on the back of the required statement of educational
purpose, which every student has to fill out anyway--a simple
statement that they are female. That alone signed by them is suffin-
cient to allow there to be no further burden on that individual
whatsoever or the institution. They just file it.

Mr. SIMON. General, you mentioned we have 98 percent compli-
ance now. Do you think as a result of this amendment we will
have, we will move up to 99 percent or are we going to accompliSh
anything through this particular amendment.

General TURNAGE. Mr. 'Chairman, it would be difficult for me to
quantify the specific results that would be derived froM this
amendment. However, I think there are two or three things that
might be said in response to your question.

One, we just recently received a letter from a young man who
started out by saying, ',0 , you got me. I heretofore on the basis of
principle did not want tc- -egister for the draft in a country that

(.4

supports the kind of wars which you are planning," and went on
with similar type language. "I am now willing to change my princi-
ple on the basis that I can't get money unless I register and I will
register."

Now we know as a result of that statement. and as a result of
inquiries that we have had from the field to give an individual a
duplicate of the acknOwledgement letter, and so forth, we know
that people are interested, they know abbut .it, it is a concern and
so they are williiig to comply.

So to the extent that some know about it and to the extent that
is being given the press that it is, we think that some results will
be achieved.

Now, in response to an earlier comment by Mr. Gunderson, it
seems to me, however, that based on the success that has been
achieved in the registration pioce4s, and we know' that more is
coming based on additional initiatives that we have In progress, it
just seems to me that it is less a device in order to get registrants
than it is to emphasize that the benefits of the country should
accrue to those who are willing to meet, the obligations of the coun-
try.

Mr. SIMON..Let meGeneral, you mentioned a 941/2-percent rate.
You're not getting some of them back. And you say 941/2 percent
are ,delivered when you follow through. Presumably, there are
sortie who just don't get the mail and just don't bother to look at it.
They just pitch it. If it comes to Tom Smith and this is Joe Jones'
home, that kind of mail that is just pitched doesn't get back to you.
That's part of the 941/2 percent that is delivered. Is that correct?

General TURNAGE. We are conscious that may be a fact, sir. On
the other hand, I must also suggest that when someone gets a
letter from Selective Service, it usually gets more attention than
just normal routine mail. But in any event, it is our ticlerstanding,
based on information from counsel and other people that when, in
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fact, the post office delivers a letter, that meets contractual re-
quirements and I think it is the best device we have iloporder to get
the information to people. And that is what we are delivering.

We send a letter and if not returned to us by the post office then
there is the presumption that that letter is delivered to the individ-
ual to whom it is addressed.

Mr. SIMON. That is an interesting assumption.
If I may take one moment of the time of the subcommittee to

relate an interesting experience I had a few years ago. It was about.
a year and a half after Gerald Ford was President. of the United
States. I called him on a matter and we chatted about some other
things and then he asked if I would send a couple of things to him
and I said that I, would be pleased to. Then I said to Betty Pyros at
the front desk, "Would you send these things to Gerald Ford?" And
she said, "Where do I send them?" I said, "Well, I forgot to askihim where, but just send them President Gerald Ford, The
White House, Washington, D.C.,' and we got the letter back
stamped, "addressee unknown." [Laughter.]

Mr. SIMON. It did not instil great confidence in me in the Postal
Service's ability to forward mail.

General TURNAGE. Let me say, however, sir,"if that happens, at
least it triggers further action on our part..

Mr. SIMON. All right.
Let me follow what happens practically. Now Joe Smith turns 18

August 15. Ile registers for school September 3. He does not have
any evidence. My own son's experience was appreciably longer
than the average you mention between the time of his registration
and the time he received the notice. What is the procedure then?

General TURNAGE. Please allow me to respond to the last part of
your question first.

rn July of 1980!the first registration occurred on a 2-week period
basis for all age.groups who were born 1960 and 1961. Because of
that massive type, of registration, Mr. Chairman, there was an ex-,
tended delay of getting the acknowledgement letters back to those
people.

In January of 1981 the third year-of-birth group was registered
all within 1 week. That was the 1962 year-of-birth group. The same
response occurred following that. Then starting that same month
of 1,981 we started the continous registration for the following year-
of-birth,group. This last year we started the next age group for con-
tinuous 'registration... . ..

Now since the first, two massive-type registrations the only other
massive period occurred after President Reagan announced the
system of grace period for those people after he announced the con-
tinuation of registratiOD and there was a further delay.

What we are sugge4ing to you now is that while we are working
with people on a continuous basis and the backlog has been caught
up and we have develOed a new relationship with the Post Office
as of,the first of this year in anticipation of this requirement, we
can Meet the obligation that we. have committed to you here and
we have no reservations about it. We feel very confident about
that. IS I hope that clarifies why, at some particular time, not
knowin hen your son \registered, there may have been a further
delay.

\
,

4Q
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The statistics that I have given you, I think, could be verified
and I would be glad to do that.

The other question is with regard to the individual who, for ex-
ample, now goes to his college or university and he Bays, "I need a
loan." What happens on the overall form most of which relates to
the requirements which are imposed by the Department of Educa-
tion. There is one simple block there that indicates that he has reg-
istered or he has not registered.

If he has registered, he puts an "X" in that block and if he has
his acknowledgement letter with him, he gives that to the adminis-
trator and he is free and clear as far as eligibility is concerned
attendant to this specific requirement. That's all.

If he, for example, has not registered and he. does not have an
acknowledgement letter, he can't create eligibility at that time and
really the process pays no dividends to continue pursuing it. How-
ever, if he will simply, in accordance with the law make the com-
mitment to the university by affadavit that he is registered to
them within 120 days, the registrar has the authority to continue
and register_that individual and start the proceedings for the loan,
according to my understanding of it.

There is a distinction here between two types of people. One, the
individual who was delayed in registering because he had, not
reached 18 and the Second related to th-individual who previously
had registered but had not provided the information or didn't have
it immediately available.

But, in either event, provisions are inherent in this authority to
grant the procedure to continue without interruption or without
delay.

Mr. SIMON. SQ that the person who on August 15 turns 18', he
simply indicates that he has registered and within 120 days he
then shows proof to the university.

Generhl TURNAGE. Yes, sir.
Mr. SIMON. Now, let's take another case. Joe Smith is a Quaker.

Joe Smith turns 18 on October 15. He registers September 3. He
gets his Pell grant. He gets his student loans. What happeneafter
October 15 and he.turns 18 and he does not register?

Mr. ELMENDORF. You are talking about a student who turns 18 in
the year before?

r. SIMON. No, I am talking about he registers for school on Sep-
tember 3. He is not 18 then. He is eligible for everything. On Octo-
ber 15 he does not register because he is a Quaker, because in our
infinite wisdom, we haven't given him a chance to indicate that he
may have conscientious scruples. What happens?

Mr. ELMENDORF. And you are talking in 1983 after July 1 he
waits until the next year. He is eligible for aid in 1983-84.

Mr. SIMON. He is eligible?
Mr. ELMENDORF. Yes, sir.
Mr. SIMor4. Throughout that school year?
Mr. EI.MENX2ORF. Yes, sir.
Mr. SIMoN. 'And there is no obligation on the part of the institu-

tion or anyone to recoup any of that money?
Mr. ELMENDORF. No, sir.
Mr. MOORE. For that year.

ttMr. ELMENDORF. For that year only.

ito
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Mr. SiKoN. For that year.
Mr. ELMENDORF. Now when he cycles into his 18th year he will

have the same expectations on him for 1984-85 that students would
have on them for 1983-84.

Mr. SIMON. What about the second semester for that year?
r. ELMENDOItF. No, sir, it is clear for the whole year. He gets

his "d for the whole year without any requirement to register
until h Iles into the next award year.

r-41gtf.

Mr. SIMON. OK.
One other question. I was amazed quite frankly when you said

you had only 28 institutions that had protested because I have per-
sonally received reaction from a lot more than 28 and we will be
hearing from some of them tomorrow.

At. this point I would like to enter into the record letters I have
received on the Solombn amendment from Congressman Thomas
Harnett, Louisburg College and the National Ethfcation Associ-
ation. Also, I would like to include correspondence sent to the De-
partment of Education- from numerous colleges who shared their
letters with this subcommittee.

[Information referred to follows:]
-HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,

Washington, D.C., March 10, 1983.
Hon. PAUL. SIMON,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Post Secondary Education, House Contnzittee on Educa-

tion and Labor, Washington, D.C.
DEAR CONGRESSMAN SIMON: I respectfully request that my comments be included

in your committee report of the hearings held February 23 and 24, 1983 concerning
the implementation of the Military Selective Service System Act amendment to the
fiscal year 1983 Defense Authorization Act (Public Law 97-252).

As a strong supporter of a national defense preparedness, this bellwether effort' by
my colleague, Congressman Solomon, as passed by a vote of 303 to 95 is a first, and
much needed, step to regaining our national commitment to service for the protec-
tion of our basic freedoms.

Thank you in advance for your favorable consideration of this request.
Sincerely,

Enclosure.
Mr. Hartnett. Mr. Chairman, whe scal year 1983 Department of Defense

Authorization was considered on the Ho. e Floor on July 28, 1982, my amendment
to my distinguished colleague Congressman Solomon's amendment was accepted on
a voice vote by the full House. As we all -know, this amendment passed the House
on a recorded vote of 303 to 95. This large majorityalong with the factithe debate
lasted over two hoursunderlines the serious consideration the Congress gave this
idea of including the Selective Service registration verification as another eligibility
requirement for Title IV student aid.

Mr. Chairman, I personally believe the Congress ought to go much further. We
should, also tie the registration verification to programs such as food stamps, visa
approval for travel abroad, and other programs where citizen benefits are of center,
interest. As a matter of fact, just such an amendment was placed on the Job Train-
ing Partnership Act (Public Law 97-300) last year. As I understand, these regula-
tions also are presently being developed for publication in the Federal Register.
Hopefully, the group devising these particular registration certification methods
prior to job training placement will develop a set of regulations which are efficient
and abide by the intent of the law, I would expect those regulations to be as coher-
ent and fair as the ones devised by the Working Group composed of Selective Serv-
ice and Department of Edifcatidi officials who wrote the regulations currently
under consideration by your subcommittee.

Mr. Chairman, I strongly believe these regulations which will implement the
amendments passed last year are not overly burdensome for the educational and fi-
nancial institutions. It is highly important to note that any student who has lost .his-

THQMAS F. HARTNE1T,
Member of Congress.
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acknowledgement letter from Selective Service will be able to have it replaced in arelatively short period of time. On top of this, a student will be entitled to financialaid the first time and will have 120 days to place a copy of his acknowledgementletter in his need attesting file for future amounts of aid. This specifically places theburden on the student to comply with the law.
There has to be evidence of a legal registration to offset the possibility of a self-certification statement opening the door to various levels of abuse in relations tothis new eligibility requirement. How efficient is a system of self-certification whenthe institutions may have to recover any aid distributed to students who may havefalsified their 'statement? We already know how difficult it is to recover legitimatestudent loans made jusrten years ago. Many of these delinquents now hold profes-sionally responsible positions in our economy who have no worldly reason for notpaying back-these loan.
I wish to commend you, Mr. Chairman, for your convening these hearings, and -atthe same time, those responsible for shaping these regulations before us today, par-ticularly, Mr. Joe Foley of the Selective Service who helped to put "substance intoform" in preparing this legislation. It is %my view that the inclusion of the 100%verification of registration clause in these regulations implements the full intent ofthe law passed last year.

47'

I All.nstvuRG Cou.EGE,
Louisburg. N.C., February 18, 1,983.

Hon. PAUL SIMON,
Cannon House Office,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. SIMON: As you know, the Department of Education recently proposedregulations governing the coordinatiori of student financial aid awards and the Mili-tary Selective Service Act. Unfortunately these regulations add to the burden ofcampus financial.aid administrators.
Essentially the Department of Education has proposed a two-part process. First,all students must certify their compliance with Selective Service Registration re-quirements, and second, those who are required to register must demonstrate theircompliance by providing a copy of their registration acknowledgment to the aidoffice.
The first issue imposes no major administration burden on campuses. It is the"proof of compliance' issue which creates greater concern. While Selective Servicehas indicated a turnaround time of two to three weeks in providing copies of ac-knowledgment letters, I fear that several months will actually lapse in many cases.If a student is unable to provide documentation, we are enabled by the proposedregulations to make one disbursement of Title IV funds, provided that the studentmust repay the disbursement if he fails to prove registration compliance within 120days. This will require an elaborate and costly tracking system in aid offices, wheth-er it is done by computer or manually.
For the Guaranteed Student Loan Program these regulations are especially trou-blesome, since certification of eligibility rather than disbursement is the key. I hopesome changes can be made in this regard.
It is my understanding that Ms. Lola Finch, President of the National Associationof Student Financial Aid Adnlinistrators, will testify before your,subcommittee onFebruary 23-24. She represents the views and wilFexpress the very real concerns ofhundreds of student aid administrators.
Thank you very much for your continued support of student financial assistanceand for allowing me this opportunity to express my concern.

Sincerely yours,
STEVEN BROOKS,

Dirictor of Financial Aid.

NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION,
GOVERNMENT RELATIONS,

Washington, D.C., February 28, 1983.
Hon. PAUL SIMON,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education, House Committee on Educa-tion and Labor, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: We understand that the Subcommittee on Postsecondary'Education will hold hearings on February 23 and 24 concerning the amendment to

3
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the Military Selective Service Act which links selective service registration to the
receipt of federal student financial aid (the Solomon amendment). Although we will
not be presenting testimony, we would like to comment on this amendment for the
record.

The National Education Association (NEA) represents 1.7 million teachers and
other education personnel in each of the United States, the U.S. territories and in
several foreign countries. Our members can be found not only in elefnentary and
secondary schools, but in institutions of higher education as well. We are concerned
about this amendment for the following reasons: .

The amendment is unfair because it applies only to young men who attend college
and need money to do so. Not only does this mean sex discrimination in the dis-
bursement of aid, it also places an extra burden on those who need financial aid to
attend school. Wealthy people face no such consequences for failure to register.

The amendment is administratively unwieldy particularly in the first year when
all sttidents requesting federal financial aid must complete Statements- of Educa-
tional IkPurpose/Registration Compliance. Financial' Aid offices are expected to
absorb this additional burden with no compensation. Financial aid decision-making
for 1983-84 is already well underway! Although the regulations will not go into
effect until July 1, 1983, higher education institutions have already been notified of
the regulations and are being asked to comply with them in the 1983-84 school year
before they are final. To do otherwise would cause serious delays in disbursement of
financial aid.

Higher education institutions and banks will be placed in the ing;ppropriate role
of law enforcement officers, while the power of the courts will be usurped. Guilt will
be legislatively determined and penalties will be set without benefit of a court trial.

Punishment of up to five years imprisonment and a fine of up to $10,000 already
exists for failure to register. This law adds an additional punishment, one that we
feel is unrelated to the offense. .

One section of the regulations for the amendment states that, ". . . the verifica-
tion of MI student Statements of Registration Compliance must be conducted before
the institution disburses any title IV aid." This statement implies that any one un-
cooperative student could prevent receipt of aid by all of the other students at the
institution. .

The NEA is sufficiently concerned about this issue to have passed the following
resolution at the February 19, 1983 meeting of the Board of Directors:

"The NEA supports the elimination of the requirement that adult male appli-
cants who apply for federally funded student financial aid must file a statement of
compliance with Selective Service registration requirements."

We appreciate your holding hearings about the Solomon amendment and its im-
'cations and hope that you will take our views into consideration in your delibera-

t ns. ,
Sincerely,

LINDA TARR-WHELAN,
Director of Government Relations.

UNIVERSITY OF COLORADO, BOULDER,
UNIVERSITY OF COLORADO STUDENT UNION,

Boulder; Colo., March 18, 1983.
HOD. PAUL SIMON,
U.S.. House of Representatives,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR REPRESENTATIVE SIMON: This letter is to contest the implementation of the
Solomon amendment which links draft registration to financial aid eligibility.

We find this piece of legislation odious on several counts. The amendment is quest
tionable from a civil liberties point of view as it would cause undue administrative
disruption at the universities; it would throw the role of the university as the bas-
tion of free thought into question and finally, it is discriminatory.

As I am sure you know, the legislation requires that a student would have to doc-
ument his (sic) registration with the selective service in order to receive financial
aid. We are positive that if this were implemented, the universities would soon find
themselves party to a lawsuit which would question their right to gather this infor-
mation. It is fairly obvious that the gathering of information on registration status
is an abridgment of the Privacy Act; it is Sh violation of guarantees against self-
incrimination and, because there are few routes of petition, it seems that the legisla-
tion will violate the guarantee of due process.
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The law does not contain any provision for the administration of the program. Asthe regulations now stand, they would undoubtebly cause an unbearable burden onuniversity financial offices. The University of Colorado Boulder, estimates that thecost of implementation would be approximately $40,000. It is unclvir where thismoney is going to come from at a university where forty staff members were recent-ly laid off and further cuts are pending. In addition, the vulnerability of the entirefinancial aid systemismad as s

together with "baling wire and bubble gum" as one administratorput it. It seems to be balanced on the edge of destruction. With the added need tocheck the registration status of applicants, the system well might fail with cata-strophic effects for all aid recipients. When one considers the additional potential ofstudent protests focused at the financial aid system, one can see the problems of theill-advised Solomon amendment.
The university is one of the few places where free thought is encouraged. The uni-versity is supposed to serve as the place in ociety where one is able to explore ideasand their possible benefit to society. All of the world looks to its universities forguidance and insight in relation to the problems which vex society. How can thisfunction continue if the university is asked to enforce laws which are contradictoryto the goal of the university? Instead of encouraging free thought, it is encouragingsubversion.
The law is discriminatory, focused only on males of draft age who require finan-cial aid. Thus, on two counts, it discriminates. The affluent person who does not re-quire financial aid is immune from prosecution. This, in our eyes, is another seriousproblem with the law.
As you can see, we are strongly opposed to this piece of legislation. We welcomethe efforts. of Representatives Schroeder and Edger for their various attempts tooverturn the law. We urge you to support their efforts.

Respectfully,

RICH LING,
TAD MILLER,
UCSV Executives.

ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA,
Sacramento, Calif, February 24, 198:1.

Ms. ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial ssistance,
U.S. Department of Education. Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: On behalf of the UniverSity of California Associated StudentBody Presidents' Council, I am submitting our objections to proposed regulations af-fecting 34 CFR 668.
As you are aware, the proposed regulations require that all applicants acceptedfor federally funded student aid (Pell Grants, GSM's, SEOG's, NDSL's and others)submit to their college a "Statement of Registration Compliance" certifying eitherthat they are not required to register for the draft, or that they have in fact regis-tered. To receive the aid, students who certify they have registered must submit tothe school their Selective Service Registration Acknowledgment letter or other suit-able documentation.
For students attending the University bf California, there exists serious difficul-ties with both the intent and porticol application of this new law. However, for pur-poses of the public review process with.the Department of Education regarding theproposed regulations, we will primarily address the practical and administrative

consequences of implementing this law as proposed:
Because the regulations affect financial aid recipients only, they discriminateagainst lower income people and therefore have a disproportionate impact on racialand ethnic minorities. Section 668.29.
The regulations violate the Fifth Amendment protection against self-incrimina-tion by essentially requiring individuals to make a statement about whether theyare guilty of a criminal offense. Sections 668.29 and 668.25.
The regulations violate Due Process by shifting the burden of proof from the gov-ernment to the iccused. The substitution of an administrative process for is judicialprocess also deprives an individual of his right to trial by jury and to counsel. Sec-tion 668.27(c).
Although a hearing is available only to someone who claims to have registered,

there are no standards for the action a school can take to verify whether or not an
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individual is subject to registration. Farthermore, there is no appeal from the hear-
ing. Section 668.

The regulations violate the Privacy Act of 1974 by requiring students to reveal
draft registration information which is irrelevant to financial aid and then make it
a permanent part of their student record. The regulations contemplate exchange of
information beti,veen colleges and the Selective Service. Section 668.26(c).

severa Imes In "WiliittfirIWIIINCIMTrucet10 reroullranr1711 ---
create -administrative burden" for the institutions involved, particularly for the
1983-84 period of educational aid. Enactment of the regulations will force increased
bureaucracy into our educational system and represents a waste of a great deal of
administrative energy and finance. At the University of California, administrators
have expressed deep concerns with many of the points raised here and have not yet
been able to fully calculate the overall impact that implementation of this law will
have on our system.

,Until the issues are addressed and resolved in the final regulations, or until the
entire legislation is repealed, students at the University will continue to express op-
position to the implementation of this law.

Thank you for your attention.
Sincerely,

in 11 on

CAnoi.INE J. TEscnE,
Associate Director, U.C. Student Lobby.

(MEMORANDUM!

THE COLORADO COLLEGE,
Colorado Springs, Colo.

To: Department of Education.
From: Rodney M. Oto, Director of Financial Aid.
Date: February 18, 1983
Re Comments on Proposed Regulations (January 27, 1983).

The followitig comments are in response to the Proposed Regulations (January 27,
1983) to implement the Selective Service registration requirement for Title IV stu-
dent aid eligibility.

First, I must acknowledge that the law (P.L. 97-252) has been enacted by Congress%
and it is the responsibility of the Department of Education (ED) to enforce this legis-
lation. However, I have a number of concerns prompted by ED's proposed regula-
tions"that I would like to address.

1. Are the (proposed)"regulations consistent with the statute? The regulations
refer to two distinct procedures in complying with the law. The certification of regis-
tration seems consistent and appropriate with the statute. However, the verification
procedures (i.e. requiring copies of the Acknowledgement Letter) seem to overstep
the legislation. The Verification provision of the law (50 U.S.C. App 5 462 (f)(3)) reads
in part:

` Such methods (of verificatic6) may include requiring institutions of higher edu-
cation to provide a list to the Secretary of Education or to the Director of persons
who have submitted such statements of compliance."

A literal reading of this suggests that ED or Selective Service should verify the
certifications. Even Representative Hartnett, the sponsor of the Bill, suggests that
the purpose of the provision was to "place the (enforcement) onus on the backs of
the Selective Service System" and to required of schools no more than the contem-
plated lists (Cong. Rec. 114763-G5 (28 July 1982)).

2. Should disbursement of awards be withheld due to a delay in verification?
Again, the reading of the law suggests thta ED's proposed regulations do not inter-
pret this provision accurately. The statute (50 U.S.C. App. 5 462 (f)(2) establishes a
relatively simple and straight-forward procedure:

"In order to receive (any Title IV aid) . . . a person who is required (to register
with the Selective Service) . . . shall file with the institution of higher education
which the person intends to attend, or is attending, a statement of compliance (with
the registration requirement)."

A reading of this subsection indicates the law is satisfied, and entitlement for Fed-
eral assistance established, when a person%ubmits a statement of compliance to the

In addition, the administering of Title IV programs have traditionally relied on
written statements and certificatiohs from aid recipients without having to verify
those representatives. It appears that ED is suggesting a precedent that would be
massive misdirection of resources, not require by statute, to impose a verification
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program to identify a small minority of students who have violated registration re-quirements and submitted false Registration Compliance Statements.Do the Proposed Regulations create an undue hardship and unreasenable.burden to schools? There is no question that the proposed procedures, especially theverification requi0ments imposed on schools, would create undue and unnecessaryburdens on educ4ional institutions. The proposed regulations would require an in-crease in iltn ff_tie -and -paperproeeesing-to-actequately" coutlaztVtitt tnticitionitiir---7compliance, track verification documents, control disbursements, administer tempo-rary verifications, and make required reports to ED. This implementation will re-quire a significant amount of manpower and financial resources at most schools. EDshould review the Conference Report for this legislation which indicated any regula-tions adopted to implement the statute should "minimize the administrative burdenon colleges and universities and the delays in processing aid applications andawards" (Gong. Rec., H6001 (16 August 1982)). It seems the regulations are inconsist-ent with Congressional intent and would impose burdens exceeding those that Con-gress expected colleges and universities to bear.
4. Do the proposed procedures give students the impression that schools are en-forcing draft registration laws? Under the law written, schools may reasonably re-quire a Statement of Registration Compliance and send lists of students who havecertified their compliance to ED or Selective Service. However, the proposed regula-tions require schools to !lave documentation in order to make a determination of astudent's compliance with Selective Service; give written notice to the student offailure to verify registration; terminate aid after 120 days (in cases of temporaryverification); attempt to recover disbursed funds; and notify the Secretary of Educa-tion when a student has not adequately verified his/her registration. All of theseprovisions place schools (i.e. Financial Aid Officers) more deeply in military registra-r tion and criminal law enforcement than Congress intended. Consequently, studentshave no recourse but to view financial aid officials at schools as an arm of the Fed-eral government. This impression is not acceptable as institutions'of higher educa-tion are not Federal institutions nor do they have authority to enforce Federal laws.,Can ED and/or Selective Service adequately verify registration compliance? EDclaims that neither it not the Selective Service can accomplish the verification duet? staffing and financial e6nstraints. Naturally, educational institutions have thesesame concerns and limitations. More importantly, the real question should not beone of the rsibility of verification, but one of responsibility. In short, who shouldbe responsi le for verification. A reading of the legislation clearly indicates that ver-ification should be done by ED or Selective Service. This is the intent of Congress. IfED and/or Selective Service cannot comply with the law, support and advice shouldbe sought from the Administration or Congress. Instead, ED has made a proposal 'toshift the Virden of responsibility on to the schools. It appears that ED would like toenforce thiS law at the expense of the constituency it is supposed to serve.Alternative Proposal. There are three principles that are the basis of the alterna-tive procedures to follow: (A) the schools responsibility be limited to acceptance of aStatement of Registration Compliance and submission of copies of the Statements orlists of persons certifying registration to ED; (B) schools be given authority to dis-burse funds or certify loan eligibility on the basis of a duly executed ComplianceStatement; and (C) no direct or indirect school responsibility for verifying, policing orenforcing compliance with the Selective Service Act.

The procedures would be as follows:
1. Students complete a Statement of Registration Compliance.
2. Copied. of Statement for persons indicating they have registered or lists of thesepeople sent to ED or Selective Service.
3. ED and/or Selective Service verifies registration status. If student is verified,no confirmation sent to school. If student is not in compliance, school notified imme-diately.
4. Upon receiving notice of non-compliance, school withholds or withdraws allTitle IV funds that have not already been disbursed to the specific student.-Schoolswould not be held liable for disbursed or spent funds before the notice of non-com-pliance. However, liability would be incurred for funds disbursed after receiving thenotice.
5. ED and/or Selective Service would contact student to request compliance. Stu-dent registering after this request would contact ED directly to verify compliance.Students not complying within a reasonable time should then be prosecuted by Se-lective Service.
6. ED notifies school of those to be taken off non-compliance status. Schools maythen disburse Title IV funds to these previously non-registered students.



42

Thank you for the opportunity to make comments about those proposed rules. I
hope 1 have been helpful in suggesting areas the Department of Education may
wish to review more closely. It is my objective that this law be implemented as Con-
gress intended, with the least amount of disruption to the financial aid delivery
syltem and the students and schools it serves.

GREGORY Fusco,
COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY,

- New York, N.Y.
MS. ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance, U.S. Department of Education, Washington,

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: I write to comment On the proposed Department Of Education
rules to implement section 462(f) of the Military Selective Service Act, which links
eligibility for Federal student financial aid to draft registration.

While the Department has attempted to follow the Congressional mandates to
avoid excessive administrative burden and delay of awards, the proposed rule fails
in both respects and should be revised. I focus my comments on the regulatory pro-
posal and point out that a superior method of implementing the law is available.
The alternative I propose will serve the expressed interests of the Government and
not place undue administrative burdens on students or institutions.

There are three primary difficulties with the proposed rules: they have to do with
the proper role of educational institutions, the new burden of the proposed system,
and the prospect of delaying aisl for many eligible students who have fullybmet their
responsibilities under the selective service law.

Educational institutions are stewards of Federal funds in student aid, and have
developed complicated and expensive systems to discharge that stewardship respon-
sibility properly. It is poor public policy, and it is outside the language and stated
intent of Section 462(f) to excessively entangle universities and colleges in the adi
ministration of the Military Selective Service Act. When a less burdensome alterna-
tive is clearly available, the Department should embrace it.

The administrative burden of the proposed system is enormous. It is alsoexcessive
because of its universal coverage and its predisbursement verfication. We fear that
it is also unworkable because the Government will not be able to provide duplicate
evidence of selective service registration on a timely basis. A majority of Columbia
students need not register at all because they were born before 1960 or because they
are women. Surely part of the proposal can be Streamlined to expedite their situa-
tion. Verfication should note be a precondition for .swarding aid because adequate
safeguards already exist to.identify ineligible students tend deal with them accord-
ingly. The current availability of proof of registration to those who have complied
with the law is questionable, and the ability to obtain duplicate proof is untried and,
at best, uncertain. It does not mike sense to withhold aid from large numbers of
law-abiding students because the Government is Nible to implement an adequate
record system.

The American Council on Education has proposed an alternative system of imple-
menting section 462(f) which we believe is superior to the current Department pro-.
posal and should be adopted. Essentially, the institution would collect and forward
to the Government a modified "statement of education proOse/registration compli-
ance"form. This would be similar to the form identified in the NPRM. The princi-
pal difference in our suggestion is that all other verfication activities would be be-
tween the government and the student. The educational institution would have a
written record for its verfication, and the Government would have complete control
over whatever subsequent verification may be appropriate. Should government
records show that a student who submitted such a form is not registered, they could
contact him and see if a clerical error-exists, if he is not required to register, or if he
is in violation of section 462(f). In this last instance, the student may also avail him-
self of the hearing which is authorized in Part 4 of Section 462(f).

Such an approach would say hundreds of campuses from a vast new paperwork
system, and guarantee t I ble students would receive aid without burden or
delay. It would also pl e the government and the educational institutions in their
proper roles,-with the Government enforcing the laws and the institutions being re-
sponsibly stewards of public funds.

48
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I hope that the Department will make every effort to modify its Oroposal and es-
tablish abetter method of administering this law.

Sincerely,
MICHAF:L 1. SOVERN.

ILLINOIS COLLEGE,
OFFICE OF FINANCIAL AID,

Jacksonville. Ill., February 18, 1983.
Ms. ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistanq,
U.S. Department of Education, W zngton, 1). D r'

DEAR Ms. FoLsy: My initial le era concerning the Selective Service
,
Registration

were written before the law was enacted, to protest first of all the inequity of sin-
gling oet the college student to prove his compliance with the registration process
and secondly, to protest that the registration test be made only on those students
who would be recipients of federal assistance. My protests fell on the deaf ears of
Senators Percy and Dixon, and Representative Paul Findley, and the law was en-
acted.

We have, at our institution, taken steps to implement this law, as it now stands in
the statutes. Specific programs have been instituted; correspondence has been
mailed to aid recipients, notices have appeared in local newspapers. The tracking
for implementation is a significant burden when added to requirements for valida-
tion for Pell Grants and the administrative burdens imposed by the Guaranteed
Student Loan program. Federal requirements in the area of student aid have
become inceasingly burdensome to this manually operated financial aid office.

Changing rules, awards, regulations, which ofter occur mid-year, increase the
time spent in tracking paper and reduce considerably the time avajlaIble to address
student needs &concerns that often require personal attention.

A great concern is the freshman who enters in the fall of 1983, who more than
likely has reached his 18th birthday during the summer of 1983. Will he be denied
aid because his selective service registration has not been acknowledged? And if the
approval is granted for a substitute affidavit, consider the4time spent on follow-up to
be certain the actual registration is received to replace the affidavit. Many schools
will more than likely not honor:the affidavit, because of the potential for error for
which they would be liable in ally future audit. ,

I have not addressed my personal concern, which is the constitutionality of the
law itself. That doubt, coupled With the discriminatory nature of the law, makes the
law personally repugnant to me:

In addition, the certification that must be signed by all students as to compliance,
be they eligible or not eligible fot the draft, is an invasion of personal rights.

I would like to see the law removed from the statutes.
Sincerely, . 0

MS. ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Educatiott,SWashington, D.C.

DEAR MS. FOLEY: The Mennonite Central Committee, U.S. Peace Section is an
agency of the Mennonite and Brethren in Christ Churches which speaks from a 450
year-old tradition committed to the Christian gospel of peace and the belief that war
is sin. In the event of military conscription we counsel our youth against participa-
tion in war in any form. Conscientious objection to draft registration has been recog-
nized by the two largest Mennonite bodies. It is because of this history and commit-
ment that we submit the following comments.

The U.S. Peace Se&ion has carefully reviewed the proposed rule for Department
of Education regulations: Student Assistance General Provisions, published in the
Federal Register January 27, 1983. Because of the administrative impact these regu-
lations will have on colleges and universities along with the controversial nature of
the law itself, as evidenced by the pending court case, we request extension of the
comment period for 30 days, to March 31, 1983.

Our comments on the proposed regulations fall into four general areas:

Lois M. HUGHES,
Director, Student Financial Aid.

MENNONITE CENTRAL COMMITTEE, U.S.,
Akron, Pa., February 23, 1983.

4 9
21-873 0 - 84 4



44

L CONSTITUTIONALITY

We question the hwality of these regulations based on the U.S. Constitution. The
Fifth Amendment protects a citizen from self-incrimination. The proposed "State-
ment of Registration Compliance" would force a person to incriminate himself for a
federal crime. The regulations further circumvent a person's right to a fair trial and
constitute a Bill of Attainder. In this case a person is presumed guilty until proven
innocent and punishment meted legislatively without to benefit of legal counsel or
trial. Furthermore, the regtilations, while requiring all students to file a compliance
statement, clearly discriminate against males and those from. lower income families
who need financial assistance. This is not equal protectionkunder the law. Indeed,
we caution against the arrousal of campus passions for equity and fairness well
beyond the conscientious objector' community. Finally, information gathered for one
purpose (financial assistance) should not be used for an entirely different purpose
(registration compliance). This may be in violiktion of the 1974 Privacy Act.

2. ROLE OF EDUCATION

Educational institutions should not be coerced into a policing role for the federal
government. Financial aid administrators become conduits of government enforce-
ment efforts thus jeopardizing the integrity of their position through this involve-
ment. A judicial process has been developed to enforce the military Selective Service
Act and sptcifically the presidential proclamation regarding draft registration. The
Department of Justice, FBI and the Selective Service System (administratively) have
taken measures to enforce compliance with the registration law. The relative degree
of their success is irrelevant to the function and scope orknstitutions of higher edu-
cation.

3. ADMINISTRATIVE BURDEN

The oposed regulations create burdensome administrative function for colleges
and I iversities. The already complicated financial aid procedure becomes even
mor so with the creation of compliance statements, verification letters and affida-

.
^vi needing to be distributed, processed, filed and retrieved. These functions require
v uable resources to implement (i.e. personnel time, filing spqce, training new staff,
ounseling with parents-and students, etc.). In light of the inflationary cost of educa-

tion and the cutback of support for educational institutions, these additional func-.
tions appear unnecessary and unduly burdensome.

4lMILITARIZATION OF SOCIETY

The fundamental objection to these regulations is rooted in the values of human
dignity and human rights which America has historically championed. The respon-
sibility of individuals to act on the basis of their conscience and with "a decent re-
spect to the opinions of mankind," is written in the founding documents bf America.
These regulations conflict with those values by enforcing an unprecedented Militari-
zation of society in peace time. The regulations implement a narrow and short-sight-
ed definition of the citizen's obligation to society. The regulations define social duty
in exclusively military terms, an approach which has more in common with totali-
tarian ,political and military system than with the American ideal of "one nation
under God, with liberty and justice for all." The power to remain a free nation
grows out of respect for human dignity and human rights in the laws and regula-
tions of the land. We see these regulations as a threat to the strength and freedom
of America, and on that basis urge their withdrawal.

Sincerely,
JAMES C. LONGACRE, .

Chairman, MCC, U.S. Peace Section.
,

THE UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN,
Ann Arbor, Mich., February 23, 1981

Re Response to 34 CFR Part 668 Student Assistance General Provisions, Notice of
- Proposed Rule Making.

MS. ANDREA FOLEY,
Program Specialist, Policy Section,
U.S. Department of Education, Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: Thank you for this opportunity to respond to the Notice of Pro-
posed Rule Making prepared by the U.S. Department of Education to implement the

50
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new amendment to the Military Selective Service Act, which requires certain recipi-
ents of Title IV student aid funds to be registered with the Selective Service Com-
mission.

I would like to summarize for you my concerns, which fall into two categories:
(1) The significantly increased administrative burden which these proposed regu-

lations would place upon the universities.
(2) The belief that it would be more appropriate for the procedures by which a

student verifies his registration with the Selective Service Commission to take place
between the student and the government, rather than between the student and the
university. In complying with the existing law, we would have no objection to
asking for the student to certifx4to us that such registration had taken place, as the
student is now asked to do on a variety of other questions.

to Let me explain these two points in greater detail. Our understanding of the pro-
posed regulationsis that the University will be responsible for receiving and review-
ing at least one additional form, and in some cases, as many as three forms for
every financial aid applicant. For the University of Michigan this means adminis-.
,trative processing of an estimated 25,000 additional forms.

This substantial increase in required paper work is only one aspect of the in-
creased administrative burden associated with the proposed regulations. Additional
staff will be requited in order to: notify and counsel students; monitor compliance
with the verification procedures; check consistency of Statement of Registl-ation
Compliance information (e.g., birth date); establish financial controls and deal with
disbursement delays if verification cannot be accomplished immediately; administer
temporary verification by affidavit, including aid cutoffs ,and other actions required
when verification is not received within the 120 days being allowed; prepare re-
quired reports to the Department of Education and lenders; and check renewal ap-
plicant for prior registration information.

Within the time limit for responding to the proposed regulations, it is impossible
to develop an absolutely accurate estimate of the University's expenses associated
with these new functions, but the costs will be substantial. Thus, we believe that the
proposed regulationg.wl impose undue and unnecessary time and cost burdens on
our already extremev busy financial aid operations.

The Military Sele&ive Service Act states that students can qualify for Title IV
student aid by filing a Statement of Registration Compliance which presumably
could lie included on the already required Statement of Educational Purpose. The
law also implies that schools might have to submit these forms, or lists of them, to
the Department of Education. However, the preamble to the proposed regulations
notes that compliance cannot be verified by using the lists contemplated by Con-
gress. Hence, the proposed regulations require a verification system that goes far
beyond what. Congress seems to have intended. In line with our belief that Congress
intended these regulations to place a minimal burden on the universities, we sug-
gest that the certification and verification aspects of these regulations be separated
and that only the former activity rest with the universities.

In addition, we believe that the federal government should deal directly with the
student in verifying registration with the Selective Service Commission. While the
University could augment the list of items to which the student must certify a re-
sponse in order to receive federal financial aid, the process of verifying such infor-
mation would, I believe, be an inappropriate extension of existing procedures.

All of the above comments are limited to the proposed regulations for enforcing
the law. They are not intended as a criticism of the law since the University has not
taken any position on the wisdom of the law itself.

I have asked the Office of Financial Aid to draw together its specific reactions to
the proposed regulations. These additional comments are attached.

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the proposed rules and for your con-
sideration of the issues that have been raised in this letter. L

Sincerely,
HAROLD T. SHAPIRO.

Attachment.
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Re Responie to 34 CFR Part
Proposed Rulemaking.

To: U.S. Department of Education.
From: The University of Michigan.
Date: February 23, 1983.
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[MEMORANDUM)

THE UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN,
OFFICE OF FINANCIAL AID,

Ann Arbor, Mich.
668 Student Assistance General Provisions, Notice of

The University of Michigan's additional comments address questions of intent or
interpretation and, where possible, suggest language consistent with the goal set
forth by the provisions.

(1) Ref. p. 3920 Effective Date
". . . beginning with the 1983-84 award year . . ."

ifThe determination of Student eligibility under the draft egistration requirement
is unclear for students awarded for academic periods begin ing prior to July 1, 1983,
but for whom the disbursement of funds occurs on or after July 1. The ambiguity
might be clarified by using such language as ". . . for award periods beginning on
or after July 1, 1983. '

(2) Ref. p. 3920 Identification of Students Required to Register
"If a student certifies that he is not required to register, the institution would be

able to rely on that statement unless it has other information inconsistent with thestatement."
(a) This proposed rule seems to obligate the University to check other information

(birth date, sex, residency, armed service member on active duty status) to deter-
mine if an applicant's "Statement of Registration Compliance" is consistent with
whatever information is available. If such obligation does exist, added administra-
tive responsibilities should be more emphatically stated in that while the University
might record such information, it may not routinely review student records for con-
sistency. If such obligation does not exist, it is unclear whether or not the Universi-
ty is liable where it has accepted a "Statement of Registration Compliance" and it islater determined from a University-maintained record that the student submitted
false information (e.g., Sandy Smith actually being a draft. registration eligible
male).

(b) In an effort to ease the administrative burden, in identifying students requiredto register, it would be advisable to permit the University to declare a student
exempt from filing a "Statement of Registration Compliance" in those instances
where information indicates that a student is not eligible to register (e.g., known
female).

(3) Ref. p. 3923 Proof of Registration After Notification of Denial of Assistance
". . . the proposed regulations permit the student to establish his compliance at

any time before the end of the payment period for which he seeks aid, or the 30-day
Lriod after the notice of denial, whichever is later." (italics added) One sentence
iter this statement is revised. "However, if he does not prove compliance until a

fiubsequent payment period, he may not receive aid for the previous payment
.period(s)."

The second of the two statements effectively changes the period of proof of regis-
ii tration to 30 days or the end of the payment period, whichever is earlier. Sincei "whichever is later" is preferred, the second statement should be deleted.
j (4) Ref. p. 3923 Reduction of Regulatory Burden
/ ". . . public comment is especially invited on whether there may be further oppor-

/ tunities to reduce any regulatory burdens found in these proposed regulations."
, Considering the relatively ,short time period between publication of final regula-

tions and the effective date of July 1, 1983, and the number of registrants who, for
whatever reason, cannot locate their Registration Acknowledgment Letter (Form 3A
or 3A-S), it is suggested that the Selective Service send to all registrants: (1) a new
letter of Form 3A or 3A-S; and (2) a notice that the letter or form is required for
receipt of Title IV student aid. I

(5) Ref. p. 3929-3925 "Notice" on Registration Compliance Form
"Notice.You will not receive Title IV financial aid unless you complete this

statement and, if required, give proof to your school that you are registered." (italics
added)

The University suggests that for clarification purposes, the wording "if required"
be changed to "if required to rregister."

5
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NORTHEASTERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY,
OFFICE OF FINANCIAL Am,

Chicago, 111., February 25, 1983.
MS. ANDRF.A FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Education, Washington, p.c.

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: We have reviewed the "Notice of Proposed Rule Making" in the
January 27, 1983 Federal Register, that requires financial aid recipients to register
for Selective Service.

First of all we disagree with the concept of requiring financial aid recipients to
register for Selective Service in order to maintain their eligibility for title IV funds.
This mandate discriminates againk poor students/in particular, and male students
in general.

Secondly is. the administrative impact on institutions to develop policies and pro-
cedures to deal with 4udents who experience inordinate delays in receiving verifica-
tion. We are an urban public institution, with limited flexibility to substitute insti-
tutional funds, for f decal dollars sequestered. The institution will have to repro-
duce, distribute, coll ct, and maintain copies of the Statements of Compliance for all
students.

Thirdly the addittional administrative cost institutions will experience concerns us
greatly. The printing, postage, and staff time devoted to mailings, reviewing, and
subsequent follow) g-up to ensure compliance will be costly. ' .

According to th National Associatioh of Student Financial Aid Administrators
(NASFAA), the 1 does not require 100 percent verification, but this administra-
tion is requestin it because of the demands of the Selective Service system. This
administration professing to deplore government bureaucracy and attendant
paper work. But over the last two years institutions have been required to verify
information on more Pell Grant recipients than any other time in the history of this
program. ,

In conclusion, we want the record to reflect that Northeastern Illinois University
disagrees with this idea of registration. If this administration is unwilling to com-
promise and institutions are required to implement this law, then please consider
some recommendations: .

1. The administration should review the possibility of increasing the administra-
tive cost allowance to institutions.
. 2. Procedures should be developed between the Selective Services Administration,

and the Department of Education, to assist institutions in identifying students who .
have not registered. This will of course reduce the administrative burden to the in-
stitutions. 4,

3. Some consideration or compensation should be given to the institution's
"income fund" that incur bad debts, if they decide to execute the "Temporary Ver-
ification by Affidavit" option.

Sincerely,
GEORGE A. WEST,

Director of Financial Aid.

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY,
VICE PRESIDENT FOR PUBLIC AFFAIRS,

Princeton, NJ., February 25, 1983.
To: Ms. Andrea Foley, Office of Student Financial Assistance, U.S. Department of

Education, 400 Maryland Ave., S.W., (Room 4318 Regional Office Building 3),
Washington, D.C. 20202.

From: Robert K. Durkee, Vice President for Public Affairs, Princeton University. -
Subject: Proposed, Amendments to 34 C.F.R. Part 668, Student Assistance, General

Provisions. -

This memorandum is submitted on behalf of Princeton University, responding.to
a request from the United States Department of Educatibn for comments on pro-
posed amendments to the Student Assistance Regulations published in implementa-
tion of 50 U.S.C. App. Section 462(0. Notice of Proposed Rule Making, 48 Fed. Reg.
3920.

In general, Princeton endorses the analysis and comments concerning these pro-
posed regulations submitted by the American Council on Education. Princeton par-
ticipated in the preparation of the ACE comments awl shares ACE's view that the
proposed regulations: (1) inipose administrative burdens far exceeding those cont,em-
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plated by Congre'ss and (2) unduly entangle educational institutions in the enforce-
ment of Selective Service requirements,

In addition, we wish to draw attention to the extent to ivhich the timing of the
proposed regulations poses substantial problems for fair Ind efficient implementa-
tion of University aid award processes regarding aid to btu ! awarded this spring for
academic year 1983-84.

We request that the Department of Education join us in seeking a delay in the
implementation of the new legislation linking federal student assistance and Selec-
tive Service registration so that adequate time Nay be provided for orderly and
thorough consideration of the substantive questiolVfaised by the ACE comments
and so that sufficient notice can be given to all affected parties (including students,
parents, and educational institutions) to permit appropriate planning.

Entering students are accepted for admission to Princeton in mid-April and con-
tinuing students must submit their aid applications by then. Since the financial aid
that will be available to students is in many cases a critical factor in their decision-
making, it is essential that information about financial aid be distributed to them
sufficiently early so that families can submit the necessary data family financial
analyses can be performed, and award packages can be calculated in a timely way.

This year our financiAl aid process has already been delayed by over a month by
the uncertainties introduced by the new legislation and the proposed regulations. It
is unrealistic for us to delay further, and yet since the proposed regulations seem so
at variance with the relevant statute, the Congressional report language, and the
legislative history, the uncertainties persist. They persist also as a result of constitu-
tional challenges to the legislation -itself. Under these circumstances, it is exceeding-
ly difficult for institutions and for families to proceed with confidence that they will
not have to make substantial adjustments between now and July 1. Even if institu-
tions could put aside the uncertainties, it would be eAtentially impossible to develop
sound administrative procedures for this spring under the existing timetable.

The dimensions of this concern are exacerbated by the inevitability of a major ad-
ministration logjam for institutions and for the Selective Service whenever the law
initially takes effect simply because of the number of students whose registration
will need to be established. If the law takes effect this July 1, when students, insti-
tutions, and importantly the Selective Service, will have had little time to prepare
and adjust, the likelihood of Major delay arid confusion seems to us unacceptably
high_ This entire matter is sufficiently controversial and sufficiently inconsistent
with other financial aid requirements that it would seem to us especially unwise to
implement this law before acceptable and workable procedures can be developed, ef-
fective notification of students and families can take place, and the uncertainties
concerning the. regulations themselves can be resolved.

The likely result of the confusion and uncertainty in processing financial aid re-
, quests 'Is delay in making awards. This delay may make it difficult for students to

make decisions 'About matriculation and may postpone the collection of-funds for
some colleges and universities, imposing additional costs on those institutions. This
added cost burden would, of course; be compounded by the need to secure and train
staff capable under severe time constraints of processing the added paperwork and-
responding to the inevitable questions, concerns, and unforeseen circumstances at-
tandant on any substantial change in financial, aid procedure.

For all of these reasons we strongly believe that it is unwise to implement these
new requirements so late in the financial aid "season." A delay in the effective date
would enable the Department of Education to evaluate comments on the proposed
regulations in a systematic and orderly way, and to adopt regulations clearly in ad-
vance of the first award year in which they will be effective, rather than having the
regulations in the process of being written, issued in proposed form, revised, and
issued inifinal form, all directly in the midst of an already complicated award deter-
mination process. The more general concerns of/individuals and institutions about
these regulations are unnecessarily aggravated by the timing of the process, and
thus we encourage the Department tb seek postponement of the effective date.of the
legislation. to which these proposed regulations apply.

PROVIDENCE CO 1.I.EG E,
OFFICE OF FINANCIAL AID,

Providence, R.I., February 22, MU,
MS. ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Education, Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: This letter is in response to the Notice of Proposal Rule Making
of January 27, 1983, regarding Selective Service registration and eligibility for Title
IV student assistance.

5
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Most institutional representatives and financial aid officers that I have spoken
with support the concept of Title IV eligibility being contingent upon Selective Serv-ice registration. However, the proposed regulations for collecting and administering
these new requirements are unnecessarily burdensome to institutions, disruptive tothe financial aid delivery, system and effectively relieve the Department of Educa-tion, Selective Service, as well as, state grant and loan agencies of their intended
Share of responsibility in.tinis process.

Implementation of the requirements outlined in the NPRN would result in thegeneration of millions of athLitional pieces of paper because most schools, loan agen-cies and stale grant programftraTe distributed their application forms for 1983-84without the necessary statement of registration compliance or any other indicationthat Selective Service registration is an eligibility requirement for federal funds.
To distribute, collect and follow up on the Statement of Registration Compliance,

then collect the Verification of Registration Compliance for those who are recitiredto register, will be an administrative task of Brobdingnagian dimension. The processwill inevitably drag on well into the summer months and cause significant delays in
the processing of Guaranteed Loans for the second consecutive year.

It will place additional burdens on already overtaxed financial aid staffs and insti-tutional'budgets that have been fixed without provisions for hiring additional staff.
The delays will inevitably affect the delivery of Pell Grants and campus based aidfunds. Such delays will cause more frustration and confusion among student aid re-cipients and ,college fiscal officers responsible for the collection of tuition and othercharges.
Institutions with sophisticated data processing systems will face sizable repro-gramming problems 'to alter their systems for tracking and processing aid applica-tions.
The Selective Se'fbice Office will be inundated with requests for the Registration

Acknowledgement letter. I have'randomly surveyed our students and found thatmore than half had no idea where their letters were located. About one-fourth werenot sure what a Registration Acknowledgement Letter was.
Reason would dictate that given the timing of the NPRM, the produres, as out-lined. are ill-conceived and impractical.
A more reasonable and efficient solution for the first year would be to require allschools, loan agencies and state grant programs to provide the Selective Servicewith computerized tapes containing the Social Security Number and name of allmales of registration age for verification in October. The tapes would be matched

against Selective Service data and a list or tape containing unmatched Social Secu-rity Numbers and names would be returned to the institutions, loan agencies andstate grant programs for follow up and recovery by January.
Given that only 4 percent of eligible men have not registrated, it would be muchsimpler to pursue them rather than disrupt and delay the financial aid of the other96 percent that are in compliance or are not required to register. This would greatly

facilitate the process for 1983-84 and allow sufficient time to implement the neces-sary procedures for 1984-85.
Sincerely,

HERBERT J. D'ARCY,
Director, Financial Aid.

SCHENECTADY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE,
FINANCIAL. AID OFFICE,

_Schenectady, N.Y., February 25, 1983.
Ms. ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Education, Washington, D.C.

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: This letter is being written in response to the Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking with regard to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part668, Student Assistance General Provisions, published in. the Federal Register,
Volume 48, Number 19, dated January 27, 198:3. The following are my commentsregarding the proposed amendments:

1. Since the Department of Education admits it is unlikely that fin regulationswill not be published until late Spring, it is therefore unlikely that s hools will beable to formAlly establish their implementation mechanisms until ea y summer!This could cause undue delays in the processing of Guaranteed Student Loans
(GSL). Rather than process GSL's before the regulations become final and retroac-tively verify registration compliance, I am ecommending to my Institution that no
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dSL's be p seed prior to the final regulations being in place. I do not wish to
place my Institution in a position of having to notify lenders that a student is not in
compliance with Selective Service Regulations. I also hesitate to enforce a Student
Assistance General Provision before it has become finalized. You must surely realize
the backlog problems this will cause Institutions and students if GSL loan applica-
tion processing has to wait for final regulations.

2. Section 668.26(e)(2) allows institutions to disburse funds to students who must
request a duplicate of his Registration Acknowledgment Letter. I am recommending
to my Institution that we not exercise this option. Tracking these students 14 120.
days to insure their compliance, attempting to recover the amount of any disilarsed
Title IV monies and if unsuccessful contacting the Secretary for students who are
not in compliance, constituties an administrative burden.

3. My main objection to the implementation of the amendments is the delays
which will be experienced by all students in general and those affected by registra-
tion compliance in particular. SOme 'institutions may be in a position to cope with
the cash flow problems this regulation will cause. However, students still need fi-
nancial aid funds for noninstitutional educational expenses such as books, room,
board, transportation, etc. No doubt many students will be forced to delay their col-
lege education if their financial aid funding can not be delivered in a timely fashion.

4. What I respectfully propose is a delay in the implementation of the Selective
Service Compliance regulations as it applies to Title IV aid. My institution is a
small urban community college. I do foresee problems arising at my school, but I am
even more concerned with students at private institutions or the larger state operat-
ed universities and 'colleges. As a professional aid officer for the past 12 years, my
concern has always been for students, not just those enrolled at my school but all
students.

Therefore, I am suggesting an October 1, 1983 date for implementation that for
the most part would only effect students receiving Title IV monies after this date. A
more practical date would be July 1, 1984. Either implementation date should not
cause undue delay in aid delivery to students and Could still satisfy the intent of the
Military Selective Service Act.

May I take this opportunity to thank yotifor your consideration of my comments.
Sincerely,

RICHARD E. OBOYSKI,
'Director of Financial Aid.

Ms_ ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Education. Washington, DC.

SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY,
OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR,

Carbondale, Ill., February 25, 1983.

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: The Department's proposed regulations to implement the re-
quirements of Selective Service registration as a condition of eligibility for federal
student financial aid present three major problems to the Southern Illinois Univer-
sity System: they are costly to implement, they impose serious unnecessary burdens
on institutions of higher education and on students, and they will thus cause unnec-
essary delays in awarding aid to students. Two elements of the regulations and their
attendant consequences are of particular concern:

1. 100 percent verification: This requirement is not mandated by law. It tremen-
dously increases costs to institutions and the burden on both institutions and stu-
dents. A well publicized program of selective verification would be adequate.

2. Annual recertification of every aid applicant: This requirement is wholly unrea-
sonable and serves no purpose whatsoever, except, perhaps to keep institutional
costs very high. It also appears to be inconsistent with the requirements in section
668.26.

To implement these two requirements the University would have to create and
maintain systems for notification to students of the requirements, for verification
and re-verification of satisfaction of the requirements, for compliance monitoring,
for affidavit option development, administration, and follow-up, and for records
management and maintenance. In addition, existing computerized and manual sys-
tems would have to be substantially and expensively restructured in order to accom-
modate the requirements of the proposed regulations.

In addition to costs for system development and maintenance, institutions will
incur further costs for photocopying certification fornis, Registration Acknowledge-
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ment Letters, affidavits, and the like. Aid program instruction and _application ma-terials will have to be reprinted in order to carry proper notices and instructions.Indeed, under the regulations proposed by the Department, we estimate that ourcosts for initiating our administration of the regulations could approach $300,000with annual processing costs after that of well over $100,000.
The preamble to the regulations states that certification is not being performedby the Department or by the Selective Service system because of the three problemareas already mentioned: (1) the costs of implementing the regulations, (2) theburden of the required paperwork and systems, and (3) the resulting delays to stu7dents in the award of aid. We conclude that the first two matters are not being re-solved by the regulations, but are simply being shifted to the institutional level. Asa result, the problem of delays in making aid awards will still occur.The proposed mgt.' tat ions leave unanswered a number of questions important tohigher education institutions: What is the Department's expectation with respect toinformation institutions may obtain concerning students who refuse to register forSelective Service? What is the Department's intent with respect to cases in whichan aid applicant may submit inaccurate information that is not identified as inaccu-rate in the verification process? How will the Department deal with situations inwhich students cannot comply because of Selective Service system faults? To whatfederal agencies will the Department of Education release information that is col-lected about students through the Selective Service registration verification process?What are the procedures for dealing with aid applicants who for legitimate reasonsmaintain conscientious objection to the Selective Service system? Questions such asthese need to be resolved before institutions can make adequate responselconcerning

the feasibi'lity and propriety of the proposed regulations.
For the reasons noted in this letter, I urge the Secretary o ucation to delay thedevelopment and implementation of final regulations on this ter. I further urgethat the Department and Selective Service officials meet with i resenliative highereducation associations and other related professional organ ions in order todesign means of implementing the law which will be less costly ai burdensome forall involved, and which will not create additional problems for udents who applyfor financial aid.
Thank you for considering my 'comments.

Sincerely,

JAMES BROWN,
Vice Chancellor.

$WARTHMORE EGE,
OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT,

Swarthmore Pa., February 23, 198i.-
ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Education, Washington, D.C.

DEAR ANDREA FOLEY: In this letter, I am commenting on the January 27, 1983,Notice of Proposed Rule Making that appeared in the Federal Register (pp. 3920-39`26) and would affect the Student Assistance General Provisions.I am commenting on the draft regulations from the perspective of SwarthmoreCollege, and emphasize the burden that the regulations would place on us. I proposean alternative set of regulations that is simpler, would place less burden on the Col-lege, and is fully consistent with the letter of the law and what I understand to becongressional intent.
Swarthmore is an independent, 4-year, coeducational college located in the sub-urbs of Philadelphia. It was founded in 1864 by the Religious Society of Friends(Quakers), although it no longer has any formal religious ties. The College pridesitself -on-the -distinctive character and quality of its academic program and on thehigh calibre of its 1260 students, who are drawn from all over the United States.Despite the relatively large endowment of the College, 60 percent of its students re-quire Federal financial aid under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965.The amendment to the Military Selective Service Act requires that students whomust register certify their compliance with the registration requirements in order toreceive Federal student aid under Title N of the Higher Education Act of 1965. TheDepartment of Education is required to verify the accuracy of those statements ofcompliance. Two possible strategies may be envisioned to implement the law. Namesof safflents who have submitted statements of compliance might be forwarded to theDepartment of Education for verification by Federal personnel. Such a strategy
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would satisfy requirements of the law and would be consistent with the legislative
intent to involve colleges as little as possible in the policing of registration laWs;
most of the burden would be placed on the*Department of Education and perhaps
the Selective Service System to provide verification. It is this strategy that. I believe
would be most workable. The second strategy would be to require colleges to collect
affidavits of compliance and evidence of verification from students, to assume pri-,
mary responsibility for assessing such documentation, to design administrative.con-
trol mechanisms to deal with possible delays in the Goverrwient's providing of inti-
tial and duplicate evidence of/registration, and to implemenlosystems for holding up
financial aid for students who have not registered or who have not received such
verfication. The burden here is mostly on the colleges. Regrettably it is this second
strategy that the Department has selected.

The draft regulations make requirements oil students and colleges that are not
called for in the law. Under the draft regulations, all students who get Federal
aidnot just registration-age menwould have to submit an affidavit stating com-
pliance with the registration laws; thus a woman will need to submit an affidavit
saying she is a woman (and therefore not required to register). Furthermore, despite
the absence of such a requirement in thelaw, the regulation would require that reg-
istration

;-

be verified in essentially every case before Federal monies are disbursed.
This unnecessary and unwise requirement shifts the administrative burden of verifi-
cation to colleges and leaves students subject to non-support should the Selective
Service System prove unable to provide evidence of registration in a timely fashion.
The legislative intent was clearly to minimize the burden on colleges but the regula-
tions as drafted make the colleges, not the Federal government, responsible for the
bulk of effort in administering the various provisions.

We at Swarthmore have made some attempt to estimate the burden that NV.Ould be
placed on the College if it had to administer the law under the Department of Edu-
cation proposed regulations. The 'Fable shows the various tasks that the College
would be called upon to do. It also indicates the effort that we believe each task
would require in the coming year. both to initiate the program and to deal with the
situations of individual students. Contrasted with this is an estimate of the College
effprt that would be required to comply with a simpler set of regulations that would
fully meet the letter of the law and what I judge to have been the irftent of Con-
gress. These simpler regulations would have the College or student. aid lenders ask
students to indicate that they were either not required to register or had done so;
and then forward a list of those studentg to the Department of Education for verifi-
cation. Distribution of aid would not be held up pending verification although any
student found to have submitted a false affidavit would be required to return aid
that he had received.

Under either set of regulations, colleges would be required to train personnel in
the new rules. These personnel include those in the Financial Aid Office, Admis-
sions Office, Business Office and Public Information Office. I estimate that at
Swarthmore about 66 person-hours of training would be required under the Depart-
ment's proposed regulations and 42 hours under the College s proposal.

The College will need to spend considerable time explaining the new rules to par-
ents and students. We shall need to rewrite our aid brochure, and rewrite our de-
scriptions of individual financial aid programs. In addition, until the new brochures
are printed we shall have tq spend more time with individual students to explain
the new rules; this extra time is likely to amount to 15 minutes per student if Ahe
Department's rules are in effect and 5 minutes per student if the College's proposal
is accepted. Overall these explanations are likely to take a total of 125 hours under
the Departmenes.plan and 58 hours under the College's plan.

The collection of affidavits from recipients of Pell grants or campus-based Federal
aid will cause no additional burden on the college, because the College already col-
lects one affidavit (the Statement of Educational Purpose) from such students. How-
ever the Department of EductitiOn draft regulations would require the College for
the first time to coifed affidavits from applicants of GSL or PLUS loans, wWeak-
under present regulations and under the College's proposal these affidavits are col-
lected by the lenders. Preparing and mailing the additional affidavits and sending
out reminders when necessary are likely to consume some 113 hours of personnel
time this coming year.

The regulations proposed 'by the Department require the College to check the
truth of a student's statement that he or she is not required to register against
other information that the College may have. To perform this check this year will
require a case -by -case review of students' central files, which are not now located in
or retrievable by our Financial Aid Office. For subsequent years we would modify
our computerized files to permit more rapid retrieval of this information by Finan-
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cial Aid personnel. This checking of records and system modification would require
about 209 hours of work this year.

Collecting of Selective Service verifications of registration is likely to take up to
20-minutes of College personnel time for every student who does not have his verifi-
cation at the time of applying for -aid. It is likely that this would include the one-
quarter of incoming freshmen who have recently turned 18 years old and nearly all
of the upperclassmen, for a total ork load of 122 hours.

Under the Department regul Lions the College would be required to collect nota-
rized temporary verifications f m students who have recently turned 18 years old.
The College would then be required to track these temporary verifications to make
sure that the Selective Service documentation was received within 120 days andsend follow-up notices when necessary. As the College computing system cannot be
modified in time for this year a system of manual checking would have to be used.
Collecting and tracking are likely to involve tiO person-hours of work.

If the College, is compassionate toward upperclassmen who do not still have their
Selective Service documents, it will accept temporary verifications from them also
and incur similar burdens of tracking and follow-up. These are likely to amount to
98 person-hours in the coming year.

The College's present bookkeeping system credits students' accounts automatical-
ly when Title IV funds are received, but there is no feature that would allow "provi-
sional" crediting of accounts as would be required for funds disbursed under tempo-
rary verifications as called for in the Department draft regulations. Performing amanual check for expiration of temporary verification before disbursing Pell grants
or campus-based Federal aid or crediting GSL/PLUS funds to students' accounts
would require 180 person-hours during the first year. Establishing financial controls
and redesigning computer programs to enable more efficient checking during subse-
quent years would take an additional 125 person-hours this year.

From those students whose temporary verifications expire, the l.)epartinent's reg-
ulations would require the College to attempt to recover aid monies already dis-
bursed. The numbers of such students will depend greatly on the speed with which
the Selective Service System provides students with duplicate verification docu-ments. We estimate that College personnel may have spend 30 hours in these re-
covery efforts, including 10 hours for those students win kid recently turned 18. An
additional GO hours would be spent in notifying lenders an the Secretary of Educa-
tion about students whose temporary verifications had expired.

. The Department's draft regulations do not specify the responsibilities that theCollege may have in regard to hearings requested by students whose aid is denied
because they lack documentation of having registered. If the College refuses to
accept temporary verifications from students who have lost their original docu-
ments, there may be as many as 300 hours of College personnel time. If the College
accepts temporary verifications from such students, the burden may drop to 25hours.

The College proposal adds one burden not present in the Department's regula-
tions. The College would provide the names of all students who submit to it affida-
vits regarding draft registrations. This is likely to require 41 hours of time by Col-lege personnel inthe first year.

In total, under' the draft regulations issued by the Department of Education, the
additional administrative burdens to a small college like Swarthmore in the first
year of implementation of this law would be between 1213 and 1330 person-hours ofworks, depending on whether or not the College elected the option to accept tempo-
rary verifications from students who do not have their original Selective Service let-ters. Under the simpler, College proposal the burden to the College would only be
141 hours. Thus the Department's version of the regulations would require the Col-"lege to hire an additional person to work between one-half and three-quarter4 time

just to administer these regulations. The College versionwhich even more closely
reflecp.theietter_of the law and congressional intentwould require no additional,hiring of personnel.

In summary, I hope that Congress would consider repealing this law because it
discriminates against poor and middle income men, because it inflicts punishment
without prior trial, because it threatens the spirit of free inquiry so essential to our
colleges by restricting their ability to assemble student bodies on educational crite-
ria alone, and because it unwisely makes access to education contingent on compli-
ance with a totally unrelated law.

However, if the law stands, I strongly encourage that the implementing regula-
tions reflect the letter of the law and the intent of Congress. The regulations I rec-

g ommend would do so, by having students affirm in an affidavit that they either had
registered or were not required to register, by having the colleges and lenders for-
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ward to the Department of Education for verification, lists of studenti who have
is) submitted these affidavits and by permitting the timely disburs41 of aid to students

who have filed affidavitsand would not risk the hold-up of aid from duly regis-
tered students that is certain to occur if the Selective Service System proves tardy
in providing students with verification of their registration. Furthermore this alter-
native set of regulations would put the administ ative burden of the law where Con-
gress intended iton the Federal government, of on institutions of higher educa-
tion.

Sincerely yours,
DAVID W. FRASER, President.
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WESTERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY,
Macomb, Ill., February 22, 1988.

MS. ANDREA FOLEY,
OSFA, USED,
Washington, D.C. 20202

DEAR MS. FOLEY: I wish to comment on several sections of the NPRM, Student
Assistance General Provisions, 34 CFR Part 668, Federal Register, January 27, 1983,
draft registration compliance.

(. The law and pursuant regulations are discriminatory because they:
a) single out male students.
) single out financially needy students.

Should not all males who benefit directly or indirectly from federal funds (not just
student aid) be required to prove registration?

2. The regulations are unnecessary.
(a) It is estimated that fewer than 5 percent of all of those required to register

have failed to do so.
(b) Millions of dollars of student aid are disbursed to students nationwide based on

a signed Statement of Educational Purpose. This is the same statement that is now
considered insufficient and inadequate in regard to draft registration compliance.

3. The regulations are intrusive and obstructive to the goals of student aid. My
experience with the Pell Validation process has convinced me that promises of
timely service by Federal agencies are empty words. Both the Social Security Ad-
ministration and IRS promised to provide Pell validation information to students in
two to three weeks. Experience indicates a typical time lag of six to eight weeks. It
is doubtful that the Selective Service can do better. What do students do for money
while they wait for Selective Service to act?
- 4. The vertification process will be costly and burdensome. We estimate that the
cost will be at least $15$20 per federal student aid applicant or $150,000 to
$200,000 during the first year. Included in this cost are: redefining and reprogram-
ming of a computer system to detail and track the Compliance forms, initial notifi-
cation to students and follow-up correspondence, printing and distributing informa-
tion to all campus publics, training of staff, individual counseling of students regard-
ing registration requirements and campus policies.

We recognize the legitimate interest of the nation in assuring compliance with
the draft registration requirement. We, therefore, suggest the following:

1. All male students be required to verify only in the Statement of Educational
Purpose that they have registered for the draft.

2. The U.S. Education Department should establish procedures whereby it would
adjudicate those cases in which a student refuses to sign a verification statement.
No Title IV aid would be disbursed until a resolution is reached.

Sincerely yours,
JANET M. RUGE,

Director of Financial Aid.

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN,
OFFICE OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AIDS,

Madison, Wis., February 24, 1988.
Re Proposed Rules Regarding Selective Service RegistrationStudent Financial Aid

Published in the Federal Register of Thursday, January 27, 1983 (34 CFR Part
668 (amended)).

Ms. ANDREA FOLEY,
Office of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Education, Washington, D.C.

Following is our response to the Proposed Rules concerning Selective Service Reg-
istration and the receiRt of Student Financial Aid as required under the so-called
"Solomon Amendment . Our response is divided into 2 sections: (1) General Com-
ments; (2) Technical Considerations.

I. GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

We would like to raise the following general concerns which do not relate to spe-
cific points in the Pro Rules.

1. Having read the ViZedthe House Conference Report and the Proposed Rules, we
believe that the Proposed Rules go far beyond the intent of the law. It seem clear
to us that the law can be satisfied simply by having the student certify that they
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have registered and that this information be supplied to the Department of Educa-tion during the course of the school year. No where do we find that this processmust be completed before a student can be given aid. We rely on information sup-plied by the student for other information and we see no reason why this shouldn'tbe acceptable initially. We will outline the way we believe the law can be imple-mented at the end of our letter.
2. The Selective Service has indicated to us that between 95 percent-97 percent ofthose people required to register have done si'S. We do not believe that Congress in-tended to create a system that will cost educational institutions literally millions ofdollars just to find the miniscule few who may attempt to receive financial aid with-out registering for Selective Service.
3. The Proposed Regulations state that other methods (that those which they pro-pose) would be "extremely costly and time consuming". The methods that are pro-posed simply force institutions to assume extremely costly and time consumingmethods to implement the law. In addition to the expense, service to student's re-ceiving Title IV Programs will be significantly impaired due to the increased work-load that institutions will have to absorb to carry out these provisions. We think itis clear in the House Conference Report that this was not the intent of Congress.4. The cost of implementing this Program will be enormous. On the UW-Madisoncampus the Data Processing changes alone will cost from $14,000 to $/16,000. In addi-tion, this will cause delays in other work that is being done since there are no addi-tional systems analysts available to do this work. They wi'l have to be pulled off ofother projects which are much more in keeping with the educational objectives ofthe University.

Other costs such as filing, response to inquiries on the subject which will come inin person, through the mail, and over the telephone, data entry, etc., will cost usanother $20,000. Thus, the total cost to implement this program will run around$35,000. If this is multiplied by all the educational institutions in the country thatwill be affected by these Proposed Rules, you can see that an enormous educationalresource has been tied up simply to attempt to deter a tiny fraction of the popula-tion who may wish to attempt to flout the law.
5. The Proposed Rules assume that the Selective Service will be infallible. Wewould like to use an actual illustration to prove that this is not true. A staffmember in our Financial Aid Office has 2 sons who have both registered for Selec-tive Service. In the case of.son #1, the Acknowledgement Letter came back withthe name misspelled. Additional forms had to be sent in to correct this error. Theoriginal Letter of Acknowledgement would not have been acceptable for the studentto use to claim- his financial aid. In the case of son #2, the Acknowledgement Letteralso came back with the name spelled incorrectly. Son #2 sent in the necessary in-formation to correct the spelling. Before ha could get back an AcknowledgementLetter with the correct spelling he received a notice from the Selective Service thathe had not registered and that if he did not do so within 30 days he would be sub-ject to fine and imprisonment. Son #2 still has not gotten the situation straight-ened out. Son #2 would still not be able to get financial aid. We do not think it isreasonable to expect the Selective Service to provide the service which the rulesimply should be expected.

6. Finally, we think the Proposed Rules that state a student can be denied aidwithout a hearing and other due process protections goes far beyond the intent orthe legislation. It also seems clear that this }you'd be subject to challenge in courtwhere the case would almost certainly be found in favor of the student.

II. TECHNICAL. PROBLEMS

1. To begin with we are particularly cone reed with a statement in the "Supple-mentary Information" proceeding the Proposed Regulations that states: "if a stu-dent certifies that he is not required to register, the institution would be able to relyon that statement unless it has other information inconsistent with this statement' .Does this imply that the institution must check all certifications for gender anddate of birth since we have this information tin our files? For instance, if a studentchecks that they are too old, are we supposed to check their actual date of birth tosee if this is indeed true? Similarly, it they say that they have not reached their18th birthday, are we required to checlt that?
Finally:' if someone checks that they are a female and their name is Leslie orsomething similar, would we be required to check that? It seems to us that if we canaccept this other information, we should also be able to accept the student's state-ment that they have certified that they are registered with the Selective Service,
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particularly when they know that this information will be sent on for verification
with the Selective Service System.

2. It appears that all aid recipients, female as well as male, will have to be moni-
tored. This means additional processing steps for the approximately 19,000 aid recip-
ients we expect to have in 1983-84. Recording and handling this additional informa-
tion will require new data processing files, additional terminal transactions, new
teleprocessing screens, etc., all of which will add extra steps to the processing of fi-
nancial aid applications, a process which is already cumbersome enough as it is.
This will mean additional steps will be necessary to process the application Nwhich
means that it will take just that much longer before the student will be able to
either be notified about their financial aid or to pick up their financial aid cheOlcs.

3. Under the Proposed Regulations and Proposed Rules, we will have to cots ct
and file approximately 9,500 additional pieces of paper. Some of these will surely e
temporarily misplaced, and if so, this may make us liable for whatever money the
student may have received when we undergo an audit for federal programs. This is
certainly an additional paperwork burden that flies in the face of the efforts of the
federal government' to reduce paperwork related to federal programs. This seems
particularly out of order when there is another way to handle the system without
this additional piece of paper.

4. Since this is a new system, educational institutions have no assurances that the
Selective Service System will be able to provide the students with their Acknowl-
edgement Letter on a timely basis. (See our personal anecdote listed in section I)
The Proposed Regulations themselves state that it takes 90 days for the Selective
Service to return an original acknowledgement and then this may very well be in-
correct. Thus, can we rely on the Selective Service system to provide a duplicate
within 14 days? Or even an original in 90 days?,

5. The Proposed Rules say that the student must provide a copy to the Financial
Aid Office. Who is responsible for making this copy? Theoretically, the student is we
assume. However, from actual experience, we know the students will come in with a
copy and then expect us to make the Xerox copy for our files. This in and of itself
will cause delays and additional expense.

6. Because of the fact that a student may not have an Acknowledgement Letter at
the beginning of the school year, however well intentioned the student may be in
his attempt to obtain this letter, this will force the institutions to set up alternative
financing for the student until such time as the Acknowledgement Letter is avail-
able. Or, if the school does give out Title IV funds without the copy of the Acknowl-
edgement Letter, then it must set up an expensive tracking system to make sure
that the letter has been received. In addition, a system must be established to
obtain a "notarized affadavit" which in our institution would mean that we would
have to have a notary public in the Financial Aid Office.

Futher, if the Acknowledgement Letter is not received, then it appears the school
is liable for any aid given to the student and would have to repay this amount to
the federal government. This could happen in the case of a student who withdraws
before the Acknowledgement Letter arrives. Further, in the case of a Guaranteed
Student Loan, the institution would be required to notify the private lender so that
the student would not receive any interest subsidy on the Guaranteed Student Loan.

7. If a student transfers to another institution, we must provide the new institu-
tion with the student's selective service number on the Financial Aid Transcript.
This will require us to install another data processing system to'handle this piece of
information. It seems to us this could be better handled by simple having the stu-
dent give the new school another copy of the Acknowledgement Letter.

8. If a student is applying only for a Guaranteed Student Loan, an entire new
system must be created to make sure that we have-an affadavit as well as the Ac-
knowledgement Letter in place. This new system will affect not only the institution,
but also the private lender and possibly the State Guarantee Agency. This seems to
be dismissed with short shrift in the Proposed Regulations. We don't believe the
rules writers had any concept of what a burden this could be on the private lending
institutions in the country. This could very well cause a number of private lenders
to not make Guaranteed Student Loans. They already are complaining of too much
red tape to process these loans.

9. One of our greatest concerns is that Financial Aid Officers will have to become
experts on Selective Service. Before the Proposed Regualations have gone into effect
we are already receiving questions about Conscientious Objectors, hardship defer-
ments, questions about the draft itselfwhich doesn't existhow do I get an Ac-
knowledgement Letter, etc. The Proposed Regulations indicate that this additional
burden will be somewhat alleviated since "a sample request form will be provided to
the institutions which will assist students who do not have their original Acknowl-
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edgement Letter . ." Thus, the Financial Aid Office becomes a Selective ServiceInformation Center as well as a dispenser of Student Aid.
10. The Proposed Regulations suggest that the institution notify students early ofthis verification requirement so that. their aid will not be delayed. However, theFinal Regulations are not expected before May 1. What stance should the institutiontake in the interim period'?
11. A good deal of time will have to be spent on follow up letters to students whoeither fail to check the proper box on the compliance form, or who do not .sign theform, or both. This will place an additional workload on the Financial Aid Office aswell as cause delays in the disbursal of checks.
12. The school must bear the burden of informing the student of what to do nextif he cannot provide the Acknowledgement Letter and is denied aid. This would in-clude how to appeal, the length of the grace period to appeal, etc. On an individualbasis, this could be a very time consuming function for the Aid Office. This wouldinclude working with students who assert that they have registered, bur who havenot been able to prove this registration. In addition, we would be burdened with theneed to "make a reasonable effort to contact the student" who hAs received aid buthas not submitted the Acknowledgement Letter. We are sure that many studentsmay receive the Acknowledgement Letter but will not return it to us immediately.This means more follow up.
13. There are numerous other questions which must be addressed which the Pro-posed Rules do 'not speak to, such as: what should schools do about students whoindicate that they wish to apply only for non-federal aid because of this require-ment; what is the insitution to do ifan Acknowledgement Letter appears to be ques-tionableand what is "questionable"; must a school create new information bro-chures with questions and answers about this new -requirement; what is an institu-tion to do if it receives a Financial Aid Transcript without a Selective Servicenumber, but the student says he has registered?

We are certain there are other items that we have overlooked, however, we thinkthis provides you with some of the technical difficulties which every Aid Office willbe faced with if the Proposed Rules are put in place as written.In our view, the requirements of the law would be fully met if the institution did2 things:
1. Include on the "Statement of Educational Purpose/Registration Compliance"form the information necessary to determine whether or not a student has regis-tered, or if not, why they have not.
2. Require that the institution provide to the Department of Education a list, acomputer printout, or if it the institution has this capability, a tape, providing thename, date of birth, and social security number of all those students who sax.' theyhave registered. Then, the Selective Service will have the information it needs andif someone says they have registered who has not, then the Selective. Service maytake whatever action is appropriate to find out what the problem is and resolve it.It may very well be there has been a problem with the numbers and the student is,in fact, duly registered.
In short, we do not believe that Financial Aid Offices should be used to police thislaw and we certainly do not believe that this was the intent of Congress. We believethat students will recognize that there will be a verification of the information theysubmit 'so that there would be identification of non-registrants, and therefor believethat the punishment which would follow under the case of both committing fraudon a Financial Aid Application, as well as violating the Solomon Amendment, wouldeliminate false statements and would encourage, as the Amendment states, studentsto register and comply with the Selective Service.We hope that these comments have been helpful as you deliberate the ProposedRules. In short, the law can be carried out with a minimum amount of effort on thepart of the institution and the imposition of this onerous set of Proposed Rules-isentirely unnecessary:

Sincerely,

WALLACE H. DOUMA.

VANDERBILT UNIVERSITY,
Nashville, Tenn., February 25, 1.983.

MS. ANDREA FOLEY,
Officer of Student Financial Assistance,
U.S. Department of Education, Washington, 1.) C.

DEAR Ms. FOLEY: The purpose of this letter is to comment on the Notice of Pro-posed Rulemaking to amend Subpart B of the Student Assistance General Provi-
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sions concerning Selective Service registration for receipt of Title IV student aid
funds.

Under the proposed rules, every Title IV aid recipient, male or female, must
submit a Statement of Registration Compliance. I understand and appreciate.that
you are taking this approach in order to ease, the administrative burden on financial

aid offi ces.
However, Vanderbilt University and many other schools have already printed

thousands of financial aid applications for 1983-84 with the currently-approved
Statement of Education Purpose printed on them. Under the new proposed rules, we
will now have to contact every Title IV aid applicant to obtain the new version of

the Statement of Educational Purpose/Certification of Registration.
Since female students clearly are not affected by Public Law 97-252, it would

impose an unnecessary burden on educational institutions to have to contact fern
applicants to complete a form which is meaningless for them. Of even more im
Lance, under currently proposed rules, educational institutions would be required to
withhold Title IV funds and GSL checks for female students who fail to complete
the certification form. Since female students are not required to register for Selec-
tive Service, they should not be subjected to delays in disbursement of Title IV
funds and/or processing of GSL/PLUS applications for failure to certify that they
are not required to register.

Specifically, I am recommending that, for 1983-84 only, educational institutions
be given the flexibility to process GSWPLUS applications and disburse Title IV
funds to female students and older matt students without requiring certification of
registration statbs. Under this option, institutions should be held responsible for
making a correct determination of applicants' sex and birthdate.

This recommendation is not made due to any feeling of sex or age discrimination
with regard to implementation of PL 97-252 but rather to permit institutions to
have the flexibility to concentrate and limit their efforts to the target group of Title
IV aid recipients, namely male students over age 18 who were born after December
31,1959.

After 1983-84, the requirement for all Title IV applicants to sign the proposed
Statement of Educational Purpose/Registration Compliance form should cause less
difficulty because institutions will have adequate lead time to print the statement
on application forms.

For the future, I recommend that the Selective Service issue a Selective Service
registration card to each person who registers. Young males would be more likely to
keep a wallet-size registration card.than they would a Registration Acknowledge-
ment Letter.

Sincerely yours, 4\1> D. K. SMITH,
Director of Financial Aid.

Mr. SimoN. Would either of you be greatly disturbed if this Con-
gress were to pass a bill something like the Schroeder proposal
postponing the implementation of this regulation by 1 year?

Mr. ELMENDORF. In my opinion, I don't think that it is really up
to us to cast an opinion. If the law is changed to reflect a delay of 1
year you could expect the Department of Education to comply with
the law. If the law remains as it is, we will still move forward with
the NPRM that we have just issued and the final reg -in May and
make every effort we can to insure that whatever Congress does in
its wisdom between now and July 1, on July 1 there will be availa-
ble full compliance with the statute as a result of a regulation that
was developed during this past year that I think met the intent of
the law that we had in front of us.,

Mr. SIMON. Your answer is that you are going to comply with the
law and I would expect that you would comply with the law, but
my question, however, is whether it would be wise on the part of
Congress to delay the implementation by 1 year.

Mr. ELMENDORF. I ani not in a position to judge the wisdom of
Congress. I don't'expect that the reason for Congress delaying this
could be justifiably given as the fact that the current regulation as
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now produced would delay student-aid delivery. I do not believe it
would. If there are other reasons for the delay, I.would like to hear
those' arguments before I was asked to really wve an opinion one
way or the other. It would not be on the basis of an anticipated
delay.

Mr. SIMON. General.
General TURNAGE. As the director of an administrative agency, I

not only would obey and comply with that law but I would do so
with vigor and enthusiasm. As a private citizen who has a propor-
tionate share of my tax funds going to individuals who would be
getting large amounts of aid .without meeting their obligation) I
would be disappointed.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Coleman.
Mr. COLEMAN. Between the two of you, could you answer this

question? Just how many students are you going to 'catch through
this procedure? And second, how many dollars, on an average
basis, are we talking about in student assistance?

General TURNAGE. Mr. Coleman, I don't know that we are trying
to catch anyone. Based on the philosophy we have had from the ab-
solute beginning, our objective is not to prosecute or incarcerate or
take punitive action against anyone in the system and that is the
policy that we have followed.

What we are trying to do, however, is to get people to register.
Now, I can't speak for Mr. Solomon and neither do I know the spe-
cific motive that he had in passing this legislation. What I do know
is that we have had some favorable fallout already as a result of it
and it is not even law yet.

What we're saying, however, is if I take an application of the so-
called "Ph million people" who we estimate may be eligible for
student assistance in appropriate age groups, and I apply a 98-per-
cent figure against it, which are people who have already coMplied
with the law according to our system, that leaves a residual of
something like 45,000 people.

I can't tell you whether or not this law would cause a man to go
to the post office or there would be no way, once again, to quantify
it. It is just my presumption that it, as well as some other initia-
tives, may be helpful in encouraging people to comely with the law.

Now, at the outset, I think there is one other question that may
not be completely germane here, but I think there is a relationship
based on some of the rhetoric that 1, have heard this morning al-
ready.

One, when there was the question before the President with
regard to whether or pot registration had merit for continuation or
whether it shouldL/6 dismissed, there were all kinds of comments
that in the event he took action to contihue, there would be mas-sive dissent on the streets, o Id be great disenchantment,
and it would be divisive social try.

And since he took that actio , observed that, Mr. Cole-
man, and it.just seems to me that rt of the concern expressed
about this has been coming from relatively few sources. AS- pointed
out here, there are 8,000 institutions and we have heard from very
few.
41, Mr. COLEMAN. Your answer is 45,000.

General TURNAGE. Yes, sir.

6/
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Mr. COLEMAN. Mr. Elmendorf, how many dollars are we talking
about on an average basis? Any idea?

Mr. ELMENDORF. I would have no ideas of the d011ars involved
,among those 45,000 students but we are talking about several bil-
`lion in student financial aid funds out there in the universe among
all students and I slon't really have a way of dividing and getting a
realistic answer for you.

Mr. COLEMAN. Well, I -don't know why the general felt that the
word "catch" was an adversarial term. Frankly, I think that that is
what we were trying to do when we passed the law. To make sure
that people did register, to make sure that they went through the
process, and catch people who were not registering, I suppose, was
what the intent of Congress and the author of the amendment was.

General TURNAGE. Excuse me, sir, if I may. Not "catch" in the
sense of having concern or not "catch" in the sense ofwe don't
expect the institution to tell us, for example, if an individual walks
in and he is ineligible, I don't expect he's going to report that name
to us. The fact is, we think that the individual who goes in for the
loan knows that it's a prerequisite and he will probably go to the
post office and register. In that sense, it will improve the system.

Mr. COLEMAN. How do we handle those loans that are disbursed
by the institutions before July 1, 1983, under your proposal? What
happens to the value of those guarantees on a guaranteed student
loan, for example? Are they affected at all by a failure to register?

Mr. ELMENDORF. They are if the period of instruction begins after
July 1, 1983, which is the effective date of the regulation, and they
would have to, in fact, have the statement of registration compli-
ance in the record before that disbursement could be legitimized.
In our case with a loan, it means before we could honor the inter-
est and principle payments to the borrower there would have to be
a statement of compliance.

Now, as I said before, the liability to the lender is covered by the
insurance provision of the act, which says that they, in fact, get
paid regardless. But in this particular case you would have' to
really call it a default by the student. We would not like to encour-
age defaults and this is one of the reasons why we distinguish be-
tween the two groups of students. Those who by an accident of
birth have a problem obtaining loan funds, should have immediate
access. But if a larger group of forgetful students who did not re-
member to bring the letter or have the letter in their possession
were allowed into that process, we felt that that would, in fact,
lend to potential abuse and defaults that we did not want to en-
courage.

Mr. COLEMAN. Do you feel, having knowledge of the jobs and the
burdens of the financial-aid offices in the universities,' that this ad-
ditional administrative burden is going to be. too much for them?
Are we going to see a slow down in the processing? Are they going
to have to beef up staff? How do you see this thing trickling down
to the local institutional level?

Mr. ELMENDORF. The guidelines that we set forth in the Con-
ference Report expected of us a minimum urden on institutions
and delays if at all possible in the processing. I still don't expect
r, delays in the processing and by virtue of the early startup of
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the major processing systemthe Pell grant systemI expect that
that adds even further veracity to that statement.

The second point is that of the burden on the institution. My
sense is that because there is already called for a statement of edu-
cational purpose that every recipient of any title IV dollars must
complete, that that process of additional paperwork burden is not a
major one. It takes about a minute, essentially, to verify, to sign
that statement and have it put into the file and about 30 seconds to
file it.

Now I agree there is some time before that and after that, but
the -actual process is not a time- consuming one, not nearly as much
as it would be if they were to sit down and manually try to_build a
list of people who had not complied, had not sent in their letters
and then sent that to us for us to try to verify. I think you are talk-
ing there about double duty. Even though the law says we may re-
quire it, our job, is not to go into the institution and ask them to
producegi list for us of people who haven't complied with the Selec-,
tive Service Act. That's not the intent of t,ire legislation.

It really should be enforced on the local level. I believe that's
where the action, in fact, should be taken.

Mr. COLEMAN. If I might ask one more question, Mr. Chairman.
General Turnage, what is your goal as far" as registration? Is it
indeed 100 percent or is it 99.44? What exactly is it and how close
should it be so that you- feel that your job and your responsibilities
have been fulfilled?

General TURNAGE. Our goal is to achieve the highest participa-
tion possible, sir, in order to insure equity. For example, at any
time there is a call or necessity to activate the system, and that
could only be done as a result of actions by this body, then it is
incumbent upon us to be sure that we have every one in the roster
that is supposed to be there. Anything less ends up creating inequi-
ties in the system and that is the thing that people are quick to
criticize.

Moreover, failure. to do it is not victimless. The individual who
doesn't register is shedding a disproportionate burden on the indi-
vidual who has complied with the law: So I guess that is why I
pursue it with the vigor that I do. No one list that we have access
to is 100 percent so that is why we are using different sources in

er to identify people.
COLEMAN. If that is true, then is it true that you are not

going prosecute those people who already have been determined
nonregi rants, but that you are taking a random sample of 100 to
,prosecute so that you won't clog the courts?

General TURNAGE. I read that in a recent article, as recent as a
day or two ago, sir, and I can't address that fact. I ow my job is
very clear. Every individual that is identified to us a a possible
nonregistrant after we have exhausted the means that re availa-
ble to us in order to get him to do so, all of those nam s without
exception, without selection go to the Department of Justice. They
take that action. As recently as 10 days, 2 weeks ago, we sent them
a list of names slightly in excess of 5,000 that we identified.

Now we're sure that when they start investigatioiTh that they
will find some are the wrong sex, some are too old or other reasons.,
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But the fact is those are the ones that they start looking at. I will
continue to provide that kind of information to them.

Mr. COLEMAN. So that is not your decision, that is the Justice De-
partment's.

General TURNAGE. Not to my kna ledge, sir.
Mr. COLEMAN. 'You would kn it was your decision. OK.

Thank you very much, both of you.
Mr. gIMON. Mr. Kogovsek.
Mr. KOGOVSEK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Secretary Elmendorf, do you recognize the document at all? Can

you see it from where you are?
Mr. ,ELMENDORF. Yes, sir. It looks like the application For federal

student aid. [Laughter.]
Mr. KOGOVSEK. I was going through it and it was brought to my

attention by a cq.league, it is the application for Federal student
aid for 1983-84. As I have gone through here, and I might have
missed it, but I have looked at these several documents that have
to be filled out by students in applying and I can't find any refer-
ence to the Solomon Amendment.

My reason for bringing that up is, it seems to me that maybe the
Schroeder suggestion about delaying the effective date of the Solo-
mon amendment for 1 year might make sense inasmuch as I
assume that this has gone out already and there are a lot of stu-
dents who might already have it and are in the process of filling it
out.

Mr. ELMENDORF. Yes, sir. I would also like to make note of the
fact that that document you have in your hand is a 'document that
was of a high level of concern to this committee and others about 5
months ago. Although it was of such a high concern, in fact, a
notice regarding selective service was included even before the reg-
ulations were developed.

In this particular case, we have protected the student in two
ways. The financial aid application has a wearing about selective
service registration under "Eligibility Criteria." The application
goes through a central processor. The central pfocessor has a com-
puter printout, the student aid report [SAR], that is sent to every
student in the country determining what their contribution ought
to be for financial assistance. On that statement, built into the
computer program, is the warning relative to selective service reg-
istration. That will be on that statement. So, in fact, it is on the
application, and on the SAR statement that they get which enables
them to access the title IV student aid dollars.

Mr. KOGOVsEK. Is that an indication that they will have to fill
out one more form?

Mr. ELMENDORF. That's an indication that they will have to take
the back side of that form that they get and fill outthere are
instructions on there to fill out the statement of registration com-
pliance which 'is part of our statement of educational purpose
which they alreadb' have. We printed that this year on the back of
that form because it facilitated another reduction of paperwork
that we were trying to develop through a separatoprocess.

Mr. KOGOVSEK. I guess that leads me to ask the question, that if,

sending a form right to the Selective Ser
in fact, that form has to be fill out, then what is wrong with
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Mr. ELMENDORF. I missed the first part of that question, sir.
Mr. KOGOVSEK. If, in fact, they have to fill out another form-
Mr. ELMENDORF. Well, my whole purpose in trying "to comply

with the conference report was to minimize the administrative
burden. If I add that to the deregulation effort that the administra-
tion has underway, we are trying to reduce the paper and regula-
tory burden on individuals, institutions, and others. And, in this
particular case, it serves both ends of that continuum and not only
reduces the burden but also reduces paperwork.

Mr. KOGOVSEK. Mr. Elmendorf, do you see a basic unfairness in
the Solomon amendment that was brought up several times this
morning by Mr. Edgar and Mrs. Schroeder in regard to the rich
versus the poor?

Mr. ELMENDORF. No, I do not. I again have sat before this com-
mittee and heard criticism of the fact that students coming from
families earning as much as $75,000 still have access to the guaran-
teed student loan program. I don't consider students getting that
kind of subsidy coming from a $75,000-a-year-family needy and stu-
dent aid covers the whole range of income levels.

Mr. KOGOVSEK. But on the average, though, do you have to
4.,,,a,\concur that more studekits coming from poorer families, middle-

income families apply for student loans as opposed. to those from
the richer families?

Mr.'ELMENDORF. Yes.
Mr. KOGOVSEK. Let me ask General Turnage a question that Con-
essman Gunderson has been asking this morning. Do you see the

olo,mon amendment as an aid to enforcement of draft registra-
tion?

General TURNAGE. I think without .4uestion, sir, it is an aid to
the enforcement process. On the other hand, as opposed to a puni-
tive measure I see it simply as another one of a number of eligibil-
ity requirements. For example, if an individualthere's an upper
limit on the amount of income of the family in the final determina-
tion of whether or not an individual is eligible for a loanif he ex-
ceeds that, it is just understood that he is not eligible. It seems to
me that also if he doesn't register he just should understand that
he is not eligible.

Mr. KOGOVSEK. In your opinion, what else would you have Con-
gress do to help-you as far as making people register? The reason I
ask that question-

General TURNAGE. Sir, I know that you want to curtail this hear-
ing, but go ahead.'

Mr. KOGOVSEK. Well, the reason I ask that question is I think it's
.evident that one of the reasons we passed the Solomon amendment
was it was convenient. It was convenient to Congress. It was an
easy thing to do and it was something that we can just pass right
on to the different institutions of higher bducation. There were sug-
gestic:qv this morning that if we proceed down this line we are
going to possibly have peoplebefore they get a driver's license we
are going to have them register for the, draft. I suppOse there are
many other things that we could do.

at is your opinion?
General TURNAGE. It wasn't my intent to offer anything trite in

response to your question. think, more than anything else, sir, is
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the fact now that in responsible bodies such as this and in the judi-
ciary and in the administration itself which, of course, has been
supportive, there is a recognition of the fact that a program that
has a 97.7 or 98 percent compliance in the country.is successful and
it should be recognized .as such and advertised as such in inter-
vievIt.and speeches and otl'fr exposure to the youth of the Nation.

And I think that kind of moral support would be greatly helpful
and I think the fact that here the issue to me is a very clear one. If
a young man wants to get the benefits of this Nation, he should
comply with the laws of the Nation. It's that simplistic. And I
think it's easy to do. It's very simple to accomplish administrative-
ly, in my judgment and it is that kind of support that would be
most helpful to me.

Mr. KOGOVSEK. Thank you, General.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and to both of you, I

can't help but sitting here and thinking that, you must get a little
perplexed with the Congress too. I don't recall either one of you
asking us to do something like this and put you in the middle of a
new controversy in an area where I think both of you probably
have many other things you would rather be doing and 'could
better spend your time. So I guess,. to a degree on behalf of myself
and my colleagues, I apologize.

But there are some concerns that I do have with the implementa-
tion of the rules. I am not convinced that we hve the minimum
impact on higher educational institutions. Almo§t quite the con-
trary. How would you respond, Dr. Elmendorf if we recognized,
first of all, that it is not the responsibility of a financial institution
to go back and collect these payments, try to collect payments from
a student who has received financial aid but ,has not followed
through later with a verification of the registration. And once we
had established that as point number one, we would arrive at point
number two which would say that if then, as you suggested with
the student who turns 18 after his freshman year, that really that
student is forgiven for that year and it becomes the second year.

Wouldn't we really find ourselves in a position where not the in-
stitution, but the Federal Government between your two agencies
could easily verify eligibility or that student in his second, third
and fourth year of higher edition with little or no burden on the
higher educational institution itself?

Mr. ELMNDORF. Let me-ask the General to respond to part two
that deals 'with the ease of verification centrally. Part one is that
the law already provides a requirement now that the institution, if
they recognize an overpayment situation exists, make every reason-
able attempt to collect that back from the student. Our whole phi-
losophy in student aid has been to try to set procedures in place as
part of a system, not to allow the dollars out the door, so to speak,
because the difficulty collecting those dollars after they are out is
immense.

So I would support any kind of a system such as this one which
is an eligibility for the funds as opposed to one that tries to chase

<, the dollars after they have gone out the door.
General TURNAGE. If I understand the second part of the ques-

tion, Mr. Gunderson, once the individual has given this confirma-
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tion or proved it to the university, once is enough, because general-ly speaking, the individual who pursues higher education does it atone locale, and it seems to me, the records of that institution wouldbe adequate to reflect his compliance throughout the period of thestudent s education.
If he changes educational locales, then the provision for eithertaking some of those records with him are, in fact, just simplymaking the statement again and giving a copy of the acknowledge-ment letter once again.
Mr. GUNDERSON. Let me go on to a different area for just asecond.
The NPRM requires educational institutions to attempt to recov-er already disbysed funds from students fiiling to register. Howdo you anticipate that the institutions would go about fulfillingthat requirement?
Mr. ELMENDORF. Just as they do now. In this particular case,there is in the first semester of an academic year, for example, anopportunity in the Pell grant program, which,is one of your largeststudent financial aid programs, it is a grant programthere is theopportunity because you have a two-payment system to adjust thesecond payment if, in fact, that student later comes into eligibilityso that there is no loss.
If the student fails to come into eligibility at all and does not, infact, sign or meet the 120-day deadline, the institution is going tohave to pursue that through their own mechanisms. They, in fact,make every attempt. In some cases, they turn it over to the Feder-al Government and we pursue it with the Department of Justice.In some cases of overpayment, for example, of the Pell grantsystem, we have referred in the neighborhood of some 26,000 cases.Agreed they are §mall, less than $1,000 usually, but we have re-ferred each of them to the Department of Justice for collection.

Mr. GUNDERSON. What happens if the university accepts in goodfaith, No. 1, the statement of educational purpose registration com-pliance or a forged affadavit from that student that he has actuallSrcomplied with registration. The university accepts that in goodfaith, provides the financial assistance only to be later notified bySelective Service or others that that student has not, in fact, regis-tered. At that point, has the university met their obligation by ac-cepting in good faith, in their interpretation, action on behalf ofthat student--
Mr. ELMENDORF. That same procedure I just described would be

followed. The student becomes the person who is responsible andthe institution may try to collect it and if it fails to collect it, thereis no liability on behalf of the institution, it goes directly to us andwe refer it to the Department of Justice for direct collection fromthe individual.
Mr. GUNDERSON. You suggest that every student fill out thisstatement of educational purpose registration compliance. I amstill confused as to what is gained by having every female, everystudent, regardless of age, to fill out that form. What do we achieveby that?
Mr. ELMENDORF. Well, first of all, every, student does need to fillout the statement of educational purpose if they receive any typeof financial aid, whether they are male or female. The burden al-
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ready exists for a statement of some sort to exist in the file. This
one happens to deal with how they will use the funds. They have to
certify that the funds will be used for educational purposes.

Second, in some cases, we know that institutions do not, in fact,
collect the kind of information that would enable them to make the
determination as to date of birth, prior military service or other
pieces of information which would allow them to determine wheth-
er or not that person had, in fact, been exempted or rybt.

In some cases, institutions never see students for registration.
They are so mechanized and highly computerized that it bkomes a
paper process, and in many cases, we did not feel, taking the guide-
lines of Congress, that we could set up different standards for dif-
ferent types of situations in different institutions and we did blan-
ket the whole requirement with a simple statement for females, for
example, that if you are female, simply check and sign and that is
the end of it.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I have had financial aid officers in my congres-
sional district tell, me the cost of implementation of this regulation
for their school will vary between a low of $5,000 to a high of
$40,000 a year. ow would you respond to those who suggest that it
is going to cost 5,000 to $40,000?

Mr. ELMENDO F. My good friend, Mr. Jim Moore, who is the Di-
rector of Student Financial Aid Programs and an expert on cost,
can answer that.

Mr. MOORE. Well, first of all, let me make the point that the
heavy cost on this program is only for this spring because the
entire population has to be brought into compliance. From this
year on, institutions only deal with the 18-year-olds, which is a
much smaller group, on the order of some 800,000, of which half or
two-thirds will be in school.

Second, I will be interested in the testimony that you hear to-
morrow because my good friends in NASFAA and other organiza-
tions are going to talk about cost in this.

Now, there isn't any cost involved in this compliance certificate.
This committee put that Statement of Compliance in the law in
1972 and every year all of these people who come into school, they
have signed the statement, it has duly been filed and that's it. Now
this time all we are saying is, "Sign the statement and check a
couple of boxes." Nobody can tell me, other than the small cost of
printing a couple of additions) lines to a statement that has to be
printed already, this adds about another 10 or 12 lines of type, that
there is any cost involved.

This is a self-operating sort of thing. So the cost of securing and
filing the acknowledgement letters is not great. I will admit that
some students who will get fouled up in this system, as the general
indicated, _5 percent or so of your people who are registrants on
your mailing make mistakes, you have to make phone calls and
that sort of-thing and there will be some of that. ti

But to have a clerk sit and receive these letters from students
and check them off and file them is as cost-effective as anything we
can do. With overhead costs and all of the programs and what it
costs to do business out there, I am sure that you will hear a lot of
fairly broad estimates of cost. But on a per unit basis, I just can't
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believe that there is this tremendous cost burden that schools will
entail this spring.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Doctor,, in your statement, if I understand it, you tell us that in

developing these regulations you worked closely with the financial
aid. community. Can you tell what reaction you received from that
community as you were developing these regulations? In short, do
he colleges think this is a good idea?

Mr. ELMENDORF. The law or the regulation?
Mr. HARRISON. The regulation, Doctor.
Mr. ELMENDORF. I would say that they have not, in fact, been dis-

agreeable with the fact that the regulation had to be structured in
such a way as to comply with the prescriptions set forth in the law
and that this was a way that it could be done with the minimum
amount of burden to them.

If we were to say, and they were to be given a green light to go
ahead And do it centrally and let the Department of Education or
Selective Service do it, they would certainly go along with that. But
then again, and very clearly stated in our testimony, is that that is
what would really cause the burden to the system, to the institu-
tion and would delay student financial aid applications.

We are not equipped, essentially, to do that kind of mammoth
undertaking for 8,000 institutions and that would, in fact, conflict
directly with the conference report language.

Mr. HARRISON. You think that to do it centrally would impose a
greater burden on the colleges and yet, the colleges if they had
their druthers would say, "Go ahead and you do it."

Mr. ELMENDORF. Essentially it would impose a greater burden on
the Government and would delay the system therefore contradict-
ing the Conference Report language. I believe that it can be best
done, as most things are best done, essentially, at the local level.

Mr. HARRISON. I don't mean to cut you off, Doctor, but that's
what I am getting at. A couple of times this morning you have said
that to do it centrally would impose the burden both on the institu-
tions and the Government and that's not really so. If I am hearing
you correctly now, the question is whether we are going to impose
the burden on the institutions or whether we are going to impose
the burden on the Government, and as a matter of philosophy, you
prefer to impose it on the institutions.

That seems to be what is coming through, sir.
Mr. ELMENDORF. Philosophy and practicality. I can give you the

practical side of that. The practical side is we simply do not have a
data base record that has in it all of the students in this country
who receive student financial assistance. We have only one major
system, the Pell Grant System, that covers only about 21/2 million
aid recipients. There are easily another 21/2 to three million aid re-
cipients out there that are covered only by individual State com-
puter systems who borrow under the Guaranteed Student Loan
Program and individual institutional systeins that cover campus-
based programs.
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There isn't a single source in student financial aid for us to look
across a data bank and come up with all of the recipients of stu-
dent financial aid.

Now I would have to let the general as it relates to the Selective
Service data files.

Mr. HARRISON. Sir?
General TURNAGE. Well, once again, it seems to me, Mr. Harri-

son, that the issue has been made clear in the sense that the form
that contains the checkoff for registration is prepared and adminis-
tered and retained and controlled by the institution in any event.

The acknowledgellient form that selective service provides an in-
dividual when he registers is the only thing that must be added to
that. So to the extent that that is a burden for them, it becomes a
matter of individual interpretation. I don't consider that to be such
and it just seems to me that it can be done relatively simply.

I don't think the burden really is on the institution in that sense.
I think it rests with the individual to get his acknowledgement
form and provide it to them and make the check and that consti-
tutes the action.

Mr. HARRISON. But to the extent the individual doesn't do that,
the burden falls back to the institution, doesn't it? Among other
things, they may end up having to "chase the money out the door
and try to get it back," to use the phrase that we had here a
minute ago.

General TURNAGE. If they use poor judgment initially and allow
the loan to be made to an individual who doesn't qualify, I think
they deserve that kind of problem.

Mr. HARRISON. Yes, but they don't know it at that point, do they,
General?

General TURNAGE. They may not, in some instances, although
they have accepted the affidavit, as Dr. Elmendorf suggested, and
if, in fact, it turns out to be a false affidavit theft, I believe, accord-
ing to his interpretation, the institution is no longer responsible.

Mr. HARRISON. If I may just pursue this one more minute, Mr.
Chairman.

It seems to me that there are many of us who don't quarrel with
the underlying philosophy which you have stated, General. People
who seek to enjoy the benefits of this country have to obey its laws.
But there are those of us who go further and say\ that the obliga-
tion of enforcing the laws of this country rests on the executive
branch of the Government, not the colleges and universities, and
that to attempt to use the collegeg and universities as deputies of
the Government for the purpose of enforcing the registration law is
mixing things up a little bit.

And I have some sympathy with my colleagues in the education-
al community who say that this is not our job and how come it's
being given to us. t

I guess my final question, if I may, sir, would be just-to ask if the
Department of Education has developed any idea or estimate of
what the-Cost of:this would be to the colleges and universities.

Mr. ELMENDORF. As far as I know, we did not prepar,e any esti-
mate like that. It is very difficult to make that kind of Assumption
based on essentially what Mr. Gunderson said aboutI would need
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to know, for example, how he got a range of $5,000 to $40,000 for
institutions. I need to know what goes into their formula.

I would make one statement though. It deals with self-regulation
and I would take some of what you said about who should enforce
the laws of the landwe have a regulation similar to this regula-
tion that deals with measuring satisfactory progress or a student
who maintains a C average in an institution. Theoretically, accord-
ing to the GAO report, they should have their aid withdrawn by
fiat from a departmental review if that student does not, in fact,
hold to that 2.0.

The whole academic community that is now exercising their
right to show some sympathy here for burden expressed quite a dif-
ferent perspective when it came time to the enforcement of that
GAO report and, in fact, advised us and convinced us, including the
Secretary, to put forth a regulation that was self-regulatory. Let
the institution determine its own standard for academic progress
and let the institution monitor that. And I think you have got to
look at that from the consistency of the application of a standard.
That we would like to see happen here as well.

Mr. HARRISON. If I may just respond to that and get your reac-tion because I think you have just reinforced my point. It is up to
phe colleges and universities of this country to monitor academic
progress. It does seem to me that it is up to the colleges and uni-
versities of this country to monitor compliance with the Selective
Service law. They are in the business of education. The Govern-
ment is in the business of enforcing the laws that the Congress
passes.

General TURNAGE. Would you alloW a response, sir?
Mr. HARRISON. Please, General.
General TURNAGE. It seems to me that they are, however, respon-sible for determining eligibility.
Mr. HARRISON. Who should do the work of verifying that the stu-dent who signs his name to the bottom of the sheet of paper, "I

hereby verify under the penalties of perjury, U.S.C. whatever it is,
that I have complied with the requirements of the Selective Service
Act."

Now the question is, How do we know that that person is not
lying? And it seems to be a question of who is going to do the en-
forcement. And I don't want to belabor this, there are others who
want to speak, but it does seem Mr. Chairman, that the issue is
whether that burden should be passed to the colleges.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Boucher.
Mr. BOUCHER. Thimk you, Mr. Chairman. I have just two ques-tions for General Turnage.
General, you have indicated during your statement that you

have about a 94.6 percent success in verifying to registrants the
fact that they have registered. And you based that, as I understand
it, on the statement that you are only receiving back some 5.4 per-
cent of the letters that you initially mailed.

Now I question whether or not you can assume from those fig-
ures that the registrants really are receiving verification in accord-
ance with those figures. Isn't it possible that someone who is living
with a registrant, be it a parent, a roommate, a brother or a sister,
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might well receive the letter and actually never have it reach the
registrant at all?

General TURNAGE. That's absolutely possible, sir.
Mr. BOUCHER. That leads me then to my second question which

is this: When you hear from a registrant that he has not gotten
verification of the fact that he has registered, what is your proce-
dure for determining that he has registered, and in the event that
he has, notifying him, and what is the period of time that it takes
you to go through that procedure and send a letter to him indicat-
ing that he has, in fact, registered?

General TURNAGE. I think there is an issue of clarification that
must be made here, Mr. Boucher. I am not sure we are speaking to
the same issue. In the first case, when we have an individual who
reaches age 18 and he goes into the post office and he fills out the
registration form consisting of a half a dozen questions, one of
which suggests his permanent address and the other is a tempo-
rary address, we have full knowledge that this individual because
of his age, may be going away to college, this sort of mobility. So
we try to keep both of those addresses available to us in the event
of the requirement to reach him.

Within a matter then ofnow we are talking in terms of 30 or
40 dayswe respond to that individual with a letter of acknowl-
edgement and we really, in effect, regurgitate the information\that
he gave us and say: Is, in fact, this correct? If it is, no further re-
quirement is necessary, but if it is not, please respond to us in the
stamped, addressed envelope provided so that we can clarify your
records.

Now in every case then we send that out to the individual who
registers. That is the first procedure. The second thing, to which I
think you were alluding, is the fact that we know, based on the age
group with which we are dealing and the volatility or at least the
mobility of this group, we find then it is necessary for us to keep in
touch with them on an ongoing basis to be sure that we have cur-
rent addresses. And the verification program that I am suggesting
to you, the first test of that occurred about 15 or 16 months ago
where we sent out the first 10,000 letters and we got something on
the same order of percentages that I suggested to you.

However, this last October we sent the first 100,000 out and this
month we are sending 250,000 out and we will be sending out
250,000 every month ad infinitum simply to keep in touch with
people that we haven't heard from for the last 11 months. Now the
11 months is significant because after the 12th month, if the indi-
vidual leaves his address, his letters may not be forwarded. So that
is the key.

We are doing that so that we can keep our list updated arid as
current as we can and keep the equity in the system by virtue of
that fact.

Now, you suggest that someone else may open his mail. Absolute-
ly. The fact is that i some other cases other issues may come up to
prevent that individual from receiving his mail. Absolutely. We
don't know of a better system, sir, and if you do, if Oil will tell me,
we will try and incorporate it.

Mr. BOUCHER. All right. Thank you very much, General.
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Mr. SIMON. One comment and one final question for you, Gener-
al.

The comment is simply to disagree respectfully with Dr. Elmen-
dorf when he suggests there is no economic type of sanction to this
law. The reality is that if you come from a family with $100,000 or
above income, there is no sanction in this law for you. If you come
from a family with $15,000 income, it applies universally so that
clearly there is an economic sanction.

Now the question for Congress is: Despite that economic sanc-
tion, is it wise to have this regulation? But I don't think there can
be any question that there is an economic aspect to it.

Then the question, and this really gets to the law itself and how
you administer the law, General, you could by regulation simply
add one small point to the card where you say, reserve the right
to file as a conscientious objector in any future draft." That would
eliminate, other than the careless people who just aren't register-
ing, it would eliminate the problem.

I don't know that this Nation has gained any victories by putting
Mennonites and Quakers in jail, but that is what we are doing
right now. And these are the people we are denying a chance to go
to college. Is there- anything wrong with just adding that provision
to that card, General?

General TURNAGE. Mr. Chairman, I would hope that you would
entertain a question from me, if you have the conviction about this,
if I may ask it.

Mr. SIMON. Yes.
General TU1RNAGE. Have you any assurance based on the infor-

mation available to you that by adding that blank or that particu-
lar provision in the registration form, that, in fact, you would solve
the problem with the people who are making the issue?

Mr. SIMON. I have ileason to believe you would. So that it is
clearyou have really three major religious groups in addition to
others, the Friends, the Quakers, the Mennonites and the Seventh
Day Adventists. I did speak to one of the leaders of the Friends
who indicated that would solve the problem, for example, at Earl
ham College, which is a Quaker institution.

It just seems to me that we, as part of the American tradition,
try to accommodate people whose religious views happen to be dif-
ferent than yours or mine, General. But part of the American
system is that we respect those kind of views.

General TURNAGE. Please then, I will now try to respond my way
and based on my impressions about the system.

I have the firm conviction that such a provision notwithstanding,
you still wouldn't solve the question or the real issue because it is
my judgment that in some cases you are not going to satisfy the
individual regardless of what you' do, that it becomes a matter not
of religious preference but of political rhetoric.

Let me give you a couple of cases in point. I have discussed with
almost every religious group that has expressed an interest to me,
on a personal basis, not through other sources, this issue. And as
recently as 2 weeks ago, I was at the national headquarters of the
Seventh Day Adventists Church here where they went through a
program that they are currently giving to all young men in their
faith where they advocate, one, registration, and second, they advo-
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cate 1 -AO clasSification to have them go into medical service and
serve in a nonqombatant role as opposed to conscientious objection.

I talked witO Mr. Ken Singer of the Amish faith. He said, "If you
have any trouble with my boys, tell me about it."

I talked with a lot of people, with the Dunkers and the Menno-
nites and, you name it and we have tried to be sensitive to this
issue.

Now the thing that bothers me about it is the fact that, with a
full understanding, what we are saying in this one registration
card has nothing to do with classification of any form. We are
saying to the young man, register in order to be considered for clas-
sification at some future time in case the Congress takes this
action. We ask that you sign this card and send it to us. You will
then become a part of a manpower pool. In the event your name is
drawn then by virtue of a random lottery and if you have a matter
of conscience, all you need do is fill out this one form and give it to
your local board and that form will adjudicate your case.

So, we are not compromising an individual's option nor is he ab-
rogating any of his principles nor are we taking away any of his
opportunities for service in a conscientious field, if, in fact, he feels
that firmly.

There are some, however, that even if we put that on there, they
didn't sign. What is our course of action? We try to make it
through our public awareness program thgt there is no classifica-
tion now and that we will zealously, statutily, and philosophical-
ly guard the interests of the young conscientious objectors.

I feel comfortable with being able to do that. I do not feel com-
fortable with the individual who is not going to obey the law of the
land regardless of his conviction. In many cases, as you can appre-
ciate, the fact is it is not only religious, but it is moral and ethical.
I can understand all of those.

But it is the other individual that gives a lot of political rhetoric
to it and says, "I am not going to obey the law of this land." He
does it on a selective basis. I think we may have difficulty with
that man and I am not sure, or as a matter of fact, let me retract
that, I am quite sure that regardless of a provision on that registra-
tion form, we are not going to satisfy that reservation.

Mr. SIMON. If I could just respond briefly, and I don't want to get
into a lengthy debate on this, but if you had such a provision on
that registration card, you don't diminish your powers or authority
one iota. What you .say about .a future draft is correct. At that
point the decision is made. You reserve the right to make that deci-
sion at that point. But; you simply dissipate 90 percent of the oppo-
sition you have right now.

And now there are those who are going to be out there no matter
what. But of those who have been sentenced so far for violating
this law, how manynumber one, how many have been sentenced?

General TURNAGE. There have been 14 indicted to date.
Mr. SIMON. OK. But among those who have been sentenced?
General TURNAGE. I am giving you a guestimate, sip I think five

or six.
Mr. SIMON. And of those five or six, how many are Mennonites,

or Quakers or people who have expressed religious scruples?



75

General TURNAGE. I can't tell you that precisely, excepting I just
get the same kind of information you do from the press about their
motives for failing to register.

Mr. SIMON. But my understanding is all but one, in fact, are in
that category.

General TURNAGE. I don't, know that, sir.
Mr. SIMON. And it just seems to me that we have created no vic-

tories for this Government by having four or five Mennonites and
Quakers sentenced to prison, and we can easily, relatively easily,
solve this problem and do away with the whole reason for the hear-
ing that we are having here today and some of the other prob-lems--

General TURNAGE. Mr. Chairman, if you recall in out" recent tele-
phone discussion, I suggested to you that I would be pleased to con-
sider that or any other device or initiative that would be helpful in
this vein. I should also point out here for the record, however, if
you recall this very issue was once voted on by the Congress and
was voted down.

Now, if the Congress elects to change that position, you would
once again see me enthusiastically support it.

Mr. SIMON. OK. So it seems to me that the burden is clearly on
those of us in Congress to see if we can come up with something
that is a little more workable and we thank you both for your testi-
mony here.

This coicludes our hearing.
[Whereupon, at 11:55 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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LEGISLATIVE HEARING: REGULATIONS ON THE
SOLOMON AMENDMENT TO THE DEFENSE
ACT OF 1983

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 1983

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, a.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, St 9:30 a.m. in room
2257, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Paul Simon (chairman
of the subcommittee) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Simon, Harrison, Gunderson,
Good ling, Petri, and Packard.

Staff present: Mary ln McAdam, majority legislative assistant;
John Dunn, majority fellow; and Betsy Brand, minority legislative
associate.

Mr. SIMON. The subcommittee will come to order.
I offer my apologies for being late this morning. I will simply

enter my statement in the record
[The opening statement of Hon. Paul Simon follows:]

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. PAUL SIMON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, AND CHAIRMAN, SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCA-
TION

Tife Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education today continues its oversight
fiearings on the implementation of the Solomon amendment to the Department of
Defense Authorization Act of 1983. During yesterday's hearing, the Subcommittee
heard form several Members of the House who suggested several legislative solu-
tions to the issue before this Subcommitteeis there a practical, administratively
feasible method for implementing the Solomon Amendment in the upcoming aca-
demic year or should implementation be postponed (or the law repealed). Our col-
league, Representative Leon Panetta, was unable to join us yesterday and I would
like to enter his testimony in yesterday's record at the conclusion of Mr. Foglietta's
presentation.

Today the Subcommittee will hear from college and university presidents, student
financial aid administrators and lenders, and students. We will also hear from the
American Civil Liberties Union, which is currently engaged in litigation in Federal
District Court in Minnesota.

I hope we will learn today about the impact of the proposed regulation, in dollar
and human terms, so that tte Subcommittee can thoughtfully consider the feasibil-
ity and appropriateness of thk Department's proposal. We are especially anxious to
Team of alternatives which place less of an administrative burden on postsecondary
institutions and students, and leave enforcement to the Selective Service System
where it belongs. I want to welcome David Fraser of Swarthmore College, my friend
Father Byron of Catholic University ,and Dr. Johnson of George Mason University
who is testifying on behalf of the American Council on Education.
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Mr. SIMON. We have a statement also by our colleague, Repre-
sentative Panetta, which also will be entered in the record.

[The prepared statement of Hon: Leon E. Panetta, follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. LEON E. PANETTA, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Mr. Chairman, at the time the Solomon Amendment was approved last July, you
attempted to amend the proposl so as to give students the option of declaring their
objections to draft- registration based on religious or moral grounds. I suppottted you
strongly in that effort iind- when it was defeated, I evas one of only 95 Members of
Congress to vote against final passage of the Solomon measure. .

Now I would like to take this opportudity to restate my own belief that if stu-
dents who are in financial need are to be penalized for their failure to comply with
the registration lawand it is apparently the will of the Congress that they should
bethen those students whose failure isbased on deeply held religious or moral be-
liefs should be allowed to-make ,Thejr-beliefs known.

Unfortunately, the regulation§- which have been put forward by the Department
of EducatiorTail to make this opportunity available. Simply "put, students are
denied the benefit of beneficial aid if they do not state and verify their registration
compliance. They are given the right to a hearing only when they claim to have
registered but Cannot prOvide any proof of their compliance.

I was not a supporter of the draft registration program when it was enacted in
1980, because I did not see any convincing evidence that the resumption of registra-
tion would contribute to our nation's.military preparedness or would prove useful in
case mobilization became necessary. However, the registration proposal was enaorer..,
into law by the Congress and it must be enforced. I do not believe we can or should
condone noncompliance pith the law.

At:the same time, I cannot support enforcement efforts whikh are selective or dis-
criminatory:or which do not allow for the expression of moral or religious objec-
tions to registration for a military draft. Conscientious objectionris part of the
Americim. military tradition. I believe strongly that if we are to use the student aid
programs which enable so many young people to attend college as a tool forenforc-
ivg the draft registration law, then it is incumbent on us to take into account the
religious and moral factory which may legitimately prevent Students from comply-
ing with that law.

Another aspect to this problem is the religious co eges which may be forced by
these regulations to participate in the registration program. As written, the regula-

i,tionstplace the heaviest burden of implementation on institutions of higher educa-
tion: colleges are not allowed to disburse any federal student aid funds unless regis-
tration compliance has been verified, This may place schools with a tradition of reli-
gious pacifism in the role of policeman, forcing them to help execute a law to which
they themselves Jiave deeply held religious objections.

I-would like to emphasize again that draft registration and the Solomon Amend-
ment are both the law of the land, and our joltnow is to find the most equitable and

efficient means of enforcing them..cekt the same time, I believe that there are better
ways to accomplish the goals of these statutes and t. at we must continue our efforts
to find alternatives. For this reason, I have reintriTduced legislation to establish a
Select Commission to study the issues surrounding .voluntary national service. I be-
lieve that what we need ultimately is a broad and comprehensive debate on the
issue of national service, and I am hopeful that such a debate will help us formulate
a system which allows those who are morally opposed to the military to serve their
country in other ways. In the meantime, I hope that the Members of the Subcom-
mittee will join me in emphasizing their support for regulations which will allow
students at the very least an opportunity,to voice their dissent.

Mr. SIMON. We heard yesterchty from the Director of the Selec-
tive Se vice, from the Assistant Secretary of Education for Postsec-
ondarylEducation, and we heard from some of our colleagues with
various suggestions. Today we are going to hear from the universi-
ty community.

.10.More I call on our witnesses, let me yield to my colleagues for
any comments they may have. Mr. Petri?

1
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Mr. PETRI. I don't have any comments, Mr. Chairman. I am just
looking forward' the testimony of the witnesses on this important
matter.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I have to start with an apology of my own. I have a full commit-.

tee markup at 10, so I will have to excuse myself. But I am grateful
for the opportunity to welcome all of our distinguished witnesses.

I hope I won't be out of order in particularly recognizibg my old
friend, ,Father William Byron, who, before he became, president
the Catholic University of America, was president of the Universi-
ty of Scranton; which was the great and friendly rival of Kings Col-
lege where I spent many years. Before leaving our community, the
Father made a speech which I believe to be one,,of the best state-
ments of the need for a community t6 present an image to society
and for the academic world to be involved in that community.

It is an honor. to welcome him and all of our other guests this
morning.

Mr. SIMON. In a very real sense, he ought to be welcoming you. I
-think he has been to more meetings of our subcommittee_ than you

have.
Mr. HARRISON. He knows his way aroun d far better than I, Mr.

Chairman.
Mr;SIMON. Mr. /ackard.
Mr. PACKARD. I have no comment, except to- thank those who

have taken the time to come and testify before, the committee.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON.. Thank you, Mr. Chtirman.
I have no major_ commcnt. But to those who° were not at the

hearing yesterday, would share with them that yesterday after-
noon, we introduced legislation that- would allow on the registra-
tion certificate the opportunity for the students to indicate that
they deSire consideratiort for conscientious objector status. I think,
this is one of the objections and concerns a number of witnesses
raised yesterday. That bill is now in for people to Idok at and criti-
cize or do whatever else they so desire.

Mi./SIMON. We will first hear from the President's Panel. We
.will hear from David 'Fraser, president, Swarthmore College;
Father Byron, .president of the. Catholic University of America; and
George Johnson, president of George Mason University.

We will hear first from the president of Swarthmore College. We
will listen to all three witnesses and then have questions.

STAT ,MENT OF DAVID FRASER, PRESIDENT, SWAR.THMORE
COLLEGE

Mr. FRASER. Thqnk you, Mr. Simon ancl)members of the subcom-
mittee.

?My name is David Fraser; and I am the president of Sviartlimore
College. Swarthmoce is an independent; 4-year, coeducational col-
lege located in the suburbs of Philadelphia. Despite the relatively
large endowment of the college, 60. }recent of its 1,260 students re-
quire Federal financial aid under title 1y of tire Higher Education
Act of 1965.
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The itmendment to the Military Selective Service -Act that we are
discussing makes registration for the draft a prerequisite for re-
ceiving this money. I would like to contrast for the subcommittee
today the administrative burden that would be created for the col-
lege by two possible sets of rules.

The first is that set proposed by the Department of Education, in
which the burden would be on colleges to prove the truth of stu-
dents' statements about their registration before aid could be dis-
bursed.

The second that I would like to discuss is a proposal that I would
make to have names of students who have submitted statements of
compliance forward to the Department of Education for verifica-
tion by Federal personnel. Such a strategy would satisfy require-
ments of the law and would be consistent with the legislative
intent to involve colleges as little as possible in the policing of-reg-
istration laws. Most of the burden would be placed on the Depart-
ment of Education and perhaps the Selective Service to provide
verification.

Distribution of aid would not be held up pending verifitation, al-
though any student found to have submitted a false affidavit would
be required to return aid that he had received.

The table that I put up here shows the various tasks that the col-
leges would be called upon to do. It also indicates the effort that we
believe each task would require in the coming mar, both to initiate
the programand that is shown in the first column titled "System
Startup" and to deal with the situations of individual students.

Under either set of regulations, colleges would 'be required to
train personnel in the new rules. These personnel include those in
the financial aid office, admissions office, business office, and
public information office. estimate that, at Swarthmore, about 66
person hours, the first number under Department of Eduoation,
would be required for training under the Department's' proposed
regulations, and 42 hours under the college's proposal.

The college would need to spend considerable time explaining the
new rules to parents and students. We shall need to rewrite our aid
brochure and rewrite our descriptions 'of individual financial aid
programs. -

In addition,; until the new brochures are printed, we shall have
to spend more time with individual students to explain the new
rules. This extra time is likely to amount to 15 minutes per student
if_the Department's rules are accepted, and 5 minutes per student
of the college's proposal is accepted. Overall, these explanations are
likely to take a total of 125 hours under the Department's plan and
58 hours under the college's plan.

The collection of affidavits from recipients of Pell grants of
campus-based Federal aid will cause no additional burden on the
college, because the college already collects one affidavit, the state-
ment of educational purpose, from such students.

However, the Department of Education draft regulations would
require the college, for the first time, to collect affidavits from re-

, cipients of GSL or pLus loans; whereas under the present regula-
tions and under the college's proposal, these affidavits are collected
by the lenders. Preparing and mailing the additional affidavits and
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sending out reminders when necessary are likely to consume some
113 hours of personnel time during the coming year.

The regulations proposed by the Department require the college
to check the truth of a student's statement that he or she is not
required to register against other information that the college may
have. To perform this check this year will require a case-by-case
review of students' central files, which are not now located in or
retrievable by our financial aid office.

For subsequent years, we would modify our computerized file to
permit more rapid retrieval of this information by financial id
personnel. This checking of records and system modification wo d
require about 209 hours of work this year. .

Collecting the Selective Service verifications of registration
likely to take up. to 20 minutes of college personnel time for eve
student who does not have his verification at the time of applying
for aid. It is likely that this would include the one-quarter of in-
coming freshmen who have recently turned 18 years old, and
nearly all of the upper classmen, for a total workload of 122 hours.

Under the Department regulations., the college would be required
to collect notarized temporary verifications from students who have
recently turned 18 years old. The college would then be required to
track these temporary verifications to make sure that the Selective
Service documentation was received within 120 days and send fol-
lowup notices where necessary.

. As the college computing system cannot be modified in time for
this year, a systyn of manual checking would have to be used. Col-
lecting and tracking are likely to involve 60 person hours of work.

If the college is compassionate toward upper classmen who do
not still have their Selective Service documents, it will accept tem-
porary verifications from them also, and incur similar burdens of
tracking and followup. These are likely to amount to 98 person
hours in the coming year. The 98 is in parentheses because it is an
option burden for the college.

The college's present bookkeeping system credits students' ac-
counts automatically when title IV funds are received, but there is
no feature that would allow provisional crediting of accounts as
would be required for funds disbursed under temporary verifica-
tions as called for in the Department's draft regulations.

Performing a manual check for expiration of temporary verifica-
tion before disbursing Pell grant5 or campus-based Federal aid or
crediting GSL. or PLUS funds to students accounts would require
180 person hours during the first year. Establishing financial con-
trols and redesigning computer programs to enable more efficient

-checkirlg. during subsequent yyars would take an additional 125
person hours this year. 'This would total the 305 listed on the table.

From those students whose temporary verifications expire, the
Department's regulations would require the college to attempt to
recover aid moneys already disbursed. The numbers of such stu-
dents will depend greatly on the speed with which the Selective,
Service System provides students with dupficate verification docu-
ment& We estimate that college personnel may have to spend 30
hours on these recovery -efforts, including 10 hours for those stu-
dents who had recently turned 18. An additional 60 hours would be
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spent in notifying lenders and the Secretary of Education about
students whose temporary verifications had expired.

The Department's draft regulations do not specify the response;'
bilities that a college may have in regard to hearings requested by
students whose aid is denied because they lacked documentation
for registration. If the college refuses to accept temporary verifica-
tion from students who have lost their original documents, there
may be as many as 300 hours of college personnel time involved. If
the- college accepts temporary verifications from such students, the
burden may drop tO 25 hours.

The college proposal adds one burden not present in the Depart-
ment's regulations, and that is listed at the bottom. The college
would provide the names of all students who submit to it affidavits
regarding draft registration. This is likely to require 40 hours of
time by college personnel in the first year.

In total then, under the draft regulations issued by the Depart-
ment of Education, the additional administrative burdens to a
small college like Swarthmore in the first year of implementation
of this law would be between 1,213 and 1,330 person hours of work,
depending on whether or not the college elected the option to
accept temporary verification from students who do not have their
original Selective Service letters.

Under the simpler college proposal, the burden to the college
would be only 141 hours. Thus, the Department's yersion of the
regulations would require the college to hire an additional.person
to work between one-half and three-quarter's time just to adminis-
ter these regulations. The college version, which even more closely
reflects the letter of the law and the congressional intent, would
require no additional lifting of personnel.

In summary, I hope that the Congress would consider repealing
this law because it discriminates against poor and middle-income
men, because it inflicts punishment without prior trial, because it
threatens the spirit of free inquiry so essential to our colleges by
restricting their ability to assemble student bodies on educational
criteria alone, and because it unwisely makeS' access to education
contingent on compliance with a totally unrelated law.

However, if the law stands, I strongly encourage that the imple-
menting regulations reflect the letter of the law and the intent of
Congress. The regulations I recommend would do so by having stu-
dents affirm in an affidavit that they either have registered or are
not required to register, by having the colleges and lenders forward
to the Department of Education for verification, lists of students
who have submitted these affidavits, and by permitting the timely
disbursement of aid to students who have filed affidavits, and
would not risk the holdup of aid from duly registered students that
is certain to occur if the Selective Service System proves tardy in
providing students with Yerification of their registration.

Furthermore, This alternative set of regulations would put the
administrative burden of the law where Congress intended it, on
the Federal Government, not in institutions of higher education.

Thank you very much.
Mr,. SIMON. Thank you.
Incidentally, do you have a sample affidavit that you are talking

about?
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Mr. FRASER. I can prepare one for the committee. It would have
two questions. One, it would say, "I have registered under the re-
quirements of/the Selective Service." The second question would
be, "I am not required to register." The student would check one of
the wo boxes.

ICI . Simoiv. We thank you.
[The prepared statement of David Fraser follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DAVID W. FRASER, PRESIDENT, SWARTHMORE COLLEOE,
SWARTHMORE, PA.

My name is David W. Fraser and I am the President of Swarthmore College. On
behalf of Swarthmore, I welcome the opportunity to point out to the members of the
Subcommittee the burden that would be placed on the College by the regulations on
financial aid and draft registration that have been drafted by the Department of
Education.

Swarthmore is an independent, 4-year, coeducational college located in the sub-
urbs of Philadelphia. It was founded in 1864 by the Religious Society of Friends
(Quakers), although it no longer has any formal religious ties. The :college prides
itself on the distinctive character and quality of its academic program and on the
high calibre of its. 1,260 students, who are drawn from all over the United States.
Despite the relatively large endowment of the College, 60 percent of its students re-
quire Federal financial aid under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965.

An amendment to the Military Selective SerAce Act makes registration for the
draft a prerequisite for cer*iin students to receive this money under Title IV. I am
not here today to emphasize the unfairness of a law that singles out less affluent
men and limits their access to education while leaving untouched the full constitu-
tional protections of others who differ only by accident of birth. Nor am I here to
dwell on the unwise legislative linkage of education to military registration, al-
though there seems to be little justification in asking those who are dedicated to the
teaching of our young people to divert their efforts to the enforcement of Selective
Service laws. I am here rather to talk about the specific problems that would be
created by the proposed Department or Education regulations and to propose an al-
ternative that fully meets the letter of the law and the legislative intent.

The law requires that students who must register certify their compliance withthe requirements in order to receive Federal student aid. The Depart-
ment of Education is required to verify the accuracy of these statements of compli-
ance. Two possible strategies may be envisioned to implement the law. Names of
students who have submitted statements of compliance might be forwarded to the
Department of Education for verification by Federal personnel. Such a strategy
wouldsatisfy requirements of the law and would be consistent with the legislative
intent to involve colleges as little as possible in the policing of r=egistration laws;
most of the burden would be placed on the Department of Education and perhaps.
the Selective Service System to provide verification. It is this strategy that I believe
would be most workable. The second strategy would be to require colleges, to collect
affidavits of compliance and evidence of verification from students to assume pri-
mary responsibility for assessing such documentation, to delign administrative con-

t., trol mechanisms to deal with possible delays in the Government's.providing of ini-
tial and duplicate evidence of registration, and to implement systems for bolding up
financial aid' for students who have not registered or who have not received such
verification. The burden here is mostly on the colleges. Regrettably it is this second
strategy that the Department has selected.

The draft regulations make requirements on students and colleges that are not
called for in the law. Under the draft regulations, all students who get Federal
aidnot just registration-age menwould have to submit an affidavit stating com-
pliance with the registration laws; thus a woman will need to submit an affidavit
saying she is a woman (and therefore not required to register). Furthermore, despite
the absence of such a requirement in the law, the regulations would require that
registration be verified in essentially every case before Federal monies are dis-
bursed. This unnecessary and unwise requirement shifts the administrative burden
of verification to colleges and leaves students subject to non-support should the Se-
lective Service System prove unable to provide evidence of registration in a timely
fashion. The legislative intent was clearly to minimize the burden 'on colleges but
the regulations as drafted make the colleges, not the Federal government, responsi-
ble for the bulk of effort in administering the various provisions.
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We at Swarthmore have made some attempt to estimate the burden that would be
placed on the College if it had to administer the law under the Department of Edu-
cation proposed regulations. The Table shows the. various tasks that the College
would be called upon to do. It also indicates the effort that we believe each task
would require in the coining year, both to initiate the program and to deal with the
situations of individual students. Contrasted with this is an estimate of the College
effort that would be required to comply wih a simpler set of regulations that would
fully meet the letter of the law and what. I judge to have been the intent of Con-
gress: These simpler regulations would have the College or student aid lenders ask
students to indicate that they were either not required to register or had done so;
and then forward a list of those students to the Department of Education for verifi-
cation. Distribution of aid would not be held up pending verification although any
student found to have submitted a false affidavit would be required to return aid
that he had received.

Under either set of regulations, colleges would be required to train personnel in
the new -rules. These personnel include those in the Financial Aid Office, Admis-
sions Office, Business Office and Public Information Office. I estimate that at
Swarthmore about 66 person-hours of training would be required under the Depart-
ment's proposed regulations and 42 hours under the College s proposal.

The College will need to spend considerable time explaining the new rules to par-
ents and students. We shall need to rewrite our aid brochure, and rewrite our de-
scriptions of individual financial aid programs. In addition, until the new brochures
are printed, we shall have to spend more time with individual students to explain
the new rules; this extra time is likely to amount to 15 minutes per student if the
Department's rules are in effect and 5 minutes per student if the College's proposal
is accepted. Overall these explanations are likely to take a total of 125 hours under
the Department's plan and 58 hours under the College's plan.

The collection of affidavits from recipients of Pell grants or campus-based Federal
aid will cause no additional burden on the College, because the College already col-
lects one affidavit (the Statement of Educational Purpose) frdm such students. How-
ever the Department of Education draft regulations would require the College for
the first time to collect affidavits from applicants of GSL or PLUS loans, whereas
under present regulations and under the College's proposal these affidavits are col-
lected by the lenders. Preparing and mailing the additional affidavits and sending
out reminders when necessary are likely to consume some 113 hours of personnel
time this coming year.

The regulations proposed by the Department require the College to check the
truth of a student's statement that he or she is not required to register against
other information that the College may have. To perform this check this year will
require a case-by-case review of students' central files, which are not now located in
or retrievable by our Fintin6a1 Aid Office. For subsequent years we would modify
our computerized files to permit more rapid retrieval of this information by Finan-
cial Aid peTsonnel. This checking of records and system modification would require
about 209 hours of work this year.

Collecting of Selective Service verifications of registration is likely to take up to
20 minutes of College'Personnel time for. every student who does not have his verifi-
cation at the time of applying rer aid. It is likely that this would include the one-
quarter of incoming freshmen who have recently turned 18 years old and nearly all
of the upperclassmen, for total work load of 122 hours.

Under the Demtmenkregulations the College would be required to collect nota-
rized temporary verifications from students who have recently turned 18 years old.
The College would then be required to track these temporary verifications to make
sure that the Selective Service dqcumentation was received within 120 days and
send follow;,up notices when necessary. As the College computing system cannot be
modified in time for this year a systfm of manual checking would have to btkused.
Collecting and tracking are likely to Mvolve 60 person-hours of work.

If the College is compassionate toward upperclassmen who do not still have their
Selective Service documents, it will accept temporary verifications from them also
and incur similar burdens of tracking and follow-up. These are likely to eputa to
98 person-hours in the coming year.

The College's present bookkeeping system credits students' accounts automatical-
ly when Title IV funds are received, but there is no feature that would allow "provi-
sional" crediting of accounts as would be required for funds disbursed under tempo-
rary verifications as 'called for in the Department draft regulations. Performing a
manual check for expiration of temporary verification before disbursing Pell grants
or campus-based Federal aid or crediting GSL/PLUS funds to students' accounts
would require .180 person-hours during the first year. Establishing financial controls
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and redesigning computer programs to enable more efficient 'checking during subse-
quent years would take an additional 125 person-hours this year.

From those students whose temporary verifications expire, the Department's reg-
ulations would require the College to 4ttempt to recover aid monies already dis-
bursed. The numbers of such students OM depend greatly on the speed with which
the Selective Service System provides students with duplicate verification docu-
ments. We estimate that College personnel may have to spend 30 hours in these re-
covery efforts, including 10 hours for those students who had recently turned 18. An
additional 60 hours would be spent in notifying lenders and the Secretary of Educa-

'tion about students whose temporary verifications had expired.
The Department's draft regulations do not specify the responsibilities that the

College may have in regard to hearings requested by students whose aid is denied
because they lack documentation of having registered. If the College refuses to
accept temporary verifications from students who have lost their original docu-
ments, there may be as many as 300 hours of College personnel time. If the College
accepts temporary verification's from such students, the burden may drop to 25
hours.

. ,
The College proposal adds one burden not present in the Department's regula-

tions. The College would provide the names of all students who submit to its affida-
vits regarding draft registration. This is likely to require 41 hours of time by College
personnel in the first year. ,

I is
In total, under the draft regulations issued by the Depahmenfof Education, the

additional administrative burdens to a small college like Swarthmore in the first
year of implementation of this law would be between 1213 and 1330 person-hours of
work, depending on whether or not the College elected the option to accept tempo-
rary verification from students who do not have their original Selective Service let-
ters. Under the simpler, College proposal the burden to- the College would only.be
191 hours.-Thus the Department's version of the regulatitns would require the Col-
lege to hire an additional person to work between one-half and three-quarters time
just to administer these regulations. The College versionwhich even more closely
reflects the letter of the law and congressional intentwould require no additional
hiring of personnel. . I

"5 In summary, I hope iluft Congress would \consider repealing this law because it
discriminates against poor and middle income men, because it inflicts punishment
without prior trial, because it threatens the spirit of free inquiry so essential to our-'
colleges by restricting their ability to assemble student bodies on educational crite-
ria alone, and because it unwisely makes access to education contingent on compli-
ance with a totally unrelatediSw.

However, if the law standsi !strongly encourage that the implementing regula-
tions reflect the letter of the law and, the intent Of Congress. The regulations I rec-
ommend would do so, by having students affirm in an affidavit that they either had
registered or were not required to register, by haying the colleges and lenders for-
ward to the Department of Education for verification, lists of students who have
submitted these affidavits and by permitting the timely disbursal of aid to students
who have filed affidavitsand would not risk the hold-up of aid from duly -regis-
tered students that is certain to 'occur if the Selective Service System proves tardy
in providing students with verification of their registration. Furthermore, this alter-
native set of regulations would put the administrative biirden of the law where Con-

' gress inte ag ed iton the Federal government, not on institutions of higher educa-
tion.
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Administrative burden to college

Department of Education proposalWork with incTrvidual students LI,Oitege proposal Work with Individual students

System

start up

(hours)

Per student
effort

(minutes)

Number of
students

Total effort
With students

(hours)

Total burden
(hours)

4sstarttefnup

(hours)
Perefirtudent

(minutes)

Numbed of
students

viitTohlasIteudenflortis

(hours)

burden

Training staff in new rules 66 66 42 42

Explaining compliance rules to students and parents 24 15 402 101 125 24 5 402 34 58

Collecting affidavits 10 676 113 113

Confirming affidavits 10 15 797 199 209

Collecting verifications 20 365 122 122

Collecting and tracking temporary verification for those 18-481/4 60 60 60 60

Collecting and tracking temporary verification for others,without
SeleCtive Service verification (optional) (45) (130) (98) -(98)

Provisional crediting of accounts 125 305

PELT /campus based 60 130 130

GSL/PLUS 5 600 50

Recovering Federal funds from those 18-181/4 and others (optional)

with expired temporary verification
Notifying lenders and Secretary of those 18 -18'/4 and others

60 'LI.- '10(30) P 10(30) 10(30)

oo
. (optional) with expired temporary verification 120 10(30) 10(30) 20(60) cr)
Preparing for hearing 60 6 300(25) 300(25) 300(25)
Notifying Department of those submitting affidavits 41

Total person hours 1,330(1,213)
414

1
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Mr. SIMON. Father Byron.

STATEMENT_ OF FATHER WILLIAM BYRON, PRESIDENT, THE
CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA

Father BYRON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My name is William Byron, and I am the president of the Catho-

lic University of America. I appreciate the opportunity to be here
to speak to an issue that is bringing administration and students
together once again in great concern sver the implementation of
registration legislation.

I would like to just make a couple of comments. I have a short
statement and copies of it are here.

Mr. SIMON. Your statement will be entered in the record.
Father BYRON. I want to say first that I have no objection to reg-

istration for selective service. I went through that process once
myself, and there is no objection in principle to that. I believe that
all just laws should be obeyed by all citizens. I know that the De-
partment of Education is insisting on that as they explain the regu-
lations.

I respect, however, the right of-conscientious objection to mili-
tary service, as well as the tradition of civil disobedience on thepart of those who act in good conscience with the willingness to
face the legal consequences of their actions. I do not belieye the re-quirement to register with Selective Service violates any of thoserights.

I do not, however, think it appropriate to assign responsibility
for enforcement of this law to financial aid officers in colleges and
universities. They are officers of the educational institution, not of
the Federal Government. They often function as advisers and coun-selors to student applicants, tlius rendering an enforcement role allthe more odious dnd inappropriate. Further, by axing the point of
enforcement in the area of financial aid related to need, the provi-
sion in question ignores the wealthy and emerges as patently puni-
tive to needy students who fail to register.

It is not good Federal policy to require educational institutions tobe enforcers of Federal laws or distributors of Federal penalties.
As it searches for a way to enforce its law with respect to afflu-

ent youth who refuse to register, as well as with thoserich or
poorwho refuse to register with Selective Service and are also un-
interested in registering for higher education, the Federal Govern-
ment should, I think, look for an enforcement mechanism that re-spects the integrity and special character of our colleges and uni-versities.

The Department of Education's regulation will certainly add to
the personnel costs and time required to administer student aid on
campuses. That has been documented by one very high quality and
relatively small institution. Just multiply that across the country,and you can begin to get a sense of the additional burden that
higher education will feel.

The regulation will also have a disproportionately adverse effect
on independent colleges and universities where tuitions are, as we
all know, higher and where delay in coming to a firm financial aid
figure discourages applicants and drives them into the lower
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pricedalthough I would say not necessarily lower cost, but the
lower pricedState-supported institutions. Mr. Chairman, every
week's delay in processing financial aid packages means a loss,of
applicants from the independent sector. Every dollar spent to meet
the costs of increased paperwork and regulations means greater
difficulty for financially strapped institutions in dealing with the
troubled economy of higher education.

Mr. Chairman, it is my understanding that the Department of
Education's regulation in this matter would require all students to
file a form indicating whether or not they are subject to registrg-
tion with selective service.

If I could just cite the paragraph in the Federal Register. It is
668.25, on page 3924 of the Federal Register, volume 48, No. 19,
Thursday, January 27, 1983, the proposed rules. Here the Secretary
is suggesting a checkoff where someone might indicate "I am not
obliged because I am female," or "I am out of the age cohort," et
cetera.

The point I am trying to make is it is simply going to multiply
the paperwork, handling paper that is submitted by students who

-are not affected by this regulation. It is just adding to the problem
for the colleges. It multiplies quite unnecessarily, I think, the
burden of paperwork for colleges and universities. I would urge
that those who are not required to register, by that, of course, I
mean all females and those males whose age removes them from
the subject group, be excluded from the regulation. If any forms
must be filed, let the requirement fall only on the appropriate male
age group.

Can the colleges be helpful to the Federal effort while refraining
from an ,enfacement role and avoiding increased costs and undue
delays -processing requests for financial aid? Perhaps they can.
Not as helpful, I suspect, as the Department of Education would
want them to be, but helpful in some measure.

As a result of the Buckley amendment, applicattn forms for ad-
mission to institutions of higher education carry a checkoff space
where students can affirmthat is to say, assertor waive their,
right to see a recommendation or evaluation filed by another
person in their regard. I would suggest that a similar opportunity
be provided on financial aid application forms. The applicant could
place a checkmark next to the followiqg statement: "I am aware of
my obligations under the Selective Service laws of the United
States." Then male applicants who are unaware of their obligations
could then and there be given information pre,pared by the Federal
Government, not by the college. It would be inappropriate, in my
judgement, for the college or university to be required in the con-
text of financial aid applications to do anything more than raise
the issue and offer the information.

Thdnk you, Mr. Chairman.
. SIMON. Thank you.
e prepared statement of William J. Byron, S.J., follows:]

'REPARED STATEMENT OF REV. WILLIAM J. BYRON, S.J., PRESIDENT, THE CATHOLIC
UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee, I thank you for the opportuni-
ty to present my views concerning the Department of Education's regulation to im-.
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plement provisions in the Department ofDefense Authorization Act of 1983 (P.L 97-25`2) mandating that no student who is required, to register with Selective Serviceand fails to do may receive Federal student assistance under Title IV of the HigherEducation Act of 1965, as amended.
By way of preamble, let me say that (1) I have no objection to registration for,Selective Service, and (2) I believe that all just laws should be obeyed by all citizens.I respect, however, the right of conscientious objection to military service as well ashe tradition of civil disobedience on the part of those who act in good conscience

with the willingness to face the legal consequences of their actions. I do not believethe requirement to register with Selective Service violates any of these rights.I do not, however, think it appropriate to assign responsibility for enforcement ofthis law to financial aid officers in colleges and universities. They are officers of theeducational inAtitution, not of. the Federal Government. They often function as ad-visers and counselors to student applicants, thus rendering an enforcement role allthe more odious and inappropriate. Further, by fixing the point of enforcement in-the area of financial aid related to need, the provision in question ignores thewealthy and emerges as patently punitive of needy students who fails to register.It is not good Federal policy to require educational institutions to be enforcers ofFederal laws or distributors of Federal penalties.
As it searches for a way to enforce its law with respect to affluent youth whorefuse to register, as well as with thoserich or poorwho refuse to register withSelective Service and are also uninterested in registering for higher education, theFederal Government should, I think, look for an enforcement mechanism that re-spects the integrity and special character of our colleges and universities.The Department of Education's regulation will certainly add to the personnelcosts and time required to administer student aid on campuses. This will have a dis-proportionately adverse effect on independent colleges and universities where tu-itions are higher and where delay in coming to a firm financial-aid figure discour-ages applicants and drives them into the lower-priced, state-suppported institutions.Mr. Chairman, every week's delay in processing financial-aid packages means a lossof applicants from the independent sector. Every dollar spent to meet the costs ofincreased paperwork and regulations means greater difficulty for financially-strapped institutions in dealing with the troubled economy. of higher education.Mr. Chairman, it is my understanding that the Department of Education's regula-tion in this matter would require all students to file a form indicating whether ornot thay are subject to registration with Selective Service. This multiplies quite un-necessarily the burden of paperwork for the colleges and universities. I would urgethat those who are not required to register (i.e., all females and those males whoseage removes them from the subject group) he excluded from the regulation If Anyforms must be filed, let the requirement fdll only on the appropriate male agegroup.

Can the colleges be helpful to the Federal effort while refraining from an enforce-ment role and avoiding increased costs and undue delays in processing requests forfinancial aid? Perhaps. As a result of the Buckley Amendment, application formsfor admission to institutions of higher education carry a check-off space where stu-dents can affirm or waive their right to see a recommendation or evaluation filed 'oyanother person in their regard. I would suggest that a similar opportunity be pro-vided on iwancia1 aid application forms. The applicant could place a check marknext to the'folleving statement: "I am aware of my obligations under the SelectiveService laws of the United States." Male applicants who are unaware of their obli-gations could there and then be given information prepared by the Federal Govern-ment. It would be inappropriate, in my judip-nent, for the college or university to berequired, in the context of financial aid applications, to do anything more than raisethe issue and offer the information.

Mr. SIMON. Our final witness of this panel is George Johnson,
president of George Mason University:

STATEMENT OF GEORGE JOHNSON, PRESIDENT, GEORGE MASON
UNIVERSITY, ON BEHALF OF AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCA-
TION

Mr. JOHNSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the
subcommittee.

My name is George Johnson, and I am president of GeorgeMason University. I am appearing today on behalf of the American
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Council on Education, an organization representing over 1,500 col-
leges.and universities and associations in higher education, and as
chairman of its ad hoc committee on draft registration, which con-
sists of college and university presidents, counsels, ,admissions offi-
cers, and student financial aid officers.

The committee was established to aid the higher education com-
munity in respOnding to the proposed regulations issued pursuant
to the recently enacted amendment to the Military Selective Serv-
ice Act which provides that any student who must register with
the Selective Service System and fails to do so is ineligible for stu-
dent financial assistance provided under title IV.

The higher education community opposed this amendment on
the grounds that it is inappropriate for student aid to be linked to
draft registration, in that it will unduly entangle schools in the ad-
ministration, policing and enforcement of draft registration, and
Federal criminal laws.

The constitutionality of this provision is currently being tested in
the courts and is beyond the focus of this testimony. We would like
today, however, to 'concentrate our comments solely on our con-
cerns with the proposed regulations issued by the Department of
Education on January 27.

We have several major concerns with these proposed rules. We
believe that they exceed the statutory authority of the Department
of Education, that they have inherent technical difficulties, will
impose on institutions an excessive amount of paperwork, and that
an attempt to implement by July 1, 1983, will create an inordinate
delay and confusion for student recipients.

The statute_requires that a student who must register with selec-
tive service, in order to receive any title IV aid, shall file with the
institution which he intends to attend or is in attendance, a state-
ment of compliance. The plain meaning of this provision would
seem that the law is satisfied and eligibility for Federal assistance
is established when persons required to register for selective serv-
ice submit a statement of compliance to their school. Moreover, the
law contemplates that the disbursement of title IV funds may
occur when this simple requirement is satisfied.

There is an additional "verification" provision of the new Iaw
that requires the Secretary of Education, in agreement with the Di-
rector of Selective Service, to prescribe methods for verifying state-
ments of compliance filed with schools. This provision further
states that such methods of verification may include requiring in-
stitutions of higher education to provide a list to the Secretary of
Education or to the Director of Selectiip Service of those persons
who have submitted such statements of compliance. The legislative
history makes clear that Congress intended this to be the maxi-

- mum verification burden to be imposed on educational institutions,
and that selective service and the Department of Education were to
shoulder any additional burdens.

Most critically, the proposed regulations go far beyond that law
by requiring schools to verifyr, before any financial aid is disbursed,
that students have actually complied with their registration re-
sponsibilities. In imposing the preaward verification obligation, the
Department of Education has acquiesced in a selective service in-
terpretation. But this interpretation rests on a supposed congres-
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sional intent which is evident neither from the statute itself nor
from its legislative history.

To prohibit the awarding of student aid in ayivance of verifica-
tion, without considering other means of vetification, includ- g
methods that the Congress clearly contemplated, flies in the fa of
congressimial intent. Moreover, the proposed procedure whic re-
quires a student to furpish a copy of. his selective service registra-
tion letter places the verification burden on the school, also con-
trary to the clear intent of the Congress. We fear that there will be
massive and widespread disbursement delays during the 1983-84
school year.

During this phasein period, schools will be required to verify the
registration of all aid applicants, not just the entering class. Many
schools simplx lack the resources to cope with this new and bur-
densome set of procedures. The entire system depends on selective
service's ability to provide evidence of registration for hundreds of
thousands of students promptly enough so there will be no dis-
bursement delays. Selective service says it can provide such ac-
knowledgement letters within 14 days of receiving a request. It
never described how it will do so and its system is untested. It is no
wonder that financial aid administrators throughout the country
fear chaos if these verification procedures are adopted.

It is the position of the American Council on Education and its
ad hoc committee that the certification provision alone satisfies the
statutory intent and that verification can be conducted by the De-
partment of Education and/or selective service through a review of
the statements of compliance furnished by the students to their
schools. . .

In administering title IV programs, schools have traditionally
relied on written representations and certifications of aid without
having to. verify those representations. Indeed, it is a criminal of-
fense to make factual misrepresentations in applying for Federal
financial aid of any sort. We believe that it would be a violation of
congressional intent, as well as poor public policy, to impose a
sweeping school-administered verification program to identify a
small segment who have violated both the draft registration re-
quirement and the criminal laws forbidding false statements.

The proposed regulations also present several technical difficult
ties. To facilitate the flow of student aid, institutions would be
given the option to accept affidavits as temporary verification
where the student does not have the appropriate selective service
documentation confirming his registration. Whenever this process
is utilizedone, the affidavits must be notarized; two, payments or
loan certifications may be extended for only one payment period;
and, three, if the student fails to provide proper documentatiop
within 120 days, the school must notify tie student, suspend all
aid, attempt to recover aid already advanced, and report the facts
to the Secretary of Education and any lenders involved. This proce-
dure puts the school in the position of having to make tentative de-
terminations of guilt, to implement aid cutoffs, and to report to the
Department' of Education individuals who have not registered for
the draft. All of this places institutions in the role of policemen,
something not contemplated by Congress.

21-873 0 - 84 7



MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART
NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARD

STANDARD REFERENCE MATERIAL 1610a
(ANSI and ISO TEST CHART No 2)



92

The transition procedures for advancing or committing title W.
funds and loan authorities prior to duly 1, 1983, as well as the daily
'operation of the verification procedure itself, would cause unneces-
sary paperwork burdens to colleges and universities. This is con-
trary to the clear intent of the Nouse/Senate conferees on the leg-
islation, who stated in their report that they. `1 * * strongly urge
that such regulations and procedures necessary to implement this
provision minimize the administrative burden on colleges anti uni-
versities and the delays in processing aid applications and awards."

Other people have already elaborated on the paperwork burden,
and the American Council on Education will provide complete doc-
umentation in our response to the proposed regulation's and will
furnish a copy of that response to your subcommittee for inclusion
in e record.

I the Department of Education fails to abide by the plain mean-
ing f the statutory language and congressional intent, and refuses

4 to mo - the ,verification procedures so that institutions are re-
lieved of the unnecessary burdens associated with these proposed
rules, we are also concerned that protracted litigation will ensue.

Institutions will very shortly start notifying students of their aid
packages for the 1983-84 academic year. We request that the effec-
tive date of the legislation be amended to a date at least 6 months
ft;om the date of final promulgation of the regulations so as to
enable colleges and universities to prepare adequately for ifs imple-
mentation. Additional tithe will be necessary in order to avoid mas-
sive confusion in the delivery of financial aid -0 all needy students.

We very uch appreciate the opportunity to appear before you
today. We reiterate our willingness to work with the members of
the subcommittee to make implementation of this law reasonable
and workable.

Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. Thank you very mych.
[The prepared statement of Gtorge W. Johnson follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. GEORGE W. JOHNSON, PRESIDENT, GEORGE MASON
UNIVERVT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subc mittee: or,

My name iloGeorge W. Johnson, and I am president of George Mason Univergity.
I am appearing today on behalf of the American Council on Education, an organiza-
tion representing over 1,500 colleges and universitie§ and associations in higher edu-
cation, and gis Chairman of its Ad Hoc Committee on Draft Registration, which con-
sists of college and university presidents, counsels,, admissions officers, and student
financial aid officers.

The committee was established to aid the higher education community in re-
sponding to proposed:regulations issued pursuant to the recently enacted amend-
ment to the Military Selective Service Act included in the Department of Defense
Authorization Act of 1983. The amendment provides that any student who must reg-

p with the Selective Service System and fails to do So is ineligible for student
financial assistance provided under Title IV of the Higher Education Aet of 1965.

The higher education community opposed this amendment on the grounds that it
is inappropriate for student aid to be linked to draft registration. This amendment
causes. schools to be unduly entangled in the administration, policing, and enforce-
ment oS4lraft registration and federal criminal laws.

The constitutionality of this provision is currently being tested in the courts and
is beyond the focus of this hearing. We ;.vould like today, however, to concentrate
our comments solely on our concerns with the proposed regulations issued by the
Department of Education on January 27, 1983, to implement this amendment to the
Military Selective Service Act.
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We have several major concerns with these proposed rules. We believe that they
exceed the statutory authority of the Department of Education. They have inherent
technical difficulties and will impose on institutions an excessive amount of paper-
work. In addition, the 30-day comment period does not accord the higher education
community sufficient time to appraise fully the impact of the proposed regulations.

is We also believe a July 1, 1983, iinplementation date will create delays and confusidn
for student aid recipients.

The statute requires that a student why must register with Selective Service, i-n
Order to receive any Title IV aid, shall file with the institution which he intend's to
attend, pr is attending, a statement orcompliance. The plain meaning of this provi-
sion is that new eligibility and filing requirements extend on to persons required
to register with Selective Service, and the law is satisfied eligi ility for federal
assistance is established when such, persons submit a s enien if compliance to
their school. Moreover, the law contemplates that disb of Title IV funds
may occur when this simple requirement is satisfied.

There is an additional "verification" provision of the new law that requires the
Secretary of Education, in agreement with the Dirwtor of Selective Service, to pre-
scribe methods for verifying statements of compliant filed with schools. This provi-
sion further states that such methods of verification may include requiring institu-
tions of higher education to provide a list to the Secretary of Education or to the
Director of Selective Service of persons who have submitted such statements of coin-
pliance. The legislative history makes clear that Congress intended this to be the
maximum verification burden to be imposed on educational institutions and that Se-
lective Service and the Department of Education were to shoulder any additional
burdens.

Most critically, the proposed regulations go far beyond the law by requiring
schools to verify, before any financial aid is disbursed or loan eligibility is certified,
that students have actually complied with their registration responsibilities. In im-
posing the pre-award verification obligation, the Department of Education had ac-
quiesced in a Selective Service interpretation of the new law which requires such a
program of pre-disbursement verification. But this interpretation rests on a sup-
posed congressional intent which is evident neither from the statute itself nor from
its legislative history.

To prohibit the awarding of student aid in advance of verification, without consid-
ering other means of verification, including methods that the Congress clearly con-
templated, files in the face of congressional intent. The proposed verification proce-
dure, which requkes a student to furnish a copy of his Selective Servicejegistration
letter, places the verification burden on the school, contrary to the clear intent of
the Congress. We fear there willlbe massive and widespread disbursement delays
during the 1983-84 school year for three reasons.

First, schools will be required to "verify" the registration of all aid applicants, not
just the entering elms, during this phase-in period. Second, many schools simply
lack the resources to cope with this new and burdensome set of procedures. Third,
the entire system depends on Selective Service's ability to provide evidence of regis-
tration for hundreds of thou$ands of students promptly enough so there will be no
disbursement delays. Selective Service sa s it can provide such acknowledgment let-
ters within 14 days of receiving a request. It has never descried how it will do so,
and its system is untested. It is no wonder that financ aid administrators
thtoughout the country fear chaos if these verification proce res are adopted.

It is the position of the American Council on Education nd its Ad Hoc Commit-
/ tee that the certification provision alone satisfies the statut ry intent, and that ver-
ification can be conducted by the Department of Education d/or Selective Service
through a review of the statements of compliance furnishe by students to their
schools.

In administering Title IV programs, schools have traditionally relied on written
representations and certifications of aid applicants without having to "verify" those
representations. Indped, it is a criminal offense to make factual misrepresentations
in connection with applying for federal financial aid of any sort (18 U.S.C. § 1001).
We believe that it would be a violation of congressional intent, as well as poor
public policy, to impose a sweeping, school-administered verification program to
identify a small segment of students who have violated both the draft registration
registration re uirement and also criminal laws forbidding false statements.

The pro regulations also present several technical difficulties: To facilitate
the flow of student aid, institutions would be given the option to accept affidavits as
temporary verification where the gtudent does not have the appropriate Selective
Service documentation 'confirming his registration. Whenever this process is uti-
lized: (1) the affidavits must be notarized; (2) payments or loan certifications may be
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extended for only one payment period; and, (3) if the student fails to provide proper
documentation within 120 days, the school must notify the student, suspend all aid,
attempt to recover aid already advanced, arid report the facts to the Secretary of
Education and any lenders involved. This procedure puts the school in the position
of having to make tentative determinations of guilt, to implement aid cut-offs, and
to report to the Department of Education individuals Who have not registered for
the &aft. all of this places institutions in the role of ptilicemen, something not con-
templated by the Congress.

There are numerous instances throughout the pikmosed regulations in which the
transition procedures, -where Title IV funds and loan authorities are advanced or
committed prior to July 1, 1983,.and various proposals for the daily operation of the
verification procedure itself, would cause unnecessary paperwork burdens to col-
leges and universities. This is contrary to the intent of the house /Senate conferees
on the legislation, who stated in their report that they:

". . Strongly urge that such regulationsand procedures necessary Co implement
this provision minimize4he administrative burden on colleges and universities and
the delays in processing aid applicatiohs and awards." (Congressional -Record,
August 16, 102, page II6001.)

Other individuals will elaborate on the paperwork burden, and the American
Council on Education will provide complete documentation of our concerns with ad-
aitional paperwork requirements in our response to the proposed regulations. We
will furnish a copy of our response to your Subcommittee for inclusion in the record
of this hearing.

If the Department of Education fails to abide by the plain meaning of the statu-
tory language and congressional intent, and refuses to modify the verification pi-oce-
dures so that institulions are relieved of the unnecessary burdens associated with
these proposed rules, we are co'hcerned that protracted litigation will ensue.

Wp request that the effective date of the legislation be amended to a date at least
six months from the date of final promulgation of the regulations, so as to enable
colleges and universities to prepare -adequately for its implementation. Many
schools will have great difficulty in complying with the-time fame for implementa-
tion of the new regulations. Additional time will 1c) necessary in order to avoid mas-
sive confusion in the delivery of financial aid to all needy students.

Institutions will very shortly start notifying students of their aid packages for the
1983-84 academic year and will also begin certifying loan applications. It will create
a large burden to have to re-check all these students' files and request certifications
and verification. Any student who starts the process of obtaining a loan may face
unreasonable delay.

I should also report the concern of several institutions that a student be permitted
to indicate, at the time of registration wit}) Selective Service, that he intends to
claim conscientious objector status at such time as a draft is -instituted. This would
enable the government to accomplish its goal of full registration, while enabling
young men to indicate their intent to seek conscientious objector status. In addition,
there are concerns that the proposed regulations would allow aid denials or cut-offs
before a hearing, even where students have certified their registr-ation and the Se-
lective Service is to blame for delays in "verifying" registration.

We appreciate the'opportunity to appear before you today and stand ready to
answer any questions you may have concerning our statements. We reiterate our
willingness to work with the members of the Subcommittee to make implementa-
tion of this law reasonable and workable.

Mr. SIMON. I thank all three of you for your testimony.
Father Byron, I don't happen to like the law, but we have to live

- with the law. I am not sure what you are suggesting complies with
the law. I am interested in how you defend this as complying with
the law.

Father BYRON. If you understand that the enforcement role for
the colleges is part of the law, then what I am suggesting would
not comply with the law. But I think there is a question.

Mr, SIMON. No, I am not suggesting that. Would you read the af-
fidavits that you are suggesting?

Father BYRON. It was a modification of what a student, the appli-
cant for financial aid, would be expected to Rio. The qUotation is
this on checkoff on a financial aid form; "I am aware of my obliga-
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tions under the laws of the United States." The issue would be
raised for the strident. If the student is plainly unaware of the re-
sponSibilities, a provision would be made-to give the student at that
time a explanation prepared by the Depa?tmett of Education or
the gelestive Service Department explaining what those obligations
were. To check that box, which any .student could do after receiv-
ing the pamphlet, would not lead a student into a perjury situation

,and it would keep thr institution free of an enforcement role.
Mr. SIMON': As I understand you, President Fraser, you are sug-

gesting a little mdre than that. P sident- Byron is not requiring
the student to say "I have registe ed." That is what the law, as I
understand it, requires. What yo are suggesting is the burden of
enforcement still be with the Federal Government, but that the
student has to say affirmatively, "I have registered." Is that cor-
rect?

Mr. FRASER. My reading of the law is that a stu nt who must
register if he is to gvt aid under title IV has to indic to that in fact
he has complied.,As I read it, even with the objections I tave to the
law, it seems to me that that student would have to at least check
off a box that says, "I have registered."

In my suggestion, I made the additional suggestion that some-
body who is .not required to register check off a box saying "I m
not required to register." Otherwise, it is hard for our finahcial id
people to know that everybody who is supposed to have check d
the box has in fact. It is just hard for us"to track.

That, in fact, is not required, as I read the law. I added that only
to allow our people to make sure that people have filled out the
box. 'I would be happy to drop that if .the Department of Education
is willing. . . . ,

M. SIMON. I think what we are dealing with now is Where can
we go that will satisfy the Department of Education and Selective
Service. Is that your suggestion?

I would be interested in heating from President Johnson. .
Mr. JOHNSON. The ad hoc committee of the American Council ac-

cepts the compliance form that the Secretary of EducatiOn has pro:
mulgated in the draft regulations. We accept the position that Dr.
Fraser has enunciated as compliance with the law. We do not want
to go further than that in accepting obligations for verification. We
feel that simply forwarding that statement of compliance or a list
of those students who have submitted such a statfment.to She Sec- ,.
retary sufficesvunder ,the law. A -

Mr. SIMON. President Byron, as I understand you, you are. not
suggesting that any list be fowarded or anything like that?

Father BYRON. No, quite the opposite. I would-concede that.lhe
Department of Education is not likely to tale my suggestion with
enthusiasm. I thirxk it is question of whether it is good law that we
have here.

Mr. SIMON. Th
Number pile, is it

_Father-BYRoN.
Mr. SIMON. It

subcommittee is really facedCith two questions.
good lavC,? 4

think not. 4 .
probably the opinion of the majority of this sub- .

committee that it is not good law. But it is also probably the opin-
ion of the majority of the subcommittee that We are going to have
to live with the law,iandwe have to make the best of it..
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Mr. Petri.
Mr. PETRI. I have e or two questions. First, I can't help observ-

ing that if this were Conlmerce Committee hearing and you three
were businessmen to king about the burden of environmental rules
and regulations-1--you talk about the administrative burden and
cost benefit and difficulty'and chaosit would be about the same.

So, we are sympathetic, but I wonder if you aren't overblowing
the amount of time and work and everything that would be re-

. quired. I mean, if you talk to 400 students for 15 minutes, you can
look at it as adding up each 15 minutes and say it is going to take
hours, but, on the other'hand, only 15 minutes has elapsed.

Mr. FRASER. This is all. on person hours of actual time spent. I
have spent a great deal of time with our financial aid officer trying
to be brutally honest in our estimations of what the time wbuld be.
There are a couple of numbers where I tilifik we have underesti-
mated the time on a couple of items. But our financial aid officer
`thinks that they are accurate estimates. -

That 15 minutes is 15 minutes with a student, between a finan-
cial aid officer and a student. That is going to be repeated again.
and again and again, because each one is going to have a different
set of questions. ,

We have in the 24 hours of time for explaining compliance ruleS
to students and parents group sessions in which a 1-hour session is
counted as 'a single hour. Butwe expect to have to spend d great
deal of time on one-on-onediscussions about these issues!

Father BYRON. On the.ecOmmerce parallel, we of course, are non-
profit institutions and we can't take business expenses for the addi-
tional costs.

Mr. PETRI. A lot of businesses, unfortunately, these days can't
either because they have no profits against which to deduct.

Father BYRON. From an administration that is trying to take the
burden off their backs, too.

Mr. PETRI. OK. Still, I guess I don't-understand some of the fig-
ures.very well.

You are collecting affidavits from 676 students and you are ex-
plaining it tg, 402 students, so you are, evidently' goiv to collect it
from 274 students that you are not explaining it to? 1s it necessary
to explain it? Wouldn't you explain it to everyone or not explain, it
to everyone?

Mr. FRASER. No t necessarily, no. We don't expect ..every student
in thcollege who ha '4 to complete an affidavit to need an individu-
al discussion with our financial aid officer over those compliance'
rules. W,e hope that in the group sessions we will be able to give

-sufficient information to enable some'of oNr students to comply
without additional meetings. But we do expOct that a considerable

number of the remainder will have questions that will have to be
explained.

Mr. PETRI. Finally, I am not sure, but I understand that they
proposed a model statement of educational purpose and 'registra-i-
tion compliarle in the Federal Register, vol. 48, No. 19 January
27, 1983, which would be on the same piece of paper as to rest of
it. I don't understand how it could_ take all kinds of extra time to
mail all of these things in when you are !hailing it in anyway.
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Mr. F ASER. Under the present systetp, the Pell grants and 4,

campus- ased aid programs involve the college collecting such a
stateme of educational purpose. As I said in my testimony, that
will inv ve. no more time for thq, college to get an affidavit or a

'statement of compliance regarding the draft.
4But under the present talks, the Guaranteed Student Loan pro- ,,

.gram and PLUS loan prOgram affidavits are submitted to lenders,
not to the college. Yet, under the Department of Education draft
regulations, colleges are now gping to have to mail out aria retrieve
those affidavits, and that will add considerable burdens. 'lhiv

'Mr. PETRI. Thank you.
Mr. Simo4r. Mr. Paokard.

t._,J Mr. PACKARD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. '
The cmaetion has already been discussed regarding whether the .

law is goad or riot. Assuming, however, for the present discussion
that the law will remain, and each of you have covered some spe-
cific recommendatiOns on the implementation of the lawI just
need to review those and ask the question, are there other specific
areas, if you knew that you were to implement the law, and what
recommendatipris would you have? -

I understand' from review and from your chart that explaining to
the students and preparing your staff to -do s6 and notifying the.
Departmentand submitting a list of those who have filled out their
affidavits, would be costly. I believe the recommendation from Mr. .
Johnson was to delay the implementatidn to allow the schools to
gear up to it. I believe that was, as I summarized basically ybur
tbstimonies, the extent of the recommendation§ of implementation
as far as schools were concerned. <.

Are there other specific ways or areas where you feel that/imple-
4 mentation could be bettv. done? ,

Mr. FRASER. The one area that I think is of most importance be- , - --*

cause it involves the greatest amount of burden is the area of re-
quiring the verification of students' statements prior_ to4lisbursing
Federal aid. We don't do that, for example, in regat%,S students'
statements that they are citizens of the United States. We don't
hold up aid until we verify their statement theft they are a citizen
of the United States. I see no reason why *e should Jo it here. It is
not required in the law, but the Department of Education.draff
regulations hate that as a linchpin to their argument for putting
the- urdev, the administrative burden, on the colleges. .13

I tF ink that if we 'could re ve thatit is unnecessary since it is
not in the lawand allow u to accePt at face value students' state-
ments that they have regist red or are not required to register and
permit the Department ofTducation to carry out that verification
in conjunction with the Selective Service System, it would simplify
the procese tremendously.

Mr. PIW.KARD. If these minimum requirements of implementation"'
were us4, what would that. do to enforce registration differently
than what is already being done? Would it do any more? *

Mr. JOHNAN. I thing that in our proposal that the implementa-
tion be made as elegantly simple in conformity with the law as/iSos-
sible the burden, for enforcing registration falls clearly on seleotive'
service and not on the universities. So the answer to_your question
is how effective selective service can be. in matching the record of

2/
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those students who have filed compliance statements. and their own
, records. , .

Mr. PACKARD. The real question is would this provide any addi-
tional information, going through the minimum effort? Would this

2 provide any more information to the selective service than what
they already have?

Mr. JOHNSON. It will accommodate the law and provide a list of
those students who are accepting aid under title IV who have
signed a statement that they have registered for se1ctive service.
That is the igw. . .

Mr. PACKARD. OK. Do any of you three gentlemen know what
the total male population that falls within the registration age
group is now enrolling in colleges and universities in the country?

Father BYRON. I would take a guess, but il is only a guess. I
'would say it is probably about half.

Mr. PACKARD. I would guess it w6uld, be probably be-less than
that. .

Father BYRON. The participation rates of high school graduates
going on to college have been increasing recently, and that is some,.
times a function of the economy.

Mr. PACKARD. So, in fact, the present law that requires student
aid controls would reach less than 'half, in your judgment he
a tual number of people who may or may not register.

Father BYRON. Yes.
Mr. FRASER. And even a smaller proportWof -that, since not all
them getAipancial aid. ,
Mr. PACKARD. One of you--I don't recallpwhich onereferred to

the constitutionalitysf it and the fact that the courts are now ad-
dressing that. Is tl-,,a1 the question as to whether constitutionally
they are requiring something of the population of draft age and not
of others? . 1

Mr. FRASER. That is one of the issues, that by singling out Spoor
and middle-income students and singling out men, that it is unfair
and violates the constitutional protections agains due process.

,Mr. PACKARD. Have any or your three univer ties, made any ef-
forts to this point in/implementing the regula by setting up a

. structurrand beginning forms, and so forth?
Mr. FRASER. We have begun in that we hate analyzed the re-

quirements that will be placed on us, and that is a very important
first step. So we have begun in the analysis and training of staff on
the new rules, We have not started designing brochures yet..

Mr. PACKARD. Of course, as you have evaluated how it would
affect your school, that, of course, is the purpose of your concern.

Mr. JOHNSON. Yes. I think that experience is duplicated over and
over again by the financial aid officers who, through their own as: .sociation, I think, are taking a position on these regulations. .

Mr. PACKARD. Are there any existing procedures in your
schoolsor in any universities or colleges that you might be aware
ofto determine whether students have or have not registered for
the 'draft?

-4' Mr. JOHNSON. I am not aware of any.
,.(

/
Mr. PACKARD. There are no forms at the present time?
Mr. JOHNsoN. I am not aware of any.
Mr. PACKARD. This would be the first attempt in that effort?

A
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Mr. JOHNSON. es
Mr. PACKARD. Thank you very much.r. Mr. SIMON. We are pleased to have a new member of our sub-

committee here, Mr. Good ling.
Mr. GOODIING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have just a couple

comments.
First of all, personally., I don't. believe you shoiild register in

peacetime, and I don't believe there should be a draft in peacetime.
Now I realize that is totally opposite- to the little bit of the free
world that is loft where most every other country demands dot
only that you register, .but that you also serve. You automatically
know that at age so and so, yea are off to service for a time.

I had a colleague yesterday Alio was totally embarrassed at an
Intelligence Committee meeting because he made the statement,
"Switzerland doesn't have 'an army." Switzerland has the most so-t phisticated armed forces in the world and they also have conscrip-
tion. But my personal opinion is that it is sdmething in a free coun-jry that isn t needed.

Regardless,' of my personal opinion, this is the law. I agree W'iththe chairman that I don't see that it is going to be changed. Now
how do we make it workable and how do we take the collection
part off of your Back, or the enforcement part off of your back,where I don t believe it belongs.

Even though I think the president from an outstanding collegetalit from an outstanding State used the worst-case scenarioI
would do that, too, if I were making a pointI agree with him that
I think a notarized affidavit with perhaps 30-day period in which

,you had to get your letter in the file should suffice, and that youshould not be in the business of then trying to enforce the law. Youknow very well that you will be punished severely if in fact you'
circumvent the law by paying little attention to it. But I doril
think you should be in the business of enforcing it.

I would hope that our committee could come' up with some rec-ommendations along the line offirst of all, the 6-month delay, I
think, is very important, after the final (egulations are written be-
cause, for 2:3 years; I sat on your side of the table and I havealways gotten these directives of what I am supposed to do 6
months to a year after I was already suppoqed to have mplejnent-
ed them. So I believe the 6-month delay is important.

I think that the notarized affidavits with perhaps a 30-day periodWhere they bring the letters and put them in a filethen ',think
that is the end obyour responsibility. If they have broken the law,then I think it is the the law enfortement agencies' responsibilit,u
tb do sopmething about, that.,

Mr. FRASER. I would like to speak to that specific proposal. I
think that would give us all of the problems that I list on the left-hand side. If 9 Were to require a notarized affidavit and only con-sider that as a temporary one to be'followed by a letter from Selec-
tive Service, we would have to implement all those provisional
`crediting of accounts and all of the tracking system.

Mr, GOODLING. I am not talking in relation to whether you 'move
ahead. You would move ahead, of course, with your disl2ursement.

I think the only proposal I am suggesting and the only problem
you would have is some clerk who would naturally check off when
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erson brouAt in their letter, stick it in the file, and at the
end of the month, 'go through that fileshe wouldn't go through,

ti everybody's file; because she has already checked off 99 percenf of
1,he people who have already turned theirs in. She is only looking
at 1 percent of that file to see whether they have turned theirs in.
Then you report the fact that they didn't turn it in. Then it is
somebody else's responsibility to enforce it, not your responsibility.

I jion't see tha here would be much work introlved for that kind
of thing. It wdu d just be the matter of a clerk checking off that
they have turne it in.

First of all, I think A large percentage will have thret, letter,
unless it , is- totally different than it used to be. Of course, my
daughter always says that is ancient history when I talk about the
good old days. They are going to have that letter. As soon as they
realize that you are going to need that letter, mother and dad are
going to make darn sure that the letter is saved, and so on, and
that it is going to be available.

I don't think there Will be a problem as large aIwe may think in
relationship to who does have the letter. But if they have a 30-day
period to rkcover thatall they 'have to do is brin6 it to you and
you can stick it in the file. At the end of that mth, that grace
period, you indicate to the Department of EducatIS or the Justice
Department, whoever it is, Here are 10 names of students that
didn't turn in their, letters. What are you going to do about it?"
That is not what are you.going to do about it; it is what are they
Ding to do about it.

It4woulthsimplify the problem. Maybe I am oversimplifying it.
Usually/ in the Federal Government they say that is too practical
and you don't do thinggthat way.

Are there any comments?
Mr. FRASER. It could be made so much simpler, though, by

merely having the student say "I have registered,' or have the stu-
dent say "I don't have to register," and by having the college for-
ward a list of those names to the Department of Education. That
does not require our clerk to .continually checkoff names and to re4
ceive notarized 'statements and letters for the selective service. It
gets the problem completely off the. colleges and on the Depart-.mentof Education, which I thought Congress whited.

Mr. GOODLING. Yeti are talking about a notarized statement.
Mr. FRASER. No, I don't see any need for notarizing a statement,

as long as the student says "I have reestered."J
Mr. GOODLING., I would probably take issue with that. I think

there is no rason to have it,a all then. Then we might as 'wen
forget about it. It is not very painful to just check off a list. We get
those checkoffs all the time. We ale getting 10 percent ones now by
the bundles. I wod think that would be totally painless and just a
waste of time altogether, and I would do away with it completely.
That, of course, is what you would like to do. But if it is going to be
therejust to have someone sE7 "I registered" or "I don't have to
register " particularly to 'say 'I don't have to register,"whose
version is that? Is it mine? Is it my4teighbor's? Whose version is
that?

Mr. JOHNSON. Congressman, it is already a criminal offense to
file a false statement in application for financial aid. So to notarize

ale
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an affidavit really compounds the opportunities for perjiiry pros-
'ecution, it seems to me.

Seccmd, I am not clear whether your suggestion'
Mr. GOODLING. I would agree with what you are-saying, except

that, unless you really spell that out to the studentthe notarized
statement, in my estimation, would spell it out.

Mr. JOHNSON. I am not clea'r on whether your suggestion ad-
dresses what the American Council Committee regards as a central /
issues Namely, that the law, in our reading, sloes not require pre-
disbursement verification. Compliance on the part of the student,
the statement Of compliance, whether it'is notarized or what haves
you, is one thing. But all students have to be verified by the insti-
tution before the institution can disburse title IV ftinds, and that
where the bind occurs. -

Mr. GOODLING. In my comcnants, I-was saying that I think where
we as a committee should change that let-islation is to take any re-
sponsibi]ity that you have for verificatibn other than the letter, -4
and then from that point on, it is not your responsibility. From
that point on, it is not your responsibility. You have done what you
Were supposed to do. You were supposed td make sure that'they
have indicated through the letter that they have met their obliga-
tion or do not have to meet that obligation. But when you say they
do not have to meet it, tAhat is where I thitik something notarized
or something more than just a checking off is needed to meet that
obligation. I think you need a little something more at that partic-
ular point.

I think it is needed also to protect the student. If the student
feels that is tremendously painful to check that block, and you
don't have the time to sit down and counsel that young person as
to what happens if you falsely check that, I think you should have
a notarized statement. But I don't believe you should b put in a
position of verifying other than saying that you ha' e th t lettei- or
that you have that notarized statement that they hav met their
obligations, and that is it.

Mr. StMoN. If the Chair co just comment on the dialog that
has just _taken place, the State of Minas dropped the notary re-
quirement on a great ma,ily things,and found no change in compli-*,
ance with the law or thatsthere was any appreciable change in be-
havior.

I do thinkagel you are correct, President Johnsonthat_ the
law provides that,- i(you make that checkoff, you are §ubject to 5
years in prison and ,a: p0,000 fine under the present law, because
you are then willfully obtaining Federal funds through fraudulent
means.

-I do think some kind of a statement may beand maybe this is a
compromise bill- !-some kind of a statement saying indtrect check-
ing of the following form could subject you to prosecution, please
read this form carefully, before signing it, or something along thatline

Mr. GOODLING. My whole idda was for the protection of the stu-
dent. I think that if you make it so painless, they may not realize
what they coulok be getting themselves into.

Mr. SIMON. Right.

0!)
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Mr. GOODLING. That the only reason I suggested any kind of
notarizing. They would know that it is a really serious thing.

Mr. SIMON. I think we should have that kind of a wail- ing at the
top.

Since the three of you have been testifying, I have een reread-
ing the law. It seems clear to me that what two of th three of y'ou
are suggesting, with all due respect to Father Byro , is clearly in
line with the mandate of the law. I don't think what Father Byron
is suggesting would comply with the law. I think that to go in the
direction he is suggesting, we would have to change the law. But
clearly it would make it much easier for the colleges and universi-
ties of this Nation.

It does place an additional burden on the Fe(deral Government. I
assume the Department of Education simply would turn those lists
over to Selective Service. They would then have to make computer
comparisons or something like that. There would 'be that additional
burden. --

The question is do you place that burden on the Federal Govern-
ment or do you place it on the colleges, and universities? I gather
that the panel is fairly certain on w re that burden should be
placed.

Mr. Packard.
Mr. PACKARD. Mr. Chairman, with your permission, I Would like

to pursue a liffie different area that has not been discussed very
much here.

We have talked about the burden placed on the colleges and uni-
versities and some alternatives that would, make their burden
lighter. Mr. Goodling brought out something that I 'would like to
getan evaluation on as it relates to the student. We are seeing it
at least this morningthe general scenario the student'would have
to follow.

If we followed the proposal of 'simply explaining compliance and
notifying the Department of those complying, wlia would the stu-
dents do in reference to enforcement? If the law remains as it is
where they cannot receive student aid without complying, would
the schools when hold in abeyance those few students who have n
registered any aid for school attendance? Would they have to del
until they get clearance for student aid or whatever?

Mr. JOHNSON. If a student could not file a valid certificatioti th t
he bad registeyred for the draft as he is required unde'r the law,
then universities 'would, be precluded by the law from disbursing
any title IV student aid. That is the only and sole effect.

Mr. PACKARD. They would not be precluded from enrolling them
in school.

'Mr. JOHNSON. No.
Mr. PACKARD. But at their risk, at the school's risk and at the

student's risk.
Mr. JOHNSON. No. There would be no jeopardy as far as the urn-

vemity was concerned, because the university would not be violat-
ing the law, it would not be disbursing title IV funds to that stu-
dent.

Mr. PACKARD. To the student as his economic requirements
would determine.

Mr.A.SimoN. Mr. Goodling.

10?
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Now

Mr. GOODLING. Let's again take the worst case scenario and say .
that the. regulations, as proposed, are going to be the , final -thing.
You talked about verification and moving ahead with disbursement
without verification as you presently do. It seems to me that if you
get this worst case scenario, you, would want their regulation in re-
lationship to verification for disbursement, because they are
making you the responsible person to recover the funds if any
funds have to be recovered. So it would be a protection to you,
would it not?

Mr. FRASER. The regulations_Ad not put any fiscal requirement
on the colleges..They do not bike on the financial burden. They are
required to attempt to recover tle money, but they are not respon-
sible for that money if it has been given out according to the tem-
porary verification permitted under the regulations.

Mr. GOODLING. They are required to attempt to recover, it, but
. they are not required to recover it..

Mr. FRASER. That is right. They don't owe the Federal Govern-
ment the money.

.
Mr. GOODLING. How much good faith must you make in that

effort? All I am trying to point out is if-you are going to get caught
in the business of having to recover those funds, then I would think
that you would want to have the verification prior to disbursement,
if we can't succeed in changing that Jaw.

Mr. JOHNSON. In any case, a young man, for instance, becomes 18
in July or becomes 18 August 31 and school. begins September 1,
there has to be some 'proviso for the provisional disbursement of
funds. That opens the door to potential chaos: -

Mr. GOODLING. That is where my 30-day period comes in.
Father ByjtoN. A lot of the counseling is going to have to go back

into the high schools.
Mr. GOODLING. Thank you. 0 .
Mr. SIMON. We, thank you, panel, very, very much. We appreci-

ate your testimony.
Our next panel is Lola Finch, accompanied by .Dallas Martin;

John Brugel; and Philip Rever.
Lola Fi9ch,is the president and director of financial aid for

Washington Rate University, and she is here on behalf of the Na-
tional Associa 'on, and is accompanied by an old friend here,
Dallas Martin. We are pleased to have you here, Ms. Finch.

STATEMENT OF LOLA J. FINCH, PRESIANT AND DIRECTOR OF
FINANCIAL AID, WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY, ACCOMPA-
NIED BY A. DALLAS MARTIN, JR., EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NA-
TIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AID ADMINIS-
TRATORS

Ms. FINCH. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I am Lola

Finch, director of financial aid at Washington State University,
and I am also president of the National Association of Student Fi-
nancial Aid Administrators. As you indicated, Dr. Dallas Martin
accompanies me.
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We appreciate the opportunity to discuss the proposals advanced
by the Department of Education and the Selective Service to imple-
ment--

. Mr. SIMON. If I may interrupt for just a moment, if you want to
enter your statements for the record, they will be entered in the
record. It will save some time for the subcommittee if you wish to

.sumrinarize or cover .points that have not been made, or you may
reemphasize whatever points you wish to.

Ms. FINCH. Thank you, sir. I plan to do that.
I would like to indicate that our national association represents

over 21700 postsecondary institutions. We have just completed 3
days of meetings of our governing board which is the national
council.

The conference agreement accompanying this law insists that
the regulations and the provisions that are necessary to implement
the amendment minimize the administrative burden on colleges
and universities and the delays in processing aid applications and
awards. The January 27 proposed regulations fall short of this
intent.

As you well know, the amendment requires a two-step processa
statement of compliance, and secondly the verification procedures.
Although on the surface, these proedures seem to be simple, they
are in fact complex, time consuming and, as proposed, we think
they impose unnecessary administrative procedures, and those in
fact are costly. We have addfessed our concerns as they relate to
each provision, but today I am going to devote more time to the
second phase, verification.

I will comment very briefly on the statement of compliance. The
Department' has Koposed to amend the statement of educational
purpose to include the compliance requirement. We concur with
this decision since, at this time, it appears to be the most viable
option.

I do want tcrpoint out, however, that these proposed procedures
do impose additional burden on those who are not required to reg-
ister. We agree that we can't come up with a more equitable alter-
native at this late date.

I do have to comment additionally that the student who has
s" signed the certification is involved and the institution is definitely

involved in reviewing each statement of educational purpose with
this addition to determine whether that student is male and we
must follow up on the tracking. That is in addition to the counsel-
ing time that was set forth bythe president of Swarthmore.

On the verification of statements of registration compliance, par-
ticularly these do not seem to be sensitive to the converence agree-
ment. They, as I said, not only inconvenience those applicants who
certify that they are registered, they most certainly impose consid-
erably upon the institutions who are delegated the task of verifying
this certification

The Department contends that other verification alternatives are
simply too costly and too time consuming for the Department or
the selective/service to consider at this time. I would want to make
the strong dose that, unfortunately, institutions face these same lo-
gistical problems and budgetary constraints.
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The Departmenk and selective service have indicated that the
proposed rules"* * * in order to avoid excessive delays and im-
plement this new criterion in the most effective and efficient
manner * * *"that the burden of verifying compliance will rest
with the student. I think there is a flaw in this proposed approach,
in that in many cases the student is entirely at the mercy of the
selective service to provide him with the necessary documentation
in a timely manner that will not impact the delivery of the aid to
the student. There is some strong evidence to suggest that the
system maintained by the selective service to identify registrants
and to provide them with the required. documents is not as efficient
as it might be and may in fact cause major delays for students and
institutions.

The selective service has indicated it plans to add a statement to
the acknowledgement letter informing registrants that, in order to
receive Federal aid, GSL and PLUS, males must provide proof of
registration. We wonder what time frame they plan to incorporate
this statement in. The preamble also suggests that:

To minimize any delay in the award process, the selective service states that it
will provide a copy of his registration acknowledgement letter within two weeks of
the request of any registrant who does not have his original acknowledgement
letter.

I would 'question personally, and many of illy colleagues do, does
this mean 2 weeks after the request is received by the selective
service? We have all had indication of postal delays in addition to
the proposed 2-week turnaround. We feel that, given the mail time
constraint and the other possibilities, that this 2-week taknaround
could easily turn into a month.

You might be interested in a personal experience that I had with
my college student son. Knowing well of these proposed rules, I
asked him where his acknowledgement letter was. He had not
heard of it. This caused me a little anxiety. He and his father, as-
sured me he had registered on his 18th birthday. So, on January 4,
he did write and request the copy of the selective service registr&
tion letter. He has received a followup asking him to submit his
date of birth. We had done that in a confusing-way. We had indi-
cated he had turned 18 on a particular date in 1980. Exactly 1
month from the time he' made this request, he received a response
from the selective service telling 'him what his selective service
number was and stating that an official verification letter will be
mailed from their computer facility. Until you receive the letter,
you may use this as evidence.

It is not clear to me in the proposed regulation's that this would
in fact suffice as a verification. To date, he has not received that

'verification.
The proposed rules identify three ways in which a student may

verify registration compliance. One is by submitting a copy of the
registration acknowledgement letter. He must have retained this
letter and he must submit it to the institution. It may sound inci-
dental that the student may in fact have this copy butsvnot be able
to make a photocopy. I assure you it will add to the confusion and
the time consuming effotts of institutions who will try very hard to
accommodate students' request to copy this certification, but it will
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not be without expense to the institution in terms of this accommo-
dation.

If a registrant is transferring to the institution, he may provide a
copy of his financial aid transcript bearing his selective service
number. The financial aid transcripts that we presently use o not
distinguish the applicant's gender or birthdate. Of cours at this
time, they have no provision for collecting the selecti service
number.

The third alternative is by submitting other approved documen-
tation from the selective service.

The proposed rules further spectify that, until these required
documents are received, the institution may not disburse title IV
funds, the GLS, or the PLUS loan. But they provide two exceptions,
one of which is mandated in the proposed registration.

As proposed, the institution would have no alternative but to
make payment to the student who became 18 years of age after
March 31, and if he submits a notarized affidavit to the institution
to verify his registration, the institution must advance funds. The
institution would then have to collect and retain two statements
from the studenthis compliance statement and his notarized affi-
davitand then have to track the student for 120 days. If the stik
dent doesn't submit the required documentation, we then have to
collect payment back from the stuMnt and, if unsuccessful, turn
him to the Secretary.

This is truly unacceptable and unrealistic. The proposal obvious-
ly assumes that all students in this category attending a paiiticular
institution will have their statements notarized, will submit them
to the financial aid office, and that this process will occur on a
given day so that, thus, 12a days later, all of the students would be
notified who must repay funds if they have not provided the docu-
mentation. This simply is not the case, praticularly at proprietary
institutions where students enroll in programs of study on a daily,
weekly or monthly basis.

In fact, it isdnot typical of even traditional institutions because of
the variety of mechanisms we use in the management of student
aid, computerized and manual, and because of our efforts to enter-
thin late applicants, the possibility that registration continues over
a period of time, which it happens to in our institution.

All of these circumstances and others would compel institutions
to resort to individual tracking of students and, therefore, many in-
stitutions would be tracking students on a daily ba'sis. Even with
elaborate computer systems, it will be very costly tt institutions,
and I am concerned about t bg time frame of the proposed regula-
tions to redesign systems to ommodate this tracking.

These are the administrative reasons, and there arb some liabili-
ty concerns which I will discuss next. But I do believe that institu-
tions should be at least given the option of withholding payment
until the student produces the required documentation, even
though we appreciate the concern and the probable intent of the
proposed exception which is mandated.

A' similar arrangement exists, but it is at the option of the insti-
tution, for older student's who have misplaced their acknowledge-
ment letters and who are in the process Of requesting a new one.
Again, despite the good intentions of the proposed procedure, insti-

111
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tutions fear the financial liability, the extra burden of tracking,
and the possibility of having to report students who fail to provide
proof of registration.

Again, just to reemphasize, we have concern over the selective
service's ability to genei-ate acknowledgement letters on a timely
basis. I guess the fact that the Department has suggested an ar-
rangement whereby aid can be disbursed before proof of registra-
tion might tend to support this concern.

We have outlined some other concerns which are indicated in the
written testimony and which I will not go into now because, on
behelf of the national association, we, too want to propose some
suggested alternatives.

Our first suggestion would be to encourage the Members of Con-
gress to delay the implementation date of those legislative provi-
sions for 1 year. The 1-year recommendation is important and sig-
nificant to our delivery cycle of student aid, which I believe, sir,
you are very familiar with. We suggest this so that more time and
consideration can be given to developing a system that meets the
intent of Congress, but does so in a more cost-efficient manner.

I want to refer you to the attached chart which outlines the ad-
ministrative burden that the proposed rules would require and the
impact on institutions.

If it isn't possible to postpone the implementation date, we would
like to recommend a series of options that Could 'be considered as
alternatives to the proposed regulations.

First is the phase-in approach. This alternative involves requir-
ing institutions to provide all 'title IV applicants with the state-
ment of registration compliance during the 1983-84 academic year,
as proposed. Students who, for whatever reason, do not complete
the statement would be denied aid. We would recommend that this
be the only procedure required for 1983-84.

Then during the 1984-85 academic year and beyond, we would
recommend first that the statement of registration compliance be
included on all application forms for title IV aid. Any application
which does not include a completed statement would be prevented
from being entered into our application system by computer edit
checks or internal review procedures. That would remain the re-
sponsibility of the financial Aaid office.

To accomplish the verification intent of the law in 1984-85 and
r. beyond, we would recommend that a sample pool of institutions be

identified by the Department of Edudation on a year-by-year basis.
We recommend that a sample percentage of male student-aid recip-
ients who indicate on their Statements they have registered be
identified at these institutions. Once identified, a list of these stu-
dents would be sent by the institution to the Secretary of Educa-
tion. The verification and followup procedures would be strictly the
responsibility of the Department of Education or of the selective
service.

I might add that there are precedents for this kind of a random
audit or program review which all financial aid offices Etre familiar
with. A

While similar in sometuspects to our preferred alternative, we
would also like to acknowledge the position advanced. by the
Arrierican Council on Education. This position, as you know, in-

211873 0 84 8
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volves the institution in providing the certified statement to appli-
cants and collecting such statement as a condition of title IV eligi-
bility. The verificatioll requirement, however, is met by the institu-
tilcm submitting either a list or copies of the certified statement to
the Department of Education. The institution's responsibilities
would end at this point and it would become the Department of
Education's work with the selective service to monitor this ftom
then on.

There are some other points relative to suggested alternatives
which we believe the selective service should consider relative to
their current system oliregistration. If we were successful in advo-
cating our alternative, this would .not be necessary. But for fear
that we might not be, it would seem far more sensible that the two-

. part form at the point of origihation, at the post office. Where the
student begins the registration for selective service process and
that second form would be the identification and the certificate for
the institution to proceed with financial aid awarding. It would cer-
tainly facilitate the process.

Then the person who had already registered but had misplaced
the registration acknowlegement letter could just duplicate it; and
that could be so indicated. But, again, it would vastly facilitate the
Process as it applies to title IV aid.

Mr. SIMON. I don't mean to interrupt you, but could you summa-
rize your remarks?

Ms. FINCH. Yes.
Mr. SIMON. We have several more witnesses to hear from.
Ms. FINCH. I would just reemphasize that these proposed proce-

dures would be in addition to some already very demanding re-
quirements imposed on students, and particularly on institutions in
the application and the delivery of 'student-aid programs.

I again call attention to the tvtro charts which I think give a
rather objective analysis of the additional. procedures that are re-
quired by these regulations.

We thank you for the opportunity to testify.
Mr. SIMON. We thank you very much.'
The prepared statement of4ola J. Finch follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF LOLA J. FINCH, PRESIDENT AND DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL
All), WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY, ACCOMPANIED 111%.A. DALLAS MARTIN, JR.,
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

'Mr. Chairman, -Members of the Subcommittee, we apprec'iate the opportunity to
discuss the proposals advanced by the Department of Education and the Selective
Service to implement the September 8 amendment to the Military Selective Service
Act. The amendment, effective July 1, 1983, eliminates from Title IV student aid
eligibility any student who is required to register with Selective Service but fails to
do so.

While we appreciate the efforts of the Department of Education and the Selective
Service to propose reasonable procedures for the Implementation of this amend-
ment, we do not feel that this has been accomplished. The Conference Agreement
accompanying this law insists that the regulations and provisions neceksary to it/4-
plement this amendment minimize the administrative burden on colleages and uni-
versities and the delays in processing aid applications and awards. The January
proposed regulations fall far short of this intent.

The amendment requires a two step process. First, a student, who is otherwise
eligible to receive Title IV funds, must certify that he or she is not required to be
registered with Selective Service or that he is registered. Secondly, this certification
of compliance must be verified. Although on the surface these two steps would
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appear to be rather simple, they involve complex, tirneconsuming and, as proposed,
unnecessary administrative rocedures. In order to fully explain the complexities in-
volved, I would like to add our confirms as they relate to each of these provi-
sions.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Department and the Setrctive Service have proposed to amend the Statement
of Educational Purpose to include' the required compliance or certification state-
ment. We would concur ttith this decision since at this time it appears to he the
most viable option. The Federal Student Aid Application does not collect the gender
of the student aid applicant. It therefore becomes di .icult for the institution to
make such a distinction in terms of only requiring male applicants to sign the state-
ment of compliance. While the proposed procedure does impose unnecessary burden
on those who. are not required to register, we would agree that unfortunately, a
more equitable alternative is not available at this time. This procedure will, howev-
er, require more careful scrutiny and follow-up by institutions to-determine: (1) That
the student applicant has signed the certification; (2) Whether or not the applicant
was required to register is exempt from this requirement; and (3) If required to
register, that he has in fact provided proof of such action. There are' 41 number of
institutions with no ostudents required to be registered with Selective Service, such
as those with no male students..lt would therefore seem unnecessary to impose
these additional procedures on those students and institutions.

The actual statement proposed by the Department allows the student to certjfy
that he or she is not required to register for any one bf several reasons. One of the
reasons listed is that theudent,-is a permanent resident of the Trust Territory of
the Pacific Islands or thelTerthern Mariana Islands. However, our understanding is
that. these students are only. protected as long as they remain on the island, and
once they leave to attend school in the Continental United States, they must regis-
ter with Selective Service. If we are correct in this understanding, institutions
should be notified immediately ,to prevent them from disseminating improper infor-
maiton and to alert them.to the need for immediate administrative stows to avoid
problems later on.

VERIFICATION OF STATEMENTS OF REGISTRATION COMPLIANCE

Particularly, the verification procedures outlined in the Department's proposed
rules do not appear to be sensitive to the Conference Agreement; while they incon-
venience only those applicants who certify 'that they are registered, they impose
considerably upon the institutions who have been delegated the task of verifying
this certification.

We are sympathetic with the Department's contention that other verification al-
ternatives are simply too costly and/or timeconsuming for the Department and/or
Selective Service to consider at this time. Unfortunately, this attitude always seems
to prevail when the easy way out is to impose additional burdens on students and
institutions.

The Department and Selective Service have indicated in the proposed rules that
". jn order to avoid excessive delays and implement this new criterion in the
most effective and efficient manner . ." the burden of verifying compliance will
rest with the student. The flaw in the proposed approach is that in many cases the
student is entirely at the mercy of Selectiove Service to provide him with the neces-
sary documentation, in a timely manner. There is some evidence to suggest that the
system maintained by Selective Service to identify registrants and provide them
with the required documents is not efficient and will calve major delays for stu-
dents and institutions. The Preamble to the proposed rules states, "The Selective
Service plans to add a sta nt to the Acknowledgement Letter informing regis-
trants that, in order to rectielilIfFederal student aid, the letter must be presented as
proof of registration." Under what time frame do they plan to incorporate this
statement? What about all the men who have already registered? The Preamble
also states, "To minimize any delay in the award process, the Selective Service
suites that it will provide a copy of his Registration Acknowledgement Letter within
two weeks of request to any registrant who does not have his original Acknowledge-
ment Letter." Is this to be interpreted to mean two weeks rafter the request is re-
ceived by Selective Service? If so given mail time from the date the registrant mails
his request, the two seeks could easily turn into a month.

The proposed rules identify three ways in which a student may verify registration
compliance:
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1. By submitting a copy of his Registration Acknowledgement Letter (SSS Form
3A or 3A -S). If the registrant has retained this letter, he must submit a copy to the,
institution. It is unlikely, however, that the student would have ready access to a
photocopy machine. Therefore, he will have to either find his own method of copy- -
ing the fetter or he will more likely bring th'e letter to the institution and ask the
institution to make the copy. While at first this may seem to be a relatively inex-
pensive venture for each student or the institution, let me assure you, this process
could become costly, thneconstrming, and confusing.

2. If the' registrant is transfering to the institution, he may provide a copy of his
financial aid transcript bearing his Selective Service number. Financial aid tran-
scripts do not currently contain Selective Service numbers, nor do they distinguish
the applicant's gender or -birthdate.. Once again, institutions wouls1 have to revise
and reprint their transcript forms to afford the. applicant this option. In most cases,
this could be both.ostly and ti'mlconsuming.

3. By submitting other approved\doeumentation from the Sele'ctive Service. Since
the proposed rules do not identify bther approved documentation, how would the
registrant or the institutions make such at determination?

The proposed rules further specify that, until the required documentation is re-
ceived, the institution may not disburse Title IV funds, certify a Guaranteed Stu-
dent Loan or Parent Loan application, or certify the Pefl Grant Alternate Disburse-
ment Request for Payment. Two exceptions are allowed under the proposed rules;
one of these exceptions is mandated in the proposed regulations,

1. A student who becomes 18 years of age after March 31 preceding the award
year may submit a notarized affidavit to the institution thus tempOrarily verfiying"
his registration. Further, he must provide the required documentation to the insti-
tution within 120 days. As proposed, the institution would have op alternative but
to make payment to the student, certify his GSI, or PLUS application, and, if appli-
cable, certify his Pell Grant ADS Payment Request. The institution would then
have to collect and retain two statements from the studenthis compliance state-
ment and the notarized affidavitand track the student for 120 days from,the date
of the notarized statement. If the student does not submit the required documenta-
tion, the institution must then try to collect the payment from the student and, if
unsuccessful, turn him in to the Secretary. This is unacceptable. Thi§ proposal obvi-
ously assumes that all students in this category attending a particular institution
will have such statements notarized, submitted to the aid office, and will receive dis-
bursements on tI same date; then 120 days later those same students will be noti-
fied that they must repay th, funds if they have not provided the required docu-
mentation. This is simply pot the case at proprietary institutions where students
enroll in programs of study of a daily, weekly, or monthly basis. While this could
more likely occur at traditional institutions, many of these institutions, do not have
the sophisticated process that is being assumed. Many institutions hold registration
over several days and have manual disbursement procedures and accept late appli-
cations for aid. All of these circumstances and others would compel institutions to
resort to individual tracking of students. Therefore, many institutions would be
tracking students on a daily basis. Even with elaborate computer systems, what is
the price to the institution of a significant re-design of their system simply for this
purpose?

For these administrative reasons and for liability concerns we will discuss next,
institutions should at least be given the option of withholding payment until the
student produces the required documentation.

2. A similar arrangement exists, but at the option of the institution, for older stu-
dents who may have misplaced their acknowledgement letters and are in the proc-
ess of requesting a new copy. While we appreciate the inteptto allow the student
to receive aid despite the inadequacies of the Selective Service System to permit
more prompt acknowledgement of registrationobvious problems arise with this ap-
proach as well. As noted earlier institutions must design elaborate tracking prose
dures and must anticipate the difficult question of what they will do if the student,.
for whatever reason, does not submit proof of registration after aid hasen dis-
bursed. Despite the good intentions behind this procedure, the fear of financial lia-
bility, the extra burden of tracking procedures, and the possibility of having to
report students who fail to provide proof of registration may justify institutions
adopting a position of "no proof, no aid". Our concern over the Selective Service's
ability to generate acknowledgement letters on a timely basis cannot be overempha.
sized. The mere fact that the Department has suggested an arrangement whereby
aid can be disbursed before of registration tends to support this concern.
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Repeatedly, the assertion is made that the prevailing interest is in keeping the
procedures simple. While the Department and the Selective Service are to be com-
mended for proposing a system that they believe may-be the lesser of the available
evils, nonetheless, it is important to observe the administrative burdens that willbe
created, particularly in areas where they have not been anticipated by them. For
instance, intermit filing and tracking of certifictition statements and copies of the
acknowledgement letter from one year to the next within the financial-aid office
may require extensive redesign of sophisticated computer systems now in plate. In
fact, many systems currently do not require the capacity for tracking applicant de-
mographics from prior years since the aid application process is an annual one of
the student re-applies each year by submitting new forms. In the case ofi more man-
ually driven systems, an individual review, every year, of each applicant's past ma-
terinj may be necessary to ensure that the proper forms have been signed and that
the appropriate documentation has been collected.

While not addressed in the proposed rules, one must assume that s tudents apply-
ing for ale State Student Incentive Grant Program will be subject to thesessame
requirements. The problem that exists here is that in many cases institutions
cannot identify the SSIG portion of State Grant fv.nds. the we then to assume that
institutions would have to impose these requirements on all State G nt recipients,
regardless of their source of funds?

SI.MGESTED ALTERNATIVES

Our first suggestion is to encourage the members of Congress ,to delay the imple-
mentation date of these legidlative provisions for one year. We suggest this so that
more time and consideration can be given to developing a system that meets _the
intent ofVongress but that does so in the most co41 efficient manner. As we have
suggested earlier, and in the attached chart which outlines the administrative
burden the Broposed would require, the impact, on institutions is significant. Many
institutions will not be able to inform students.of these requirements nor will tiley
be able to develop internal procedures to handle in a reasonable way what has been
required. To avoid yet another year of chaos and turmoil in student aid, we ask for
postponement of the -implementation date by one year.

During this year, we also recommend that the Department of Education be
charged with the responsibility to study and report to the Congress findings on ways
in which to construct a cost efficient system that will meet the intent of Congress.

If it is not possible to post Pone the implementation date we would like to recom-
mend a series of options that could be considered as alternatives to the proposed
regulations.

1. The phase-in approach.
This alternative involves requiring institutions to provide all Title IV applicants

with the Statement of Registration Compliance during the 1983-84 academic
Students who, for whatever reason, do not complete the statement will be denied
aid. We recommend that this be the only procedure required for 1983-84.

During the 1984-85 academic year and beyond we recommend first that the State-
ment of Registration Compliance be included on all application forms for Title IV
student aid. Any application which does not include a completed statement would
be prevented from entering the application system by computer edit checks or inter-
nal review procedures.

To accomplish the verification intent of the law, in 1984-85 and beyond, we rec-
ommend Chat a sample pool of institutions be identified by the Department of Edu-
cation on a year by year basis. We recommend that a sample percentage of male
student aid recipients, who indicate on their statements that they have registered
with SelectiveService, be identified at these institutions. Once identified, a list of
these students would be sent by the institution to the Secretary of Education. The
verification and follow-up procedures would be strictly the responsibility of the De-
partment of Education or of the Selective Service.

We also note that the sample verification approach will be, by far, a more effi-
cient and cost-effective system for 11 parties involved. Further, precedent' for this
approach.can be found in the verifiition procedures employed by the Internal Rev-
enue Service.

2. The American Council of Education Proposal.
While similar in some respects to our preferred alternative, we would like to ac-

knov(Iedge the position advanced by the American Council on Education. This posi-
tion involves the institution providing the certified statement to applicants and col-
leCting such statements as a condition of Title IV eligibility The verification re-
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quirement is met by the institution submitting either a lisror cows of the certified
statement to the Department of Education. The institution's responsibilities end 07
this point and the Department of Education wotts with Selective Service to moult
registration.

In addition to the suggested alternatives, we would encourage the Selective Serv-
ice to evaluate their current system of registration. This system requires completion
of the registration form at the Post Office at which time the Postal Official verifies
the information submitted and stamps the form with a cancellation stamp. The
form is then mailed to the Selective Service and a Registration Acknowledgment
Letter is sent to the registrant.

We would suggest the use of a two part form, one copy of which would be sent to
the Selective Service, and the other copy would be stamped and giveln to the regis-
trant.as confirmation of his registration.

This same procedure could lie eaployed for persons who have already registered
but who have misplaced their Registration Acknowledgment Letter. Rather than re-
qikesting a duplicate Acknowledgment Letter the registrant could simply re-register
and indicate on the form that he was registering for ti second, time.

In any case the Selective Service could as a follow-up mail the registrant an Ac-
knowledgment Letter. in the event verification was required, the student could use
either the stamped registration form, or the Acknowledgment Letter. This approach
would afford greater flexibility for students who were chosen for verification but .
who had not yet received a Letter of Acknowledgment.

In closing, I must again emphasize 'that these proposed procedures would be in
addition to the already demanding requirements imposed on students and institu-
tions in the application and delivery of student assistance programs. In an effort to
provide an objective analysis of the additional procedures requirgd by these regula-
tions, we have attached two charts which outline the basic stept that students and
institutions must follow of these rules are adopted.

Thank you for the opportunity to transmit our concerns about this issue. We
would be happy to answer any questions you might have.
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Chart attachment $1
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ADDITIONAL ADMINISTRATIVE STEPS REQUIRED '
BY THE PROPOSED REGULATION GOVERNING SELECTIVE
SERVICE REGISTRATION AND TITLE IV ELIGIBILITY

4"-

Student applies for aid

Institution DIsseninalea
Registration (itsollance Corn

C.?t,f) that 1 a. notrequired to be registered.

H 1
he additional act inn required; the applicant can be reVii,/d In

a convent tonal pay

odd.

<I>
I Certify that I i4 registered.

II 8.

inr.ro student that draft rlyistratlo
verriedsserify registration.
(Ida options are passible-I

rust be .11.

Stvdirt can provide proof of registration wit the Acknowledgement
letter. Acti required:

Aisle., ;Liter t '+ Ify etudent'S IdentifitatIon.

It II 1 U. I

File letter In student'; folder feldaunt:Hatton purposes.

'aka admInIdtrative steps to ensure that In lub,equent year, the student's
application Is not held up to duct for draft registration status.

I 00\1 d

Record stlectlil serVice comber on Financial Aid transcript If reguelled by
!Amdahl for attendance at another institution.

r it C 1

Haintain the atknowledgement letter with easy access for subscquaut audits
aid /or' program reviews to avoid Institutinnal liabtlits.

htwdera ea0t provide proof of registration with an Aiknootedgennt

lint, void to the se-1 6F1 arielsons.)

the student leached IA after Harch 31 preceding the award ft4r. ',pi:wed for
the draft. but has rot yet received the Acinowledgervnt litter free. the

Selective SerVIte Agency.

116 lea

In Met manner. not speCifle4 by the regulatiens, the Institution Post be able
to verify the student's ape to ensure that it Is tab Inn tic peeper action

preScrtt-Vd by the regulations for this Sithation.

\hr [-II e 2 a b

Once the age io verified, the institution rust then .14.1 ,Ingie..r
being a notarired affwarlt. using sample language tnclodal In the PO. 1.41c11
in affect esplafili that under penalty of perjury the stoJewl pipes,e. Id P.,
been truthful in the application process and that he oust prove i.e ha. 1v40.4
registered for the draft within 120 days 01 the affidavit's date or else repay

any student old disbursed,



Chart attachment 12

II 8 2mc

rse title fV aid to the student.

II It god

the Institution oust also establish an Individual tracking procedure for each
student in this TTieintin, to track tht 120 day period in each Student's cast

(roo the date his affidavit iv signed, to ensure that prdof of registration Is
*flitted Ithe Acknouledgeoent letter) within 110 days.

Iwo options are possible.

p

PrOnf coons within 120 lays.

Foliow steps ip II II 1 above.

Proof does rSt cone utthirilplAays,

I -e,

11 2hdttla)

the sthoul must consider aid disbursed to be to overpayment and must:

III a 2mdlilbl I

hate a reasonabli effort to recover the oetrpayment. And. if successful.

Il 8 2netlICTI

Provide the Ser rrrrr y with the student's name, social secur i number. .

and other relevant Information.

f

;et

the student has registered for the draft. at one tine received an
Acknowledgement letter. but has since saltelaced It and thus needs

another copy from the SeleCtivo Service Agency

Action rtoufred.
itrO choices Art available:

II 82y a (II

Ike Institution ray choose to withhold any dIsbursemtnt Of student aid funds
until the student receives a copy of his Acknowltdpernt . the Advantw
of this option to the institution Is that it avoids icy liability in di*tursing
ald, avoids having to submit the student's name to the federal govesteent II
funds an released and proof OrregiatratiOn is At ShOuri and lilt Ins tttttfun
avoids the need to track the Studtnt through Mt 120 day pule.) which 10110.1

situ the notarized statement lactated.

the disadvantage of this approach Is that student will probably tr unable
to troll without the netded financial ashistanct until such tree as

Selective Service rtglt ttttt on can be proved.

11 11 2 y f(2)

At its option the institution can disburse aid to the student an the boils Of a
notarized rot similar to that owillmed In II 8 2 m. The institution must

then follow the disbursement and tracking procedures outlined in II 8 2 m d.

The student dyes not flit a stale

WA
regislOation coapliaoce

AllAtudeets must be inferred by 'th:TstitutIon that couplet ton ol the
latbent of regi ttttt fon Conpliance end wtrIfication of Seltellye

Service reghlrallon for those Obligated to register is a
Condition of eligibility for title IY aid.

Students who do not file a Statement of reg ttttt Ike corollate* art Oven a.'4
grace period. of 10 days or until the and of the payment period to produce

proof of registrition. IhIs represents yet another class of old
fool rants who post to separately monitored and tract.d.

these ary Uwe* types of sludoets in this cat*gury.
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the student who Is required to register but has not done so.

In tots ease, the student may register as he Is ebitgated (0 40. been he does

to, he can thts titn the certified statement and verify that he Is registered
within thirty days or before the end of the dement peeled. hhicheser It late,.

}brae o

In the case of the recent 18 yea e aid must be dtsbweted prier to

verification of draft regist att. tf the-studenriievides a notartted
statement as descelbed in II d 2 h. However. Instead of tracking the
Itodut 1..120.dhys, teat student must be traria folio days or

Mend of the payment period. whichever It later.

III C 1Y

In 414 case of Ibe elder student, the Institetfon may, at Its eettpm, digerati
Title IT aid prior to proof of registration based On a Waiiited affidavit, et

Oulltned In II I 2 e. Ho NN ee instead of tracking the Student fee 120 dart.

this studeet nust be tracked for TO days or the end of ant paynant
ported, whichever ft eater.

in the case of the older student the last eeeee on may. al Its Option. refuse to
disborte tulle IV aid until draft registration can be Pistil, arLing as it is
proved within 30 days or the end Of the payment period. whichever is later.

A registered student who falls to state and kerify that he is registered.

any stodent whe is In fact registered but has failed to sign a
certfficatton statement mutt do no and thin become efigibte (Sr

. Title IV ale at 14 outlined In IT.

the student who fails to file a certified statteent.

This student must be 10 tut ton that he Cf the is

Ineligible to receive federal student aid.

Students may request fn(ormation regarding avellple d'Alene.

I III C

The institution mutt preside Informellon regarding the procedures
for requesting a hearing before the Secretary of tducet ion.

If a Student falls to respond to the request for a certified ttatenent.
the In ttttt lion must,

Take a441,11 tttttIll Step to a fase by case basis, to present ditbutsenent of
!tetra I aid elln though al SC.. point In the future a Sep sue Le subuitt,d

to Of 1,00.11, or a fiSt application sent In for institutional approval.
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In addition, The Institut*. mutt take steps mutt be taken to tosurw that in
future years, no seth distiortenentsdire permitted until the StudrAt fan

produce a certified statesent.
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_Mr. SnvtoN. Mr. John Brugel, the directot of financial aid at
Pennsylvania State University.

STATEMENT OF JOHN BRUGEI DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL AID,
PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY

Mr. BRUGEL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My name isJohn Brugel, and I am the director of the Office of

Student Aid at PeAr*Tvania State University. I very much appre-
ciate the opportunity to appear before the committee and speak to
the linkage of title IV and Selective Service registration.

My comments will represent 'clearly the univergity's position and
also the positions of the governmental relations committee of the
Pennsylvania and Eastern Aid Associations.

The written testimony, that I have submittedwhich following
counsel's admonition, I will try to be very brief in summarizing
proposes to have an administratively manageable system. It basi-
cally has two recommendations. The first recommendation is one
that you heard repeatedly, and that is calling for a delayed imple-
mentation of the law. The rationale has alrelidy been presented of
why that makes sense. It deals with the extreme lack of .communi-
cation to students and to parents about this requirement and the
delays that will occur because students will have been misinformed
or uninformed. Very often they inform themselves inadequately
and inappropriately.

Further, by providing that delayed implementation, the amount
of information that institutions and Federal agencies can provide
to Selective Service registrants will be very, very helpful in a 'Goid-
ing difficult delays.

The second recommendation speaks to the process of verification
as required in the statute. Again, I am not plowing any-original
ground. This has already been addressed. The preaward or predis-
bursement verification that is called for in the NPRM clearly vio-
lates the dictates of common sense and is unreasole. It is not
required, and if we were to place a system of verificatIbn at the end
of this system, not up front, we will avoid the onerous burden that
is going to be placed on students; placed on the Selectiv Service
agency and placed on the institutions to deal with that sy em.

The logic of requiring verification after the fact I t k can be
reviewed by looking at what is the population we are tempting to
deal with. We are looking atI understand yesterday that Director I

Turnage commented that 98 percent of the required registrants '
have already done so and are in compliance with the lawswe are,
looking at a group of 2 percent.

Of that 2 percent, some of those aren't going to need aid, so they
are not going to do anything. For those who need aid, they have
two options. They can either drop out of school because their con-
science does not allow them to sign the statement, or they may
sign the statement and submit themselves to the prosecution that
would follow. The system that I am proposing in rimy testimony,
after the fact, would identify the very, very small percentage of
students who would choose to misrepresent their status and then
subject them to prosecution.
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It seems to me that the system that we would want to put in
place should not place at a disadvantage all of those who are in
compliance, the vast majority, just to identify the small devi-
ant population.

Mr. SIMON. Thank you,, very much for your testimony.
[The prepared statement of John F. Brugel follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOHN F. BRUGEL, DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF STUDENT AID, THE
PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY

I am pleased to have the opportunity to appear before the House Subcommittee
on Postsecondary Education to comment on the January 27 NPRM amending the
Title IV Student Assistance General erovisions.

I am the Director of the Pennsylvania State University Office of Student Aid. The
university currently enrolls approximately 55,000 students on twenty-two campuses.
Approximately 30,000 Penn State students receive financial assistance from one or
more of the Title IV Student Assistance Programs.

My testimony on behalf of the university has also been endorsed by the Govern-
'ment Relations Committees of the Pennsylvania and Eastern Associations of Stu-
dent Financial Aid Administrators. Both of these organizations will be forwarding
detailed comments to the Department of Education outlining a broad range of con-
cerns.

My comments and recommendations will be restricted to one area of critical con-
cern. If adopted, tge recommendations have the potential to provide for an orderly,
manageable linkage between Selective Service registration and Title IV Student As-
sistance eligibility. My specific recommendations are as follows:

1. Delay implementation of Public Law 97-252 until January 1, 1984.
2. Utilize a post-disbursement model for Selective Service verification.
To analyze the merit of these recommendations it is useful to recognize the three

basic provisions contained in the Department of Defense Authorization Act, 1983,
Public Law 97 -252:

1. A Statement of Selective Service Registration Compliance must be filed as a
condition-of eligibility for Title 1V Student Assistance.

2. A system to verify the compliance statements must be established.
3. An appeal system -triust be established for those deemed to be in non compliance

and therefore ineligible for Title IV aid.

STATEMENT OF SELECTIVE SERVICE REGISTRATION COMPLIANCE
,

The model Statement of Educational Purpose and Registration Compliance (34
CFR part 668.25) advanced in the NPRM will adequately satisfy the statute. The
inclusion of detailed instructions and expansion of the exempt categories to include
eligible veterans of the Armed Services will increase the utility of the document.

A combined Statement of Educational Purpose and Registration Compliance satis-
fies the requirement of the statute without adding additional paper or burden for
the institution.

VERIFICATION SYSTEM

The proposed verification systencl(Sec. 668.26) is seriously flawed. It fails to follow
the dictates of cpmmon sense and most importantly, it falls to fpllow the intention
of Congress as it places the full burden of the process on students and postsecondary
education institutions.

The statute states that the Secretary of Education and, Director bf Selective Serv-
ice can match lists to verify the validity of compliance Statements submitted by stu-
dents. The Conference Report noted that "such regulations and procedures neces-
sary to implement this provision minimize the administrative burden on colleges
and the delays in processing aid applications and awards". Simply stated, a pre-dis-
bursement verification system cannot minimize administrative burden on colleges
not avoid delays in processing applications and awards.

Given the lack of specificity in the statute, the Secretary of Education can design
a Selective Service Registration compliance verification system which would:

Comply with Public Law 97-252 and insure the integrity of registration compli-
ance statements filed by the Title IV aid recipients.

Minimize cost and administrative burden for institutions.
Be capple of identifying those submitting false statements of registration compli-

ance.
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Create disadvantage only for the small number of students filing false statements
of registration compliance. iN

Cause no difficulty, delay or expense _for the millions of students in compliance
with the selective service registration requirement.

The issue centers on the comparative merits of a pre-disbursement versus a post-
disbursement verification. The former madel requires students to provide a copy of
their Selective Service Registration acknowledgement to their institutional aid offi-
cer. If this letter has been discarded or misplaced the student must request a dupli-
cate from the Selective Service Agency. The acknowledgement must be received, re-
corded and stored in the students aid records prior to disbursing or processing aid.

Permissable exceptions to the above arise when males reach ". . age 18 aftei-
March 31st preceding the award year" and in those cases where the ". . studentclaims to have registered . . but is unable to produce the required documenta-
tion". In the first case, the institutions must accept a "Temporary Verification by
Affidavit". In the latter case, the institutions may, at its option, accept a temporary
verification.

The exceptions will further add to the Administration burden as they extend 120
days and then involve the institution in canceling aid, seeking repayment etc. The
institutional expectations are outlined in alarming detail in sec. 668.26.

Suffice to say, while the pre-disbursement system may hold some particular
charm for the Dept. of Education, it is not easily nor inexpensively administered.
The delays and confusion which the proposed system will generate should not be
overlooked nor understated.

As proposed, the pre-disbursement verification system will needlessly inconven-
ience millions of students and families and further complicate a national aid deliv-
ery which is incomprehensive to many families.

Fortunately, an attractive alternative exists. The Department of Education could
propose and administer a post-disbursement verification system which would:

Require institutions ". . to provide a list to the Secretary of Education or to the
(Selective Service) Director of- persons who have submitted . . statements of com-
pliance" (P.L. 97-252).

Permit the Secretary of Education and Director of Selective Service to verify com-
pliance statements.

Place the responsibility for verification where it is intended by the statute andconference report.
Efficiently and effectively comply with the statute while providing an orderly,

timely aid delivery with no unreasonable administrative burden.
Provide the opportunity to identify fraudulent filers of Compliance Statements

and subject them to federal prosecution.
A post-disbursement verification should work as follows:
Students required to submit the statement of registration compliance (Sec. 668.24

in th9ANPRM) will attest to their Selective Service registration. This requirementsatisfies the intent Of the statute as most eligible males have registered with the
selective service system (see Figure 1, population B-1). Those who have not regis-
tered, population B -2 will either; (a), remain in school without aid; (b), register with
selective service to gain aid; (c) drop out of school, or in a limited number of cases;
(d) falsely submit a statement of registration compliance. It is the small number of
cases_ falling in this category (B-2, d) which the verification system must identify
and isolate as they are ineligible to receive Title IV Student Aid.

SYSTEM OF APPEAL

The proposed system of appeal should be modified to reflect necessary due process
considerations for those believed to have misrepreseed their registration status to
receive aid. this system would involve the Department of Education, Selective Serv-
ice, and the Department of Justice.

SUMMARY

Aid applipatioli activity for the 1983-84 award period was initiated several
months ago:and will approach its peak during the next several months. The pros-
pect of the Department of Education adding the proposed pre-disbursement verifica-tion requirement is alarming. The post-disbursement model would minimize disrup-
tion and delays and would constitute no undue administrative burden.

If this model proves infeasible due to perceived or real record keeping inadequa-
cies of the involved governmental agencies, the implementation of the law must be
delayed until the records base or technical problems can be corrected.

124
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Mr. SiivioN. Philip Rever.

STATEMENT OF PHILIP REVER, VICE PRESIDENT, HIGHER
EDUCATION ASSISTANCE FOUNDATION

Mr. REVER. Thank yolAIr. Chairman. I am Phil Rever, vice. president of the Higher Education Assistance Foundation, a pri-vate, multistate guarantor of student loans.
At the current time, I should report to you that institutions andlenders and guarantee agencies are not accepting loan applicationsfor periods of instruction begining on or after July 1, 1983, untilapproved family contribution tables for that academic year havebeen published. If at the time those approved tables are publishedguarantors believe that they face an unacceptably high risk of in-creased defaults due the temporary verification procedures pro-vided under the proposed regulations, they will not guaranteeloans disbursed to students under those provisions.
In assessing their risk of increased defaults, guarantors will rec-ognize the following facts; 95.3 percent of all registration eligibleyoung men have registered. However, 18 year olds have historicallyhad the lowest registration rate, which ranges from 70 to 80 per-cent. In addition, registrants would be asked for the first time, sinceregistering to produce a registration acknowledgment letter-and asizable proportion may not be able to produce them.
Second, any increase in defaults will primarily be the result ofreleasing loan proceeds to students and parents of studentd whohave registered with the draft but have failed to file their registra-tion acknowledgment letters.
Under the proposed regulations, checks may bp disbursed then tostudents who are attending schools in foreign countries, tb virtual-ly all PLUS borrowers, and apparently must be disbursed to recent18 year olds.
If the Department requires lenders to obtain lump-sum repay-ments of loans disbursed to whtt. are subsequently determined tobe ineligible applicantsthat is, the Department does not allow re-payment in ilastallmentsdefiults will be more likely.
Finally, institutions will have difficulty informing lenders abouttempdrarily ineligible recipients of loans who have failed to submittheir registration acknowledgment letters within the allowed 120days.
Finally, HEAF recognizes that, despite the best efforts of all af-fected parties, it is inevitable thatsome loans under the temporaryverification procedures will have to be collected. It is inevitablethat some students will not receive £heir registration acknowledg-ment letters on time because of letters lost in the mail or simplynot forwarded to their current address. It is inevitable that somestudents who receive their letters will fail to submit them on time.It is inevitable that some students will encounter difficulties whentheir loan checks arrive on campus but their previously submitted -4letters cannqt located because they were misfiled. It is inevita-ble that some misinformation is inadvertently communicated tolenders, causing them to attempt to collect loans from eligible stu-dents and parents.

12
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ThesJ inevitabilities are manageable if they are rarely encoun-

tered. ,

However, if they become the norm rather than the rare excep-
tion, the entire loan system could collapse next fall.

We are reasonably confident that the inevitabilities will be man-
ageable. Our confidence, however, could be substantially increased
if the Selective Service would take the following actions. One, allow
young men to register 120 days in advance of their 18th birthday
rather than the current 30 days. Two, allow a duplicate post office

canceled registration card, SSS form 1, to serve as proof of registra-
tion. Three, allow registrants to reregister at any time so they
could obtain a duplicate post office canceled SSS Form 1 when
needed. Foul?, allow the Selective. Service's planned verification in-
formation documents that are intended to be mailed to 19 and 20

year olds to also serve as proof of registration.
Under my suggestions, the need for temporary verification and

disbursements in the absence of registration letters of acknowledg-
ment, the cause of HEAF's concerns could be virtually eliminated.
In the absence o adopting my suggestions, HEAF a d other guar-
antors are consi ring not guaranteeing loans disbursed to tempo-
rarily eligible applicants, although such loans are currently rou-
tinely disbursed to temporarily eligible applicants who are not en-
rolled in institutions at the time they make loan applications.

However, by the Department's requirement that institutions dis-

t burse loans to enrolled students and recent 18 year olds who have
not submitted their registration letters, they are enlarging our pool
of potential defaults substantially. Since these provisions are of
particular concern to the guarantors, we sugge-stthattfier be
looked at again.

We have a number of questions that need clarification from the
Department of. Education which we believe can be satisfied and
fully addressed. For example, it is quite likely that there will be a
conflict hetween the provided 120-day grace period and thd current

.requirement for institutions to return uncashed checks 30 days
after they are received.

We also need to know the precise point of time at which- loans
become forfeited so that we can determine the amount of interest
that has been Vied to the Government and how much needs to be

collected and the like.
These are minor difficulties which are easily resolvable. It is the

broader issue of the likelihood of increased defaults under the tem-
porary verification procedures that cause us the greatest amount of

concern.
I will answer any questions you may have, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Thank you very, much. Thank you for your pra tical

suggestions here.
[The prepared statement of Philip R. Revel follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF PHILIP R. REVER, VICE PRESIDENT, HIGHER EDUCATION

ASSISTANCE FOUNDATION

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I am Philip R. Rever, Vice

president of the Higher Education Assistance Foundation [HEAP'', a private, non-
profit, multistate agency that guarantees loans made under the Guaranteed Student
Loan Program and PLUS Program. As a guarantor of education loans, HEAF will

be affected by the Department of Education's January 27, 1983 proposed regulations
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that relate to the "Solomon Amendment" to Public Law 97-252. Consequently, I am
pleased to share with you HEAF's concerns about the proposed regulations and to
suggest some Actions that could be taken by the Department of Education and the
Selective Service which would allay our concerns.

CONCERNS

HEAF's concern arise as a result of the Department of Education's and the Selec-
tive Service's good intentions to develop and propose procedures that recognize po-
tential difficulties in implementing the "Solomon Amendment." Unfortunately,
their efforts to accommodate potential problems allows the disbursement of loan
checks to "temporarily eligible' students and their parents. Some of the "temporar-
ily eligible" recipients will be judged ineligible for a variety of reasons and some of
these ipeligible recipients will be classified as "defaults." Since guarantee agencies
like HEAF may experience increased default rates as a result of the proposed regu-
lations, and because our reinsurance formulas may be adversely affected, a review
of the provisions is in order.

We understand the proposed regulations affecting the Guaranteed Student Loan
Program are as follows: lk?

1. Between now and July 1, lenders but not institutions may disburse checks to
students and to parents of students who have not filed a Statement of Compliance
and, if appropriate, Registration Acknowledgement Letters.

2. Students who receive loan proceeds between now and July 1, 1983 and who fail
to submit the required documentation, "forfeits the right to receive or retain the
loan check or its benefits, as well as the right to the payment of interest benefits on
that loan. The borrower shall, if demanded by the lender, immediately repay that
disbursement."

3. After July 1, 1983 institutions may not disburse any Title IV funds or certify
loan applicants unless the applicants have submitted Statement of Registration
Compliance's and, if appropriate, Registration Acknowledgement Letter's. Two ex-
ceptions to this general regulation apply:

(a) Institutions must certify applications and disburse loan checks to registrants
who turned 18 -within 90 days of the beginning of their award year, and

(b) Institutions my certify applications but may not disburse loan checks to regis-
trants who are awaiting receipt of duplicate Registration Acknowledgeirlent Letters.,
,,c-(c) In both cases, the registrants must file an affidavit of registration before insti-
tutions certify their loan applications.

4. Lenders may dishUrse checks directly to recent 18 year olds and to parents of
registrants who have filed their Registration Acknowledgement Letters.

5. Lenders holding "forfeited" loans may 1411 the governmen't of the Special Allow-
ance, must refund interest billed to the government since forefeiture, and must col-
lect principal and interest from borrowers. Failure to collect constitutes a default.

It should be noted that the preceding understanding of the proposed regulatiohs
were made with some trepidation and-by giving an interpretation to some unclear
points that tend to minimize potential defaults. But several key points are unclear
in the regulations. For example, the preamble and the regulations appear to contra-
dict themselves about, institutions' authority to disburse loan checks to recent 18
year olds. In addition, it seems contrary to the Solomon Amendment and the regula-
tions to allow ineligible borrowers to repay their loans in installments as implied in
the regulations and for holders of these loans to continue collecting their Special
Allowance. Hence, some clarifications will be necessary regarding these matters in
the near future. If our understanding is in error, it will only exacerbate guarantors'
risk of increased defaults.

INCREASED DEFAULTS

Fortunately, the risk of increased defaults will be relatively small because actions
by other parties in the loan making process will limit the risk. Institutions and
lenders will probably not process loan appliCations for students unless pae students
file the required documents.

For example, it is reasonable to expect institutions to process loan applications of
students whose statements, and if appropriate, Registration Acknowledgement Let-
ters are on file, accompany their applications. By not certifying applications until
all documents are submitted, institutions avoid the burden of monitoring temporar-
ily eligible applicants' compliance with the law. In addition, institutions would avoid
having to inform lenders and the Secretary which applicants failed to file affidavits
and, if appropriate, Registration Acknowledgement Letters. Bence, institutions' poli-
cies will restrain guarantors' default rates.
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In addition, lenders will also act to restrain defaults caused by applicants' failure
to file the appropriate documents. Although lenders may be willing to forward loan
checks to institutions for disbursements to students, they will not authorize institu-
tions to release checks to students unless all necessary forms are on file. In addition,
lenders are not likely to forward checks directly to students or parents unless noti-
fied that all necessary forms are on file. Were lenders to do other than expected,
they would risk Losing interest benefits on the loans and incurring the cost of col-
lecting the loans_

The costs could be sizable. According to the proposed regulations, institutions
must report "temporarily eligible" applicants who fail to file the required docu-
ments on time, to lenders. Under the extraordinary burdens on institutions this
coming spring and summer it is unreasonable to expect institutions to be able to
report these failures in a timely manner. This means collection will be difficult be-
cause recipients will have spent a sizable portion of the loans by the time collection
efforts are made. Hence, many will be defaulted. Recognizing this likelihood, lenders
will probably not authorize the release of checks or send loan checks to. students
anet to parents of students unless all necessary documents are on file.

In addition to the expected actions of institutions and lenders that will reduce
guarantors' exposure to increased defaults, guarantors may also take actions to
reduce their exposure. For example, they may not guarantee any loan disbursed to.
students or parents of students who have failed to file the necessary documents at
the time institutions certify loan applications. Many agencies may determine that it
is to their advantage to establish such rules because of the unusual difficulties that
May prevail this spring. Guarantors recognize:

1. The vast majority, 95.3 percent according to the Selective Service, of eligible
men registerrith the Selective Service.

2. The largest group of unregistered men are 18 year olds among whom 70 to 80
percent register.

3. Although the 20 year olds and older
since

the hi hest compliance rate, over 97
percent, this spring will be the first time singe registering they will be asked to pro-
duce a copy of their Registration Acknowledgement Letters.

Thus, although few loans will be made to students and parents of students who
refuse to register or have not registered; many loans will be made to "Umporarily
eligible" applicants. If 18 year olds increase their registration "rate" thisSpring
and if the Selective Service is able to meet the expected demand for rephicement
Registration Acknowledgment Letters from older registrants, loans can be disbursed
when needed by students. On the other hand, if for any reason, -registrants are
unable to provide their Registration Acknowledgment Letters within the required
120 days, the entire system could break down.

Because a system break down means defaults, guarantors are uneasy,,about this
Spring. Accordingly, some will adopt rules that will unnecessarily delay :loan appli-
cation processing and therefore loan disbursements.

SUGGESTED ACTIONS

HEAF's uneasiness about the Spring could be relieved if the Selective Service
would adopt the following suggestions.

1. Allow young mean to register 120 days before their 18th birthday instead of the
current 30 days. 4e.

2. Allow the Selective Service's planned address and inforniatioh verification
system intended for 19 and 20 year olds to serve as proof of registration.

3. Allow a SSS Form 1; appropriately canceled by the Post Office to serve as proof
of registration.

4. Allow registrants to re-register any time after their 18th birthday so they can
obtain a duplicate, canceled, SSS Form 1 when needed.

HEAF's suggestions are intended to provide young men with access to immediate
proof of registration and recent 18 year olds plenty of time to register before apply-
ing for aid. If adopted, institutions could be prohibited from certifying applications
unless applicants have filed the necessary documents without imposing unnecessary
hardships on registered applicants.

It seems likely that HEAF's suggestions have been considered and rejected for
what may be seen as sound reasons, some of which are apparent in previous GAO
reports about the registration system. However, in light of the potential disruption
to the timely availability of aid next Fall, the suggestions deserve further considera-
tion. They eliminate the need for any temporary Verification of registration, the pri-
mary source of HEAF's concerns.

129



125

. Mr. SIMON. If I may followthrough right away on your hard sug-
gestions so that I understand them, can you repelt what you are
suggesting?

Mr. REVER. They are similar to what the student aid officers are
suggesting, Mr. Chairman. As a young man goes to the post office
to register, he completes a card which is, as I understand it, Form
SSS-1, which provides name, address, birthdate,. social security
number and the like. The postal clerk is then supposed to ask for
identifying information to corroborate that which has been present-
ed on the card. Once that information is corroborated, he cancels
that card. According to the Selective Service and the post office;
they hold those cards and they are accumulated over a week's
period and, each week, they deliver them to the selective service.

All I am suggesting is let the applicant or the registrant com-
plete another card, have, it canceled, and allow that to be used as
proof of registration.

Mr. SIMON. All right.
Mr. Brugel and Ms. Finch talked about delay. Yesterday, we

heard recommendations for a 1-year delay. But it was intriguing to
me today that there was a suggestion for a 6-month delay. In fact,
a 6-month delay would postpone the impact ,J academic year, and
probably would be easier to get through Congress.

Is there any difference as far as the impact, as far as you can,
see, of hazing a 1-year or a 6 -month delay.

Mr. BRUGEL. My recommendation did speak to 6 months, Mr.
Chairman. It was on,the basis that I felt that would be an adequate
leadtime for us to get our literature out before next year and to get
our administrative pr6cedures put in place. I would prefer 12
months, or even 18 months, but I figured,Atuch as you do, sir, that
that is unlikely. -

Mr. MARTIN. Mr. Chairman, if I may, let me just comment that I
think if you would look at the delay from the standpoint of the op-
eration of the institutions Aid the auditing of an award cycle, if
the date began on July fwhich is the recognized date by the De-
partment for auditing purposes of programsif you were going to
delay it, you would delay it to next July 1. I agree wholeheartedly
with what John has said about the need for leadtime and getting
the brochures changed. But that way, when we come in and audit
it, it is all in that particular year and it is clean.

One of our problems is when we implement things in midstream,
we impact upon other opArations that should be occurring, and if
we do ,it at the beginning of an awards cycle, it just makes a lot
more sense.

Mr. SmloN. But if we face a choiceand I am thinking about our
colleages in the Armed Services Committee who are going to have
to approve this change alsoif we face a choice of a 6-i-nonth delay
or no delay-

Mr. MARTIN. We will take 6 months, but we would certainly ap-
preciate a year.
'Mr. Silv*. Thank yop, Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON.: Than you, Mr. Chairman.
Just briefly, Mr. Rever, have you discussed the suggestions that

you made here todayAvith the selective service people?
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Mr. BRUGEI:". I have discussed the recommendation to provide a
greater leadtime for registration rather than the 30 days with their
general counsel. There seems to be softie responsiveness to that, al-
though, in general, 4 was directed to put it in writing and they
would consider it.,

Mr. HARRISON. What about the second postcard idea that you
suggested?

Mr. BRUGEI.. I have not discussed that. I believe Mr. Martin has
discussed a similar concept with them.

Mr. MARTIN. We had discusSed this suggestion. In fact, we wrote
up the suggestion and sent it to the Department of Education, Mr.
Chairman, several months ago before the regulations came out. We
have had intimate discussions with the people there. We had asked
to meet with the selective service people to discuss this. It was my
understanding that they had at least had some conversation be-
tween the people in the Department of Education and the Selective
Service people that were putting this together.

But it would require selective service going out and amending
the way in which they currently do registration. I appreciate some
hesitancy on their part to do that, but it would probably be simpler
than what is going to occur otherwise and much more cost-effective
in the long term for them.

MR. HARRISON. Mr. Chairman, I would be grateful if either of
these gentleman were to receive written replies from Selective
Service as to their response if we_could include that in the record
of this subcommittee.

Mr. MARTIN. We would be happy to provide that.
Mr. HARRISON. I would just like to comment that there are a

number of us who may find ourselves in a very difficult position
because we are in sympathy with the concept of the Solomon
amendment, that if people are going to apply for benefits frOrn the
country, they should, at a minimum, obey its lawg, whether they
agree with them or not; but that on the other hand, we are in very
strong disagreement, both philosophically and practically, with the
idea that colleges and universities should become adjuncts for the
Department of Justice.

I don't- know where we go from that dilemma, Mr. C airman. I
would certainly welcome a way out if so body could rr d a more
practical and les's intrusive on academi solution to these regula-
tions. I would welcome any Comments a of you may have on that
but, apart from that, I have no question

Mr. MARTIN. Mr. Harrison, we agree ith you. We recognize that
it is the law and we are not in an -w trying to divert that. We
are very concerned about the burden.

The irony of this is while people from the selective, service and
the Department have implied there is no burden, I think there is
ample evidence that suggests that there is.

I can recall the days when we used tkcarry out a similar system
in which we had local draft boards throughout %the United States
with literally thousands and thousands of employ that carried
on these kinds of activities. If it is no burden, then I don't under-
stand why the Selective Service couldn't handle this paperwork,
either through the lists that the American Council on Education
has proposed, or by changing the registration procedures to make it
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more reasonable rather than this ridiculous delay of coming backand forth.
As I read the law, once the student has actually registered,

which he does at the moment he signs that card at the post office,he is entitled to thqe benefits. Lk seems to me unfair to suddenly
delay that whole prdcess on his part simply because of paperwork
and redtape and potential delays or where his mailing address is orsomething else. That just seems ludicrous in terms of what we areall about.

Mr. REVER. Mr. Chairman, may I offer a comment with regard to
some plans to have documents or lists of students sent to selective
service?

As a guarantor who has first responAibility for default, I dh re -'luctant to be entinisiastio about such an approach, because I cananticipate that we would now, under that scheme, be disburqng
loans, the proceeds of loans, to students whose eligibility is uncer-tain. Now we ask the selective service to verify a student's compli-ance and, if that student has not complied, then it is turned over tothe Justice Department or the Department of Education, or whom-ever, to collect our loans, the loans we guaranteed.

We are much more confident in the ability of private lenders andourselves to collect those loans than we are about Federal agencies.That is a concern. I encourage those who are making those propos-als to be cautious in that regard.
Mr. SIMON. If my colleague would yield, if I may follow through

on that, you are not concerned, however, that your guaranteewould be in jeopardy?
Mr. RESER. I can't imagine that anyone would do that to us. Ihope not.
What we may find, however is, let's say the Department assumesresponsibility for collecting those loans that have been disbursed tostudents or their parents'who are eventually determined ineligible.We are notably aware that they have been unsuccessful in doingthat. It jeopardizes our insurance rate when we turn that respon-siblity over to someone else. We would prefer to retain that respon-sibility and work with our lenders to see that collection efforts aremade conscientiously.
Mr. BRUGEL. MT>. Chairman, if we *refuse to go to lists that aprovided, then we must place the burden on the institutions. Jusfollowing the logic of the number of students who would willfully

misrepresent their compliance, I think that the numbers that weare working with will be so terribly small they will be insignifi-cant. Should it occurI can understand Mr. Rever's concernit
certainly is not going to be a large number. We would then be able
to provide advance notice to the students who are signing this, if
you misrepresent your status, this is what you are subject to.

Mr. SIMON. If I may followthrough on your comment, when wetalk about lists, is it easier for you to simply provide a copy of anaffidavit that is signed or to actually compile the list?
Mr. BRUGEL. We are a very highly computerized office serving 22campuses. We have 30,000 students receiving one or more title IVstudent aid. funds. It would be no difficulty at all, and I could pro-duce that type of list overnight. But to physically collect copies ofsomething, I find that to be a very, very burdensome task.
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Ms. FINCH. Sir, if I may comment.
Mr. SIMON. Yes.
Ms. FINCH. I think that in the interest of the financial aid com-

munity, however, because of the diversity in management proce-
dures, that both alternatives should be available, because particu-
larly small offices would likely prefer to provide the copies.

Mr. HARRISON. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Yes.
Mr. HARRISON. Mr. Brugel is coming from Penn State. I have two

of your campuses within my district. I think I completely sympa-
thize with your thought that a list on your computer is one thing;
but I think we have all become familiar enough with the post office
that I wouldn't want to put Penn State to relying on it for commu-
nication between 22 campuses and sending the lists back and forth.

So I would second the idea that both alternatives should be made
available.

Mr. SIMON. I would like to ask one other question. I am thinking
out loud now, and I am not suggesting that I will be doing this. But
we could put together a bill with a 6-month delay and also have in
it a requirement that GAO report-back after a certain period of
time whether or not in fact.we are accomplishing anything. My in-
stinct is we, in a moment of overzealousness, passed a law that is
simply going to result in a mountain of paperwork and nothing
More.

How long do you have to have a low in effect before you can
make an assessment of whether it is having any impact? In other
words, if we ask for a GAO study, should it be 12 months after the
law is in effect,. or 24 Months, or how long?

Mr. REVERt In this case, Mr. Chairman, if I may respond immedi-
ately, it seems to me we should experience someI think primarily
the greatest impact will be on the 18;year old. Remember that, ac-
cording to selective service data, they are the age group that has
the lowest compliance rating. I think if this law is having an effect,
what we will find,is that their registration rate goes up.

Mr. Brugel has pointed out on several occasions, what is the like-
lihood that we are currently giving aid to young 'men who should
be registered with the selective service and are not? The likeli-
hoodif you want to talk about probabilities as a statisticianis
that it is very, very small at the current time. What effect can we
expect? With those kinds of probabilities we are talking about, we
are not going to see significant increases, in my judgment, in the
overall compliance rate with the registration law. his just not pos-
sible.

Mr. SIMON. I accept everything you said. But some of my col-
leagues are going to want to know, in practice, what has happAed.

Mr. MARTIN. I think, Mr. Chairman, that the timeframe of when
dA0 would be able to have any evidence of what the impact might
.be,and whether or not it was working and what the costs were and
the imposition upon everybody involved would depend in part on
,which way you proceed. If you took the Department's approach and
proceeded with, what they have proposed, you might find out very
quicklyand rdon't think GAO would have any trouble coming up
with a report that would prove to the Congress that it was a pretty
absurd exercise.
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If you had a program more like the list kind of approach.where
we send the lists in and then it took the selective service some time
to go through and compare that against their computersI don't
know what their ability is to do that, but I would guess that they
may find it is going to be about a minute with each of tlfese stu-
dents to go through these stacks of paper and sort it all out and
check it against their computer, or at least that is what they have
implied to us. So it would be probably a year for them.

Mr. SIMON. OK.
Mr. Gunderson, do you have any questions?
Mr. GUNDERSON. No, Mr. Chairman..
I apologize for the delay. We have been in the Agriculture Com-

mittee marking up emergency farm credit legislation for the last
hour and a hall'. So we are dealing with credit on all sides of the
Congress right(now.

Mr. SIMON. We thank you all very, very much for your testimo-
ny.

The nest witness is Randy Haymari, a student at the University
of Michigan at Ann Arbor.

We have two witnesses left. Let me just, say that we are going to
try to get out of here by noon. So if the two witnesses can be fairly
brief, we would appreciate it. I don't mean to be pressing.

Mr. Hayman, we are pleased to have you with us.

STATEMENT OF RANDY EDGAR HAYMAN, STUDENT, UNIVERSITY
OF MICHIGAN AT ANN ARBOR

Mr. HAYMAN. Thank you very much.
Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee. I

am both proud and pleased to have this opportunity to speak
before you this morning.

My name is Randy Edgar Hayman. I am 19 years old and was
born and raised in St. Louis, Mo. I am presently in my second year
of prelaw studies at the University of Michigan with a dual major
of economics and political science. During the past 2 years, t1ie fi-
nancial aid that I. have received has made it possible for "me to
obtain an education and to remain at the university. Also during
this past academic year, I have been trained and worked as a fi-
nancial aid peer adviser. So I am in the unique position of being a
student, administrator, and also 4 counselor. So I have some under-
standing of the problems of applying for financial aid.

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the effort being put forth by you and
the members of this committee to obtain different points of view
from so many diverse segments of the college community. .

Since I am studying political science, I understand the .impor
tance of national defense. Because of this reason, as part of my
civic duty, I registered for the draft prior td my 18th birthdity. I do
not oppoSe draft registration. But Lam opposed to the threat of
taking away financial aid to guarantee such an act.

I have spoken to many of my fellosV students and administrators
about this pertinent issue, I feel that their negative attitudes
toward the amendment, along with mine, stem from two areas of
concern: first of all, an obvious public policy concern exists; and
second, a more hidden personal concern exists.
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Of public policy concerns, of course, those who have spoken
before me are better qualified to deal with the complex legal issues
of this amendment. But at the same time, I feel compeled to ex-
press the basic concerns that students have.

No.1, the bill of attainer. The amendment allows someone to be
punished by legislation rather than through the judicial process.

No. 2, lack of due process.
No. 3, question of conscience. Many students are confused and

believe that the amendment fails to allow a student who, because
of religious beliefs is against the principle of war, to abstain from
registering.

No. 4, no procedure for lo'st documents. No retroactive aid, no
room for the filing mistakes of a bureaucratic system. Basically, if
you do not hand in an application for financial aid by a set due
date, you will not be allocated any aid.

No. 5, I feel, is the most important legal aspect of this law, its
discriminatory aspect. The amendment discriminates- by gender,
heritage, and economic status. This regulation will have a dispro-
portionate impact on males and minority college students wIlo are
the most economically disadvantaged: Financially secure students
who do not depend on financial aid will not have to register for the
draft and, at the same me, they will be allowed to continue their
college education. Middle class and poor students who are just as
academically capable will be forced to unfairly stop their education
and be unfairly denied their right to an education.

Now we go on to the more personal concerns. I feel that stu-
dents' personal concerns mainly circle around one goalreceiving
a first-rate education. At first glance, this may seem to be a very
simple task. A student needs to only buST his books, go to class and
do his homework. But in reality, coNege, life is not that simple.
Once we look closer at the situation, we find that many unneces-
sary bureaucratic obstacles stand between the student and his goal.
Imagine for a few minutes that you are a student.

Before you even have the money to buy your first book, you-have
to fill out four forms for financial aid, four forms that you have to
sign, send to your parents, and then hand into the office of finan-
cial aid or your local bank." Then you have to Wait for up to 6
weeks for your papers to be processed, or even longer if an error is
made. Before you can go to your first class, you may have to wait 2
to 4 hours in a long line just to register for your classes. You then
will be lucky if spaces are available in the classes that you have to
take to earn a degree.

Now, if we add to this already complicated process a regulation
which states that you have to not only register for the draft, but
also prove that you registered for the draft, the student's mind is
even more diverted from his studies. Many students like myself
never received their registration acknowledgment letter. And up to
just a few days ago, I didn't know I was even supposed to receive
one. a

Three things could have happened. It may have been lost in the
mail. It may have been sent to my father and I never received it.
Ot, better yet, it was never sent at all.bWhat happened to it? I do
not know. If you were the office of financial aid and at this time
you asked me to present it, I could not.
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I feel that I have a very unique situation with my father because
any mail that comes to the house, he automatically owns it and
reads it to me over the phone. I have heard nothing from him up to
this date. The regulation says that this is not a problem. A student
only needs to sign a notarized affidavit saying that he is registered.
He is then given 120 days to prove that in fact he is registered.

This process, in the short run, is inappropriate, and in the long
run, inefficient. It unfairly forces the student to go 120 days which
can be thought of in student language as 17 weeks or 86 hours of
classes worrying about whether or not his letter from the selective
service is going to come. Also during this 120-day time period, a
student cannot receive a guarantped student loan and, as a result,
he may not be able to buy all of the books he needs, or better yet,
pay the tuition and room and board bill that comes up at the end
of the month. If the acknowledgement letter fails to come or is mis-
filed, the student can find himself in ebt for thousands of dollars
at the end of the term. During thi - 20-day time period, the stu-
dent's mind should be solely on ,passing his next calculus test or
writing a 10-page term paper for his English class.

Mr. Chairman and committee members, I do not feel that I
would be overstating the issue by saying that if a student does not
keep his mind solely on his studies for the first 3 weeks of the
term; his chances of passing cla'ss, let alone performing well in the
class, are limited. The mental stress that this regulation would

'cause to the student is unjustified.
At the same time, it is important that we realize that for a stu-t

dent to leave school because he cannot afford it is a tragedy. Yes, a
tragedy which affects only one person, bu,t it is a tragedy nonethe-
less. Between t aheges of 18 and 20, students develop a mind set,
work.thabits and goals Alich will direct them to a certain position
-on 'the social/economic scale of life. It is unfair to stop a student's
education, no matter what the time period is. Because the horror of
the situation is thal once he leaves the university, chances are that
lfe will never return. Mistakes do happen in the bureaucratic
system of financial aid. ,

If I can, I would like to just give you a quick understanding
abopt myself and a very quick story that happened to me.

My parents both work for the St. Louis Board of Education. My
father has been a principal and a school teacher for 49 years. As
you elm imagine, I missed very few days of school when I was a
young man going to high school. I went on to a private institution
named John Borroughs, which is about 30 minutes away from
where I live.

I basically made education my main concern and my main goal. I
put asille social life and other things that many teenagers did to
obtain a first-rank education. When I graduated from John Bur-
roughs High Scho61, I was accepted at Notre Dame University,
Northwestern University, Tufts University, Cornell University, and
the Univsrsity of Michigan.

At tWt point, I was determined, to go on to college, and I was
also thinking about graduate school at a very young age. But :a mis-
take happened. The first year in college, I had no problem at all. I
received all of the financial aid I needed, I received the college
work study, National Direct Student Loatit. Everything went OK.
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But between my first year of college and my second year of college,
a mistake did happen. There was a misfiling with my application.
So, instead of receiving my award notice in June when I should
have, I received nothing.

When we called in August asking about my financial aid situa-
tion, they said, "No problem. Just wait and call at the end of
August." We called at the end of August and they said they did not
know a Randy Hayman, they did not know that I existed, and I
had at that moment no financial aid. We were passed the due date
for the applications. We were passed the date for me to apply for a
Government loan of any kind.

I was just lucky at the University of Michigan that when we
brought this to the attention of the office of the financial aid ad-
ministrator, they were compassionate enough and understanding
enough, and feel that they are very much dedicated to making sure
that qualified students remain at the university, that they went
out of their way to find funds so that I could continue my educa-
tion.

Now in my sophomore year of studies, after this tragic mishap, I
went on to become president of the minority council in my dorm, I
have an internship with the support of an academic organization at
the university, I am ac financial aid peer .4_dviser, and I am about,to
enter the honor section of political science7'--

I often wonder about the nightmare of what would happen if, be-
cause of a mixup, a simple paper mixup, a human mistake, what
would happen to me? Where would I be today? I don't think I
would be here talking to you, that is for sure.

I feel that middle class and poor students cannot afford the
luxury of stopping th.eir education. If I was denied aid, I, too, wound
probably be forced to give up my dream of going to law school for
the reality of getting a job in a factory. Quite frankly, because of
my training, I think that I would make a better lawyer than an
unemployment statistic.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, I feel our Government shQuld
make applying for financial aid as uncomplicated as possible.
Access to higher education, free from bureaucratic complexity, is a
basic part of America. For these reasons, I feel that the intent of
this amendment may be honorable, but its effect is unjust.

Mr. Chairman, I would be pleased to respond to any questions
you or the members of your committee might have.

[The prepared statement of Randy Edgar Hayman follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF RANDY EDGAR HAYMAN, STUDENT OF THE UNIVERSITY OF
MICHIGAN

INTRODUCTION

Good Morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. I am both proud
and pleased to have this opportunity to speak before you this morning.

My name is Randy Edgar Hayman. I am nineteen years old and was born and
raised in St. Louie/ Missouri. I am presently in my second year of pre-law studies at
The University of Michigan with a dual major of economics and political science.
During the past two years, the financial aid that I have received has made it possi-
ble for me to remain in school. Also, during this past academic school year I have
been trained and worked as a Financial Aid Peer Advisor. So I have some under-

,,, standing of the process of applying for financial aid.
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Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the effort being put forth by you and the members of
this Committee to obtain different points of view from so many diverse segments of
the college commiffiity. It is my purpose this morning to express to you a student's
opinion on the amendment to the Defense Authorization Act (Public Law 97-252),
which finds any student who fails to register for the draft ineligible for Title IV
student financial aid (Pell Grant, Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant, Col-
lege Work-Study, National Direct Student Loan/Plus Loan and State Student Incen-tive Gr t Programs). .-

Since n studying to be a political scientist I understand the importance of Na-
tional Defen Because of this reason, as part of my civic duty I registered for thedraft prior to m eighteenth birthday. I do not oppose draft registration. But I am
opposed to the threat of taking away financial aid to guarantee such an act.

I have spoken to many of my fellow students and administrators about this perti-
nent issue. I feel that their negative attitudes toward the amendment, alopg with
mine, stem from two areas of concern; first of all an obvious public policy concern
exists and secondly, a more hidden personal concern.

PUBLIC POLICY CONCERNS

Of course, those who have spoken before me are better qualified to deal with the
more complex legal issues of this amendment. But I feel compelled to express the
basic concerns that students have:

1. Bill of Attainec:
(a) The amendment allows someone to be punished by legislation rather thanthrough the judicial process.
2. Lack of Due Process.
3. Question of Conscience:
(a) Many students are confused and believe that the amendment fails to allow a

student who, because of religous beliefs, is against the principle of war the right toabstain from registering.
4. No Procedure for Lost Documents: ,
(a) No retroactive aidno room for the filing mistakes of a bureaucratic system.
5. Discriminatory:
(a) The amendment discriminates by gender, heritiage and economic status. This

*regulation will have a disproportionate impact on males and minority college stu-dents who are the most economically disadvanthged. Financially secure students
who do not depend on financial aid 'will not have to register and at the same time
they will be allowed to continue their college careers. While middle class and poor
students who are just as academically capable will be unfairly denied their right toan education.

PERSONAL CONCERNS

Students' personal concern mainly circle around one goal receiving a first rateeducation. At first glance this may appear to be a very simple task. To obtain this
goal a student only needs to buy his books, g. ass and do his homework. But in
reality, college life is not that simple. Once closer at the situation, we findthat many unnecessary bureaucratic obstacles s and between the student and his
goal. Imagine for a few minutes that you are a student.

Before you even have the money to buy your first book, you have to fill out four
forms for financial aidfour forms that you have to sign, send to your parents and
then hand in to the Office of Financial Aid or your local bank. Then you have to
wait six weeks for your papers 'to be processedor even longer if an error is made.
Before you can go to your first class you may have to wait two to four hours in a
long line just to register for your classes. You then will be lucky if spaces are availa-ble in the classes that you have to take to earn a degree.

Now, if we add to this already complicated process a regulation which states that
you have to not only register for the draft but also prove that you registered for the
draft, the student's mind is even more diverted from his studies. Many students,
like myself, never received their Registration Acknowledgement Letter (SSS Form
3A or 3AS). And up to just a few days ago, I did not even know that I was supposed
to receive one. The regulation states that this is not a problema student needs to
only sign a notarized affidavit stating that he has registered. He is then given 120
days to prove that he did, in fact, register This process in the short run is inappro-priate and in the long run inefficient. It Unfairly forces the student to go 120 days,
which can be thought of as 17 weeks or 86 hours of lectures worrying about whether
or not his letter from the Selective Services is going to come. Also, during this 120
day time period. a student can not receive a Guaranteed Student Loan and as a
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result, he may not be able to buy all the books he needs. If the acknowledgment
letter fails to come, a,student could find himself in debt for thousands of dollars at
the end of the term. During this 120 day time period a studnet's mind should be
solely on passing his next calculus test or writing .a ten-page term paper for his Eng-
lish class. Mr. Chairman and @ommittee members, I do not feel that I would be
overstating the issue by saying that if a student does not keep his mind mainly on
his studies for the first three weeks of the term his chances of passing the class, let
alone performing well in class, are limited. The mental stress that this regulation
would cause the student is unjustified.

At the same time, it is important that we realize that for a student to leave school
because he cannot afford it is a tragedy. Yes, a tragedy which affects only one
person, but it is a tragedy none the less. Between the ages of eighteen and twenty,
students evelop a mind set, work habits and goals which will direct them to a cer-
tain position on the social economic scale of life. It is unfair to stop a student's edu-
cation, no matter what the time-period is. Because the horror of the situation is that
once he leaves the University, chances are that he will never return. Middle class
and poor students can not afford the luxury of stopping their education. If I were
denied aid, I too would probably be forced to forget my dream of going to law school
for the reality of getting a job in a factory.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, I feel our government shot& make applying for fi-
nancial aid as uncomplicated as possible. Access to higher education, free from bu-
reaucratic complexity is a basic part of America. For these reasons I feel that the
intent of this amendment may be honorable, but its effect is unjust.

Mr. Chairman, I would be pleased to respond to any questions you or the mem-
bers of your Committee might have.

Mr. SIMON. Thank you very much. We appreciate your excellent
statement. In addition to your other qualifications, since you are
from St. Louis, you probably know where Carbondale, Ill. is.

Mr. HAYMAN. Yes, sir.
Mr. SIMON. You are by far the best witness we have had today.
Let me ask you just one question. You heard the talk about the

possibility of having a statement that you c uld simply check off.
You could have a statement such as sugges ed by the president of
Swarthmore, for example. Would that often a you? Is that practical,
from your viewpoint?

Mr. HAYMAN. Are we talking about a c ecking off of--
Mr. SIMON. A checking off of either am not required to regis-

ter," or "I have registered."
Mr. HAYMAN. That is checkin:,. f to determine whether or not

you are receiving financial aid?
Mr. SIMON. Forget the letter. You simply check off.
Mr. HAYMAN. If my understanding of the situation is clear, I

don't think that would solve the problem. There would still be a
discriminatory effect.

Mr. SIMON. I agree with you. What you are talking about there is
the law itself. I don't happen to like the law; you don't happen to
like the law. But we are going to have to live with the law. -

The question is how do we make that law workable, how do we
make it as inoffensive as possible?

Mr. HAYMAN. I think the best thing to do is to take it out of the
hands of the colleges and universities and set it aside with the Se-
lective Service or another part of the government to dictate what
.the law is, to enforce it. I don't feel that the universities should
have that responsibility at all. I don't feel it should be on the appli-
cation. I feel that they should be able to have a lawwhich we al-
ready do havewhich states that if you do not register, you will be
fined or you will be imprisoned. I feel that it should be done out-
side of the colleges.

139
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Mr. SIMON. Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. I don't have any questions, Mr. Chairinan. I

would just like to join with you in congratulating this young manon a very fine statement.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.

. Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As a fellow "Big 10'er," I want to welcome you to the committee.

tilovvever, I must say that I was a little disappointed or offended
That of all of these colleges you applied to and were accepted, that
you didn't even apply at Wisconsin.

Mr. HAYMAN. It just slipped my mind.
Mr. GUNDERSON. What I would like to get at, Randy, is the intent

of Congreman Solomon when he introduced the amendment onthe floor of,the House, and that was not as a compliance feature of
registration. If that is our intent, I think it is a crazy way to try to
accomplish registration compliance.

I think, rather, he was looking at it more from the philosophical
statement that a student who was unwilling to at least give their
country their name and address in time of a national emergency.So that they could be called up more quickly and efficiently, it is,not proper for that societyor at least it is not expected of that
societyto provide that student with either a grant or a subsidizedloan.

Recognizing this, I am trying to find a way in which we can ac-
complish that with the least administrative process or burden onthe university. Again, as the chairman said, it is not a questionwhether one likes or dislikes the law, how do we make it most effi-cient?

Based on what I have heard today and what I heard yesterday, Iam wondering whether it would make some sense to automatically
give a student the loan that first year, eliminating the paperwork.But then, before the student gets financial aid the second year, wewould have had time for the Department of Education and the Se-lective Service Commission to verify through their records whetheror not the student is registered.

So, yes, we would lose the first year. We will give financial aid tothe student, whether he is registered or not, during the first year.It seems to me that, as a society, we are going to get what Con-gressman Solomon intended if we deny him financi41 aid years 2, 3,4 and law school or whatever graduate degree he might be seeking.Would that sound acceptable to you in terms of an administra-tive process, regardless of your philosophical feelings on the lawitself or not?
Mr. HAYMAN. You are saying that if we were to go ahead andgive the person the loan or the financial aid for the first year andthen try to catch up with him later on down the line.
No. To me, it doesn't get rid of the fact that the law is discrimi-natory. That is the bottom line. Sure,you.will give me the moneythe first year, but if I was a student who did not want to register

for the draft and I was a rich student, for my second and third yearI could still not register for the draft and still continue my collegeeducation. Whereas if I am middle class or poor, you are automati-cally .forcing me to register for the draft.
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As I said, I have already registered, but I am thinking about the
views of other students. They will say there is a lack of due proc-
ess. The constitutional question still exists at the bottom line of
this law.

So, no, I do not feel that by postpoping the discriminatory act by
1, 2, or 3 years that it is going to solve the issue.

Mr. GUNDERSON. OK. So, in your opinion, there is really no way,
that we can implement this law that is satisfactory.

Mr. HAYMAN. I would have to say that there is no way that the
colleges could implement it without touching upon the constitution-
al question. ,

I think that maybeas I was trying to express beforeoutside
the universities, registration could be handled very muchthis is
very simplisticI was going to say very much in the way that driv-
er's licenses are handled, that, another bureau is responsible for it.
Another bur-au iias the records, another bureau enforces the law.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. We thank you very much for your testimony and for

being bete.
Mr. HAYMAN. Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. Our final witness is John Shattuck, the director of

the American Civil Liberties Union.

STATEMENT OF JOHN SHATTUCK, DIRECTOR, AMERICAN CIVIL
LIBERTIES UNION

Mr. SHATTUCK. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I will be brief. I am pleased to follow the very eloquent yoting

man from Michigan.
In my testimony thiNitnorning, I would like to return to the basic

underlying question of the statute, the Solomon amendment. You
have heard a great deal of testimony concerning the proposed regu-
lation.

But I would like to return to the underlying statute because I be-
lieve the flaws in the proposed regulation, as they have been ar-
ticulated here, are a direct result of the profound constitutional de-
fects in the underlying law. These defects are, as you know, Mr.
Chairman, the, subject of a constitutional challenge in a case now
pending in Federal court in Minneapolis and the decision is forth-
coming.

Mr. Chairman, the Solomon amendment is an unfortunate cur-
rent example of one of the oldest and most notorious forms of legis-
lative tyranny, the bill of attainder, which is, very simply, the pun-
ishment of individuals without a trial. That is really what the un-
derlying issue is here.

4 This amendment is, in a way, the purest and simplest form of
bill of attainder. It ismaimed at a clearly identifiable group, nonre-
gistered for the draft, and it seeks to punish them without a trial.
It assumes the guilt of all draft age male students conditionally
and penalizes them. If they fail to submit the required statement of
compliance, they are denied financial aid and, therefore, the higher
education for which they would otherwise qualify.

Applicants who cannot submit the required oath are then pun-
ished automatically, inescapably, and without the prbtection of a
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trial by jury in which the Government must prove guilt beyond a
reasonable doubt.

Whether or not we like that news that I am bringing to the sub-
committee, Mr. Chairman, the Supreme Court has repeatedly
struck down as unconstitutional less egregious forms of legiplative
punishment than the Solomon amendment. I will give you 5ne ex-
ample, and that is that 20 years ago, the Court declared unconsti-
tutional a section of the Immigration and Nationality Act which
stripped pacifists who have fled that country to avoid military serv-
ices of their citizenship, whether or not they have been convicted of
draft evasion, perhaps a much more compelling instance in which
the Congress might act to strip citizenship than the circumstances
here.

If that statute was a bill of attainder, I think there can be little
doubt that the Solomon amendment is similarly unconstitutional.

But I think it is important to move away from the very volatile
and emotional issue of the draft and draft registration to see the
implications of the Solomon amendment and legislation of this
kind, which I think is very dangerous and very far reaching. Many
Members of Congress, were they to have to act on it in a different
setting, would think twice.

The use of bills of attainder as a legislative strategy can be pur-
sued in many ways for many political purposes. Let me just cite
three examples.

If this amendment remains law, what is to stop the'Congress, for
example, from passing a statute denying Small Business Adminis-
tration loans without a trial to, businesses suspected of violating en-
vironmental protection laws. Or barring veterans' benefits without
a trial to anyone who has not filed an income tax return on time
before they have had an opportunity to state why in a court of law.
Or precluding FHA mortgage applications without a trial to per-
sons who do not file affidavits swearing that they are not members
of the Communist Party or the John Birch Society or the Moral
Majority, assuming that it could be made illegal to join any of
those organizations, which I don't think it could.

None of these hypotheticals is far fetched, and all of them are
bills of attainder. They pose a serious threat to our constitutional
system. All the more so because the Solomon amendment shows
how easy and how attractive it is for the Congress to act in this
manner.

'Unfortunately, the defects of the Solomon amendment are not
limited to its status as a bill of attainder. Let me very briefly list
four other major constitional flaws in the statute.

First, it violates the 5th amendment priyilege against self-in-
crimination, on the one hand by penalizing students who `assert the
privilege to decline to file a statement of compliance and, on the
other hand, by forcing those who do file statements of compliance
to incriminate themselves if they have, for example, mistakenly
failed to comply with the registration requirements or otherwise
think they-may have complied when they haven't.

Se the statute violates the equal protection principles of theConstitut n y- discriminating against middle class and poor stu-
dents who need Federal loans to attend college. As Senator Duren-
berger pointed out when the amendment was debated on the
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Senate floor, we are punishing middle class lawbreakers more than
we punish those who are wealthy enough to pay their own way
through college and more than those who attend college at all.

Third, the sOtute discriminates unconstitutionally on. the basis
of race, becausie it will have a disproportionate impact on minority

,students who are especially reliant on Federal aid in obtaining
postsecondary ,education.

Fourth and finally, Mr. Chairman, I believe the Solomon amend-
ment discriminates in spirit on the basis of sex because it will
affect male applicants for Federal tuition assistance. Any statute
that classifies individuals on the basis of gender must have an ex-
ceedingly persuasive justification, as Justice O'Connor pointed out
in an important Supreme Court sex discrimination opinion last
year. I submit, Mr. Chairman, there is no justification, let alone an
exceedingly persuasive justification, for differentiating between
men and women when it comes to determining their eligibility for
student financial aid.

This, I am sure, is the view of some members of the subcommit-
tee, perhaps not all, and some Members of Congress. I think that
the analysis that I have-presented, which is, of course, pending as a
challenge to the Solomon amendment in Federal court, is some-
thing that the Congress should very seriously take into considera-
tion in determining whether to go forward with this Whole propos-
al.

I respectfully subreit that the Congress should not wait for the
Federal courts to inValidate it, but should take prompt action to
rectify the constitutional harm that has been done by the enact-
ment of the Solomon amendment.

In this/ regard, I would urge the subcommittee to report the bill
sponsored by Representative Edgar who testified before the sub-
committee yesterday to repeal section 1113 of the Defense Depart-
ment Authorization Act.

I haven't focused on the regulations, but I think you can under-
stand, Mr. Chairman, that I don't think that title situation can be
cured by tampering or working with any of the proposals that have
been brought before the subcommittee today, although I think they
are all brought in very good spirit and in good faith and, in some
respects, some of them will ameliorate the problems facing colleges
and universities having to administer this amendment.

But the underlying problem, as the very eloquent young man
who preceded me stated, is really a problem of the basic injustice
and inequity of this kind of an amendment, using the student aid
process as a way of trying to get at a wholly different problem,
which is the problem of draft registration, 'where the Selective
Service System is now fully charged with enforcing the law and the
law is covered with criminal penalties, and prosecutions are going
forward. Whatever one's view may be about draft registration, it
should not be dragged into this student loan business in a way that
severely impacts and discriminates against those who are most reli-
ant on student aid.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. I thank you.
[The prepared statement of John Shattuck follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOHN SHATTUCK, NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR,
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity to appear before the Subcommittee to
present the views of the American Civil Liberties Union on the issue of draft regis-
tration and eligibility for federal student financial assistance. The ACLU is a na-
tionwide nonpartisan organization of more than 275,000 members devoted solely to
protecting and enforcing the Bill of Rights.

There are two aspects to this issue and I understand the Subcommittee wishes to
examine both of them. First, the recent action by the Congress in adopting the "Sol-
omon Amendment," ' requiring student loan applicants to furnish conclusive proofthat they have registered with the Selective Service before their applications can beprocessed, raises fundamental questions of constitutional raw and public policy
which go far beyond the issues of draft registration and federal stUtent aid. Second,
the proposal last month by the Departmeneof Education of a regulation to imple-
ment the Solomon amendment raises additional questions about the impact of the
new statute on the academic freedom of colleges and universities which are obligat-,ed to administer it and students or prospective students who are obligated to complywith its terms.

In my testimony this morning I would like to focus on the first questionin part
because I know the Subcommittee will hear extensive testimony from other wit-
nesses about the damaging impact of the proposed regulation, and in part because Ibelieve the flaws in the proposed regulation are in direct result of profound consti-
tutional defects in.the Solomon amendment itself. These defects are the subject of a
constitutional challenge to the statute in litigation brought by the ACLU's,Minneso-
ta affiliate, together with the Minnesota Public Interest Group now pending in fed-' era) district court in Minneapolis's I have attached to my testimony excerpts from
the plaintiffs brief in support of a motion for preliminary injunction in the case.

Mr. Chairman, the Solomon amendment is an unfortunate current example of one
of the oldest and most notorious forms -of legislative tyranny: The Bill of Attainder.

The first article of the Constitution specifically states that "[n]o Bill of Attainder
or Ex Post Facto Law shall be passed [by the Congress]." This prohibition is deeplyrooted in the struggle against abuses of power by the English parliament, and it
clearly and specifically denies legislatures the right to punish individuals and iden-
tifiable groups without a trial. Alexander Hamilton put it best when he said, "If the
legislature may banish at discretion all those whom particular circumstance render
obnoxious, without a hearing or a trial, no man can be safe or know when he may
be the innocent victim of a prevailing faction. The name of liberty applied to such agovernment would be a mockery of common sense." 3 Again and again, over the
years, the Supreme Court has reaffirmed this view. As the-Court put it in 1946, "our
ancestors had ample reason to know that legislative trials and punishments were
too dangerous to liberty to exist in the nation of free men they envisioned." 4

The Solomon amendment is the purest and most egregious form of Bill of Attain-
der. It is aimed at a clearly identifiable groupnon-registrants for the draft and itseeks to punish them without a trial.-It assumes the guilt of all draft-age male stu-
dents and penalizes them conditionally. If they fail to submit the required "state-, ment of.compliance" they are denied financial aid, and therefore the higher educa-
tion for which they would otherwise qualify. Applicants who cannot submit the re-quired oath are punished automatically, inescapably and without the protection of atrial by jury in which the government must prove guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.

The Supreme Court has repeatedly struck down as unconstitutional less egregious
forms of legislative punishment than the Solomon amendment. Twenty years ago,.for example, the Court declared unconstitutional a section of the Immigation and
Nationality Act which stripped pacifists who had fled the country to avoid military
service of their citizenship, whether or not they had been convicted ofodraft eva-
sion.° If this statute was a Bill of Attainder, there can belittle doubt that the Solo-
mon amendment is similarly unconstitutio1W.

'Section 1113 of the Department of Defense Authorization Act of 1983, Public Law 97-252, 96
Stat. 748 11982), codified as section 12(f) of the Military Selective Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App.
§462(11 (1982).

2 Doe v. Selective Service System, Minn.),ayin3-82-1670 (D. Minn.
'Quoted in III, J.C. Hamilton lie

q
ry. of the Republic of The United States" (1859) at 34.

4 United States v. Lovett, 328 U.S. 303, 318 (1946). See also United States v. Brown, 381 U.S.
437, 442 (1965); Cummings v. Missouri, 4 Wall. 277, 18 L.Ed. 366 (1867); Fletcher 1v. Peep, 6Cranch 87, 138, 3 L.Ed. 162 (1810).

6 Kennedy v. MendozaMartinez, 372 U.S. 144 (1963).
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Mr. Chairman, much more is at stake here than enforcement of the draft registra-
tion laws or the integrity of federal student loan programs. The implications of the
Solomon amendment are exceptionally dangerous and far-reaching. The use of Bills
of Attainder is a legislative strategy that can be pursued in many ways for many
political purposes. If this amendment remains law, what is to stop the Congress, for
example, from passing a statute denying Small Business Administration loans with-
out a trial to businesses suspected of violating environmental protection laws, or
barring veterans' benefits without a trial to anyone who has not filed an income tax
return on time, or precluding FHA mortgage applications without a trial to persons
who do not file affidavits swearing that they are not members of the Communist
Party, or the John Birch Society, the lgajority, assuming it could be made
illegal to join any of those organ' tions? None of these hypotheticals is far-fetched
and all of them are Bills of At finder. They pose a serious threat to our constitu-
tional system all the more so because the Solomon' amendment shows how easy
and attractive they are to pass.

Unfortunately, the defects of the Solomon amendment are not limited to its status
as a Bill of Attainder. Let me briefly list four other major constitutional flaws in
the statute. First, it violates the Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimina-
tion, on the one hand, by penalizing students who assert the privilege and decline to
file a statement of compliance, and on the other hand, by forcing those who do file
Statements of Compliance to incriminate .themselves if they have not registered.
Second, the statute violates the Equal Protection requirements of the Constitution
by discriminating against middle-class and poor students who need federal loans to
attend college. As Senator David Durenburger (R-MN) pointed out when the amend-
ment was debated in the Senate, "We [are] punishing middle-class lawbreakers
more than we punish those who are wealthy enough to pay their own way through
college, and more than those who do not attend college at all." 6 Third, the statute
discriminates unconstitutionally on the basis of race, because it will have a dispro-
portionate impact on minority students who are especially reliant on federal aid in
obtaining post-secondary education.

Fourth, and finally, the Solomon amendment discriminates on the basis of sex be-
cause it will affect only male applicants for federal tuition assistance. Any statute
that classifies individuals on the basis of gender must have an "exceedingly persua-
sive justification," as Justice O'Connor pointedibit in an important Supreme Court
sex discrimination opinion last year.' These is Lo justification, let alone an "exceed-
ingly persuasive justification," for differentiating between men and women when it
comes to determining their eligibility for student financial aid.

These, then, are the constitutional flaws in the statute. I urge the Subcommittee
to weigh them carefully, together with the substantial burden on academic freedom
posed both by the statute and the proposed implementing regulations, and conclude
that whatever one's opinion may be about draft registration, the Solomon,amend-
rnent is a profoundly dangerous and counterproductive law. I respectrully submit.
that the Congress should not wait for the federal courts to invalidate it, but should
take prompt action to rectify the constitutional harm that has been done by its en-
actment. In this regard I urge the Subcommittee to report favorably H.R. 1286, a
bill to repeal Section 1113 of the Defense Dbpartment Authorization Act of 1983.

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. Thank you for the op-
portunity to appear before the Subcommittee.

Attachments.

128 Cong. Rec. 54946 (daily ed. May 12, 1982).
Mississippi University for Women v. Hogan, U.S. , 73 L.Ed. 2d 1090, 1095 (1982).
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Appendix

[Exceipts From Plaintiffs\' Memorandum in Support of Motion for Preliminary
Injunction, MPIRG and Doe v. Selective Service System, Civ. No. 8 -82 -1670 (D. Minn.)

otion for Preliminary Injunction Pending)]

I. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF SHOULD BE GRANTED AS THIS CONSTITUTIONAL CHALLENGE OF
SECTION 1118 or THE DEFENSE AUTHORIZATION ACT IS LIKELir To SUCCEED ON THE
MERITS

A. SECTION 118 LEGISLATIVELY DETERMINES GUJIfr AND INFLICTS PUNISHMENT UPON AN
EASILY ASCERTAINABLE GROUP WITHOUT THE PROTECTIONS OF A JUDICIAL TRIAL, AND IS
THEREFORE AN UNCONSTITUTIONAL BILL OF ATTAINDER

The first article of the United States Constitutiodspecifically states:
"No Bill of Attainder or Ex Poet Facto Law shall be passed [by the Congress]."

U.S. Const. art. I, § 9, cl. 3.
This prohibition, along with a similar ban applicable to the states, clearly and

specifically denies legislatures the right to punish individuals and identifiable
groups through the use of Bills of Attainder.

Widespread support for prohibition of these bills by the Constitutional Trainers
resulted', in large part, from English abuses of the legislative power of Attainder.
This power allowed the Parliament to bypass the often cumbersome judicial process
in order to legislatively declare an individual or identfiable group guilty of crimes
and sentence them to death. A similar power allowed the isski g of Bing of Pains
and Penalties for less serious offenses. II Wooddeson, A Syste tical View of the
Laws of England, p. 638 (1792).

Bills of Attainder and of Pains and Penalties were primaril punitive in nature
and were often directed at rebellious nobility and those accused of treason. Bills of
Attainder implied capital punishment, while Bills of Pains and Penalties often in-
cluded punishments such as banishments, forfeiture of property, and "corruption of

the blood" which interrupted the offenders line of succession. Chafee, Jr. Three
Human- Rights in the Constitution of 1787, (1956). There are numerous examples,
however, where these bills were used as deterrents or as incentives for alleged of-
fenders to present themselves for judicial trial. Chafee, Id. at 108-118; See also "Act
for the Attainder of the Pretended Prince of Wales of High Treason," 13 Will. 3, c.3
(1700).

The use of Bills of Attainder an of Pain and Penalities was not limited to Eng-
land. During the American Revolution all thirteen states passed Bills of Pains and
Penalties against those who remained loyal to the English crolvn. Respublica v.
Gortlen,s1 Dail. 233, 1 L.Ed. 115; Cooper v. Telfair, 4 Doll. 14, 1 L.Ed. 721, See also

4 Thompson, Anti-Loyalist Legislation During the American Revolution, 3 Ill. L. Rev.
81, 147.

As a direct result of English and American abuses of the power of Attainder such
bills were specifically prohibited by the Framers of the Constitution. The reasoning
which underlies this unanimous decision is best expressed by Alexander Hamilton:

"Nothing is more common than for a free people, in times of heat and violence, to
gratify momentary passions, by letting into the government principles and prece-
dents which afterwards prove fatal to themselves. Of this kind is the doctrine of dis-
qualification, disfranchisement, and banishment by Acts of the legislature. The dan-
gerous consequences of this power are manifest. . . . gy it [the legislature] may
banish at discretion all those whom particular circumstances render obnoxious,
without hearing or trial, no man can be safe, nor know when he may be the inno-
cent victim of a prevailing faction. The name of liberty applied to such a govern
ment, would be a mockery of common sense." III (John C.) Hamilton, History of the.
Republic of the United States p. 34, (1859).

The United States Supreme Court after considering both the infamous history of
Bills of Attainder and the response to that history of the 1787 Constitutional Con-
grese, has concluded that, "When our Constitution and Bill of Rights' were written,
our ancestors had ample reason to know that legislative trials and punishments
were too dangerous to liberty to exist in the nation of free men they envisioned, and
they proscribed Bills of Attainder." U.S. v. Lovett, 328 U.S. 803, 318, (1946).

The Constitutional proscription of Bills of Attainder has been broadly interpreted
by the Supreme Court to include Bills of Pains and penalties. In FletAher v. Peck, 6
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Cranch 87, 138, 3 L. Ed. 162 (1810), Chief Justice Marshal stated that, "fa] bill of
attainder may affect the life of an individual, or may confiscate his property, or
may do both. ' So too has the Court done away with requirements that the pro-
scribed Bill of Attainder identify offenders by name or specifically declare their
guilt. Cummings v. Missouri, 4 Wall. 277, 18 L. Ed. 366 (1867); Kr Parte Garland, 4
Wall. 333, 18 L. Ed. 366 (1867). The perspective of the Supreme Court in identifying
Bills of Attainder was clearly stated by the Court in United States v. Brown:

"The best available evidence, the writings of the architects of our constitutional
system, indicated that the Bill of Attainder Clause was intended not as a narrow,
technical (and therefore soon to be outmoded) prohibition, but rather as an imple-
mentation of the separation of powers, a general sageguard against legislative exer-
cise of the Judicial function, °Atmore simply-trial by legislature." 381 U.S. 437, 442,
(1965).

The Supreme Court has consistently defined Bills of Attainder in such a way as to
include three key elements. These three elements were most recently outlined' in
Nixon v. Administrator of General Services, 433 U.S. 425, 468 (1977), where' the
Court defined Bills of Attainder as legislation which: first determines guilt of an in-
dividual or identifiable group; second, inflicts punishment upon that individual or
group; and finally, inflicts punishment without the protections of a judicial trial. See
United States v. Brown, 381 U.S. at 445, 447; United States v. Lovett, 328 U.S. at
315-316; Cummings v. Missouri, 4 Wall. at 323, 18 L. Ed. 363. Each of the elements
of a Bill of Attainder will be addressed in the context of Section 1113. It *ill be
demonstrated that Secton 1113 both determines the guilt of alleged non-registrants
and inflicts punishment, all without benefit of Judicial trial.
1. Section 1113 legislatively determines the guilt of an easily ascertainable group.

In order for a legislative act to qualify as a Bill of Attainder it must impose pun-
ishment without benefit of judicial trial upon a specific individual or an easily as-
certainable group. Cummings, supra; Lovett, supra; Brown, supra. Section 1118 of
the Defense Authorizations Act is very specifically directed at an easily ascertain-
able group in much the same way that Missouri's State Constitution was directed at
doctors, lawyeo and clergymen in Cummings, and the Labor-Management Report-
ing and Disclosure ActAvas directed at Labor Union Officers in Brown. In both of
these cases the legislation in question required that members of the targeted groups
take affirmative act on, in the form of an oath or confirmation, in order to escape
the presumption of guilt placed upon them by the legislative action. In Cummings,
Brown 'alld now in Secton 1113 the offensive legislation is spcifically targeted at a
group which was identifiable prior to the legislation in question. Brow/1,0381 U.S. at
450-452.

Section 1113, like other examples of Legislative Bills of Attainder, is directed at a
very specific group of persons, in this case young male students who require finan-
cial aid to complete their college educations but cannot truthfully submit state-
ments of compliance in accordance with Section 1113. That section reads in relevant
part:

"(f)(1) Any person w,ho is required under section 3 to present himself for and
submit to registration under such section and fails to do so in accordance with any
proclamation issued under such section, or in accordance with any rule or registra-
tion issued under such section, shall be ineligible for any form of assistance or bene-
fit provided under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965.

"(2) In order to receive any grant, loan or work assistance under Title IV of the
Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1070 et.seq.), a person who is required
under Section 3 to present himself for and submit to registration under such section
shall file with the institution of higher education which die person intends to
attend, or is attending, a statement of compliance with secton 3 and regulations
issued thereunder." Pub. Law 97-252 (2nd Sess.) 1982 (Codified at 50 U.S.C. App.
§462).

The legislative mandate of this section is directly analogotts to the oath require-
ments placed upon doctors, lawyers and clergymen in Ciirrinungs, supra. In that case
the Missouri State Legislature enacted a post-Civil War amendment to the State
Constitution which required every member of the targeted groups to swear an oath
that, among other thinfs, they had never, "been in armed hostility to the United
States," nor had'they, ' entered or left the State for the purpose of avoiding enroll-
ment or draft in the military service of the United States." 4 Wall. at 318, 18 L. Ed.
at 361. Any member of the targeted groups who failed to truthfully swear the re-
quired oath was automatically disbarred from their vocation. Cummings, a priest,
refused to take the required oath and challenged his,disbarment from his chosen
vocation.
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In striking down the Amendment as an unconstitutional Bill of Attainder the
U.S. Supreme Court dismissed arguments that the legislation failed to specifically
find guilt in those who failed to take the required oath. The Court described the
difference between specific declaration of guilt and an Act which in effect assumed
guilt as, "one of form only, and not of any substance." The Court continued, "The
existing clauses presume the guilt of priests and clergymen and adjudge the depri-
vation of their right to preach or teach unless the presumption be first removed by
their expurgatory oathin other words, they tthe State Legislattire] assume theguilt and adjudge the punishment conditionally.' 4 Wall. at 324, 18 L.Ed 363.

A similar example of legislative assumptions of guilt can be found in U.S. v.
Brown, supra, where the Labor-Management Reporting and Disclosure Act of 1959
conditioned a labor union's access to thef National Labor Relations Board, a vitalelement of the union's effectiveness, upon the filing of affidavits by all of the
union's officers attesting that they were not members of the Communist party." 318
U.S. at 439. In holding the Labor-Management Reporting & isclosure Act an un-
constitutional Bill of Attainder the Supreme Court cities wit approval the reason-
ing of Cumming v. Missouri, supra. 281 US. at 447-449. .

Congress, through the enactment of Section 1113, has revived the same offensive
legislative techniques condemned in Cummings and in Brown. Section 1113 assumes
the guilt of all draft age male students and punishes them conditionally. If they fail
to submit the required "Statement of Compliance" they are automatically denied
financial aid, and therefore the higher education for which they would otherwise
qualify. Much like the clergymen in Cummings or the Labor Union officials in
Brown, male students who cannot truthfully submit the required oath are punished
automatically, inescapably and without protection of judicial trial.

As in Cummings, supra, Section 1113 requries an oath from each member of the
target group relating to that ,individual's past actions. Based on that past action,
punishment under Section 1113 is inescapable for many members of the targeted
group. As noted supra., Section 1113 punishes any person who fails to register, "in
accordance with any proclamation issued under such,section, or in accordance with
any rule or regulation issued under this section . . ." 50 U.S.C. App. § 453(0(1). Cur-
rent regulations, 32 CFR § 1600, et seq. and Executive Order No. 4771, 45 Fed. Reg.
45247 (July 2, 1980), both require young men to register with the Selective Service
within thirty (30) days of their eighteenth birthday. For those members of the target
group who have failed to register within that period the legislative determination ofguilt and the corresponding infliction of the punishment is automatic and inescap-
able. American Communications Association v. Douds, 339 U.S. 382, 413 (1949). The
practical effect of Section 1113 is that members of the target group who are unable
to prove their innocence are automatically found guilty of failing to register, a
criminal offense, and are legislatively punished.

This method of legislatively determining guilt and imposing punishment has beenaddressed in the Supreme Court in Kennedy v. Mendoza-Martinez, 372 U.S. 144
(1963). In that case, the Court declared unconstitutional that portion of the Immi-
gration and Nationality Act of 1952, 8 U.S.C. § 1481(a) which stripped pacifists who
fle the country to avoid military service of their U.S. citizenship, whether or notth had been convicted of draft evasion. The Court held such assumptions of guilta inflictions of punishment to be in direct violation of the Fifth and Sixth Amend-
ments to the Constitution. The Court concluded: ". . . Congress in these sections de-
creed an additional .punishment for the crime of draft avoidance in the special cate-
gory of cases wherein the evader leaves the country. It cannot do this without pro-
v ding the safeguards which must attend a criminal prosecution." 372 U.S. at 184,

1,.se Trop (1. Dulles, 356 U.S. 86 (1962).
; In an identical fashion Section 1113 calls for additional sanctions for persons al-ready liable for prosecution for non-registration under the Selective Service Act

), imply because of their current or anticipated status as students. These additional
/ sanctions are applicable to members of this target group regardless of whether or

not they have been convicted of draft evasion before a Judicial Court with all of its
protections. For Congress to so determine guilt and inflict punishment for a charge-
able criminal offense not only filies in the face of Kennedy, but also deprives individ-
uals of the due process protections guaranteed by the Fifth and Sixth Amendmentsto the U.S. Constitution.
.2. Section 1113 legislatively inflicts punishment upon an easily ascertainable group

Legislative infliction of punishment is generally accepted as an essential element
in violations of the Bill of Attainder Clause. Cummings, supra; Flemming v. Nester,
363 U.S. 603 (1959); Communist, Party of the U.S. v. Subversive Activities Control
Board, 367 U.S. 1 (1960); Brown, supra. "Punishment" as an element of a Bill of At-
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tainder violation has been defined in vatious ways throughout this country's consti-
tutional history. A common element of these definitions has been that punishment
is more broadly defined that Simply the deprivation of life, liberty or property.
Early definitions of punishment established by the Supreme Court include the de-
privation of the right to enjoy life, liberty and property and to pursue chosen voca-
tions and occupations:

"The deprivation of any right, civil or political, proviously enjoyed may be punish-
ment; the circumstances attending and the causes of the deprivation determining
this fact. Disqualification from office may be punishment, as in cases of conviction
or impeachment. Disqualification from the pursuits of a lawful avocation, or from a
position of trust, or from the privilege of appearing in courts, or acting as an execu-
tor, administrator, or guardian,' may also, and often has been; imposed as punish-
ment." Cummings, 4 Wall., at 320, 18 L.Ed at 62.

More current Supreme Court , efinition recognize that punishment need not
always be punitive but may be im foria variety of different purposes. As noted
in Brown, 381 U.S./at 458:

It would be archaic to limit the definition of "punishment" to "retribution". Pun-
ishment serves sqveral purposes; retributive, rehabilitative,, deterrent-and preven-
tive. One of the rkisons society imprisons those convicted of crimes is to keep them
from inflicting future harm, but that does not make imprisonment any less punish-
ment."

The determin tion of whether legislative sanctions do indeed constitute punish-
ment hinges, i large part, upon the factual circumstances yvhich surround those
legislative san ions. Nixon v. Administrator of General Services, supra. In evaluat-
ing those surr nding circumstances several tests have traditionally been applied to
determine th character of the legislatively imposed sanctions. These tests have
been outlined /by the Supreme Court in Kennedy v. Mendoza-Martinez, 372 U.S. at
168-169, and are as follows:

"Whether the sanction involves an affirmative disability or restraint, whether it
has historically been regarded as punishment, whether it comes into play only on a
finding of scienter, whether its operatirm will promote the traditional alms of pun-
ishment-retribution and deterrence, whether the behavior to which it applies is al-
ready a crime, whether an alternative purpose to which it may rationally be con-
nected is assignable for it, and whether it appears excessive in relation to the alter-

, native purpose assigned are all relevant to the inquiree, and may often point in dif-
ferent airections. Absent conclusive evidence of congressional intent as to the penal
nature of the statute these factors must be condidered in relation (o the statute on
its face."

With this definition, which is consistent with recent Supreme Court decisions, in
mind, Section rii3 will be condidered in light of each of the outlined criteria. These
considerations demonstrate Chat the legislation in question is indeed punitive and
can serve no purpose except those usually achieved by junishment retribution and
deterrence.

a. Congressional intent. The tests set forth in Kennedy, Supra, are by definition
only employed in the absence of conclusive evidence of penal intent on the part of
Congress. The short but direct legislative history of Section 1113, like that of the
legislation struck down in Kennedy, clearly demonstrates that Congress had no in-
tention but to apply additional punishment to a particular group of persons who
wore already subject to criminal prosecution and punishment under Section 12 of
the Selective Service Act. 50 U.S.C. App. § 462. In the words of the Amendment's
sponsor, spoken on the floor of the U.S. House of Representatives:

". . . I intend not only to offer this amendment to this legislation, but as other
legislation comes down the pike, such as the jobs training bill, such as home loans
in various categories, I intend to offer the same amendment until every young man
is deprived of any kind of Federal assistance unless he has obeyed the law. . . ."
Comments of Representative Solomon, 128 Cong. Rec. H4757, (July 28, 1982).

This comment was followed by those of Representative Montgomery, who agreed,
"As the gentleman said, the 500,000 [who have not registered], it is a felony, they
have violated the law, and they are not entitled to ,those educational beifefitk.
Cong. Rec. 11.4757. This Congressional call was clearly for additional penaltieS to
supplement the already stiff sanctions (5 years imprisonment or $10,000 fine or
both) imposed by the Selective Service Act upon conviction of failure to register for
the draft, a felony-The imposition of additional penalties was questioned..by some
Representatives:

"I also question th premise that [additional] punishment shouldte used in order
to induce young, men o obey the law. This amendment has the obvious primary ob-
jective of increasing t e number of men registered for the draft. HOwever, it also
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has a secondary, and more subtle, objective, which is to punish those individuals
who do not register." Comments of Representative Edgar, 12R Cong. Rec. H4760,
(July 28, 1982). Each motivation for passage of the Amendment expressed in House
floor debates was one associated with punishment, either Ntribution for failing to
register or deterrence as a method of enforcing an .unpopulall law. No mention was
made about the Amendment's relationshi to the goals of the Higher Education Act
or to any other education objectives. uite to the contrary, as Representative
Schroeder clearly demonstrated, the link etween t e Selective Service and the De-
partnient of Education is tenuous indeed:

"Do we really want to deputize America's bankers t4nforce the selective service
law? Do we really want to deputize all the different schools to enforce the selective
service laws? Let me propose a further amendment. I think every student ought to
be registered to vote. Do we want to say that before they get student aid we want to
make sure that they are-registered to vote? Do we want to say that anybody who is
violating the EPA laws cannot get SBA loans? I mean, we can turn this thing into a
big, gigantic police state, and I think that is the problem" 128 Cong. Rec. H4762,
(July 28, 1982).

The Congressional Record provides conclusive evidence that Congress at no time
considered educational objectives or mything even vaguely related to education
(save administrative inconvenience) in enacting this Amendment. Instead, Congress
focused its energies on the infliction of additional sanctions upon. non-registrants
with two stated goals in mind, to punish those who had violated the law.. and to
deter future non-compliance through this example. The intent of Congress is also
revealed in that Section 1113 was designed not as part of any education act but as
an amendment to the Section of the Selective Service Act which imposes sanctions.

As in Brown, both retribution and deterrence fall squarely within the definition of
punishment. The very punishment that the Congress is /rot at liberty to inflict upon
an identifiable group without benefit of judicial trial. 381 U.S. at 458-460. The moti-
vations expressed by the author of this Amendment and its supporters provide con-
clusive evidence of the Congressional intent to punish a specific group of young men
for their failure to register for the draft.

b. Affirmative disability or restraint. Despite this clear showing of Congressional
intent to punish, it will nevertheless be demonstrated that Section 1113 meets each
test put forth in Kennedy for determining if legislative enactments constitute pun-
ishment.

Section 1113 involves both a restraint and an affirmative disability upon male stu-
dents. Section 1113 specifically prohibits students from receiving educational bene-
fits undo y title IV of the Higher Education Act of 196;x. unless they are able to
truthfulry submit a "Statement of Compliance" as required by that section. For
those students who are unable to comply with that requirement because of past
acts, i.e., fAilure to register within the thirty day time limit, Section 1113 constitutes
restraint. Those students are restrained from applying for or receiving financial aid
to attend institutions of higher_ learning in this country. Perhaps more significant
than the initial restraint on receiving financial aid is the disability which flows
from that restraint. In the case of a significant number of financial aid recipients,
denial of financial aid in effect places an affirmative disability upon them id that
they are unable to 'attend an institution of higher education. This disability in turn
will prevent that individual from pursuing the vocation of their choice and from

for various careers. Al s noted by the Fifth Circuit in Dixon v. Alabama
State Board of Education, 294 F. 2d 1.50, 157 (5th Cir. 1961):

"It requires no argument to demonstrate, hat education is vital and, indeed, basic
to civilized society. Without sufficient education the plantiffs would not be able to
earn an adequate livelihood, to enjoy life to the fullest, or to fulfull as completely as
possible the duties and responsibilities of good citizen."

These cases indicate that restraints upon a student's ability to receive financial
aid, and therefore to attend institutions of higher education constitute a disability

N, not unlike the disability suffbred by doctors, lawyers and clergymen in Cummings,
supra, or the disability suffered by government' employees in Lovett, supra, or final-
ly, disability suffered by labor-union officials in Brown, supra.

As argued in Cummings:
"You can punish in two ways: you can charge with the alleged crime and prove it,

punish for it; or you can require a party to purge himself on oath and if he refuses,
punish him by exclusion from privilege or employment. To exclude from office, to
exclude from employment, to disqualify from any career usually open to the citizen
is punishment." 4. Wall. at 290, 18 L.Ed at

c. Historically recognized as punishment.Deprivation of benefits previously en-
joyed has historically been considered punishment in the context of Bills of Attain-
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der. Punishment for Bills of Attainder in Britain often included forfeiture of lands,
personal property or royal charters. Such punishments may also include removal
from office or from vocation. Chaffee, Three Human Rights in the Constitution of
1787, pgs. 103-105 (1965). Early colonial legislative sanctions ofter contained condi-
tional Bills of Attainder as a method for attaining oaths of allegiance from loyalists
under threats of forfeiture Or banishment. III Hamilton, History of the Republic of
the United States, pg. 25 (1819).

Early Supreme Court precedentmost notably Fletcher v. Peck, and Cummings v.
Missouri, stands for the propos4j02 that Bill of Attainder clause is not be restricted
to statutes inflicting any rigidly daTned class of deprivation. Fletcher included Bills
of Pains and Penalties within the definition of Bills of Attainder, while Cummings
specifically expands the scope of attainder beyond the deprivation of life, liberty or
property to "include under liberty freedom from outrage on the feelings as well as
restraints on the person . . . under property those estates which one may acquire" in
professions, although they are often the source of the highest emoluments and
honors. 4 Wall. at 320, 18 L.Ed at 362. The Court then goes on to explain the under-
lying rationale for this definition of protective rights:

"A theory upon which our political institutions rest is that all men have certain
inalienable rightsthat among these are life, liberty and the pursuit of happiness;
and that in the pursuit of happiness all vocations, all honors, all positions, are open
to everyone . any deprivation or suspension of any of these rights 'for past con-
duct is punishment. . . 4 Wall. at 321-322, 18 L.Ed at 362 (emphasis added).

Throughout the history of Bills of Attainder both in England and in the American
states, legislatures have attempted, without benefit of judicial trial, to deprive citi-
zens of not only the traditionally recognized rights to life, liberty and propery, but
also to the rights ass(ziated with the pursuit of happiness, those being the right to
choose and pursue a vocation, the right to a career and the honors that go with
position. Section 1113 attempts to deprive students of their means of attending insti-
tutions of higher education and therefore of their ability to pursue and achieve vo-
cations and careers which make their lives meaningful and productive.

d. Effective only on finding of scienter Section 1113 does not come into play only
on a finding of scienter, instead the Section goes one step further in assuming
scienter on the part of all male students who apply for financial aid. The practical
effect of this legislation is that every student who fails to affirmatively demonstrate
that he is in compliance with Section 3 of the Selective Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App.
§ 453, is assumed to possess the guilty intent of not registering. Therefore, Congress
is in fact administering punishment for the crime of non-registration without re-
quirilthat one of its key elements, willfulness or guilty knowledge, be demonstrat-
ed, U v. Boucher, 509 F.2d 991 (8th Cir. 1975).

e. Promotion of aims of punishment.Section 1113 as noted in § a. supra. perfectly
promotes the two traditional aims of punishmentretribution and deterrence. Trop.
v. Dulles, 356 U.S. at 96. It is evident from the face of the legislation in question
that Congress could have had only two intentions in enacting Section 1113. The first
intention clearly must bt4 retribution. Through this Act, which amends the enforce-
ment section of the Selective Service Act, Congress is attempting to Tidd additional
punishment to the already grave sanctions imposed by the Selective Service Act, for
those who fail to register in accordance with that Act. Congress has merely sought
to expedite the prosecution procedure by legislatively inflicting punishment as the
Courts are currently overburdened with cases due to a relatively high rate of non-
compliance with the registration requirement. This effort on the part of Congress is
directly analogous to its attempt in 1959 to revoke the citizenship of those young
men who fled the United States in an effort to avoid being drafted for the Vietnam,
War. Fleeing the country to avoid the draft was already punishable as a criminal
offense _and Cpngress' attempted disenfranchisement of those persons was struck
down by the Supreme Court as an effort to inflict additional punishment upon these
draft evaders over and above the current criminal sanction. Kennedy, supra.

A second integral part of Congress' intention in levying this additional sanction
upon those already liable for criminal prosecution was one of deterrence. By threat-
ening to deprive non-registrants of financial aid benefits which are crucial to their
future vocational and career pursuits, Congress is clearly attempting to deter or dis-
suade future non-registrants from their chosen course.

f. Non registration is already a criminal offense.Failing to register for the draft
is currently a punishable, criminal offense under Section 12 of the Selective Service
Act, 50 ^U.S.C. App. § 462. Under that section those who knowingly refused to regis-
ter in accordance upon conviction can be fined up to $10,000 or be imprisoned for
not more than five years or both. Clearly, for Congress to impose sanctions in addi-
tion to those already incorporated into the lelective Service Act can be categorized

151

O



147

only as punishmen4The Supreme Court in Kennedy, supra, reviewed a number ofcases in which al dy criminal behavior was penalized in nonjudicial ways. 372U.S. at 168. Itmong these is United States v. LaNarica, 282 U.S. 568, (1931). In thatcase the United States government levied a $1,000 "tax" upon anyone convicted of
selling liquor in violatioiii of the National Prohibition Act, 27 'U.S.C. § 52. This tax
was approximately twice that of what would usually be charged for similar businessactivities. In striking down the tax as being in fact a penalty, the Court said, "No
mere exercise in the art of lexicography can alter the essential nature of an act orthing; and if the exaction be clearly a penalty it carrot be converted to a tax by the
simple expedient of calling it such. 282 U.S. at 572.

The logic employed by the -Court in LaFranca, supra, and Kennedy, supra, alsoapplies to Section 1113, wherein Congress decreed 'additional punishment for thecrime of non-registration in the special category of cases where the non-regiptrant is
a student. Despite attempts to characterize this penalty as a mere conditioning of abenefit, it must be recognized as punishment. The conditioning homestead tax cred-
its upon a loyalty oath was so recognized in Speiser v. Randall, 357 U.S. 513'(1958).
For Congress to administer this punishment without benefit of judicial trial violates
the protections afforded by the Fifth and Sixth Amendments of the Constitution andby the Bill of Attainder clause.

g. Rational alternative purpose.Section 1113 can, by no reasonable interpreta-
tion, bear any rational relationship to a student's qualifications to receive financial
aid for higher education. See §a, supra. While it may be argued that students who
have registered for the draft are better qualified as students, a similar argument

Twas
squarely rejected by the Supreme Court in Cummings,-supra. In that case it was.argued that those who had taken an oath confirming that they had not fled the

state during the civil war to avoid the draft were better qualified as doctors, lawyersand clergymen. The Court's response to this argument follows:
"Qualifications relate to the fitness of capacity of a party for a particular pursuitor profession. . . it is evident from the nature of the pursuits and professions of theparties placed under disabilities by the Constitution of Missouri, that many of theActs, from the taint of which they must purge themselves; have no possible relationto their fitness for the pursuits and professions. There can be no connection betweenthe fact that Mr. Cummings entered or left the state of Missouri to avoid enroll-ment in the draft of military service orthe United States, and his fitness to teachthe doctrines or administer the sacraments of his 'church. . ." 4 Wall. at 319, 18L.Ed at 361-362.
Given this lack of rational relationship between compliance with Section 3 of theSelective Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App. § 453, and eligibility for financial aid withwhich to attend institutions of higher learning, this Court can only be left to con-clude that the purpose for which Section 1113 was enacted is to enforce draft regis-

tration and to punish those who fail to comply.
After considering each of the tests tied by the Supreme Court to determine thepresence of punishment in legislative actions, the conclusion is inescapable thatCongress, by its enactment of Section 1113, has inflicted punishment upon thoseyoung men who are desirous of attending an institution of higher education butcannot afford to do so and who cannot truthfully supply Statements of Compliancein accordance with Section 1113. For Congress to so punish these young men with-out benefit of judicial trial and the protections which it affords constitutes a Bill ofAttainder in violation of the United States Constitution.
h. Excessive in relation to alternativepurpose.Assuming the alternative purposeof Section 1113 is to deny financial aid to young men who are not in compliancewith Section 3 of the Selective Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App. § 453, that section isclearly excessive and is overbroad in its application. U.S. v. Brown, 381 U.S. at 456.The scope of Section 1113 too broadly and indiscriminately deprives students of theright to higher education. Aptheker v. Secretary of State, 378 U.S. 500, 509-511

(1964). This Section not only deprives students who have intentionally failed to reg-ister of the right to higher education, but also all of those who have inadvertentlyfailed to register as well as those who were unaware of the requirement or believedthey were exempt under one of the various provisions of Section 6 of the Selective
Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App. § 456(a). The overbreath of this provision is further dem-onstrated by the fact that tens of thousands of students may be denied financial aiddue to errors in registry by the registrant or government errors in processing.

Each of these applications of Section 1113 demonstrate that this legislation wasenacted without regard to whether there existed any demonstratable relationship.
between the characteristics of the person involved and the evil that Congress soughtto eliminate. As noted in Schware v. Board of Bar Examiners of State of New
Mexico, 353 U.S. 233, 246 (1956), it cannot be automatically inferred that all mem-
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bers of a group, in this case those who fail to file statements of compliance, share
evil purposes or participate in illegal conduct. Congress in passing Section 1113 has
done just that, it has assumed the guilt of every person who fails to swear to their
innocence.
3. Section 1113 of the act legislatively determines guilt and inflicts punishment with-

out benefit of the protections of a judicial trial
The evils sought to be remedied by the Framers of the Constitution in adapting

the bill of attainder clause are twofold: to enforce the carefully designed,separation
of powers and to insure that individual rights not be infringed upon without benefit
to judicial due process. These two evils are clearly in evidence in the enactment of
Section 1113 of the Defense Authorizations Act.

In establishing three separate and distinct branches of government the Framers
hoped not to promote government efficiency but to inspire a system which would
serve as a bulwark against tyranny. In the words of James Madison:

"The accumulation of the powers, legislative, executive, and judiciary, in the same
hands, whether of one, a few, or many, and whether hereditary self-appointed, or
elected, may justly be pronounced the very definition of tryranny." The Federalist,
No. 47, pgs. 373-374 (Hamilton Ed. 1880).

In order to achieve this objective, the Framers sought to guard against such dan-
gers by limiting legislatures and the Congress to the task of rulemaking. This func-
tion was recognized by the Supreme Court in Fletcher v. Peck, supra. when it stated,
"It is the particular providence of the legislature to proscribe general rules for the
government of society; the application of those rules to individuals in society would
seem to be the duty of other departments." 6 Cranch 87, 136, 3 L. Ed. 162. This ro-
tection has been carried forward by the Supreme Court to e present day. In
v. Brown the Court noted:

"The Bill of Attainder clause not only was intended as one slementation of the
general principle of factionalized power, but also reflected t amers' belief that
the legislative branch is not so well suited as politically in ndent judges and
juries to the task of ruling upon the blameworthiness of, and' appropriate
punishment upon, specific person." 381 U.S. at 445.

In addition to concerns expressed by the Framers regarding the separation of
powers between the legislative and judicial branches, it is also clear that due proc-
ess protections extended to the accused under the Fifth and Sixth Amendments of
the Constitution are threatened by legislative infliction of punishment. Thus, if the
Congress made it illegal for pacifists to leave the country for the purpose orevading
the draft but left the courts to determine whether such a purpose was present in
each case, the statute would have bill of Attain* specificity but would not be a bill
of Attainder. If, however, such a statute imposed this sanction 'itomatically with-
out meaningful judicial intervention, it would fall precisely within the Attainder
prohibition. Kennedy, supra. Similarly, if specifically identified individuals were de-
prived of their federal jobs because-they believed to be "subversive" the effect of the
rider would be inflict punishment upon an identifiable group without the safeguard
of judicial trial, and therefore constitute a bill of Attainder. U.S. v. Lovett, supra.

As noted by the Court in Lovett, the bill of Attainder clause was included in the
Constitution, ". . to safeguard the people of this country from punishment without
trial by duly constituted courts." The Supreme Court went on to describe the due
process rights to which every accused is entitled:

"An accused in a Court must be tried by an impartial jury, has the right to be
represented by counsel, must be clearly informed of the charge against him, the law
which he is charged with violating must have been passed before he committed the
act charged, he must be confronted by the witnesses against him,' he must not be
compelled to incriminate himself, he cannot twice be put in jeopardy for the same
offense, and even' after conviction no cruel or unusual punishment can be inflicted
upon him." 328 U.S. at 317-319.

See Chambers v. State of Florida, 309 U.S. 227, 235-238. As these protections were
denied in Kennedy, supra, Lovett, supra, so have they been denied in Section 1113,
which is currently being considered.

It is often argued that Constitutional protection, such as the right to due process
can be altered or diluted as demanded by national security or national defense. In
response to this very argument the Court in Kennedy specifically replied:

It is fundamental that the great powers of Congress to conduct war and to regu-
late the nation's foreign relations are subject to the constitutional requirements of
di* process. The imperative necessity for safeguarding these rights to procedural
due process under the gravest emergencies has existed thrbughout our constitution-
al history, for it is then, under the pressing exigencies of crisis, that there is the
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greatest temptation to dispense with fundamental constitutional guarantees which,
It is feared, will inhibit governmental actions. The Constitution of the United States
is a law for rulers and people, equally in war and in peace, and covers with the' shield of its protection all the classes of men, at all times, under-111 circumstance's."
Ex Parte Mulligan, 4 Wall. 2, 120-121. 372 U.S. at 169-165.

Finally, jt can be argued that due process requirements are fulfilled in that Sec-
tion 1113 authorizes regulations which provide, "the Secretary [of Education] may
afford such persons an opportunity for hearing to establish his compliance [with
Section 3 of the Selective Service it] or for any other purpose; 0 U.S.C. App.
§ 453(f) (4). Not only does this regulation shift the burden of demonstrating compli-
ance or non-compliance with the Selective Service Act from the United States Gov-
ernment to the financial aid applicant, but it also affords no meaningful judicial
protection. This provision provides for none of the protections offered in a criminal
prosecution or indeed before any judicial court. Nor will the Secretary of the De-
partment of Education be able to address the grave constitutional questions em-
bodied in Section 1113. This provision for hearing as enacted by Congress constitutes
merely an afterthought, a due process "band-aid" which demonstrates Congress'
awareness of the Act's lack of due process protection.

For all of these reasons, Section 1113 of the Act clearly, constitutes a bill of Attain-
der as prohibited by Article I of the United States Constitution. The Act determines
guilt and inflicts punishment upon an easily ascertainable group without protection
of judicial trial. The evil of bills of Attainder and the appropriate response of the
judicial branch was best summarized by Alexanger Hamilton when he observed:

"By a limited Constitution, I understand one which contains certain specified ex-
ceptions to the legislative authority; such, for instance, as that it shall pass no bills
of Attainder, no ex post facto laws, and the like. Limitations of this kind can be pre-
served and practiced no other way than through the medium of the courts of justice;
whose duty it must be to declare all acts contrary to the manifest tenor of this Con-
stitution void. Without this, all the reservations of particular rights or privileges
would amount to nothing:" The Federalist, No. 78, pgs. 576 -577 (Hamilton Ed. 1880).

The responsibility of Courts to limit legislative authority by striking down bills of
Attainder is no less crucial to the preservation of individual rights now than it was
when these words were written. As long as legislatures continue to excede.the
bounds of their authority the judiciary has the responsibility to contain them. Sec-
tion 1113 of the DefensL Authorization Act clearly excedes the legislative limits out-
lined by Article -I of the United States Constitution.

SECTION 1113 OF THE DEFENSE AUTHORIZATION ACT, IN REQUIRING "CERTIFICATE OF
COMPLIANCE" OF FINANCIAL AID APPLICANTS' VIOLATES THE FIFTH AMENDMENT PRO-,TECTION AGAINST-SELF-INCRIMINATION

The Fifth Amendment protection-against disclosing incriminating information ap-
plies to both formal and informal proceedings, oral proceedings and written submis-
sions. This protection is based on the recognition that our system of government is
accusatorial, not inquisitorial, and that the government must therefore gather evi-
dence for criminal,prosecutions without demanding the assistance of the defendant.
Malloy v. Hogan, 378 U.S. 1, 7-8 (1964). Due to the historical significance of this
right, the Supreme Court has rejected narrow construction of the Fifth Amendment
in favor of broad application of this protection. Ullman v. United States, 350 U.S.
422 (1956); Quinn v. United States, 349 U.S. 155 (1955). Under this broad interpreta-
tion an individual may "plead the fifth" during any government proceeding where
he or she believes they might incriminate themselves. In Re Gault, 378 U.S. 1
(1967).

Certain students will be required to incriminate themselves in order to comply
with the requirements of Section 1113, in that "Certificates of Compliance" are re-
quired of all draft-age students as part of the financial aid application process. If
these students either fail to submit the required proof of compliance or refuse to
supply this information under protection of the Fifth Amendment Right against
self-incrimination they will automatically forfeit their right to apply for or to re-
ceive financial aid under the Higher Education Act. Forfeiture of this aid not only
means loss of actual dollars to the student, but also forfeiture of the right to higher
education and to pursue a chosen career for which the student is otherwise quali-
fied.

1. Applicants are entitled to invoke the privilege against self-incrimination during
the process of applying for financial aid

The Fifth Amendment right against self-incrimination extends to the proCess of
.applying for and receiving financial aid for post-secondary education under Title IV
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of the Higher Education Act. The Fifth Amendment right can be claimed in any
governmental proceeding, be it criminal or civil, administrative or judicial, investi-
gatory or adjudicatory. In re Gault, 387 U.S. 1, 147-49 (1967); Murphy v. Waterfront
Commissioner of NY Harbor, 378 U.S. 52 (1964). The distribution of financial aid
benefits is a governmental proceeding and is regulated by the United States Depart-
ment of Education. 20 U.S.C. § 1070 et seq. Each college or university administering
the programs established under Title IV of the Higher Education Act has a stand-
ard process for distributing such aid. Historically, a proceeding, both in common
parlance and legal terms, implies a progressive course of action involving estab-
lished procedures. See Beers v. Houghton, 34 U.S. 329, 362 (1835). Clearly, the steps a
student must take to receive federal financial aid constitutes an administrative pro-
ceeding protected by the right against self-incrimination.

Each required step in the aforementioned process is protected by the right against -
self incrimination. See Lyncy v. Baxley, 386 F. Supp. 378, 394 (1974). Therefore, any
statement which a college student must make as part of the financial aid applica-
tion process is also protected by the Fifth Amendment. Section 1113 of the Defense
Authorization Act specifically requires a student to file a written statement of com-
pliance with draft registration requirements established pursuant to Section 3 of the
Selective Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App. § 462(f)(2), with his school in order to obtain
financial aid. Written, as well as oral, statements are covered by the right against
self-incrimination. Albertson v. SACB, 382 U.S. 70, 78 (1965). Issuance of such state-
ments of compliance is a mandatory step in a process which is protected by the
Fifth Amendment. Consequently, students are protected by the Fifth Amendment
when they issue written statements of compliance with draft registration laws as
part of the financial aid application process.
2. Students who apply for financial aid under title IV of the Higher Education Act

will incriminate themselves for failure to comply with section 3 of the Selective
Service Act

There is a grave potential that students will incriminate themselves under the
proof of draft registration requisite to receiving financial aid, and therefore be
stripped of their Fifth Amendment protection. The required information, which
could be used in a criminal prosecution, or provide leads o other incriminating evi-
dence, could directly result in their prosecution. Gault, 7 U.S. at 47-48, Murphy,
378 U.S. at 52.

Section 1113 requires male students between the ages of 18 and 26 to directly and
indirectly provide information concerning their registration status. Students must
file a "Certificate of Compliance" with the registration requirements in order to re-
ceive financial aid under Title IV of the Higher Education Act. Students who issue
false statements either because of mistaken belief of compliance or uncertaintly re-
garding the requirement will directly incriminate themselves for perjury and non-
compliance. Students who feel they have a valid defense to violation of the registra-
tion requirement and wish to contest a denial of financial aid due to an inadequate
statement of compliance will directly be forced to incriminate themselves for failure
to comply in a forum totally unrelated to the Selective Service System. Students
who forego financial aid will incriminate themselves because of their conspicuous
absence in or failure to complete the application process. The information supplied
by these students could lead to a criminal felony conviction carrying a possible
$1 00 fine and 5 year prison term. 50 U.S.C. App. § 462. Applicants should there-
fore be able to claim protection under the Fifth Amendment in response to the fi-
nancial aid office's request for disclosure of information pertaining to draft registra-
tion status.

a. Students who unknowingly provide a false statement of compliance with the Se-
lective Service Act in order to receive financial aid may incriminate themselveq.The
new enforcement provision of the draft registration laws, Section 1113, will ihcrimi-
nate...students who mistakenly believe that they have complied with the registration
provision (Section 3) of the Selective Service Act. The Fifth Amendment protects
against disclosures which may reasonably be believed to be incriminating. Gault,
387 U.S. at 47-48, (1967), Murphy 378 U.S. at 52. The student who applies for finan-
cial aid under the new law must submit a statement of compliance with Section 3 in
order to qualify for financial aid. 50 U.S.C. § 462(0(3). Any man who provides a mis-
takenly false statement of compliance will subject himself to prosecution for perjury
(under 20 U.S.C. § 1097) and non-registration. The Secretary of Education need only
discover the student's error in the verification process. The student's statement of
compliance therefore tends to incriminate him both directly and indirectly. The
statement initiates a verification procedure which indirectly leads to incriminating
evidence concerning non-compliance. Moreover, it provides a prosecutor with evi-

153



151

dence to use directly in establishing perjury (or impeaching the student's testimo-
ny). Students who provide a mistakenly false statement of compliance are therefore
deprived of Fifth Amendment protection.

The Court should note that the possibility of mistaken belief in the draft registra-
tion process is not at all remote. It is as much a crime for men to register more than

thirty days after their eighteenth birthday as it is not to register at all. 50 U.S.C.
App. § 453, 462. One assumes that given resources in the Selective Service System
and governmental prosecutorial discretion, such a violation ordinarily would not be
discovered or prosecuted. However, Owing the verification process, not only will the
student be denied financial aid but, also his own statement may cause him to besingled out for prosecution. Additionally, a student may reasonably believe he is
exempt from registration. Not all men need register. Section 6 of the Selective Serv-
ice Act lists at least ten exemptions from the registration requirement, among them
being members of the armed forces, reserve members on active duty, aliens not ad-
mitted for permanent residence and students enrolled in certain approved programs
at military colleges. 50 U.S.C. App. § 456(a). A student may believe that he is proper-
ly included in one of these categories and discover that he is wrong only after re-
ceiving notice of disqualification from the Secretary of Education. The dangers of
indirect criminal sanction are most apparent here, where a student may unknow-
ingly incriminate himself.

Students who are uncertain as to whether they have complied with Section 3 may
also incriminate themselves. A college education is a very important commodity in
today's society, and many students cannot obtain one without financial aid. See Leg-
islative History of Title IV, Higher Education Act. U.S. Code Cong. and Adm. News
4027 (1965). Dixon v. Alabama State Board of Education, 294 F.2d 150 (5th Cir.
1961). The threat of lost financial aid will encourage needy students who are uncer-
tain of their registration statu8, for any of the reasons enumerated above, to issue a
statement of compliance. Those students will incriminate themselves for perjury
and non-compliance with the Selective Service Act if they guess incorrectly.

b. Students who wish to contest denial of financial aid under the hearing provi-
sion of 50 U.S.C. App. 462(fX.4) will incriminate themselves.The enforcement proce-
dure granting financial aid only to students who have demonstrated compliance
with Section 3 to the Secretary of Education will cause some students to incriminate
themselves at post-denial hearings. Section 1113 requires the Secretary of Education
to give notice of proposed financial aid denial to students who fail to prove that they
have complied with draft registration requirements. The student may then request
a hearing with the Secretary of Education "to establish his compliance or for any
other purpose." 50 U.S.C. App. § 264(0(4). Some students may wish to contest the
Secretary's findings of non-compliance. Other students who are denied financial aid
may choose to seek a hearing in order to establish that they have a valid defense to
non-compliance, and therefore should receive financial aid.

Information which a person discloses at an administrative hearing that can be
used against him at a later criminal trial is incriminating. Melson v. Sard, 402 F.
2d 653, 655 (D.C. Cir. 1968). A prosecutor will be able to use the evidence presented
to the Secretary of Education at a trial for non-registration. Students who make useof the hearing mechanism and are not completely successful will incriminate them-
selves for violation of Section 3. Furthermore, even if they present an adequate de-
fense to the Secretary of Education, they would still be subject to criminal prosecu-
tion because it is the courts that must decide what constitutes an adequate defense
to violation of a criminal statute.

c. Students who do not file a statement of cobiplinace with their college may in-
criminate themselves. The group of students who remain silent, i.e. do not provide
a statement of compliance, do not plead a valid defense, or who fail to apply for
financial aid altogether, may be incriminating themselves for failure to register on
time. The Fifth Amendment right does not merely encompass evidence which may
lead to criminal convictions. It also includes information which would furnish a link
in a chain of evidence which could lead to criminal prosecution. Maness v. Mayers,,i_
419 U.S. 499, 461 (1975). The fact that a student did not apply for financial aid after
Section 1113 was enacted, and did apply and receive aid in other years, is a link
that enforcement officials might well grasp onto in their search for violations. In-
complete applications are also a link.

Evidence a reasonable individual believes could be used against him in a crimnal
trial is incriminating. Manness, supra. The student may reasonably believe that a
prosecuting attorney will use the fact that he did not apply for financial aid or issue
a statement of compliance as evidence of knowing non-compliance in a subsequent
trial. Therefore, students who remain silent, as well as students who mistakenly
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claim compliance and students who wish to contest denial of financial aid, incrimi-
nate themselves under the provisions of Section 1113.
3. Denial of financial aid to students who cannot comply with aid application re-

quirenwnts because certain requirements would tend'to incriminate them uncon-
stitutionally burdens those students' right to claim fifth amendment protection.

Denying financial aid to students who do not prove compliance with Section 3 of
the Selective Service Act is an unacceptably burdensome means of enforcing draft
registration. C(rssional objectives cannot be pursued by means which needlessly
interfere witle exercise of basic constitutional rights. United States v. Jackson,
390 U.S. 570. 582 (1968). The right not to incriminate oneself is a basic constitutional
right. See Jackson. 390 U.S. at 582-583, Turley. supra, Ullman, supra. It cannot be
infringed upon by overly broad enforcement provisions.

. Where burdens on the right against self-incrimination are present, the important
question is whether the effect is unnecessary and therefore excessive. Jackson, 390
U.S. at 582. Congress has many viable means of enforcing draft registration of the
Selective Service Act which do not conflict with students' constitutionally guaran-
teed rights. It could directly prosecute non-registrants. *rect. prosecution would be
consistent with the objectives of the Fifth Amendment 'right against self-incrimina-
tion, as laid out in Malloy and Ullman. Indirect enforcement under Section 1113
would therefore needlessly burden students' ability to assert the right against self-
incrimination and should be sticken.

a. Section 1113 unconstitutionally penalizes studerKCights not to incriminate
themselves. The government cannot constitutionally impose penalties upon stu-
dents' right not to disclose incriminating information concerning their draft status.
The Fifth Amendment guarantees a potential defendant the right to remain silent
until he chooses to speak. as an unfettered exercise of his own will. Malloy, 378 U.S.
at 8. In Spevak v. Klein. 355 U.S. 511, 515 (1967), where a lawyer was disbarred for
refusing to produce incriminating documents, the Supreme Court held that disclo-
sure of incriminating information is not voluntary when the government attaches a
penalty to a person's refusal to incriminate himself. Here, the denial of the ability
to practice a certain profession was found by the Court to be penalty.

Where self-incrimination is involved, a penalty is any sanction which makes as-
sertion of the Fifth Amendment costly. Spevak, 355 U.S. at 515. Contrast the auto-
matic denial of rights under Section 11(13 and in Spevak, supra for failure to supply
required documents under protection of the Fifth Amendment, with Field v. Brown,
610 F. 2d 981 (D.C. Cir. 1979), Cert. Denied. 446 U.S. 939 (1979) where the mere posi-
bility of investigation for failure to supply documents was upheld by the Court in
the face of Fifth Amendment challenges.

Following the reasoning in Spevak, in the instant case, the denial of financial aid
clearly constitutes a sanction which makes non-disclosure of information concerning
draft registration status costly. If forecloses the ability of needy students to obtain a
college education and, subsequently, pursue professions of their selection. The choice
of whether or not to apply for financial aid is hardly a voluntary one.

Post-seCondary education is an important credential in today's society. The Fifth
Circuit Court of Appeals recently found that the-Interest in pursuing higher educa-
tion deserved due process protection, in Dixon v. Alabama State Board of Educa-
tion, the court opined:

"It requii-es no argument to demonstrate that education is vital, and indeed, basic
to civilized society. Without sufficient education the plaintiffs would not be able to
earn an adequate livelihood, to enjoy life to the fullest, or to fulfill as completely as
possible the duties and responsibilities of good citizens." 294 F. 2d at 157.

Indeed, Title IV of the Higher Education Act was originally enacted because Con-
gress recognized the importance of higher education, and that many people, even
from middle class families could not afTord such education without financial assist-
ance. U.S. Code Cong. and Adm. News-4027 (1965). Denial of aid under Secton 1113
would penalize the Fifth Amendment rights of needy students by makin4 a college
education prohibitively expensive. In addition to the threat of disbarment in Spevak,
the Supreme Court has held that the potential loss of a job and employment bene-
fits, Garrity v. New Jersey, 385 U.S. 493 (1967), loss of ability to contract with the
government, Lefkowitz v. Turley, 414 U.S. 70 (1973), and denial of public office to
persons who invoke the right against self-incrimination, Lefkowitz v. Cunningham,
431 U.S. 801 (1977), are all penalties that cannot be imposed upon a person's right to
invoke Fifth Amendment protection. As the Supreme Court said in Cunningham,
these cases settle the fact that the government cannot penalize assertion of the con-
stitutional right against compelled self-incrimination by imposing sanctons to
compel testimony which has not been immunized. Direct economic sanctions and im-
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prisonment are not the only penalties capable of compelling self-incrimination in
violation of the Fifth Amendment. 431 U.S. at 806.

T e denial of finanial aid in the context at bar is a penalty which unconstitution-
al' penalizes students' Fifth Amendment Rights. Therefore, this Court should find
that Section 1113 of the Defense Authorization Act which promotes such penalty is
unconstitutional.

b. Section 1113 unconstitutionally penalized the Fifth Amendment rights of stu-
dents who wish to contest denial of financial aid by depriving them of a meaningful
hearing.Section 1113 of the Defense Authorization Act deprives students of an op-
portunity to contest denial of financial aid for non-compliance with draft registra-
tion requirements without incriminating themselves. The denial of a meaningful
hearing is an unconstitutional penalty.

In Melson, surpra, the Court of Appleals for the District of Columbia held that the
Fifth Amendment was an impermissable burden where the defendant was forced to
remain silent at a parole board hearing in order not to incriminate himself at a
future trial. See also Carter v. McGinnis, 351 F. Supp. 787 (D.C.N.Y. 1972).

Denial of an opportunity to defend oneself without foregoing the right not to in-
criminate oneself was found to be an unconstitutional penalty. Section 1113 provides
that students who are denied financial aid because they fail to comply with registra-
tion procedures can contest the decision at an administrative hearing. Students who
are denied financial aid are deprived of the ability to present evidence at an admin-
istrative hearing without incriminating themselves, just as in Melson. The Court
should adopt the reasoning of Melson and find that depriving students of a chance
to defend themselves without a grant of immunity unconstitutionally penalizes their
right not to incriminate themselves.

The Supreme Court has carefully distinguished cases where only a strategic
choice in presenting a criminal defense is involved. See Baxter v. Palmigiano. 96 S.
Ct. 1551 (1976); Ryan v. State of Montana, 580 F.2d 988 (9th Cir. 1978). Compare
these with the cases herein where non-criminal sanctions, such as denial of finan-
cial aid, flow directly from a person's silence at an administrative hearing. See
Lefkowitz v. Cunningham, 431 U.S. 801 (1977), Lefkowitz v. Turley, 414 U.S., 70
(1973), Spevak v. Klein, 385 U.S.-493 (1967).

c. The government cannot deny financial aid to students who utilize the right
against self incrimination without first proving that those students have not legally
registered for the draft.Section 1113 of the Defense Authorization Act violates the
due process clause of the Fifth Amendment by summarily denying financial aid to
students who claim their right against self-incrimination. The government cannot
constitutionally impute a sinister meaning to a person's exercise of the Fifth
Amendment right. Slochower v. Board of Higher Education of City of New York, 351
U.S. 551, 557 (1956). Thus in Slochower, the City of New York could not fire a teach-
er for refusing to answer questions at a Senate investigation of subversive activities.
They had to first prove his guilt. See also Ault v. Unemployment Compensation
Board of Review, 157 A.2d 375 (1960), where a Pennsylvania court, relying on Slo-
chower, held that a plaintiff who invoked the right to remain silent could not be
denied unemployment benefits. Similarly, in Wieman v. Updegraff 344 U.S. 183,
188-191 (1952), the state could not deny unemployment benefits to people who re-
fused to take loyalty oaths undess it first proved that they had violated a criminal
statute. Laws which penalize the right against self-incrimination, which is claimed
by both the innocent and guilty, are arbitrary and violate the due process clause.

In both Slochower and Wieman the government erred failing to meet the burden
of proving that the people involved were guilty of criminal conduct. Far from as-
suming any burden of proof, the government sought to make the accused party
prove his innocence. The Fifth Amendment self-incrimination clause was put into
the Constitution to ensure that the government, not a potential defendant, carries
the burden of proof. Malloy v. Hogan, 378 U.S. 1, 7-8 (1964). The,government uncon-
stitutionally infringes upon a person's right not to disclose incriminating informa-
tion when it automatically penalizes people who do not come forward and prove
that they are innocent of criminal activity.

In the case at bar, the government also places unconstitutional burdens upon stu-
dents. Fifth Amendment right against self-incrimination by summarily denying
them financial aid unless they prove their innocence. Students may only receive fi-
nancial aid if they prove to the Secretary of Education that they have complied with
Section 3 of the Selective Service Act. Not all students who refuse to prove compli-
ance or cannot prove compliance without risking self-incrimination are quilty of
non-registration. A person may have a reasonable fear of prosecution and yet be in-
nocent of any wrongdoing. The privilege serves to protect the innocent who would
otherwise be snared in ambiguous circumstances. Griswold, The Fifth Amendment
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Today (1955). Like the laws invalidated in Slochower and Wieman, Section 1113 of
the Defense Authorization Act cannot stand because it deprives the plaintiff of due
process by arbitrarily and impermissably attaching sanctions to the right against
self-incrimination.

C. SECTION 1113 DENIES STUDENTS IN NEED OF FINANCIAL AID EQUAL PROTECTION UNDER
THE LAW

I. Section 1113 violates equal protection requirements under the fifth amendment
Section 1113 violates Equal Protection requirements under the Constitution be-

cause it discriminates on the basis of wealth, sex, and age, as well as creating a dis-
parate impact on blacks and other minorities.

a. Section 1113 is discriminatory on the basis of wealth.The Section 1113 re-
quirement to prove compliance with draft registration obligations as a prerequisite
to obtaining federal assistance for post-secondary education establishes an extra
burden and penalty on those who cannot afford to go to college without such assist-
ance. The very purpose of the Higher Education Act and the provisions for federal
financial aid was to encourage attendance to colleges and universities for the ulti-
mate benefit of society. Congress recognized the need for higher education and its
importance to growth in society. Placing an unnecessary burden op this class of stu-
dents constitutes a violation of Equal Protection requirements under the Constitu-
tion on the grounds that it works to discriminate on the basis of wealth.

During the Senate debates which resulted in the passage of Section 1113, Senator
Durenberger of Minnesota argued that Congress, upon approval of this amendment,
"would be punishing [the] middle class . . more than we punish those who are
wealthy enough to pay their own way through college, and more than those who do
not attend college at all." 128 Cong. Rec. 59995 (May 12, 1982). Congressman Del-
lums of California addressed the same issue during the debates on Section 1113 in
the !louse of Representatives:

". . [TJo create at least the dichotomy of those persons in need of Federal pro-
grams and those persons not in need of Federal programs, you have created a di-
chotomy that speaks to discrimination . . . But middle-class individuals, working
poor individuals, and poor people in this country will be the only ones that will be
affected by this kind of legislation." 128 Cong. Rec. H4765 (July 28, 1982).

The Supreme Court has been reluctant to elevate the standard of review of dis-
crimination based upon wealth to that level which is required for discrimination on
the basis of race, religion, or alienage. However, that is not to say that the High
Court has not viewed wealth discrimination with consternation and contempt. It ap-
pears that such discrimination based upon wealth will onlr be suvtained if it is re-
lated to a rational legislative purpose and is not "invidious' Dandridge v. Williams,
397 U.S. 471, 485 (1970). There is absolutely no rational relationship between en-
forcement of the draft requirements of the Selective Service Act and this interfer-
ence with the financial aid process.

The enforcement mechanism for non-registrants is very clear, 50'U.S.C. App. §462
(1981). Non-registration is a crime subject to indictment, trial, conviction, and pun-
ishment, all reflecting the proper constitutional protections. Section 1113 of the De-
fense Authorization Act, adding new Section 12(0 to the Selective Service Act, cre-
ates an unconstitutional burden upon a class of students based upon their lack of
wealth which is wholly unnecessary and serves no legitimate legislative purpose.
Moreover, such a legislative purpose cannot be invented under the guise of

purpose.

security." In fact, the law appears to have been enacted as a result of a personal
crusade by one Congressman, Congressman Solomon of New York:

"As far as the gentleman from California (Mr. Dellums) is concerned, he says they
are discriminating against the wealthy, and maybe the poor. I do not know. But let
me say this; that the majority of the wealthy families in America in years past have
been taking advantage of the college loan programs. They have been borrowing it
whether they needed it or not and investing it in money market securities at 16 and
17 and 18 percent at the taxpayeis' expense in this country.

"Now, maybe we are discriminating against the poor. And if we are, I guarantee I
am going to come back with legislation on this floor tomorrow and the next day and
the next day and every day of this session with amendments that will prohibit any
funds from being used for the Job Training Act if they are not registered, for any
unemployment compensation insurance if they are not registered, and for any kind
of taxpayer's money if they are not registered." 128 Cong. Rec. H4767 (July 28,'
1982).

In light of this discussion, it would be difficult to discover a governmental purpose
to support the sustaining of Section 1113.

\t,
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Justice White's concurring opinion in Vla4dis v. Kline, 412 U.S. 441 (1973), con-
cerning resident and non-resident fees at the University of Connecticut, suggests the
type of review to be proffered by this Court in the instant case:

". [I]t is clear that we employ not just one, or two, but, as my Brother Marshall
has so ably demonstrated, a "spectum of standards in reviewing discrimination al-
legedly violative of the Equal Protection Clause." San Antonio Independent School
District v. Rodriguez, 411 U.S. 1, 98-99 [1973] (dissenting opinion). Sometimes we
just say the claim is "invidious" dud let the matter rest there, as Mr. Justice Stew-
art did, for example, in concurring in Frontiero v. Richardson, 411 U.S. 677 (1973).
But at other times we sustain the discrimination, if it is justifiable on any conceiv-
able rational basis, or strike it down, unless sustained by some compelling interest
of the State, as for example, when a State imposesn discrim- ation that burdens or
penalizes the exercise of a constitutional right. See, e.g. Sh v. Thompson, 394
U.S. 618 (1969). I am uncomfortable with the dichotomy, for it mus ow be obvious,
or has been all along, that, as the Court's assessment of the weight a d value of the
individual interest escalates, the less likely it is that mere administrative conven-
ience and avoidance of hearings or investigations will be sufficient to justify what
otherwise would appear to be irrational discriminations.

"Here, it is enough for me that the interest involved is that of obtaining a higher
education, that the difference between in- and out-of-state tuition is substantial, and
that the State, without sufficient justification, imposes a one year residency require-
ment on some students but not on others, and also refuses, nd matter what the cir-
cumstances, to permit the requirement to be satisfied through bona fide residence
while in school. It is plain enough that the State has only the most attenuated inter-
est in terms of administrative convenience in maintaining this bizarre .pattern of
discrimination among those who must or must not pay a substantial tuition to the
University. The discrimination imposed by the State is invidious and vinlates the
Equal Protection Clause. (Emphasis added.')

Here the interest involved is very definitely that of obtaining a higher education.
The interest', if any, in maintaining Section 1113 does not approach the critical im-
portance of higher education to society and therefore should be struck down.

b. Section 1113 is discriminatory on the basis of sex.Utilizing the same standard
of review as described § a, supra, the Supreme Court has struck down many laws for
discriminating on the basis of sex. Frontier° v. Richardson, 411 U.S. 677 (1973). The
Court in Frontiem found that gender-based classifications cannot be sustained
merely because they promote Somo governmental interest, such as administrative
convenience. At the very least, such a classification "must be reasonable, not arbi-
trary, and rest upon some ground of difference having a fair and substantial rela-
tion to the object of legislation." Reed v. Reed, 404 U.S. 71, 76 (1971) (emphasis ---
added).

Plaintiff.recognizes that the Supreme Court has upheld the sex-based characteris-
tic of the all male draft. Rostker v. Goldberg, 453 U.S. 56 (1980). However, J. Bren-
nen, in deciding upon the appropriateness of a stay of the lower court decision in-
validating the draft pending full review by the Supreme Court, recognized that the
standard of review in the Supreme Court regarding gender-based discrimination is
still unsettled. See Rostker v. Goldberg, 448 U.S. 1306 (1980). Plaintiff requests that
this Court view the sex-based classification created by Section 1113, not in the con-
text of draft registration, but in the context of potential denial of financial aid. This
extra burden placed upon men should be found unacceptable under the Constitu-
tion.

c. Section 1113 is discriminatory on the basis of age.It is not very often that a
statute results in discrimination of young adults instead of the "old". However, this
is one of those cases. Section 3 of the Selective Service Ac requires registration for
males between the ages of 18 and 26. Plaintiff concedes that this range of ages is
,reasonable with regard to preferability for the draft. However, as in the case of the
sex-based claassification discussed § b, supra, such classification is not reasonable
when looking at eligibility for financial aid. This group of young men has already
)1een singled out to fight for our country if necessary. They are once again singled
out by Section 1113 of the Defense Authorization Act in that they may potentially
lose financial aid to attend college while those in other age groups do not possess
the burden of that risk. We respectfully request this Court to not allow this burden,
where the Selective Service System has an adequate array of constitutional mecha-
nisms to enforce draft registration.

d. Section 1113 has racially disproportionate impact on students, and therefore is
discriminatory on the basis of race.The leading Supreme Court case enunciating
the Court's view of the effect of disparate impact of a law in the finding of racial
discrimination is Washington v. Davis, 426 U.S. 229 (1976). In that case, the Court
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found that discriminatory purpose in creating the classifications within the law
could be inferred from the disproportionate impact on the law. The Court, however,
ruled that the disproportionate impact .test was not necessarily conclusive when
dealing with a neutral law on its face:

"Necessarily, an invidious discriminatory purpose may often be inferred from the
totality of the relevent facts, including the fact, if it is true, that the law bears more-
heavily on one race than another. It is also not infrequently true that the discrimi-
natory impact-in the jury cases for example, the total or seriously disproportionate
exclusion of Negroes from jury venires-may for all practical purposes demonstrate
unconstitutionality because in various circumstances the discrimination is very diffi-
cult to explain on nonracial grounds. Nevertheless, we have not held that a law,
neutral on its face and serving ends otherwise within the power of the government
to pursue, is invalid under the Equal Protection Clause simply because it may affect
a greater proportion of the one race than of another. Disproportionate impact is not
irrelevant, but it is not the sole touchstone of an invidious discrimi ation forbiden,
by the Constitution." 426 U.S. at 2048-9. .

It is important to note that the Supreme Court here required tha the law be neu-
tral on its face. The neutrality of Section 1113 is questionable. Congress' intent in
enacting the financial assistance programs under the Higher Education Act was to
help the underprivileged attend college. Certainly, Congress was aware of the num,
bers of minorities 'included in that class of underprivileged. In burdening the distri-
bution of the funds in the manner prescribed by the law, there was clearly a poten-
tial that minorities would suffer to the greatest extent. Specifically, during the
1978-79 school year approximately 16 percent of all post-secondary students in the
United States were either Black, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian, totalling ap-
proximately 1,800,000 students. Almost 60 percent of these or approximately
1,080,000 minority students, at least received Pell Grants, one type of financial as-
sistance provided under Title IV of the Higher Education Act. It is clear that any
denial of financial aid would certainly create an untenable burden on minority stu-
dents. See Affidavit of Dr.-Brett A. S , Exhibit A to Plantiffs Motion for Pre-
liminary Injunction for more discussio on the impact of a denial of financial aid on
minorities. Plantiff urges this Court n to ignore this disparate impact and likewise
suggests that Section 1113 of the Defense Authorization Act be stricken on the basis
that it is a violation of equal protection requirements of the Fifth Amendment.

D. SECTION 1113 VIOLATES THE PRIVACY ACT OF 1974

Recognizing the need for the protection of an individual's privacy in this era of
computerized information gathering and sharing, Congress enacted the Privacy Act
of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a et seq. (hereinafter "Privacy Act"). The stated purpose of the
Privacy Act is to limit the collection of identifiable personal information by a Feder-
al Agency to that which is relevent and necessary to accomplish a lawful purpose of
the agency, and to prevent the agency from releasing that information to be used
for another purpose without the individual's consent. 5 U.S.C. § 552a(a), § 552a(e).
The "sharing" of information between agencies of the government is also prohibited
unless the disclosure would be, inter alio, for routine- use or for a civil or criminal
law enforcement activity if the person in charge of the activity makes a written re-
quest to the agency maintaining the records, specifying the particular information
required and the law enforcement activity for which the records are sought..5 U.S.C.
§ 552a(b).

The Privacy Act does not replace the constitutional right to privacy; it supple-
ments it. Doe v. U.S. Civil Service Commission, 483 F. Supp. 539 (S.D.N.Y. 1980). On
a financial aid application there is a lot of information required by the school ad-
ministering the aid that is not routinely reported to the Department of Education,
such as the sex and age of the potential recipient. This type of information is not
relevent or necessary to the Department of Education in the distribution of
funds. Information pertaining to draft registration, and consequently informati n on
age and sex, bears no actual relation to the eligibility of an individual to r eive
financial aid. Therefore, the Privacy Act dictates that a requirement that such in-
formation be furnished to the Department of Education is contrary to the purpose of
that act.

Section 1113 of the Defense Authorization Act artificially connects the Depart-
ment of Education and the Selective Service system, two agencies with completely
unrelated purposes, and allows for a flow_pf information between the two which also
is in direct violation of the Privacy Act. Not only must the Department of Education
collect information improper for its purposes, but some of its vital yet nevertheless
private information may be released, intentionallpor inadvertently, to the Selective
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Service System. The converse is also true, i.e. the Selective Service System may re-
lease important private information to the Department of Education. Both can have
a damaging result on an individual and his or her desire for privacy. Both consti-
tute violations of the intent of the Privacy Act.

The presence of the law enforcement exemption described above does not cure the
problems with the information sharing between the Department of Education and
the Selective Service System. The Privacy Act serves to safeguard the public inter-
est in informational privacy by delineating the duties and responsibilities of federal
agencies that collect, store and disseminate personal information about individuals.
Doe v. U.S. Civil Service Commission, supra. Section 1113 of the Defense Authoriza-
tion Act requires that the Department a Education collect information beyond the
scope of its purpose and duty. Here the Department of Education is acting as air
intermediary on behalf of the Selective Service System in a scheme to procure a
result, i.e. the collection of ertain information, that could not be required directly
by the Selective Service System. To allow that information to "flow" to the Selective
Service System without impunity would fly in the face of the protections guarded by
the Privacy Act. In other words, Section 1113 is a subterfuge and devises a way for
the Selective Service System to conceal unconstitutional enforcement procedures.
See also Parks v. U.S. Internal Revenue Service, 618 F.2d (;77 (10th Cir. 1980).

It should be mentioned that many private universities utilize social security num-
bers to classify their students. Section 7 gf the Privacy Act was enacted to discour-
age government agencies from forcing dThclosure of an individual's social security
number, and thereby, classifying each individual under a "universal identifier." The
District Court for the District of Columbia in Wolmen v. United States, 501 F. Supp.
310 (D.D.C. 1980) found that the Selective Service System lacked authority to re-
quire registrants to furnish social security numbers. Information provided by uni-
versities to the Selective Service System may result in the transfer of an individ-
ual's social security number without consent of the individual. This potential acts to
support the view that Section 1113 of the Defense Authorization Act violates the
Privacy Act, as it does not protect against disclosure of private information.

Mr. SIMON. I think you understarid the problem that the subcom-
mittee faces, that we have to deal with the law as it is. I happen to \
agree with the thrust of your testimony.

There is one other aspect of the law itself that concerns me, and
that is, for the first time, we using student aid for another pur-
pose. It is a precedent that is good. It is a precedentsomebody
on the floor may suggest that we have to certify that you haven't
had an abortion or that r parents paid their income tax or any
1 of 100 other things tha Soon could be part of this program.

There is one very practical question we face that you may have
an answer for. When is the decision in Minnesota likely to be ren-
dered?

Mr. SHATTucK. I had hoped, Mr. Chairman, to appear before you
today with a copy in hand. But I am afraid all I have is my state-
ment and the brief which I submitted. We expect it momentarily.
Of course, that won't be the end of the matter. I expect that either
party who loses will take an appeal. But the motion for prelimi-
nary injunction has been argued and should be decided any day
now.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. We have arrives at the magic hour, Mr. Chair-

man.
I would like to briefly reflect for the record on this subject and

hope Mr. Shattuck wilt take the opportunity to respond to my coin-
ments.'

I taught part time in a small college for 1,3 years before, coming
here. Just about all of the students whom I taught were recipients
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of some form of financial assistance, and most would not have been
there without it. What troubles me about this issueand I say this
as a longtime admirer of the ACLU, although we are on opposite
sides on this oneis that there were many young men in those
classes receiving student aid who did not want to register for the
draft, who thought kt was a silly law, but who did register becausg
it was the law. I would not doubt that there were also a couple whp
had not registered.

I wonder what the affect is on the mind of a young man who,
despite thinking it is a stupid law, has registered because he recoq-
nizes it as his duty under the law, when he sits alongside someone
whom he knows has not registered and realizes, "Hey, the Govern-
ment is helping both of us to go to school." The registrant has done
something he did not want to do and thought was stupid, but did it
because it is the law, Meanwhile, the other fellow is allowed to be
off on a frolic of his own doing as he pleases, disregarding the law.
Yet both of these young men are sitting in class by virtue of the
fact that the Government has guaranteed their loans.

I believe this situation breeds a certain attitude about the law, a
disrespect for the law, and disregard for compliance, and this con-
cerns me. That is the root of my position in this matter, Mr. Chair-
man. I would be grateful to have Mr. Shattuck's comments on m_ y
perspective.

Mr. SHArrucx. Let me just say several things very briefly in re-
sponse, Mr. Harrison.

First, I think the number of students in the category of nonregis-
trants in the college that you taught at or any other college in the
land is very small in proportion of the large number of registrants.
As we all know, the registration figures are relatively high, al-
though they are certainly not as high as the Selective Service
System would like to have it be.

The underlying problem, though, is people who haven't regis-
tered may not have done so for any number of reasons, including
those where they believe they are entitled to 1 of the 10 exemp-
tions that exist to the registration scheme, that is written into the
law, or they may have thought that they have registered within
the 30-day period and they didn't.

The point is that they are entitled to proceed fairly to get the
student assistance that they are entitled to without having to
jeopardize the possibility that they might be prosecOted for failure
to register, and perhaps failure to register in good faith. Or per-
haps it might be a conscientious objection. Of course, as you know,
there is no opportunity to register a conscientious objection to reg-
istration. That would come later in the context of the draft.

So I don't believe that there is the kind of cynicism that you
state exists on campus. To the extent that there is, I think it is rel-
atively small. I think the injustice, as the chairman pointed out, of
tying together this wholly separate system of student loan pro-
grams with a problem perceived by Members of Congress-with re-
spect to registration is a very dangerous one and could take us
down the road with all kinds of unjust and unconstitutional condi-
tions imposed, not only on student loan programs, but any number
of other kinds of programs, several of which I have cited in my tes-
timony, including businesses who might find themselves unable to
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get SBA loans if they have failed to comply, or if somebody thinks
they have failed to comply, with certain other kinds of require-
ments.

So I ask you, MT. Harrison and members of the subcommittee to
!weigh the competing evil heq. I think that the ones I have point-
ed out are considerably great& than the ones that you have point-.
ed out.

Mr. HARRISON. ThEink you very much.
Mr. SHArrucK. Thank you.
Mr. SIMON. Thank you very much for your testimony.
This concludes our hearing:
[Whereupdn, at 12:05 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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LEGISLATIVE HEARING: REGULATIONS ON THE
SOLOMON AMENDMENT TO THE DEFENSE
ACT OF 1983

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 23, 1983

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, D. C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 9:02 a.m., in room
304, Cannon House Office Building, Hon. Paul Simon (chairman of
the subcommittee) Presiding. -

Members present: Representatives Simon, Harrison, Owens, An-
drews, Coleman, Petri, Packard, and Gunderson.

Staff present: William A. Blakey, majority counsel, Maryln
McAdam, mtkjoriiy legislative assistant; John Dunn, majority
fellow; John IDean, assistant minority counsel; and Betsy Brand,
minority legislative associate.

Mr. SIMON. There is a vote on and I have just checked with Mr.
Solomon and I assume it is a vote to approve the Journal. I am just
going to Skip the vote on the floor.

Mr. COLEMAN. I hate to miss the testimony of my distinguished
colleague. I look at the votes as how to explain away when you
don't-tote, so I am going to go vote, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. SIMON. We'll act quickly while you are gone.-[Laughter.]
Mr. COLEMAN. I assume you will restrain yourself from marking

the bill up while I am gone.
Mr. SOLOMON. I will draw it out as long as I can.

. COLEMAN. All right, Jerry.
If y are going to have an opening statement, I will wait for

that.
Mr. Sim . I, will not read my opening statement, but let me

summariT.e it very briefly, and enter it -for the record.
We have several bills before the subcommittee. H.R. 1286 by Mr.

ar, H.R. 1567 by Mr. Burton, both of which would epeal. the
Solomon amendment on draft registration and student 'd, We
have 1622 by Mrs. Schroeder which would postpone it for year
and H.R. 2145, my bill, which would postpone it for 7 month .

[Text of H.R, 1286, H.R. 1567, H.R. 1622, and H.R. 2145 follows)
(161)

(
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98TH CONGRESS
1ST SESSION 11. 1286

To repeal the provision of the Military SelectiyF Service Act prohibiting .thc

furnishing of Federal financial assistance for post-secondaryY education to
persons who have not complied with the registration requirement under that

Act.

. IN , THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Funnumcr 7, 1983

Mr. EDGAR introduced the following bill; which was referred jointly to the
Committees on Armed Services and Education and Labor

A BILL
To repeal the provision of the Military Selective Service Act

prohibiting the furnishing of Federal financial assistance for

post-secondary education to persons who have not complied

with the registration require sent under that Act.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House pi RepreSenta-

2 tines of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That subsection (f) f section 12 of the Military Selective

4 Service Act (50 U.S.C. App. 462(0) is repealed.

16D
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98TH CONGRESS

1-1 R. 15671sT M9ION

To repeal the provision of the Military Selective Service Act prohibiting the
furnishing of Federal financial assistance for post-secondary education to
persons who have not complied with the registration requirement under that
Act.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FEBRUARY 22, 1983

Mr. BURTON of California introduced the following bill; which was referred jointly
to the Committees on Armed Services and Education and Labor

A BILL
To repeal the provision of the Military Selective Service Act

prohibiting the furnishing of Federal financial assistance for

post-secondary education to persons who have not complied

with the registration requirement under that Act.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and Howse of Representa-.

2 lives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That subsection (f) of section 12 of the Military Selective

4 Service Act (50 U.S.C. App. 462(0) is repealed.



98111 CONGRESS
1ST SESSION . R. 1622

To delay"! the effective date for the denial of Federal educational assistance to
-students who have failed to comply with registration requirements under the
IlilitarY Selective Service ,let from July 1, 1983, to July 1, 1984.

THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

PEngt:AnY 23, 1983

- Mrs. ScituEDEn (for herself, Mr. SABO, Mr. YATES. Mr. PRANK, Mr. O,
Mr. FOGLIF,TTA,. Mr. liARcA, and Mr. EDWARDS of California) introduced
the following hill; which was referred jointly to the Committees on Armed
Services and Education and Labor

A BILL
To tl lay tilt! effective date for the denial of Federal educational

assistance to students Who have failed to comply with regis-

tration requirements under the MilitarV Selective Service

Act from July 1, 1983, to July 1, 1984.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of RepresentaL

2 tines of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That section 1113(b) of the Department of Defense Authori-

4 nation Act, 1983 (Public Law 97-252; 96- Stat. 748), is

5 amended by striking out "for periods of instruction beginning

6 after June 30, 1983" and inserting in lieu thereof "for poi-

7 ods of instruction beginning after June 30, f984".
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98TH CONGRESS
1ST SESSION

165

.R.2145
To delay the effective date for the denial of Federal educational assistance to

students who have failed to comply with registration requirements under the
Military Selective Service Act from July 1, 1983, to February 1, 1984, and
for other purposes.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

MARCH 16, 1983

Mr. SIMON (for himself, Mr. K000VSEK, Mr. GUNDERSON, Mr. JEFFORDS, Mr.
GOODLING, Mr. OWENS, Mr. EDGAR, and Mr. Au Com) introduced the fol-
lowing bill; which was referred jointly to the Committees on Armed Services
and Education and Labor

A BILL
To delay the effective date for the denial of Federal educational

assistance to students who have failed to comply with regis-
tration requirements under the Military Selective Service
Act from July 1, 1983, to February 1, 1984, and for other
purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 tines of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That section 1113(b) of the Department of Defense Authori-

4 nation Act, 1983 (Public Law 97-252; 96 Stat. 748), is

5 amended by striking out "for periods of instruction beginning



2

1 after June 30, 1983" and inserting in lieu thereof "for peri-

2 ods of instruction beginning after January 31, 1984".

3 SEC. 2. The Comptroller General shall conduct an on-

4 going study of the impact of section 12(f) of the Military Se-

5 lective Service Act (50 U.S.C. App. 462(f)) on enforcement

6 of the registration requirements under section 3 of such Act

7 and the efficiency and effectiveness of enforcing such require-

8 ments thr gh programs of student assistance under title IV

9 of the H her Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1070 et

10 seq.). The Comptroller General shall submit to the Congress

11 a report on the results of such study not later than March 1,

12 1985.

a)
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Mr. SIMON. My colleague and I have had some discussions onthis, and while I don't happen to agree with the Solomon amend-
ment, I recognize that the majority of the House does want the Sol-
omon amendment. The question is, how do we get it in workable
shape. I have proposed the 7-month postponement, which wouldtake it, for most schools, beyond the next academic year. Thiswould give us a chance to work out both the legal problem from
the Minnesota courts and we have some very practical problems.

I want to commend the Department of Education for coming upnovewith a new regulation. I, frankly, have not had a chance to seethe new regulation. The very fact that we have a new regulation
means 'a review by Congress and universities. It would require alittle time.

We are in a situation where there is appreciable uncertainty. Ijust had breakfast this morning with a group of students and oneof them said, "Rutgers University is going to skip all financial aid
for students," and I said, "Well, I am sure that Rutgers University
is not going to skip all student financial aid," but there is that feel-ing out there.

My instinct is that we ought to proceed with some caution in amatter as important as this. I would simply point out one thing Idid not catch when we first went through the regulations, and thatis that the original regulation said if any student in a school hadnot complied, that all student aid would have to be withheld. Well,
that really is not the intent of the Department. It is not Jerry Solo-mon's intent. It is not what the subcommittee wants.

I mention that simply to suggest, let's make sure we are on solidground, and for that reason I have suggested the 7-month postpone-ment.
That is my opening statement.
[Prepared statement of Chairman Simon follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. PAUL SIMON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, AND CHAIRMAN, SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUEA-TION

,,-- The Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education meets today to consider severalbills which would repeal or postpone the effective date of the so-called SolomonAmendment to the Military Selective Service Act. The Solomon Amendment wasadopted in the. House and by the Congress during consideration of the Department
of Defense Authorization Act of 1983 (Public Law 97-252). The Solomon Amendment
proposes to deny Federal student aid authorized under Title IV of the Higher Edu-cation Act to any student who does not register with the Selective Service Systemunder current law. The bills currently before the Subcommittee include: H.R. 1286by Mr. Edgar of Pennsylvania and H.R. 1567 by Mr. Burton of California, whichwould repeal the Solomon Amendment. In addition, H.R. 1622 by Mrs. Schroeder ofColorado and my bill H.R. 2145, which enjoys bi-partisan sponsorship of severalmembers of the subcommittee, would delay the effective date of the SolomonAmendment for one year and seven months respectively.

While the Subcommittee will hear this morning from Mr. Solomon, the Undersec-
retary and representatives of the higher education community regarding all of thesebills, the mark-up which would follow this hearing will address only the question ofpostponement.

On February 28, 1983 the public comment period closed for receipt of comments
on thesSecretary of Education's proposed regulation to implement the SolomonAmendment. This regulation has been the subject of a great deal of public comment
and correspondence, both to the Department, as well aEr, to Members o*Congress
and to this Subcommittee. Almost all of the correspondence that I have received op-Posed the proposed regulation for *Vera' reasons: (1) the regulation imposes unnec-
essary burdens on institutions of higher education; (2) the regulation proposes to re-
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quire verification of all registration information prior to disbursement of aid to the
studenta policy and paperwork function not contemplated by Congress and one
which will surely delay disbursement of student aid in 1983-84and (3) the regula-
tion wholly ignores the statutory due process requirements mandated by the Con-
gress. (I would like to include in the record at this point the letters that I have re-
ceived from college presidents and student aid administrators regarding the Solo-
Mon Amendment).

One statement in the Secretary's proposed rule is especially troublesome:
"The statute also requires the Secretary, in agreement with the Director of Selec-

tive Service, to prescribe procedures for verifying qtudents' Statement of Registra-
tion Compliance. In developing these proposed regulations, the Selective Service rec-
ommended, and the Department agreed that in order to fully implement the intent
of this legislation the verification of all student Statements of Registration Compli-
ance must be conducted-before the institution disburses any title IV aid." (34 CFR
668). January 27, 1983 Federal Register.

This means,that at the Pennsylvania State University, no title IV funds could be
awarded until all of the 30,000 student aid recipient applications and compliance
statements were verified.

Because of the concerns enunciated regarding the regulation, and the timing in-
volved in developing and implementing a system for the 1983-84 school year, it ap-
pears doubtful that any system could be implemented that would not involve delay
of student aid awards in 1983-84. This delay is totally unacceptable, in light of the
delays which attended the system in the past two years and the resulting effect on
many students and institutions of higher education.

Finally, as many of you know, a U.S. District Court in Minnesota on March 9,
1983 enjoined the Secretary and the Selective Service System from enforcing Section
1113 of the Department of Defense Authorization Act pending a review of the con-
stitutionality of the Solomon Amendment on the merits. However, the Court specifi-
cally indicated that the Secretary and the Director `. . are not enjoined from pro-
mulgating and adopting regulations pursuant to Section 1113 pending final disposi-
tion of this action.'

It is my personal judgment that both of these circumstances necessitate a delay in
the implementation. Hence, I introduced on Wednesday, March 16, 1983 legislation
which would postpone the effective date of the Solomon Amendment until February
1, 1984. I believe this postponement is necessary for the following reasons:

We should not have students, their parents, college and university administrators
and GSI, lenders waiting for an uncertain period of time to find out whether or not
the Solomon Amendment will be in effect for the 1983-84, school yearthis uncer-
tainty will have an adverse effect on student applications, the processing of student
aid applications and the ability of GSL lenders to make finayecisions on loan appli-
cations;

The existence of a "final" regulation promulgated by the Department with a July
1, 1983 effective date (assuming the constitutional issues were resolved by that time)
would still lead to delays in processing applications for the 1983-84 school year
unless all issues, both legal and regulatory are resolved immediately, the 1983-84
application process will begin without a set of defined rules gdyerning draft registra-
tion and student aid eligibility, and

The pending legal action in Minnesota demands postpone\ment because of the
basic nature of the constitutional issues involvedthe Bill of Attainder and self in-
crimination issues discussed by Judge Alsop go to the heart of the Solomon Amend-
ment itself.

I want to commend the Department and the Selective Servicelor responding posi-
tively and quickly to the Subcommittee's concerns, which were set forth in our Feb-
ruary 28-letter to Secretary Bell. As I read the Department's testimony, however,
you have only addressed part of our concerns. I am anxious to know how you will
respond to several others in the Department's Final Regulation. Perhaps we can
cover those issues and other concerns the Members may have in questions.

I look forward this morning to hearing from otig colleague Jerry Solomon, the Un-
dersecretary of Education and representatives the higher education community
about the pros and cons of postfmnement, and what time period'is appropriate.

We are under a severe time constraint this morning because several Members of
this Subcommittee have another mark-up beginning at 10:00 a.m. and I expect to
begin chairing that Select Education Subcommittee markup no later than 10:30 a.m.
Let's proceed.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Coleman, I would be happy to have Some words
of wisdom from you.

4
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Mr. COLEMAN. Very briefly, I think we also should proceed on
solid ground and that's why I am very glad that we are having this
hearing this morning, because the Department has come forward
with new regulations, frankly, as a result of the hearings we have
had and the discussions that have led us to find some problems
with the amendment.

It is my understanding they will testify today that they are pro-
posing new regulations which I would suggest may go to the heart
of some of the problems that we have encountered. I believe that it
would be rather premature for this committee to enact legislation
based upon a first-instance decision in the Federal courts out in
Minnesota before the issue has been finally adjudicated.

I would think from a practical standpoint, the new regulations, if
I understand the Department's proposal this morning, should elimi-
nate most of the practical problems that this amendment has pre-
sented to us. It would be a wise thing to know where we are going,
what grgunds we are doing it on, and take our time.

I wodrd suggest that if, after this testimony that we have heard
today, substantial new information and changes in the administra-
tion on the Solomon amendment have occurred, we, in fact, delay
the markup of these proposals until we have a better opportunity
to know exactly what the effect might be.

Mr. SIMON. Let me just mention, and we shouldn't be having the
debate before we let our witness- testify here, but this also has to be
rereferred to Armed Services, where I am sure it is going to be
given careful study. They are not goinig to be rushing into any-thing.

I am concerned about the time probl m here. July 1 is going tobe here very, very rapidly so the inclination of the Chair is to moveahead here today, knowing that it will be rereferred to Armed
Services, and, as I recall, you serve on the Armed Services Commit-
tee.

Mr. SOLOMON No, Mr. Chairman, Foreign Affai
Mr. &moil. Foreign Affairs.
In any event, I am sure the other committee

good, careful look at this before they move ahead
Mr. Harrison, do you wish to add anything

opening statement.
Mr. HARRISON. No, Mr. Chairman, I would just

to vote and I will be back in a couple of minutes
guished gentleman.

Mr. SIMON. Certainly.
Mr. Solomon.

vo,

TS.

is going to take a

in the way of an

like to be excused
to hear the distin-

STATEMENT OF HON. GERALD SOLOMON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Mr. SOLOMON. We will go head on.
Mr. SIMON. Yes, you may proceed.
Mr. SOLOMON. Mr. Chairman, thank you first of all for allowing

me the opportunity to testify before you today on an lupe that I
think is very important to all of us in this room, are to all of
America.
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I apologize for not being able to testify at the previous hearings, I
happened to be in El Salvador that week.

Mr. Chairman, although you and I don't always agree on the
issues, I just want you to know that I do respect the very fine work
that you have done for the education community in this country
and certainly my constituents and my students are aware of that
and they appreciate it also. I would like to put a feather in your
cap.

Mr. SIMON. Thank you.
Mr. SOLOMON. Last year the House and the Senate overwhelm-

ingly approved my amendment to deny Federal student assistance
to young men who had Tailed to register with the Selective Service.
The President and the Congress support a continuation of the
peacetime registration program very strongly, as you know, and in
approving the program, Congress recognized that the peacetime
registration program contributes up to 2 months to our national
readiness posture in the unfortunate event that America would
have to mobilize for-war.

The peacetime registration program also signals to our NATO
allies and our adversaries alike that we are serious about defend-
ing our commitments at home and abroad.

If I may, I would like to quote from the recent Washington Post
editorial, which is not known for its conservative stances as a\rule,
which strongly endorsed the action of my amendment. "It is hardly
surprising that Congress," and this is quoting from that editorial
"It is hardly surprising that Congress having decided that registra-
tion is an important enough responsibility to warrant criminal pen-
alties should seek to limit Federal subsidies to those disobeying the
law. Higher education is still a scarce commodity. Why offer aid to
a youth who is not willing to accept the minimum requirements of
citizenship?"

Mr. Chairman, I share much of your concern over the possible
impact of the Solomon amendment on the higher education com-
munity. I have met many times in recent weeks with representa-
tives from the National Association of Financial Aid Administra-
tors and the representatives from the Higher Education Assistance
Foundation and the Selective Service Commission and the Depart-
ment of Education. And after listening to everyone's concerns I had
a meeting last night in my office with the Selective Service Direc-
tor, General Turnage, and Education Under Secretary Jones and
requested that they address the concerns by restructuring the regu-
lations.

Today, the Department of Education will announce a modified
Proposal which is, in my opinion, and in the opinion of most people,
very responsive to the concerns that have been expressed by. the
higher education community. Their proposal eliminates the need to
delay or repeal the implementation of this statute. For the 1983-84
and 1984-85 award years, a signed statement of registration com-
pliance will be considered sufficient to meet the requirements of
this amendment. '4

Under this new approach, the institutions may disburse funds
under title IV of the Higher Education Act and certify a GSL loan

9 application after receiving only a signed statement from that stu-

1 74
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dent. Students will not need the compliance letter from the Selec-
tive Service in order to receive assistance.

These new provisions will avoid the bulge resulting from the im-
plementation of the verification requirements in the coming 2 aca-
demic years.

This new approach will substantially reduce the administrative
burden that colleges believe is inherent in the proposed rule.

Mr. Chairman, the major complaint that colleges have had was
that the young men who have inadvertently lost their compliance
letters and that colleges would have to go back to the files once
they received a new letter.

Now, that difficulty will no longer exist. These new steps by the
Department of Education will insure that colleges and universities
can deliver financial aid in a smooth and effective manner. In a
recent letter that I received, both the National Association of Stu-
dent Financial Aid Administrators and the Higher Education
Foundation stated that they support these administrative steps be-
cause they will substantially reduce the probleips in the delivery of
student financial aid for the coming 2 years.

Mr. Chairman, the Selective Service Commission, working with
the Department of Education, has succeeded in making the Solo-
mon amendment workable in the eyes of the' education community.
The Solomon amendment has had, and will continue to have, a
very positive impact on the registration process.

Mr. Chairman, registration is important to our national defense.
Registration is vital to our Nation's ability to mobilize in the event
of an emergency.

Let me just digress for a 'minute about the original intent of the
legislation, Mr. Chairman, when Congress reinstated draft registra-
tion, there was a big play in the national news media, on television
and in the major newspapers across the country, that Congress had
acted to reinstate draft registration.

It then disappeared from the news media, and for a period of
about 7 or 8 months, it was never brought up again. I clip most of
the major newspapers and watch all of the national television net-
work news and not once was it mentioned during that period of
time.

Consequently, when the law became effective, we had something
like 78 percent compliance throughout the country, with millions
of young men, young American citizens, in violationpeople like
my son. From the publicity that began on February 1, 1982, when
President Reagan issued a grace period for all those young men
that might be in violation, and from that day when I introduced
my legislation, that compliance has jumped from 78 percent up to
96 percent.

Today, we have fulfilled the intent of my amendment and that
intent, Mr. Chairman, was, first of all, to educate all of the young
men and all of the American people that the law existed, that we

__had reinstated it, that it was a serious law with a felony conviction
attached to it which would really affect the lives of these young
men for the rest of their lives. Not that any student would ever get
the maximum penalty of 5 years in jail or a $10,000 fine, but, Mr.
Chairman, even if they were given the minimum sentence, the very
minimum, which would, let's say, be a suspended sentence, it

21-873 0 - 84 12
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means that th4y would be saddled with that felony conviction on
their record fox'. the rest of their lives.

In my State, New York State, for instance, it means that no
young man wilio was convicted of that felony would ever be able to
become a doctor, a lawyer, a stockbroker, hold any license. in the
State of New York. He would lose many, many citizenship rights,
including the right to vote.

Mr. Chairman, I have five children, three boys. One is registered
for the draft right now and I can tell you that from the intent of
the legislation and from the day that it was enacted, that hundreds
of thousands of young men from across the country, whether
were intentionally-or unintentionally in violation of that law, have
come forward and most of those that were in violation at that time,
have come forward, they have lived up to their obligation as
American citizens and they have lived up, more importantly, to the
law.

Mr. Chairman, you and I and the Congress have done those
young men a favor because they will never be saddled with that
possible felony conviction.

So, in effect, the Solomon amendment, although it doesn't take ,

effect until July 1, has already affected the lives of hundreds of
thousands of young men. I think the worst thing that we can do is
to delay or to repeal this legislation. Already from the court deci-
sion that has taken place, in my conversation with students and
with heads of colleges and universities, no_ny" students think that
the draft registration itself has been put on hold, which you and I
know isn't true.

I think that any further clouding of this issue is going to put
more doubts in the minds of these young men. You and I know this
bill, my amendment, is not going to be repealed. There is absolute-
ly no chance that it would be repealed through the House and
Senate, and certainly, even if that were to happen, the President
would veto it, and there is no chance for a veto to be overridden.

In my conversations with the colleges and universities and the
two associations that I have spoken to, the two main concerns were
the fact that students' who were young and going to graduate in
June didn't have enough time to register in their senior year in
high school because the laws and the regulations now say that you
cannot register until you are within 30 days of your 18th birthday.

The Selective Service and the Department of Education are going
to extend that period to 120 days rather than 30 days prior to their
birthday. That eliminates one major stumbling block that could
have crated a financial burden for the institutions and it also
guarantees that those' new students who will be coming of age and
attending college for the first time will not be held up. '

The other, and perhaps the most major that I stated in my testi-
mony, was the fact that the Department of Education wi 1 an-
nounce today new proposed regulations which will eliminat the
need for verification for the colleges for the 2 academic y rs
coming up.

It means that students only have to sign the statement of the ap-
plication as they do now on all of the other eligibility quire-
ments. So, Mr. Chairman, I am hopeful that this committee, ter
hearing the testimony of the Education Departmen nd the led-
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tive Service Commission, will not take action on your bill to either
delay or repeal.

I would like to enter my statement for the record.
Mr. Chairman, I thank you for your consideration and I would be

glad to answer any questions of the committee.
[Prepared statement of Hon. Gerald Solomon follows:]

STATEMENT OF LION. GERAIJ SOLOMON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM .rtiE.
STATE OF NEW YORK

Mr. Chairman, thank you for allowing me the opportunity to testify before you
today on an issue that is very important to all of us in this room. Mr. Chairman,
although we don't always agree on issuesI do respect the fine work you have done
for the education community in this country.

Last year the House and the Senate overwhelmingly approved my amendment to
deny Federal student assistance to young men who fail to register with the selective
service. The President and the Congress support a continuation of the peacetime
registration program. In approving the program, congress recognized that the peace-
time registration program contributes up to two months to our national readiness
posture in the unfortunate event that America would have to mobilize for war. The
peacetime registration program also signals to our NATO Allies and our adversaries
we are serious about defending our commitments'at home and abroad. If I may I
would like to quote from the recent Washington Post editorial which strongly en-
dorsed this action. "It is hardly surprising that Congress, having decided that regis-
tration is an important enough responsibility to warrant criminal penalties should
seek to limit Federal subsidies to those who evade the law. Higher education is still
a scarce commodity. Why offer aid to a youth who is not willing to accept the mini-
mum requirements of citizenship?"

Mr. Chairman, I share much of your concern over the possible impact of the solo-
mon amendment on the higher education community. I recently met with repre-
sentatives from the national association of financial aid administrators and repre-
sentatives from the higher education assistance foundation. After listening to their
concerns I called a meeting in my office with selective service director Turnage and
education undersecretary Jones and requested that they address the concerns by re-
structuring the regulations.

Today, the Department of Education will announce a modified proposal which is
responsive to the concerns expressed by the higher education community. Their pro-
posal eliminates the need to delay or repeal the implementation of the statute. For
the 1983-1984 and 1984-1985 award years; a signed statement of registration compli-
ance will be considered sufficient to meet the requirements of the amendment.
Under this new approach, the institutions may disburse funds under title IV of the
higher education act and certify a GSL !Oen application after receiving a signed
statement from the student. Students will not need the compliance letter from selec-
tive service in order to receive assistance. These new provisions will avoid the bulge
resulting from the implementation of the verification requirements in the coming
academic year. This new approach will substantially reduce the administrative
burden that colleges believe was inherent in the proposed rulp.

Mr. Chairman, the major complaint that colleges have had was that the young
men would have inadverently lost their compliance letters . . and that the col-
leges would have to go back to the files once they received a new letter. Now that
difficulty will no longer exist.

These new steps by the Department of Education will insure that colleges and
universities can deliver financial assistance in a smooth and effective manner. In a
recent letter I received, both the national association of student financial aid admin-
istrators and the higher education foundation stated that they support these admin-
istrative steps because they will substantially reduce the problems in the delivery of
student financial aid for the fall of 1983. Mr. Chairman, the selective service work-
ing with the Department of Education has succeeded in making the Solomon
amendment workable!

The Solomon amendment has had . and continues to have a very positive
impact on the registration process.Mr. Chairman, registration is important to
our national defense. Registration is vital to our Nation's ability to mobilize in the
event of an emergency.

Mr. Chairman, in light of the national security issues involved, as well as the tre-
mendous efforts put forth by the administration to resolve the difficulties you have
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raised about the amendment . . . I am requesting that nu table your bill to delay
implementation of the amendment.

Thank you for your time . . . and I do hope you will give serious consideration to 4
my request.

WILLIAMS & JENSEN,
Washington, D.C., March 15, 1983.

Hon. GERALD B. H. SoLomoN,
Cannon House Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR GERRY. Thanks again for taking time to meet with Mr. Philip R. Bever, Vice
President of our client, the Higher Education Assistance Foundation, and Mr.
Dallas Martin, Executive Director of the National Association of Student Financial
Aid Administrators.

We greatly appreciate your help in urging that Selective Service allow a period of
120 days for registration, that a procedure be adopted whereby the Postal Service
will provide an immediate receipt of Selective Service registration valid for student
aid purposes, and that a procedure be adopted for "reregistering," or "revalidating"
registration, for those financial aid applicants who may no longer possess evidence
that they have registered. Mr. Bever and Mr. Martin have authorized me to state on
behalf of both HEAF and NASFAA that they support these administrative steps be-
cause they will substantially reduce the problems in the delivery of student finan-
cial aid for the fall of 1983.

Sincerely,
PAUL ARNESON.

Mr. SIMON. Thank you.
Incidentally, I have assured some members of the committee that

we are going to try and move faii-ly rapidly because the Select Edu-
cation Subcommittee has a markup on the Rehabilitation Act.

First of all, I would like to assure- our colleague as I think you
know, I was for registration when the Carter administration was
opposed to it, I supported it when they supported it, I was for regis-
tration when candidate Reagan was opposed to it, I was for it when
President Reagan supported it. [Laughter.]

_ But the question is, we have to have something workable and
you and I are in agreement on that. I understand that the new reg-
ulations that the Department is coming up with today is an appre-
ciable improvement over the old regulation. But we are in a situa-
tion where we are getting to right up to the gun as to registering
students and getting them aid.

Mr. COLEMAN. Mr. Chairman, I have read Mr. Solomon's state-
ment here since I -wasn't present, and I think that I understand
what he was saying. I just want to congratulate the gentleman for
showing the willingness to try to work this problem out, to make it
workable. I think it shows a desire on his part to go the extra mile,
if you"will, to make sure that some of these problems that have
come up under his amendment can be worked out and I just con-
gratulate him for being a catalyst in trying to work things out.

I think we can work this out and I. hope that we can, notwith-
standing the chairman's desife to move forward expeditiously as he
said this, morning.

But I thank you, Jerry, for your interest.
Mr. SIMON. Let me say, whether we approve a delay or not, I

want to work with the gentleman from New York. in having some-
thing that is solid. I want to work with the Department as well.

Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Let me just say, that as the chairman knows, I-support the Solo,
mon amendment. I was greatly troubled by the regulations notonly because it seemed to me that there might be .difficulty with
sane young men losing their, letters, but also because of the burden',
that it seemed to impose on the colleges and universities. I -think
rather than get into a discussion with the gentleman from New
York, I will save my questions, until the Under Secretary comes totestify.

Thank yOu.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Packard.
Mr. PACKARD. Mr. Chairman, I have no questions at this time,but I will be interested in the proceedings 'from this point on to seewhether we can avoid delay of implemeritation. Thank you verymuch.

. Mr. SIMON. Mr Solomon.
Mr. Sorkimarr. . Mr. Chairman, I would like to say in regard to Mr.

Coleman's statement that when we reviewed the initial proposals'
by the Department of Education and the Selective Service Commis-
sion, I went so far in the very beginning to tell them that if wecould not come up with a workable agreement that would be satis-
factory to the colleges and universities that would take the finqn-cial burden and the administrative burden off their backs and putit back on the Government's back where it belongsAgarrying outthe philosophy' that I don't ever like to see the private sector sad-

-died with additional financialor administrative burdens becluse ofthe laws we passI told them that I 'would become, a supporter ofthe Simon amendmeqtLthe Simon bill, to delay. /But they have been more than reasonable, they have worked
with all of us and I have been completely satisfied. They went evenfurther than I had recommended. Again, I would just hope that
you could take my testimony into consideration today.

Mt. SIMON. We thank you very much.
I am going to impose on the rest of our witnesses and on theMembers a 5-Minute rule here. Our next witness is Gary Jones, the

Under Secretary 4:4 Education. We are pleased to have you with ushere.

STATEMENT OF GARY li. JONES, UNDER SECRETARX, U.S. DE-
PARTMENT OF EDUCATION, ACCOMPANIED BY JAMES MOORE,
DIRECTOR, STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, AND
HAROLD JENKJNS, ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL FOR POST-
SECONDARY EDUCATION .

Mr. JONES. Thank you,- Mr. Chairman. I have with me todayJaws Moore, Director, Student Financial Assistance Program ofthe Department and a familiar person to most of you, not all of-you, and Mr. Harold Jenkins, Assistant General Counsel for Post-:
secondary Education in the Office of GeneralCounsel.

As stated pteviolisly by Dr. Edward Elmendorf, Assistant Secre-tary for Postsecondary Educathm, the Department of Education
does not believe that a postponement of the implemeritation date isnecessary pr warranted. We continue to believe that a final rule
implementing the-Solomon amendment can be published in early
May and fie in effdct before July of this year.

4
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During the pub comment period we received approximately
1,500 comments and about half were from individual students. Less
than 10 percent of the 8,000 colleges and schools submitted com-
ments and approximately 70 higher education associations respond-
ed.

Although the tenor of the comments ranged widely, both institu-
tions and higher education associations expressed reservations
about proposed methods of implementing the Solomon amendment.

A major- concern focused on the administrative burden imposed
upon institutions during thv first year. After careful review of this
concern we have developed a modified proposal which we believe is
responsive to this and other concerns of the higher el:Ideation com-
munity as well as the concerns expressed in your letter of Febru-
ary 28 to Secretary Bell°.

We believe these changes obviate rt.h.e need to postpone the
amendment's implementation. The Department of Education, in
agreement with the Selective Service System, plans to publish a
final rule with the following provisions to implement the Solomon
amendment:

First of all, for the 1983-84 and the 1984-85 award years, the
current statement of educational purpose would be expanded to in-
clude items concerning an individual's compliance with the regis-
tration requirements in the Military Selective Service Act.

A student's response to these items would -be considered to meet
the requirements of the amendment. The institution may disburse
funds under title IV of the Higher Education Act and certify a USL
or plus-loan application' after receiving the new sigriW1 statement of
education purpose registration compliance form from the student.

The signed statement would be placed in the' student's file and be
subject as any other title IV eligibility data, to the biennial audit
procedures and the periodic onsite review of the administration of
the student financial assistance programs.

This audit review would' include the Department of Education's"
verification of the registration information iri accordance with the
procedgres prescribed by the Secretary.

Beginning January 1, 1985, and I note that we suggest beginning
this at the calendar year when students begin filling out student
financial aid applications as opposed to the award year which
begins on July 1but beginning in January 1985 for the 1985-86
award year only new. title IV student aid recipients will be re-
quired both to sign a statement of registration compliance and pro-
vide the registration acknowledgement letter or other documenta-
tion from the Selective Service as proof of their compliance with
section 3-of the Military Selective Service Act.

This signed statement as well as -the r,egistration acknowledge-
ment letter would-be placed in the studen'es file.

Now, essentially, Mr. Chairman, these provisions will Avoid the
bulge resulting from the implementation of the verification re-
quirements on all male students in the coming academic year.

The concerns we have all had over implementing. the proposed
rule during the first year have led both agencies to develop" these-
alternate provisions.

We are confident that these provisions will meet with the ap,
proval of the 4igher education community and the Congress. As

'
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with our proposed rule published on January 27, 1983, we believethat the final rule with these alternate provisions that I have
shared with you today places the burden of compliance on the stu-
dent applicants and not on the colleges and schools.

We are hopeful that the subcommittee will agree with us that
these modified provisions address the concerns of the subcommittee
and the higher education community.

Given that, it does not seem desirable to entertain a postpone-
ment of the implementation date of the Solomon amendment
which the Congress so strongly supported.

I. thank you for this opportunity, Mr. Chairman, to express ourcontinued support of the amendment and to share with you our
new, proposed regulations and to assure you also that we will con-
tinue to work with the Congress and the education community tobest effectuate the Solomon amendment.

[Prepared statement of-Dr, Gary L. Jones follows:] ,

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. GARY L. JONES, UNDER SECRETARY, U.S. DEPARTMENT
. OF EDUCATION

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommttee, I appreciate the opportunity totestify again before this subcommittee on the joint efforts of the Department of Edu-
cation and the Selective Service System to implement the so-called Solomon Amend-
ment to the Military Selective. Service Act passed by the Congress in the Fall of1982 as part of the Fiscal Year 1983 Defense Authorization Act (Pttlic Law 97-252).I understand that iiiiflay's hearing is on the several proposals being made to delay
the implementation date of the Solomon Amendment. As I stated in my testimonyof February 23, 1983, the Department of Education does not believe that a postpone-ment-of the implementation date is necessary or warranted. We continue to believethat a final rule implemviting the Solomon Amendment can be published in earlyMay, 1983 and be in effect before July 1, 1983.

Since the end of the public comment period pn February 28, 1983, the Department
and the Selective Service System have been reviewing the comments received. Ofthe approximately 1,500 comments on record, about half were from individual,stu-
dents. Less than 10 percent of the 8,000 colleges and schools submitted commentsand approximately 70 higher education associations responded during the commentperiod.

Although the tenor of the -Comments ranged widely, both institutions and highereducation associations expressed reservations about the proposed methods of imple-mentin the Solomon Amendment. A major concern focused on the administrative
burden on institutions, during the fist year. Under our proposed rule, students Who
apply for student assistance under title IV of the Higher Education Act would have
been required to indicate whether they had complied with the Selective Service reg-istration requirements. In addition, male students would have been required to pro-vide verification of their registration compliance.

After careful review of this concern we have drveloped a modified proposal which
we believe is responsive to this and er concer the higher education commu-
nity and which obviates the need to pone the itntdment's implementation. 'The Department of Education, in agreement with the Selective Service System,
plans to publish a final rule with the following provisions to implement the SolomonAmendment:

For the 1983-84 and 1984-85 award years, the current Statement of Educational
Purpose would be expanded to include items concerning an individual's compliancewith the registration requirements and the Military Selective Service Act. A stu-dent's response to these items would be considered sufficient to' meet the require-ments of the Amendment. The institution may disburse funds under title IV of theHigher Education Act and certify a GSL or PLUS loan application after receiving
the new signed Statement of Educational Purpose /Registration Compliance fermfrom the student. The signed Statement would be placed in the student's file and besubject, as any other title IV eligibility data, to the biennial audit procedures and
the periodic on-site review of the administation of theatuderat financial assistance
programs. This audit review would include the Department, of Education's verifica-

.
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tion of the registration information in accordance with procedure prescribed by the
Secretary.

Beginning January 1, 1985, for the 1985-86 award year, only new title IV student
-aid recipients will be required to both, sign a Statement of Registration Compliance,
and provide the Registration- Acknowledgement Letter or other docuinentation from
the Selective Service as proorof their complilince with Sect1On 3 of the Military Se-
lective Service Act. The signed Statement as well as the Registration Acknowledge-
ment Letter would be placed in the student's file.

Essentially these provisions will avoid the "bulge" resulting from the implementa-
tion of the verfication requirements on all male students -in the coming academic
year. These provisions will reduce substantially the administrative burden that col-
leges and schools believed was inherent in our proposed rule.

The concerns we have all had over implementing the proposed rule during the
first year have led both of our agencies to develop these alternate provisions. We
are confident that these provisions will meet with the approval of the higher educa-
tion community and the Congress.

As with our proposed rule published. on January 27, 1983, we believe that the
final rule, with these alternate provisions that I have shared with you today, places
the burden of compliance on the student applicant and not on the colleges and
schools. We are hopeful that the Subcommittee will agree with us.

Mr. JONES. Mr. Chairman, this concludes my statement. I will be
happy to respond to any questions the Subcommittee may have.

M. SIMON. First of all, the. changes are clearly desirable
changes. The difficulty is, No. 1, we are reluctant to sign blank
checks, and we will want to see the regulation itself. When will the
regulation be available not only to the subcommittee but, to the
universities around the Nation?

Mr. JONES. Well, I would presume that we could get it up here by
the close of busMess Monday.

Mr. SIMON. /OK.
Mr. Coleman?
Mr. COLEMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If I understand this

correctly, what percentage of the students are we talking about,
first of all who are going to be faced with a problem? I think the
general said that 98 percent are complying. Are we holding this
whole operation up for 2 percent? Is that right?

Mr. JONES. That would be the case if the amendment was modi-
fied.

Mr. COLEMAN. You understand the Fqderal court has an injunc-
tion or a temporary restraining order against the implementation
of this amendment. What is your response to the suggestion that
some banks will be reluctant to lend moneys under these various
loan programs because of this judicial situation that has developed?
Do you think that is a good argument as to why this ought to be
postponed?

If not, why not?
Mr.-JONES. I don't believe that it's necessarily a good argument

as to why it might be postponed. I think that the Federal Govern-
ment guarantees these loans and the banks shouldn't be that con-
cerned by default."'

Mr. COLEiIAN..Well,,what about a contempt of court citation that
might fall? Is that a valid complaint?

Mr. JONES. Let me seek.the advice of my Office of General Coun-
sel heie.

Mr. JENKINS. The banks are not parties to the litigation.
Mr. COLEMAN. My question is, what about the institutions, are

they going to be cited for contempt?
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Mr. JENKINS. The institutions, again, are not parties to the litiga-tion,
Mr. COLEMAN. Well, is it your opinion that they would not becited for contempt?
Mr. 'JENKINS. Ultimately, each institution would have to decidethat for itself. However, since the institutions are not parties to thelitigation, it is.not likely that they would be cited for contempt.

N-1/4...,,,_IVir.`CoLEmAN. Well, do you feel that there is an attempt to dis-solve the restraining Order, is that a possibility once these regula-tions-are 'published?
',What are you doing to get this judge straightened out?
Mr. JONES. Well, we are working with the Department of Justice.Mr. COLEMAN. Can I be any more blunt than that? [Laughter.]
Mr. SIMON. Well, perhaps you could say, what are you doing to..get the Constitution straightened out? [Laughter.]
Mr. COLEMAN. That's right.
Mr. JONES. We are working with the. Department- of Justice on adaily basis, Congressman, and doing all that we can and they aredoing all that they can to resolve the administration's official posi-tion as to how we are going to act on or react to the court's deci-.' sion in Minnesota.
We expect a. position to, be coming-from the administrations anyday now.
Mr. COLEMAN. Under your proposed regulations, who is responsi-ble for. recapturing loans that might be given out to, students whohave, in fact, not complied with the registration?
Mr. JONES. Well, let metwalk through it a little bit. What we aresuggesting is simply to place upon the student the obligation tocheck an additional box on the student financial aid compliance

form, and as they do that, it is simply placed in their file, the insti-tution recognizes that, they are in compliance with the law andthey provide the funds to the students. It is that simple.
We simply will begin then to audit these applications with thenew statement-on it. Currently, institutions have to comply withthe fact that all funds they receive under title IV are going for edu-cational purposes and things of this nature. We are simply sayingthis is another thing that will be audited. We are contemplatingthat the same rules would apply for this ,added feature as to thecurrent features.
Mr. COLEMAN. Well, are they going to have to run and trackdown the students and have them pay it back? That is my ques-tion. You didn't answer that.
Mr. JONES. Well, I think what you will find is that the studentfinancial aid auditors will, on a random basis, select names of stu-dents, call the Selective Service Sy§tem and find out if, in. fact,they have Complied. IC, they have complied there is no problem. Ifthey haven't, we will set in motion a due process procedure whichwill provide., the students with' ample opportu,nity to prove thatthey have, in fact, complied, but the records ma not show it.
Mr. COLEMAN. Wel), who goes after the smon if they haven'tcom lied?
Mr. JONES. That would be up to the Department of Educationand to the Department of Justice, depending upon the status of thedollars ,and how far along through, the dile process portion we went.
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Mr. COLEMAN. Is that spelled out in your new regulations?
Mr. JONES. That will be spelled but in the new regulations.
Mr. COLEMAN. Will the school be forced to repay any of the loans

that get out to the wrong hands, to people wl-ib haven't complied.
Mr. JONES. We don't contemplate that' the' institution would be

obligated to do that since it was the student who indicated in his
application of compliance that he is in compliance. Therefore, the
institution is not liable.

Mr. COLEMAN. You mentioned that only new title IV student aid
recipients would be required to have both the signed statement and
registrationhow many are you talking about and why?

Mr. JONES. Well, first of all, we would like to see whether this
pioposed rule that we have discussed here this morning is effective,
and if it is effective, then we need to evaluate it, as to why it is and
as to whether it would be necessary to continue on as of January 1,
1985, with this additional requirement. a.

We simply feel that the additional requirement would not be a
burden upon institutions at that time since the major influx of stu-
dents would have been complying with it under the revised proce-
dure. Essentially you have incomings students who must comply
with the additional requirements that we would suggest become ef-
fective in January of 1985.

Mr. COLEMAN. Mr. Chairman I am not sure that it's clear, just
because one Federal judge made an interpretation here, what the
fifth amendment is. I think it's generally accepted.in the course of
providing public assistance that a person has to sign their name
and swear to the authenticity of the information on eligibility re-
quirements for a number of programs, and that has never been in-
terpreted as being a violation of self-incrimination, of the fifth
amendment.

So I don't think that just because a judge somewhere found a de-
cision that we who were trying to work this problem out are throw-
ing the Constitution out the door. I think this judge though, a
judge; holding up the entire country, holding up thousands of stu-
dents and the entire process, thpt is a very practical issue that we
have to face and confront. .*

Frankly, I hope that the lawyers, Justice and the Department
recognize that that is the initial problem, not what anybody else
does but that judge, and they have got to have their judicial plans
drawn within- the frame of the Constitution. They have to go out
there and repetition that court and get that injunction or anything
that happens, even if you were to support it, wouldn't have any
effect until that judge finally dissolves that injunction and makes a
final decision.

Mr. SIMON. The Chair, since I didn't use my 5 minutes; can just
add one other note, and that is, the fact that there is a Govern-
ment guarantee on loans does not mean that the banks are eager
to participate. Our experience has been that we have had guaran-
teed loans, but when there is a cloud over them the banks, they
just stay away.

That has been historically one of the problems that we have had.
Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Jones, thank you for coming up this morning. I have been
concerned about the regulations and from what I can see, you have
made considerable progress in what I think is the right direction. I
want to thank you for it.

I really have two questions. One is to pursue something that Mr.
Coleman has been discussing with you. I understood you to say in
answer to a question by Mr. Coleman, that when the institutions
received the affidavit of compliance from the student, and I think
this is a quotation, "the institutions can then understand that they
are in compliance" and I want to make sure this is accurate, that
as soon as the institution receives the affidavit from the student,that that is the extent of their obligation, at least for the first 2
years under the new rule that you have proposed.

Mr. JONES. That is correct.
Mr. HARRISON. My other question is, if this new rule is good

enough for 2 years, and I have said before that I thilik it is good
enough, period, why isn't it good enough to continue with after 2
years? Why do we have to go back to this convoluted business of
filing letters and tracking students?

Mr. JONES. A twofold answer, Mr. Congressman. No. 1, we have
been listening very carefully to comments by Members of Congress
and also by members of the community as to the tremendous
burden they would have during the first year and we were looking
for some better way to accommodate the interests of the entire na-
tional community. We feel we have done that.

Second, we are not sure this is the best approach. We would like
to evaluate it through a 2-year period to see if it is. If it does work
well, and if there is a tremendous degree of honesty and compli-
ance with the affidavits, then it may well not be necessary to pro-
mulgate any additional regulations.

Mr. HARRISON. I appreciate that, but I wonder if that is the case,
if what you are saying is, -"Let's look at the 2-year rule and see if it
works well enough so that nothing else is necessary," then why in
the rules that we are promulgating now do we anticipate what we
will do to by regulation 2 years down the road?

Why don t we just leave that out and go the simple road?
Mr. JONES. No. 1, it takes a long time for institutions to plan and

for students to adjust. In many cases we are talking aboutI think
Mr. Martin will identify in his testimony as some 18 months
leeway, by the time the application forms are printed and distribut-
ed around the Nation and the whole works. I can assure you that
this Department has received, a tremendous amount of comments
from the chairman of this subcommittee and other people that we
have not planned properly, and that what we are simply attempt- Awing to do is to provide a long-range plan so that everyone knows
what the ground rules are now as to where we should be 3 years

.G.t&
from now.

If the current proposal would be very effective, then we certain
could pull back. But it would certainly be a lot easier to pull back
after you have planned than to have to plan for something new
When you are not prepared to do so.

Mr. HARRISQN. I have One more question, Mr. Chairman.
It seems to me that one of the statements made by President

Reagan during his- campaign and after the election, with which a

C1.18
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lot of the country agreed, is that we want to do away with unnec-
esssary paperwork, we want to make Government regulations as
simple as possible.

Here, you have a regulation which says, "The student signs an
affidavit of compliance. We can cross check to see if he is lying,
and if he is, we prosecute him for perjury. That is what we have a
Department of Justice for." That seems like a nice, simple solution.

But then you say, "But 2 years down the road, we are going to
make it more complicated. We are going to get into all of these
other things because maybe the simple plan won't work."

I just don't understand why we have to forecast complications
when we all agree this morning that, at least, for 2 years, the wise
and simple policy will .be adequate.

Mr. JONES. I hear what you are saying, Mr. Congressman, and
we will take that under advisement as we go back to the Depart-
ment.

Mr. HARRISON. Thank you very much, sir.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Petri.
Mr. PETRI. Thank you. I just have a comment and then a couple

of quick questions. Some -people were suggesting earlier, andl have
never really heard a reason why it wouldn't work, to just require a
student when taking out a loan to sip a' kind of double postcard
with the name of his school and ma fr that back to the Selective
Service and count it as registration if he hasn't already registered
and put one in his file and let Selective .Service have the adminis-
trative burdenthey would probably want to know his new ad-
dress anywayand let it go at that.

Do you think it would be too much of a burden on Selective Serv-
ice for them to get all of these cards from around the country? You
would think if they had the name of the school and they weren't
getting any cards from some school, they could audit that school
and its files very simply and otherwise they could tell almost statis-
tically whether they were having substantial compliance or not. It
would be a self-auditing mechanistn practically.

Mr. JONES. First of all, Mr. Congressman, I think that under our
new approach the postcard registration is not necessary. We are
simply asking students to attest to the fact right on the application
report form that they have complied and we are taking their word
on that until an audit occurs on the campus.

Seliond, we have been sensitive to the fact that, in fact, there
couldtbe a tremendous amount of graft that could occur through
the postcard registration. We have looked at it very carefully but
we simply have found no way we could be comfortable in assuring
ourselves and the Government under.this administration or future
administrations that, in fact, students are, or did send in their reg-
istration on the postcard.

We don't think that is necessary, as I suggested earlier, simply
'bemuse of the new approach, which is the most simplified ap-
proach I think can be devise

Mr. PETRI. r don't want to b abor the point, but if they had the
name of the institution the stu ent was attending on that card, I
think the chances of graft woul be minimized in that, if they got
no cards from some institution, ey would think there was a -prob-

O
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lem. If there were 1,000 students at that institution and 500 weremen and they got 485 cards or whatever, or 250 cardsthey figure
maybe there are about 250 people taking out a student loan at thatinstitution or something of that sort it would be within the regularparameters. What I am saying is, these things have to be done on arule of thumb and they would audit those where there looked to besomething a little irregular. It would be sort of a natural thing.

One other comment and that is that that judge didn't enjoin theIssuing of student loans, he just enjoined the implementation of theSolomon amendment, as I understand it, so I can't imagine thatbanks or schools or anyone else would feel worried about issuingloans.
As a former law clerk to a Federal judge, I know that he wouldlike to have an opportunity to keep the situation as it is whilegiving people a chance to make their case and it really is no judg-ment one way or another on the Solomon amendment or anythingelse, it's just trying to freeze the situation as best they can as it isright now to allow the parties, without prejudice, to go over whatissues may be involved. He is not trying to stop loans, as I under-stand it.
Now, what would happen under your proposed regulations, if astudent was not registered, but he did check the box that he hadregistered and he got a loan, and then in an audit you discoveredthat. What would happen?
Mr. JONES. First of all, we expect the student financial aid offi-

cers to take random samples, check with Selective Service. If some-one is found not in compliance, the first thing, we are going to do isprovide the student with an opportunity to prove that, in fact, he
did register, but for some reason or another it does not show on therecords of the Selective Service Administration in Chicago.

Second, we will give him ample opportunity to register and wewill also check withwhich we are doing now and we don't have aprecise answer for youbut we will have to check with legal coun-sel at the Department of Justice as to what the ramifications are ifa student comes into compliance 8 months to a year after he hasreceived the money as opposed to before he received it.
That is a question which is of great concern to us, but we thinkit certainly can be worked out in compliance with normal law.Mr. SIMON. Mr. Packard.
Mr. PACK RD. Your former- regulations require that women alsoregister and sign compliance forms. In your new regulations willthat be a continued requirement?
Mr. JONES. That has puzzled many people, Mr. Congressman, asto why we advocated that and it was really to save every one timeand money, to be very candid. If we did not have the females indi-cate that they did not have to comply with the law because theywere, in fact, female, we would have had to have two applicationformsone for men and one for womenand that would have cre-ated, I think, an extra burden not only on institutions, but uponthe private sector banks, upon the Federal Government and whatnot.
It is my understanding that we have some 40 million applica-tions in this Nation at the State at id institutional and Federal
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level, and if you need to begin to provide different applications
based upon sex, I think we are only going to quantify our problems.

Mr. PACKARD. It would appear that just an additional box saying,
"Not applicable," or something to that effect would be just as effec-
tive.

Mr. JONES. That's true but we don't always know the gender of
an individual by his name.

Mr. PACKARD. If a woman doesn't fill that portion in, what would
you do? If, by choice, they choose not 411 that portion in that would
relate to registration?

Mr. JONES. Well, my understanding would be that the institution
would simply get in touch with that individual student on their
campus and.ask him to check that box before he receives his funds.

Mr. PACKARD. I have no furthei, questions.
)Mr. SIMON. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. No questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr.-SimoN. Thank you very, very much.
Mr. JONES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Our next witnesses, we will ask all three to come for-

ward: Dallas Martin, Jack Peltasiin, and Phil Rever. I don't know if
you were here when we mentioned that we are under a 5-minute
rule. We have a 10 a.m. meeting of another subcommittee that we
are trying to get to. Brevity will be appreciated.

Dallas Martin, executive director, National Association of Stu-
dent Financial Aid Administrators. (
STATEMENT OF DALLAS MARTIN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NA-

TIONA11,4 ASSOCIATION OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AID ADMINIS-
TRATORS
Mr. MARTIN:Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In the interest of tithe,,;

let me just very quickly summarize what our primary concern is
this morning.

Let me say, first of all, that we appreciate' the opportunity to be
here and we are delighted to hear that the Department of Educa-
tion has moved forward to make major changes in the regulations.

I would just say that I wholeheartedly support what Mr. Harri-
son said, and that is, if we can live with the simple approach for
the first' 2 years, I would like to see it continued rather than
having another plan. But certainly it is a major improvement from r
where we were.

The primary issue facing colleges and universities today, howev-
er, is not due to the fact that we haven't had excellent cooperation
from people in terms of trying to revise the regulations, thanks to
your role and many other people's efforts.

Our concern is exactly where do institutions stand today as a
result of the preliminary injunction that was issued in Minnesota.
We have been advised by counsel that we are bound by that and
that schools are not allowed to proceed under the current court
order until that is resolved. ''.

As a result, we have many schools across the country that are
currently faced with the dilemma of whether or not to go ahead
and require students at this time as a part of their application for
financial assistance to secure that signature.' It is our understand-
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ing that that can be done voluntarily. We cannot mandate thosestudents to do that and any action on the part of an institutionthat does so could bring them into litigation and they could betaken to court for contempt.
What we need is some clarification on exactly how to proceed atthis point because the delivery system and the applications aregoing forward_ For that reason and the importance of the wholetiming and delivery system right now, we think that a postpone-ment might bp helpful to resolve our processing problems until theissue is resolved in the courts. If, in fact, this particular procedureis held to be constitutional and it goes forward then we will bemore than happy to comply with collecting those statements of reg-stration.
But we think there is a real doubt about whether or not we areallowed to do that at this time and it is causing a lot of confusionin the minds of institutions and students. Therefore, we need some

very immediate clarification to proceed.
With that, I think I will stop and save the time for questions andallow one of my other colleagues to go forward.
[Prepared statement of Dallas Martin follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DALLAS MARTIN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL.
ASSOCIATION OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATORS

Dear Mr. Chairman and the members of the Subcommittee, I appreciate the op-portunity to appear before you today on behalf of the more than 2,800 postsecondaryeducational institutions that belong to NASFAA. I wish to share with you the di-lemma faced by these schools in trying to implement Section 1113 of the DeferfseAuthorization Act of 1982, Public Law 97-252 by July 1, 1983 and to request yourassistance in securing a reasonable solution to this problem.
As you know, this Nation's total system of postsecondary financial aid is com-posed of multiplek aid_sources that are provided by Federal, State, institutional, andprivate agencies. The process that is followed to eventually bring all of these aidsources together into a workable package for the individual student, r.tquires carefulconsideration and assured cooperation among the many parties who > involved, orthe whole system will become inefficient and the needs of students and the objec-tives of the programs will be thwarted. For this reason, organizations involved inthe delivery of student aid including the Department of Education, the State Schol-arship and Loan Agencies, the National Necd Analysis Services, the National Stu-.dent Aid Coalition, the Office of Sttulnt Financial Assistance Training Program,NASFAA and many others, spend a great deal of time each yer' developing andcoordinating the annual delivery schedule, in designing the application forms, andin preparing and disseminating financial aid Informatiox.

This coordinated process actually begins 18 months in advance of each operatingyear which begins on July 1st and extends until June 30th of the following year.This lead time is absolutely essential if the student aid delivery system is to operateefficiently and is to provide accurate information to students, parents, donors, lend-ers, and institutions so they can proceed in an orderly manner. As a result, deci-sions must be made early so that when student/parent workshops are held in thefall, clear and accurate information can be disseminated. This information, in turn,enables students to begin completing their applications after January lst- and tosubmit them to the schools and processors in a timely fashion. The data from theseapplications is 'then reviewed and analyzed by the various parties and the resultsforwarded to the schools. The schools in turn prepare financial aid packages foreach eligiblOstudent and then forward notifications to each student of the type andamount ' he can expect to receive. Given the wide diversity of educational in-stitutionr i4 d donors, students and parents often find that they must comply withdifferent eadlines and application dates. However, most donors and schools try toobtain all needed and relevant data from the applications between the periods ofJanuary through March of each year, so that awards can be made to students inApril and May. It is also important to note that a surprising number of students,particularly upperclassman, graduate students, and individuals enrolled'in private

-`189.



186

business-trade and technical colleges actually begin or attend school during the
summer, with disbursements being made to them immediately after July 1st when
the new award year begins. Therefore, everyone involved must have completed their
application, made their awards and be ready to make disbursements.' by this date.
Any delaj that impacts upon this process negatively affects students, parents, and
institutions.

I remind you of these schedules and their importance because current events sur-
rounding the implementation of the selective service registration compliance re-
quirements intluded in the Defense Authorization Act of 1982 and a student's eligi-
bility for Title IV student assistance funds have reached a critical mass. If these
problems are not immediately resolved, they could substantially delay the student
aid awards to thousands of young men after July 1, 1983 who have registered with
the selective service.

The members of this subcommittee will recall that our President, Lola Finch, Di-
rector of Financial Aid at Washington State University, testified before you on Feb-
ruary 24, 1983 to express our concerns over the notice of proposed rulemaking on
this subject that had been issued by the Education Department on January 27th. At
that time we voiced our belief that the proposed rules were overly complex, timecon-
suming, and imposed unnecessary administrative burdens upon students and insti-
tutions. Further, we advanced a number of suggestions that we believed would help
to make the whole process more cost effective and workable. Since then we have
discussed this matter with officials at the Department of Education, and with var-
ious members of Congress, including Congressman Gerald B. Solomon, one of the
original sponsors of the amendment, in the hope of being able to develop a better
alternative and to revise the proposed regulations. All of these individuals have
been responsive to our concerns and have been trying to develop a more reasonable
set of procedures. However, on March 9, 1983 another factor was introduced when
Federal Judge Donald D. Alsop, of the U.S. District court of Minnesota issued, a pre-
liminary injunction that enjoined the Selective Service and the Department oT Edu-
cation and all others from enforcing the provisions of Section 1113 of the Defense
Authorizations Act of 1982 until further order of the court. This action, it appears,
will not prevent the Department of Education from proceeding to promulgate final
regulations on the matter. It does, according to our legal counsel, prohibit institu-
tions from requiring students Co complete the Selective Service registration compli-A
ante forms, until the injunction is lifted or the merits of the case are resolved.

Consequently, schools across the country are in a real quandary over how to pro-
ceed. While some of the schools have not yet started collecting the selective service
compliance statements, many of them Itlive followed the advice provided earlier by
the Department of Education and have folded the selective service compliance ques-
tion into their required statements of ucational purpose. It should also be noted
that the Department of Education's Pel t Processor is currently printing the
same revised combination statement on the ack of each Student Aid. Report (SAR)
that it is currently processing for the .1983 -84 award year. This leaves everyone in a
dilemma. By law, schools must obtain from a st.ident a signed statement of educa-
tional purpose, however, because of the preliminary injunction they can not man-
data,the signing of the provisions in the statement dealing with selective service
regis7ratittil compliance. Therefore, schools have no choice but to immediately sepa-
rate the two statements or to allow students at their option to cross out these provi-
sions that relate to the registration compliance before signing the revised combina-
tion statement.

Now if we believed that there wastay possibility that the whole matter would be
settled in the courts in the next few days, we would just inform everyone to wait for
a week before proceeding. Unfortunately, the pending litigation and the likelihood
of subsequent appeals will take considerably longer, and in the meantime institu-
tions must proceed with their normal processing schedules and award notifications.
As a result, we do not see any way that schools can proceed to implement the selec-
tive service registration compliance provisions before making their 1983-84 awards.

Further, if the selective service provisions that are linked to Title IV student aid
eligibility are subsequently determined to be,,constitutional and the enforcement
provisions are enacted after the start of the financial aid award year 04 July 1, 1983
then most schools will be unable-to insure complete compliance with the regulations
until next year. Additionally, those schools that attempt to go back and implement
thq provisions for students who have already been given awards for 1983-84, will
find the process of doing so to be extremely costly and disruptive to their normal
operatipns.

Given this overall state of affairs, these facts remain: (1) selective service has by
its own estimates testified previously that at least 90 percent of all aid recipients
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have registered; (2) the Department of Education is still trying to get through the
more than 1300 responses they have received to their NPRM; (3) final regulations
will not be available for distribution to the schools until at least May; (4) schools
must in the interim continue to process aid applications for 1983-84 despite the
pending suit and unfinished regulations to properly serve students; (5) there is a
strong likelihood that the legal challenges will not be resolved by the courts until
after July 1, 1983; (6) institutions would find it disruptive and extremely costly to
implement the procedures, if allowed to stand, in mid-year; and (7) many innocent
students could be adversely affected if there is not an immediate resolution. We
would therefore request that the effective date of the amendment be postponed until
July 1, 1984 or until the start of the next award year if the court suit and an injunc-
tion are still unresolved. We believe that failure to take such action at this time will
only make a complicated issue much more sensitive in the future. Meanwhile, we
pledge our support to continue to work towards a reasonable and fair resolution to
this issue.

Thank you for providing us with the opportunity to comment on this subject.

NEW YORK STATE FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATORS ASSOCIATION,
Syracuse, N.Y, March 2, 1983.

Hon. PAUL SIMON,
U.S. Congress,
Cannon House Office Building, Washington, D.C.

DEAR CONGRESSMAN SIMON: This letter concerns the recently published Notice of
Proposed/Rulemaking concerning Selective Service registration for federal student
financial aid eligibility. On behalf of this Association, I wish to commend you for
your efforts to seek amendments to lessen the administrative burden of these pro-

, posals on students and schools.
There are many different ways in which this legislation can be implemented that

do not create excessive burdens. I have enclosed with this letter a copk of this Asso-
ciation's comments, to the Department of Education, which outline some of the
ways this can be done. The National Association of Student Financial Aid Adminis-
trators has'sUbmitted testimony and comments recommending other ways, specifi-
cally a two part registration- form, one copy of which would be stamped by the Post
Office and returned to the student as proof of registration. Other methods, such as
providing lists of Title IV recipients to the Department of Education for Selective
Service registration verification at the time of each school's required biannual audit,
have also been proposed. All of these methods have their individual merit. Most im-
portant, however, is that each id far simpler to implement.

Financial aid has become a complex, paperwork intensive process that is confus-
ing to the students who benefit from it and frustrating to school officials who must
administer it. We sincerely hope that you and your colleagues will take this oppor-
tunity to inject a measure of sanity into that process.u Thank you for your consideration of these comments.

Sincerely,
InATIN W. B000FsKy , President.

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN,
STUDENT FINANCIAL AIDS,
Superior, Wis., March 2, 1983.

Hon. PAUL SIMON,
Chairman, House Subcommittee on Post Secondary Education,
Cannon House Office Building, Washington, D.C.

DEAR CONGRESSMAN SIMON: Last fall, you indicated a willingness to listen to com-
ments from the financial aid community concerning financial aid regulations and
concerns. In the past, I have tried to conscientiously respond to NPRM's distributed
by the U.S. Department of Education. My comments were always intended to repre-
sent the best interests of not only the students at my respective college, but also the
needs of college students across the country.

This morning, I read with great chagrin the article "House Will Consider Changes
in Rules Tying Student Aid to Draft" in the March 2, 1983 Chronicle of Higher Edu-
cation. I take exception to Mr. Elmendorf's assertion that he has received less than
fourteen letters from the academic community critical of the proposed rules.
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Although Lam active within my state, regional and national 'professional aid asso-ciations, I neither hold an elective office nor do I work at a large prestigious
university.

I am Director of Financial Aid at a small midwestern liberal arts college. I did not
retain a copy of my three page letter to Ms. Foley, but I don't believe I am one ofonly fourteen aid officers across the country who opposed the NPRM. I sincerely be-lieve than within our state alone, there were more than fourteen aid officers who
objected to the NPRM.

I believe Mr. Elmendorf and the Department of Education are trying to mislead
Congress by holding or ignoring the financial aid community's response to theNPRM. I am very upset and concerned that the Department releases only informa-
tion that they feel justifies their actions.

I understand that there were numerous presentors during yoiir public comment
sessions who spoke against the NPRM. I believe their response better reflects the
aid associations and academic community's reaction to the NPRM than does Mr. El-madorfs summation.

Your actions and reputation are respected throughout the aid community. Your
interest in the concerns of students is very important to current and prospective
students continuing their post high school education.

Thank you for your consideration of my comments and your continued support of
assisting financially needy students.

Sincerely,
ROBERT WATSON,

Director of Financial Aids.

IiAvERFORD COLLEGE,
Haverford, Pa., March 14, 1988.

Hon. PAUL SIMON,
Chairman, Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education, House Committee on Educa-tion and Labor, U.S. House of Representatives, Cannon Building, Washington,

D.C.

DEAR MR. SIMON: We are writing to you on behalf of Haverford College, a private
coeducational institution of higher education, in connection with your Subcommit-
tee's hearings on regulations that the Department of Education has proposed under
section 1113 of Public Law 97-252. We welcome this opportunity to share with mem-bers of the Subcommittee some of our observations concerning the burdens imposedby these regulations.

Many of Haverferd's students receive assistance under Title IV of the HigherEducation Act of 1965. Haverford is therefore vitally interested in the regulationsthat the Secretary of Education is proposing and is deeply toncerned about their
political iwpact on the academic environment. These regulations would require stu-
dents applying for Title IV assistance to file statements of "compliance" with feder-,
al draft registration laws and require the institutions they plan to attend to obtain
"verification" of such compliance.

The United States Supreme Court long ago recognized "[t]he essentiality of free-dom in the community of American universities," and it has accorded that freedom
constitutional protection under the First Amendment. Sweezy v. New Hampshire,
354 U.S. 234, 250, (1954). The academic freedom which a private college or universi-
ty such as Haverford enjoys under the First Amehdment includes, among otherthings, the right to choose whom it wishes to admit as students, the right to select
for itself the faculty and administratipn who will carry on the college's educational
program, the right to determine what shall be taught, and the right to maintain anacademic environment free of outside influences that would fetter the open ex-change of beliefs and ideas.

Haverford Coll e believes that section 111/violates this concept of academicfreedom. The legis tion is an unfortunate mixing of two widely disparate legislativegoals which raises rious ethical, legal and constitutional problems. From news re-.ports, we unders d that a District Court in Minnesota Issued a preliminary in-
junction against implementation of section 1113 on ese grounds.

However, the proposed regulatiofis, by imposin pon the college a legal duty toobtain 'from its students "verificition' of their d aft registration compliance, gobeyond the statute and force upon the college a duty which is antithetical to an
open academic environmZ4t. The college would be forced to become a participant in
gathering, on the government's behalf, evidence concerning potential criminal actsof its students, and transmitting that evidence to those who may use it for law en-

.
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forcenient purposes. Compelling a college to assuine such a "detective" or "big
brother" role isa completely alien to its academic freedom. It may seriously ithpair
the college's ability to maintain the open avenues of communications among faculty,
administration and students than are essential too successful educational .program.
It may also drive away from the college those fachlty, students and administrators
who, for reasons of conscience, object to involvement in the process of milithry con-
scription.

Such interference with the college's rights is both unwise and unnecessavy. The
legislation does not require such intrusive regulations. Neither the statute nor prac-
tical considerations'requires colleges to have any direct involvement in the govern-
ment's efforts to enforce the draft registration law_ Therefore, to protect the integri-
ty and independence of the eAsictiiional pi:ocess and of the First AmendmAt rights
of colleges, the Secretary of Education should promulgated regulations which do not
impose any affirmative duties on colleges or othe ise impinge on academic free-
dom rotected by the First Amendment. We urge tlfie Subcommittee to take what-
ever itiatives it can to see; that the regulations ultimately romulgated by the Sec-
retar avoid the unnecessary burdens on academic freed°, that will result from
those ich are presently under consideration.

Sine ly,
ROBERT STEVENS,

President.
JOHN B. JONES, Jr.,

Chairman, Board of Managers.

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO,
Chicago, Ill., March 4, 1983.

Hon. PAW. SIMON,
U.S. House of Representatives,
Cannon House Office Building, Washington, D.C.

DEAR PAtn.: I warn to express our thanks for your leadership on the question of
linkage of student aid to draft registration. The hearings you help were most helpful
in bringing public attention to this important issue.

I am enclosipg a copy of the comments that the University of Chicago filed with
the Department of Education on these regulations. I think it is important to point
out certain differences between our comments and those we know you have received
from others, including the American Couy,eil on Education.-Particularly noteworthy,
T. feel, is our difference ilk. views about whether requiring institutions to forward
copies of students' statements of compliance, or lists of students who have filed such
statements, constitutes in and of itself inappro to involvement of institutions of
higher education in the enforcement of Select' rvice lays. We feel strongly that
it does, and we offer an alternative means o veri cation.

We, suggest that the new precondition for t e receipt of Title IV student assist-
ance, draft registration, be verified in the same manner as the four previously exist-
ing preconditionsnamely, through an audit conducted by the Department of Edu-
cation. We bilieve that an audit should be sufficient in ji situation where we are
looking for only a handful of studentsthose who would dare to risk incurring not
oq.ly the significant criminal penalties already applicable to indiviluals who fail to
register but also the criminal penalties applicable to false represhtations on st-
dent aid applications.

, While the "list solution" suggested by ACE and others does tend to ckrb the ad-
ministrative burden on institutions, we feel it puts at further risk some" important
principles of institutional autonomy.

'As our comments to the Department of Education indicate, we have oppOsed and
continue to oppose the legislation itself on the same principles. However, given that
it is now th0 law of the land, we look to deliberative policymakers like yourself to
help minimize its threat to basic concepts about what a university should be and do
and whateft should not.

Again, I appreciate your leadership and hope that our Comments will be helpful
to you and your colleagues as you gttipple with this issue.

With all best wishes,
Sincerely,

ARTHUR M. SI.MSIMAN.

1 9
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THE COLLEGE OF WOOSTER,
Wooster, Ohio, March 4, 1983.

Hon. PAUL SIMON,
U.S_ House of Representatives,
Cannon House Office Building, Washington, DC

DEAR MR. SIMON: It is my understanding that in the coming weeks you will tee -
onunend revisions in the proposed implementation bf the new law linking registiar
tion with the Selective Service and the processing of applications for student aid. As
you prepare your recommendations, I would appreciate your considering the follow-
ifig points:

I. The procedure for enforcing We law proposed by the Education Department af-
fects only tholie students applying for financial aid. This policy seems to me un-"
sound, both from the point of view of the Department of Defense, which must cer-
tainly desire an enforcement procedure applicable to all those eligible for the draft,
and from the standpoint of colleges and universities which, in my judgment, ought
not to be making the sorts of distinctions among students required by the new law.

2. While the Congress has expressed a -concern that the regulations should not be
unduly burdensome to colleges and universities, we believe that a significant in-
crease in time and expense will tiie Tequired to handle the additional correspond-
ence, telephone calls and tracking-siystems resulting from implementing the pro-
posed procedures.

3. Finally, the enforcement procedure will delay the processing and awardingipf
aid to some students, thereby further diScouraging them from. using the federal did
available to them:The uncertainty surrounding student aid has already been a
Major problem forindependent colleges, and the new law compounds the problem.

For these reasons, I believe that the linking of registration and financial aid is
bad public policy and should be repealed.

Sincerely yours;
HENRY COPELAND.

IOWA ASSOCIATION. OF STUDENT VINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATORS,

March 3, 1983.
HOD. PAUL SIMON,
11S. House of Representatives.
Cannon Office Budding.
Washington. D.C.

DEAR CONGRESSMAN SIMON: I read with much interest the artick that appeared in
the Mach 2, 1983 issue of the Chronicle of Higher Education which that
you were considering introducing legislation that would postpone t nforcemept of
the Selective Service requirements as they relate to student financial aid. As-Presi-
dent of the Iowa Association of Student Financial Aid Administratorh, I- would very
much support your proposed legislation.

The article also went on to say that the Department of Education had received
very few letters commenting on the proposed rules. I think it only appropriate to
point out that the proposed rules were issued on January 2L they were not received
by financial aid offices until 10 days later and the comment period ended on Febru-
ary 28th. The normal comment period on proposed regulations as you well know is
95 days. Because of the timing factor the department reduced the comment period
to 30 days. I think that Dr. Elmendorrs comments about the lack of responses was
not appropriate for that time. I am sure by 'F'ebruary 28, a good number of com-
ments should have been received by the department.

I am r,..taching for your informaiton a copy of the letter sent by our association to
the department on the proposed regulations.

We very much ,appreciate your support on this issue. If you should be in need of
further information on how these proposed regulations effect colleges, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
FAYE Mr SCHEII., President.
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Hon. PAUL SIMON,
U.S. House of Representatives,
Cannon-House Office Building, Washington, D.C.

DRAW MR. SIMON: When the federal government enacted the Higher Education
Act in 1965, its intent was to establish a partnership between government and
higher education for the benefit of college students throughout the country. Colleges
paid a small price in increased paperwork for this expansion of educational opportu-
nity and student choice.

The Education Amendments of 1972 changed the nature of the partnership. The
Government Accounting Office was direCted to evaluate federal education programs
and to introduce federal cost accounting procedures. Since that time, the Depart-
ment of Education has intruded several times into processes for evaluating colleges
and determining their right to receive and dispurse federal funds. Such intervention
created a natural, though dangerous, sequence of having the federal government
follow its funds into the nation's colleges and universities.

Now the next step has been taken. The federal government-has determined to
change the partnership of 1965 into a coercive program relying on student aid funds
as a basis for using colleges and universities for the government's own purposes.
The amendment to the Military Selective Service Act of 1982 uses the colleges to
monitor whether young people have registered for the draft. Instead of the federal
government's monitoring the effects of its own legislation, colleges must now do that
for the government. The regulations proposed by the Department of Education
would require colleges to do for the government what tulle Selective Service Adminis-
tration had to do for itself wheA the prior Aft existed. This is patently unfair and
dangerous to the freedom of higher education in this country. Which government
bureaucracy will be next? Will the IRS, perhaps, demand the colleges monitor for
its benefit which of our students pay taxes?

On January 22, 1983 the Saint Mary's College Board of Trustees declared:
Resolved: That the Board of Trustees of Saint Mary's College be opposed to any

government regulation that require the college to police compliance by its students
with the draft regulation act.

We urge your support in removing these onerous and potentially dangerous re-
gualtions that will rob.,colleges and universities of their freedom and make them
minions of any government bureaucracy that may view them as convenient enforc-
ers to do their agency's work.

Sincerely,

a

SAINT MARY'S COLLEGE,
Winona, Minn., March 2, 1983.

, PETER CLIFFORD, F.S.C., President,

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Peltason.
Jack Peltason, president of the American Council on Eduscation.

STATEMENT OF J. W. PELTASON, PRESIDENT, AMERICAN
COUNCIL ON EDUCATION

Mr. PELTASON. Mr.. Chairman, I will also be brief. Again we
thank you for your help. I applaud the Department's proposed/new
regulations and we look forward to looking .at those very carefully.

As Mr. Harrison said, we don't understand why it works for the,
first 2 years and not for the third year. In fact, I think the reten-
tion of the third year adds to the confusion because we have felt
very strongly at our institution that if we had to go beyond certifi-
cation then it creates problems and apprehensions and further
challenges.

If we can get the regulations cleared up, get the court case
cleared up, we've come a long way toward meeting our objections.

I would point out to you that as you' emphasized, and I would
like to reemphasize it, we are now in the process of handling mil-
lions of student financial-aid applications.

That is now going on with considerable confusion out there as to
what the regulations will require, what the court regulations will
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require. Some, institutions are doing one thing and some another
and some doinig nothing.

I would think that a reasonabledelay until we get all of this
straightened would be in the national interest because we are al-
ready in the middle of tbe year the regulatiwas come out: We are
in the middle of a court case and it could be June of this year
before this situation finally gets clarified. I would request that you
proceed with youf-Opstponement amendment.

"[Prepared statement of Dr. J. W. Peltason follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. J. W. PELTASON, PRESIDENT, AMERICAN COUNCIL ON
EDUCATION

Mr. Chairman-and members of the subcommittee, my name is J. W. Peltason, and
I am Pregiiikent of the American Council on Education. I am appearing today on
behalf of the Council, an organization representing over 1,500 colleges and universi-
ties and associations in higher education, and its Ad Hoc Committee on Draft Regis-
tration, which consists of college and university presidents, counsels, admissions offi-
cers, and student financial aid officers.

The higher education community opposed the recently enactecitamendment to the
Military Selective Service Act included in

.

the Department of Defense Authorization
Act of 1983 (the so-called "Solomon Amendment"). The ameg,dment provides that
any student who must register with the Selective Service Sysaam and fails to do so
is meliFible for student financial assistance provided under Title IV of the Higher
Education Act of 1965. This amendment causes schools to be unduly entangled in
the administration, policing, and enforcement of draft registration and Federal
criminal laws. \

I appear before you today to urge the enactment of legislation to postpone they--
effective date of the Solomon Amendment fdr at least one year.

As we stated in our testimony before this Subcommittee on February 24, 1983, we
believe that the rules implementing this amendment proposed by the Department of
Education exceed the Department's statutory authOrity. As spelled out m detail by
the testimony presented, these proposed. rules have inherent technichl difficulties
and will imposeipn instutitions an excessive amount of paperwork.

The proposed regulations go far beyond the law by requiring schools to verify,
before any financial aid is disbursed or loan eligibility is certified,' theta students
have actually complied with their registration responsibilities. In imposing the pre-
award verification obligation, the Department of Education has acquiesced i a Se-
lective Service interpretation of the new law which requires such a prograirj of pre-
disbursement verification. But this interpretation rests on a supposed Congressional f
intent which is evident neither' from the statute itself nor from its
legislative history. ' ? - .

To prohibit the awarding of student aid in advance of verification, without consid-
ering other means of verification, including methods that the Congress clearly con-
templated, flies in the face of Congressional intent. The proposed verification proce-
dure, which requires a student to furnish a copy of his Selective,Servide registration
letter, places the verification burden on'the school, contrary tq the clear intent of

,, the 6ngrew We fear there will be massive and Widei3preod disbursement delays
during the 1983-84 school year. 4 1. si

It is the pbsition of the American Council on Education and its Adiloc Commit-
tee that the certificgtion pro Ion alone satisfies the, statutory intent, and that ver-
ification can be conducted bg the Department of Education and/or Selective Service
through a review of the statements of compliance furnished by students to their

.
schools.

The time be n now and July 1, 1983, is too short to enable the Selective Serve
ice System to lend' their procedures so that they or the Department of Education
can conduct th verification process as m ndated by Congress. In addition, institu-
tionstions require m re time to ensure that the can implement whatever additional' pa-
perwork proced res, if any, are imposed. ' int tuning" the regulations will ensure
that the imple entation of this inappropriate legislation is accomplished with a
min' imum of iculty.

Lastly and perhaps most importantly, on March 9, 1983, Federal Judge Donald D.
Alsop of the I.J.S. District Court for the District of Minnesota in John Doe, et al. v.
Selective Service System and U.S. Departrhent of Education and Bradley Boe, et al. v.*
Setective Service Sjtem and U.S. Department of Education enjoined the government

'
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and all others from enforcing the Solomon Amendment. The precise effect of this
order is not entirely clear. Afthough the Education Department will probably go
ahead and issue the rules required by the statute, this litigation will cast a consist-
ent cloud on this entire issue until a final and binding determination is rendered.

The Minnesota Civil Liberties Union has moved for summary judgment and a per-
manent injunction. The. hearing wasfscheduled for March 22nd. There is no way at
present to predict how long it will be before a final ruling is issued.

The Justice Department attorneys Handling these cases for the government have
stated they will appeal any ruling issuing a permanent injunction. This appeal
could go to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. However, since a Fed-
eral law would have been found to be unconstitutional by a Federal district court,
tl government's appeal, if any, could go directly to the U,S. Supreme Court.

In any event, we tnay well h to cdtnplY with a preliminary or permanent in-
junction for some time. It ely that a final determination on this matter will
occur weLl after the effect e date of July 1, 1983. Delay in the effective date will
accord all parties greater ertainty and ease in dealing with the firm' judicill deci-
sion.

We therefore request that the effective date of the legislation be amended so as to
apply to loans, grants, or work assistInice under Title IV of the Higher Education
Act for periods of instruction beginning -after June 30, 1984, which would better
enable colleges and universities to prepare for its impleMentation. Additional time
will be necessary in order to avoid massive confusion in the delivery financial aid
to all needy students.

We appreciate the opportunity to appear before, you today and stand ready to
answer any questions you may have concerning our statements. We reiterate our
willingness to work with the members of the Subcommittee to.rnake iniplementa-
tion orthis law reasonable and workable.

64.

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Rever.

STATEMENT OF-PIIII.IP It. REVER, VICE PRESIDENT, HIGHER
EDUCATION ASSISTANCE FOUNDATION

Mr. REVER. Mr. Simon, thank you very much. I have little to add
as the final panelist's request for a delay. _

Let me introduce to you our counspl who accompanies me this
morning to respond to technical questions with regard to the pro-
ceeding of the court in Minnesoth, and the applicability and scope
of that court order in our judgment. In short, the Department's an-
nounce0 intention or changes in their regulations do address many
of our problems. Unlike institutional representatives,- as a repre-
sentative of a multi-State guarantor of student loans, t ose regula-
tions do seem to address our. major concern which as the dis-
bursement of loans to. students under temporary verific tion proce-
dures, for,which we may eventually be held liable in terms of our
default rates, which could cause a readjustment in our reinsurance
agreements from the Federal Government. \ '

w-Mr. Olsen, from the firm of Williams and Jensen,, who is our
counsel in Washington, D.C., has been in direct discussion with the
attorneys for the plaintiffs in the district court in Minnesota and
the Justice Department and can respond to the tatus of that court
case in our judgment. .

In short, our counsel's view is that indeed institutions may be
subjegt to contempt of court actions or certainly litigation, were
they to attempt to implement the proposed regulation and .pbtain
students' statemgnts of their compliance with registration require-
Inents.

That doesn't mean that institutions, in fact, may not toe willing
to take that risk to make loans and other 'forms of aid available,
but that risk could be a substantial risk, and I this Mr. Olsen can

1_9



194

assure you that the first attempt to do that will result in some
., kind of court action by the plaintiffs' attorneys in Minnesota.

If you have any questions with regard to the technical matters, I
will refer You to Mr. Olsen.

[Prepared statement of Philip R. Rever follows:]

PREPARED StATEMENT OF R. REVER, VICE-PRESIDENT, I IIGHER EDUCATION
ASSISTANCt: FOUNDATION

Dear Mr. Chairman and'inerabers of the subcommittee, I.am Philip 1. Bever,
Vice President of the Higher Education Assistance Foundation WEAR; a private,
non-profit multi-state guarantor of loans made under the Guaranteed Student Loan
Program_ As a guarantor; LIEAF and the lenders, institutions and students it serves
will be affected by the Department of Education's January 28, 1983 proposed "Solo
mon Amendm6nt" rule, II.R. 1622 and H.R. 2145. Consequently, I am pleased to
offer II F's views of these topics for your consideration.

The .TubConunittee may recall that on February 24, 1983 HEAF objected to the
January 27, 1983 proposed regulations intended to implement the Solomon Amend
most. the basis of IIEAF's objections were the provisions for temporary verification
of registration that (a) unnecessarily increased the risk of defaults on loans and (b)
generated additional record keeping and revisions to lenders, guarantors and insti-
tutions information exchange systems. Neither of these undesirable and unneces-
sary consequences would occur if the Selective Service adopted several suggested
changes in the registi-ation system that were proposed in IIEAF's February 24, 1983
statement and the attached letter to the Department of Education about this
mat er.

Since my appearance before this Subcommittee on February 24, 1983; I have been
heartened by some developments and increasingly concerned about other develop-
ments. Let me report the encouraging and discquraging developments.

ENCOURAGING DEVNLOPMENTS

Reactions of many members4of Congress to our earlier recommendations have
been overwhelmingly positive. For example, I am personally grateful for the ex-
traordinary and thoughtful assistance of Representative Solomon in his efforts to.
ensure the timely availability of federal aid during the coming months. Mr. Solo-s

efforts clearly reflect his commitment to the principles and values reflected
in his amendment while recognizing the potential difficulties inherent in the De-
partment's proposed rule to implement his amendment. His efforts to avoid these
difficulties are greatly appreciated. .

Similarly, this Subcommittee's efforts to avoid these difficutiiietre greatly appre-
ciated. No doubt, the combined efforts of the education community, Mr. SolomoR
and members of this Subcommittee will minimize the potentially adverse effects of
the Solomon Amendment on students in the Fall of 1983.

These efforts may result in one positive change in the Selective Sepice's registra-
tion system. According to the Selective Service's answers to some questions posed by
Senator Sasser during an Appropriations hearing, the Selective Service may allow
young men to register up to 120 days before their 18th birthday rather than the
current 30 day limit, to allow additional time for the registrants to receive their
proof of registration before submitting applications for assistance. Unfortunately,
HEAF's other suggesiims were rejected. Thus, the concerns HEAF has raised earli-
er remain.

DISCOURAGING EVENTS

Despite the Selective Service's single action and the assistance of this Subcommit-
tee and 'Mr. Solomon, UFA l must now ask for at least a 12 month delay in the
effecti e date of the Solomon Amendment. Our request is attributable to: (1) The
Selecti I, Service's apparently continuing resistance t providing registrans access
to imn late "proof of registration at Post Offices, t nd (2) two court cases result-
ing in a U.S. District Court s order enjoining the Sele ive Service and Department
of Education from enforcing the So omon Amendment.

Of the two events, the latter pose the greatest threat to the continuous/availabil-
ity of loans for students and parents. Even if the Selective Service were to,adopt all
our suggestions, the injunction and future legal developments appear to pose poten-
tially deleterious effects on the flow of loans and other forms of aid to students:

These effects may occur if our counsel's views are correct.
...
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Our counsel's view re:
(1) If the Preliminary Injunction is lifted, the law will become effective on July 1,

1983 or on the date the Preliminary Injunction is lifted, which ever occurs latest.
(2) Appeals and hearings on the case can "occur at any time, but resolution before

July 1, 1983 is very doubtful,
(3) It is beyond the Court's power to alter the law's effective date.
(4) The U.S. District Court's order prohibits the federal government and institu-

tions fi-om requiring that aid applicants sign the proposed "Stateiient of Registra-
tion Compliance."

(5) Institutions that ask aid applicants to voluntarily submit the proposed, re-
quired documents in order to be prepared to implement the law on its uncertain
effective date, risk being cited for contempt of court or risk incurring litigation.

(6) The U.S. DiserictCoures order allows the Department of Education to develop
and phblish final regulations.

HEAF's counsel also believes that the merits of the plaintiffs arguments are sub-
stantial and the Preliminary Injunction is most likely to be made permanent or not
challenged. If our counsel's judgement proves correct, loans and other forms of aid
will continue to flow smoothly to students and Rirents. However, if the Department
of Education, Selective Service, financial aid officers, guarantors and lenders were
to act on our counsel's beliefs and the Pieliminary Injunction were lifted, even tem-
porarily, disastr would ensue. Consequfntly, it is advisable that the Department of
Education and selective Service continue to develop and publish final regulations.

TILE 11J1ZURE. WITHOUT A DELAY

It is reasonable to expect and, in fact, necessary that the Department of Educa-
tion publish knal regulations in the near future in case the injunction is lifted
shortly. However, IIEAF can only speculate about the substance and publication
date of the regulations, the willingness of this Subcommittee and Congress to "ap-
prove" the final regulations, and future legal developments. Because of these uncer-
tainties HEAF urges Congress to delay the effective date of the Solomon Amend-
ment for at least a year. Unless a delay is enacted, theofollowing is likely to occur:

(1) Congress may have to choose between "proving" unacceptable regulations or
risk the consequences of not having "approved" final regulations if and when the
injunction is lifted.

(2) Participants in the aid program such as institutions and guarantqrs may have
to print an4 store millions of documents specifically related to the Soldmon Amend-
ment so institutions are prepared to quickly implement the final regulations if nec-
essary.

(3) Modifications to information exchange systems among len ers, institutions and
guarantors may have to be planned And made to accommoda new requirements
and the law if injunction,is lifted.

Unless final regulations ate "approved" by Congress and g bquired information
collection documents and information exchange systems a readiness, shortly
after final regulations are "approved" by Congress, all parties risk disaster if the
preliminary Injunction is lifted and the law becomes effective shortly thereafter.
Frankly, we believe some guarantors, lenders and institutions will be reluctant to
incur the sizeable expense of preparing to comply with a law that may ultimately be
judged unconstituional. Helve, it seems unlikely that the "student loan delivery
system" which is composed of thousands of lenders, dozens of guarantors, thousands
of institutions and millions of students, will be uniformly ready if the Preliminary
.Injunction is ever lifted.

Consequently, HEAF urges this Subcommittee and Congress to enact a delay in
the law's effective date. Optimally such a delay would be contingent on a final court
ruling and timed to coincide with the beginning of an award year. Alternatively, a
year's delay would be preferable to seven trionths because the effective date would
coincide with the beginning of an award year. In any case, a delay is desirable be-
cause it would allow future regulation deyelopments imd legal actions to occur
thereby bringing some certainty to an uncertain future.

I would be pleased to answer any questions you may have regarding the state-
ment and the impact of the law or the legislation you are considering today on
HEAF and the lenders, institutions and students it serves.
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HIGHER EDUCATION ASSISTANCE FOUNDATION,
Washington. D.C. February 25,-1983.

Ms. ANDREA FOLEY, .
Office of Studentiatuincial Assistance.

A U.S. DepartmentarEducation, Washington, D.C.
DEAR Ms. Fou(y: I responding to the Department's invitation to comment on the

January 27, 1983 proposed regulations for implementing the "Solomon Amvpd-
ment" to Public Law 97-252. In this regard. I have enclosed my comments and
statement delivered to the House ubcoannittee can Postsecondary Education on
February 24. 1983., .

Let my call your attention to some s ggeslions on pages 7 and H of the enclosed
statement. Were these suggestions adopted by the Selective Service, HEAF's con-
cerns would be allayed and the following observations would be misdircted. In the
absence of their adoption, the Opal regulations should:

(1) Clarify institutions' and lenders' responsibilities for loan collection and borrow-
ers' repayment alternatives if they received loans under the temporary verification
procedures but fail to verify their registration. Can the disbursement be repayed in
installments ASur recommendation)? Who makes the attempt to collect; the institu-
tions or the lenders? If schools attempt to collect the loans, hoW long will tfiey be
given? A

(2) Clearly define the relationship between the proposed 120 day "grace" period
for verifying registration and the current regulation that requires institutions to
return uncashed checks 30 days after the date of their receipt. Clearly, institutions
should retain checks until the 120 days lapse even if the 30 day period lapses if dis-
bursement is awaiting verification of registration.

13) Clearly define the time at which loan interest benefits are forfeited ,if loans are
disbursed to ineligible applicants. Are these benefits never awarded qr do they end
at the termination of the 120 day grace Neriod?

(4) Address the problems raised-by the proposed regulations which allows lenders
who disburse directly to students and parents to choose between delaying disburse-
ments until verification has been filed or disbursing.

The latter problem arises whery lenders choose not to disburse directly to students
0\ certifiedor parents whose applications are certied under the temporary verification proce-

d res. First, such lenders will have to know the conditions under which applications
are certified which is easily done'sif applications ask institutions to report the condi-
tion. Secondly, lenders will have to inform institutions which loans they are hotding
because lenders are not identified on applications at the time institutions certify ap-
plications. livitutions learn lenders' identities when either they receive loan checks
or notifications of loans disbursed to their students or their parents. Thus, institu-
tions will he unable to simply inform lenders if temporarily eligible applicants fail
to verify their registration within the 120 day limit unless the loans are disbursed.
Since most loans are not disbursed until thefterm, quarter or instruction period
begins, and applications are.submitted much earlier, it is likely that the 1'20 day
period will lapse for most students before institutions know which lenders to inform;
that is, unless lenders identfy themselves to institutions shortly..after they approve
the loans.

Our comments are intended to help the Department of Education and the Selec-
tive Service to achieve their intention of minimizing the probability of serious dis-
ruptions in aid availability next Fall. HEAF commends the Department and Selec-
tive Service for it efforts to date while urging them to adopt its suggestions.

Sincerly,
PIIILIP R. REVEL

Vice-Prest
Mr. SIMOrsir Just so that I may clari what you are saying is, if

_there is not delay along the lines of the ne bill that is pending
before us, that there is-a considerable clo over these student
loans in the immediate future, is that correct?

Mr. REVER. Certainly, we think so' As a matter of fact, without a
delay so that some certainty can be added to an uncertain situa-c
tion, institutions may encounter very differing practices among in-
stitutions. Some institutions will certify application's and lenders
will be asked to disperse loans lo students. Other institutions will
not certify those applications. Quite frankly, lenders, or the lenders

cu0

ttr



197

with whom I work, want some, guidance either from the Congress
or the courts to assure them that they are nolinaking loans to in-
eligible applicants because then they will be asked to work with in-
Aitutions to collect them, get them back into repayment 'and this
may eventually affect our default rate.

So there is some uncertainty that can only be clarified by action
of the Congress or future court decisions, and unfortunately, as you
pointed out -so succinctly before, we are approaching the time at
which lenders are going to have to make decisions about whether
dr not they should, in fact; disburse loans to students under the
new proposedTegutations, given the court 'action that is before us
now.

I discussed tbis with the chairman of my board yesterday, it is a
weekly occurence that I receive a 'otter froth a law student chal-
lenging my procedures, computation of APR-effective interest rates
and the- like under my loan program. I can assurg you that if we
attempt to enforce the regulation that my progratn in Washington,
D.C., and I can assure you in many other places, will be subject to
litigation from law students who are very critical of the way MI
which we conduct our business.

It gi a matter. that may lead to some clarification with regard to
the scope of the U.S. district court's authority and we may wan to
encourage that for quite frankly the cost of encouraging that is °det-
rimental to our enthusiasm.

Mr. Simon. Just one question and, then I will defer to my col-
leagues.

I will ask each of you to respond, the recommendationif you
had a choice of moving ahead with the regulation that none of us
has seen or a 7-month.delay in-the applicability_of the law, which
would you choose?

Mr. MARTIN. Mr. Simon, clearly I would like to have a postpone-
ment, but let me clarify something. The problem is that institu-
tions rigle, now are collecting, forms from students and are
.inaking awards for the gubsequent awarcryear. If, after this 4eci-
aion is resolved, if there is not a point after which we know that
this goes into effect, we have, in essence, already made awards to
students there is going to be a question as to whether or not that
award we have made for the first half of the year, is in doubt if we
haven't collected that statement.

The nice thing about having a definitive starting point with some\
leadtime for schools tb know, once the court case is resolved arid
we have final regulations is that it gives schools some time then to
say, "All right. Here are the procedures. Let's go forward. Let's col-
lect the compliance statements from each individual student and
we areOK from th;t/point on."

We don't want to get caught in midstream. That's one reason
-why we think a postponement until thiS issue is resolved in the
courts would be fine. We understand that the Department is pro-
ceeding to promulgate regulations and will have those 'available,
but we need some assurance that after that decision is finally re-
solved, then there is a period of time, a window that we can say,
"All right, schools, 30 days from now or 6 months from now or
whatever, you must proceed."
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Ideally, we would rather.do it at the beginning of an.award year
rather than in midstream, but it is. very important that we have
that gpp to make certain that everybody is in compliance at that
point. -

Mr. SIMON. I understand the desire for the gap. The difficulty is
we can't draff legislation that says, "60 days after the court finally

6

adjudicates this case, it will go into effect."
Mr: MARTIN. I understand.
Mr. SIMON. I have_ discussed this with some of my colleagues on,

the Armed .Services, Committee and I think there is a chanceI
don't want'to make it sound like more than thatthere is a chance
th 'it they would. approve a 7-month delay. I think. there is some
support on both sides of the aisle on the Armed Services Commit-
tee for that kind of a delay.-I think if we go beyond that, there)is.
no chancq.

Mr. Peltason.
Mr. PELTASON. We would prefer the Department tq proceed with

the publication of final/regulations and I am particularly enthusi-
astic about that with regard to the new proposals. There is the pos-
sibility that the- preliminary injunction could indeed be 'lifted at
any moment..It depends upon the court's' schedule. It depends on
the Department of Justice's decision to appeal the preliminary in-
junction. They may go back to the original court and ask for S sum-

jary judgment hearing on the merits Of the case and the like.
We are faced with the possibility now that the preliminary in:
nction-tbuld be lifted in the near future. Now the likelihood-of
at is very slim. But again, as Mr. Jones pointed out, we are talk-

ng about 40 million pieces of paper floating around this country
that should or should not include a Nstatement of registration com-
pliance or may or may not be able to include a statement of regis-
tration compliance according to one's interpretation of the breadth
of the court s order.. .

It is not likely that we will ever achieve any great certainty with
regard to this Case, with these paoticular lawsuits until, as I under-
stand it,' it gets,to the Supreme-Court. But at this stage, based on a
preliminary injunction people are- reticent to act without some
time for-clarification to occur into what is likely to be legal and not
legal_

A 7-month delay is something that we would encourage. A 12-
month delay wptild be preferable. Optimally, as I put in my pre-
pared statement, we wish you could draft language that would im-
plement the law after a nonappealable decision is issued, some 6
months or at the beginning of an award year. We understand that
is not possiile. -

So certainly, we are in support of a delay primarily to allow the
regulations to be developed in a timely and thoughtful manner and
so Congress can review those in a timely and thoughtful manner
and so the court has the opportunity for legal developments to
occur to give us some additional guidance. #

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Coleman.
Mr. COLEMAN. I am very sympathetic to your problems. If we

lived in a ideal world, we would probably follow your suggestions.
But my understanding is, and you have addressed this issue, the
legal issue, that if*a school and/or a lending institution were to cer-

_



199

tify a loan for somebody who hasn't checked the box because of the
injunction, and it went through and ultimately that court decision
was overturned, they are following the only law, which, in effect, is
the judge's order not 4.o enforce, I don't think anybody is going to
go back and require them to reinforce our original law if a court
order is out there saying that you are going to be in contempt. Now
you can't be both ways on this.

I think some of things that you are conjuring up are possible, but
very, very, very improbable and I think people would have a very
good legal argument to stand on as to why they certified the loan
and why the loan was made and why it should be considered a
normal loan in the course of business.

So from that standpoint, I don't know that there is anything that
needs to lie done. Now, if we waited in Congress for every litigation
to finally run its course for every law that we enact, we could be
sitting around here for years, as you well know, if this goes to the
Supreme Court, deciding-whether or not we should implement this
law, whether we should do what we are doing here, which is to
wait for 7 months or 1 year or whatever. It would be absurd after a
while.

Now, because of the administration of this particular law, there
are obviously some problems, but they are not overwhelming prob-
lems. I would suggest that everybody fallow what the latest law is
and right now it is the judge in Minnesota. He is the law on this.
There will be an appeal from that. A higher court will reverse or
affirm his decision and if somebody litigates it to the Supreme
Court, fine.

In the meantime, we could write deferrals, we could withdraw
the deferrals, we could defer the deferrals. We could end tip being
just yanked like a yo-yo from the Federal courts. I would again-sug-
gest that I think these gentlemen have made some very good argu-
ments, but at the same time, if we were to do this for every law
that we passed, we would, in effect, spend all of ow time looking
over our shoulders instead of trying to go forward. JI think that, in event that they go ahead and follow the
judge's instruction and send it throughlike Mr. Petri said, they
don t want to stop thL guaranteed student loan program, they are
not going to stop the guaranteed student loan program. Nobody is
going to be thrown in jail. No college loan officer is going to be
thrown in jail and no bank is going to be told they have an unguar-
anteed loan because of this.

I throw that out if anybody has a comment.
Mr. PELTASON. One quick comment. I think the decision of that

judge does complicate the matter, but I don't think that is the only
reason why a .delay is merited. These new, proposed regulations wehave not seen as yet. We will get them on Monday. There is time
to take a look at them. I think the Congress

Fonda
look at them. I

think that we want to study those and this takes us up to the 1st of
April before we could have any clarification in getting those regu-
lations out notifying all of the students and all of the institutions,
and we are. coming up against the deadline. I think that even with-
out the casethe case, I think, only complicates itsome more
time to have an orderly transition is needed so everybody knows
what the law calls for, what the regulations are and all the finan-

201
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cial aid officers can J:Km proceed under one common understand-
ing. This should cut down the arguments, the fears, the tension
and the misunderstanding that is likely to happen over the imple-
mentation of -a law about which people feel very strongly on both

sides.
Mr. COLEMAN. What is the date that you are looking at when

this has to be totally clarified?
Mr. PELTASON. I defer to my colleagues who have to administer

these programs.
Mr. MARTIN. We are collectipg applications right now ,from

schools and a lot of the institutilens will be making awards in April
and May; I think,_Mr. Coleman, we will proceed to make awards to
students and I think the questibn is that we are going to have to .

tell our institutions, "Do not collect the Statements of Registration
Compliance at this point."

Now, the problem was that many o us did exactly what the De-
partment of Education did, we took our statement of educational
purpose, on their advice and model, and we folded it together with
the Registration Compliance. In fact, it is being printed on every
form that is coming out of the Pell Grant processing right now.

We have a document; we must have,from each student a signed
statement of educational purpose. That is on the books and the
statule now. On the other hand, we cannot collect the Selective
ServiO% Registration Compliance. We have got to go in now and
separate those two issues, collect one at this time and wait until
this injunction is lifted, then.go back and collect the other.

All we want is the assurance that if we don't collect this one
now, we proceed with everything else. When this is finally re-
solved, then we will go back within, a reasonable time and collect
the other 4nd get into compliance with it.

Mr. COLEMAN. ThaAtzgu. ,{

Mr. SIMON. Mr. Harrison.
Mr. HARRISON. Thank you, fen Chairman. I just have one obser-

,1
vation and i would welcome responses from any pf the witnesses.
Those of us who believe that the district court is in error are put in

a rather difficult position jof when a court enjoins a law, we rush to
delay its effective date so as to avoid the practical problems which

4 follow from the injunction.
First of all, it is an institutional problem for the Congress that

swe are in a sense letting the court run u8 around. Second, from a
philosophical standpoint, the courts are supposed to be very reluc-
tant to declare laws of Congress unconstitutional, and it seems to
me that we encourage them to use that power if we start descend-
ing the effective date of law every time one district judge rules
that an act of Congress vi lates a provision of the Constitution.

So while I appreciate our practical problems, I have trouble
philosophically with delaying the effective date of a law because
one district court has invalidated it and I don't even agree with
him.

I say this as background for my previous comments, I think it
may help in responding to them.

Mr. VELTASON. Well, I personally would hope that the Depart-
ment of Justice would move quickly to seek .a clarification of the
situation,. I agree with you., When an Act of CON-reslehas been-

-.
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when it's constitutionality has been called into question, we need aquick resolution of that. We would all be better off if that takes
place promptly.
- We are not asking for a delay in the legal processing. We are just
flaying it does complicate and add conftision to the situation.

Mr. HARRISON. Have any of you considered intervening in the
Minnesota suit for the purpose of attempting to bring about a final
resolution?

Mr. PELTASON. The answer to that question is yes. We have not
made any final decisionnot that particular litigation, but wehave considered whether or not, how could we- get the legal part
solved?

Mr. REVER. Mr. Harrison, may I ask Mr. Olsen to respond to the
question about how things are proceeding in ,Minnesota because he
visited with the plaintiffs' attorneys I think- as recently as 24 hours
ago.

Mr. OLSEN. That's right, Mr. Chairman, I talked to two of the at-
torneys who are handling the case for some of the student plain-
tiffs in Minnesota. Where that stands procedurally is that theplaintiffs have moved for summary judgment. They filed their
papers last week.

There is no time period set by the court for the filing of the re-
sponsive papers by the Department of Justice. I understand that
the Department of Justice has made the decision, at least as an in-
terim step, not to appeal the preliminary injunction, but to proceed
to attempt to get an adjudication on the merits.

I am advised by the plaintiffs' attorneys, however, that they have
been told by the Department of Justice that if Judge Alsop does
not move quickly enough in his court to resolve it on the merits,
they may seek an appeal of the preliminary injunction.

Now with respect to the interventiOn question, I was told by the
plaintiffs' attorneys that they are contemplating the possibility of
going back to like judge and asking him to amend his order- to re-
quire the Department of Education or the ,Selective Service System
to issue some sort of press release or other notice to the institu-
tions and lenders as to the impact of this injunction, on them.I think it's fair to say after my discussions with them that the
exact scope of the injunction is a matter..of great controversy be-
tween the plaintiffs and the Department -Of Justice, those who are
actually sitting there before the judge.

The plaintiffs' attorneys also advised me that it is their position
that the injunction should be interpreted fairly broadly; second,
that they believe that the attempt by financial aid officers to
secure a signature on the financial aid statementI mean, securea signature on the certificationwould constitute a violation of the
injunction, and third, that if that were dale, they would seek to
obtain in court show-cause orders to why that does not violate the
court's order.

In light of all of that, and in the light of our reading of the liter-
al language of the court's injunction, we have advised our clientsthat the pru ent course of action is to refrain from taking anysteps at all t enforce section 1113.

Mr. HARR SON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no further
questions.

20Ei
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Mr. SIMON. Mr. Petri.
Mr. PETRI. No questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Andrews.
Mr. ANDREWS. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. Mr. Owens.
Mr. OWENS. No, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. SIMON. We thank the witnesses very much.
The subcommittee is adjourned.
[Whereupon, at' 10:15 a.m., on March 23, 1983, the subcommittee

was adjourned.]
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